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CORPORATE INFORMATION
RAEEHR

DIRECTORS

Executive Directors:

Chan, Hoi-wan (Chief Executive Officer)
Chan, Lok-wan

Non-executive Directors:
Lau, Ming-wai (Chairman)
Amy Lau, Yuk-wai

Independent Non-executive Directors:
Chan, Kwok-wai

Leung, Yun-fai

Phillis Loh, Lai-ping

Ma, Tsz-chun

AUDIT COMMITTEE

Chan, Kwok-wai (Chairman)
Leung, Yun-fai

Phillis Loh, Lai-ping

Ma, Tsz-chun

INVESTMENT COMMITTEE
Chan, Hoi-wan (Chairman)

Chan, Lok-wan (Chief Investment Officer)
Chan, Kwok-wai

Leung, Yun-fai

Ma, Tsz-chun

NOMINATION COMMITTEE
Phillis Loh, Lai-ping (Chairman)

Chan, Kwok-wai

Leung, Yun-fai

Ma, Tsz-chun

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

Chan, Kwok-wai (Chairman)
Leung, Yun-fai
Phillis Loh, Lai-ping

Ma, Tsz-chun

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mak, Kai-yee

AUTHORISED REPRESENTATIVES

Chan, Hoi-wan

Mak, Kai-yee
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SOLICITORS

(Listed in alphabetical order)
Reynolds Porter Chamberlain
S.Y. Wong & Co.

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS
HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited

BANKERS

(Listed in alphabetical order)

China Construction Bank (Asia) Corporation Limited
DBS Bank (Hong Kong) Limited

Deutsche Bank AG, Singapore Branch

Industrial and Commercial Bank of China (Asia) Limited
OCBC Bank (Hong Kong) Limited

Oversea-Chinese Banking Corporation Limited

The Bank of East Asia, Limited, London Branch

PLACE OF INCORPORATION

Bermuda

REGISTERED OFFICE
Victoria Place, 5th Floor

31 Victoria Street

Hamilton HM 10

Bermuda

PRINCIPAL OFFICE IN HONG KONG
2 1st Floor, Chubb Tower

Windsor House

311 Gloucester Road

Causeway Bay, Hong Kong

PRINCIPAL REGISTRAR AND TRANSFER OFFICE

MUFG Fund Services (Bermuda) Limited
4th Floor North, Cedar House

41 Cedar Avenue

Hamilton HM 12

Bermuda
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CORPORATE INFORMATION A RE#

BRANCH REGISTRAR AND TRANSFER OFFICE
IN HONG KONG

Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited

Shops 1712-1716

17th Floor, Hopewell Centre

183 Queen’s Road East

Wanchai, Hong Kong

Tel: (852) 2862 8555

Fax: (852) 2865 0990/(852) 2529 6087

OFFICE IN THE PEOPLE'S REPUBLIC OF CHINA

Room 1003, 10th Floor, Oriental Place
No. 9 East Dongfang Road

North Dongsanhuan Road

Chaoyang District, Beijing, PRC

Post Code: 100027

Tel: (8610) 6466 0638

Fax.  (8610) 6466 0238

OFFICE IN UNITED KINGDOM

Front and Rear Suite, Ground Floor
11 and 12 St James's Square
London, United Kingdom

Post Code: SW1Y 4LB

Tel: (4420) 4559 0544

WEBSITE

https://www.chineseestates.com

STOCK CODE

127

BOARD LOT
500 shares

INVESTOR RELATIONS

For enquiries relating to investor relations, please contact:
Tel: (852) 2866 6999

Fax.  (852) 2866 2822/(852) 2866 2833

E-mail:  investor.relations@chineseestates.com
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Ms. CHAN, Hoi-wan, aged 44, has been appointed as an Executive
Director of the Company since 2017 and acts as the Chief Executive
Officer of the Company since 2021. Ms. Chan is also the chairman of
the investment committee of the Company. She also acts as a director
of certain subsidiaries of the Company. Ms. Chan had joined the then
associate of the Group (the Company together with its subsidiaries,
collectively the “Group”) from 2002 to 2005 and participated in its
cosmetics business, including Two Girls products. She also possessed of
more than 3.5 years’ work experience in media field in Hong Kong and
gained experience in properties and securities investments through her
investments. Ms. Chan is the elder sister of Ms. Chan, Lok-wan, the step-
mother of Mr. Lau, Ming-wai and the sister-in-law of Ms. Amy Lau, Yuk-
wai. As at the date of this annual report, Ms. Chan is a director of certain
substantial shareholders of the Company within the meaning of Part XV of
the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the laws of Hong
Kong).

Ms. CHAN, Lok-wan, aged 39, joined the Group in 2008 and has been
appointed as an Executive Director of the Company since 2015. She is the
Manager of Sales and Leasing Department. Ms. Chan is also a member
of the investment committee of the Company and acts as the chief
investment officer. She also acts as a director of certain subsidiaries of the
Company. Ms. Chan holds a Bachelor Degree of Science in Business and
Management (Marketing) from Brunel University London and a Master
Degree of Science in Communication, Information and Society from The
London School of Economics and Political Science. She is responsible for
the Group’s marketing affairs, overseeing the Group’s cosmetics business,
including Two Girls products, and participated in the Group's properties’
sales and leasing businesses. Ms. Chan has over 15 years of experience in
sales and marketing. She is the younger sister of Ms. Chan, Hoi-wan and

the aunt of Mr. Lau, Ming-wai.
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PROFILES OF DIRECTORS EEN

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. LAU, Ming-wai, aged 43, has been appointed as a Director of the
Company since 2006 and appointed as the Chairman of the board of
Directors since 2014. Mr. Lau holds a Bachelor Degree of Laws from
King's College London, a Master Degree of Laws from The London School
of Economics and Political Science, and a Doctor Degree of Philosophy
in Laws from King's College London. He worked at The Goldman Sachs
Group, Inc. and Longview Partners LP, both in London prior to joining the
Group. Mr. Lau is a registered attorney in the State of New York and a CFA
(Chartered Financial Analyst) charterholder. He is the step-son of Ms. Chan,

Hoi-wan, and the nephew of Ms. Chan, Lok-wan and Ms. Amy Lau, Yuk-wai.

Ms. Amy LAU, Yuk-wai, aged 71, has been appointed as a Non-executive
Director of the Company since 2004. Ms. Lau is also a non-executive
director of Lifestyle International Holdings Limited, the shares of this
company were previously listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) and had withdrawn from
listing with effect from 20 December 2022. She is a retired dentist. Ms. Lau
holds a Bachelor Degree of Science and a Doctor Degree of Dental Surgery
from the University of Toronto, Canada. She is the sister-in-law of Ms. Chan,

Hoi-wan and the aunt of Mr. Lau, Ming-wai.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. CHAN, Kwok-wai, aged 65, has been appointed as an Independent
Non-executive Director of the Company since 2004. He is the chairman of
the audit committee and remuneration committee, and a member of the
nomination committee and investment committee of the Company. Mr.
Chan holds a Bachelor Degree of Business Administration from the Monash
University, Australia. He is also a member of CPA Australia and a member
of the Hong Kong Securities and Investment Institute. Mr. Chan has over
44 years of experience in finance and accounting industries. He is currently
a director of High Progress Consultants Limited. Mr. Chan is also an
independent non-executive director of Hing Yip Holdings Limited (formerly
known as China Investments Holdings Limited), National Electronics
Holdings Limited and Tern Properties Company Limited respectively;
and was an independent non-executive director of Far East Consortium
International Limited for the period from 18 November 2005 to 30 August
2022, the shares of all these companies are listed on the Main Board of

the Stock Exchange.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

(Cont'd)

Mr. LEUNG, Yun-fai, aged 66, appointed as an Independent Non-
executive Director of the Company and a member of the audit committee,
remuneration committee, nomination committee and investment
committee of the Company respectively, on 10 March 2023. Mr. Leung
holds a Degree of Bachelor of Business Administration, Finance and
Accountancy from Newport University, United States of America. He is a
member of the Hong Kong Securities and Investment Institute. Mr. Leung
has over 43 years of experience in auditing, finance, accounting and
corporate advisory industries, including 20 years audit experience at Kwan
Wong Tan & Fong and Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu. He is currently a director

of Safestyle Consulting Limited.

Ms. Phillis LOH, Lai-ping, aged 59, has been appointed as an
Independent Non-executive Director of the Company since 2006. She
is the chairman of the nomination committee, a member of the audit
committee and remuneration committee of the Company. Ms. Loh was an
independent non-executive director of In Technical Productions Holdings
Limited for the period from 19 May 2017 to 10 May 2022, the shares
of this company are listed on the Growth Enterprise Market of the Stock
Exchange. She holds a Bachelor Degree of Laws and a Postgraduate
Certificate in Laws, both from The University of Hong Kong. Ms. Loh was a
practising solicitor from 1990 to 1997, and has since become a practicing
barrister-at-law after she was called to the Hong Kong Bar in 1998. She
was admitted as a solicitor in Hong Kong (1990) and the United Kingdom
(1991), and is also a barrister and solicitor in the Supreme Court of the
Australian Capital Territory (since 1991). Ms. Loh is a CEDR (Centre for
Effective Dispute Resolution) Accredited Mediator (2009). She was an
appointed member of the Board of Review (Inland Revenue Ordinance)
from 2018 to 2020 and has been appointed as a Deputy Chairman of
such penal since 2021. Ms. Loh was appointed Deputy District Judge
during different periods between 2014 and 2023, and Temporary Deputy
Registrar of the High Court in 2018.
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PROFILES OF DIRECTORS EEN

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
(Cont'd)

Mr. MA, Tsz-chun, aged 58, has been appointed as an Independent
Non-executive Director of the Company since 2008. He is a member of
the audit committee, remuneration committee, nomination committee
and investment committee of the Company. Mr. Ma is a Certified Public
Accountant (Practising) and has over 36 years of experience in auditing,
finance and accounting industries. He is currently a director and the
general manager of Sino-Bridge China Consulting Limited. Mr. Ma is
also an independent non-executive director of Lotus Horizon Holdings
Limited and was an independent non-executive director of In Technical
Productions Holdings Limited for the period from 19 May 2017 to 10
May 2022, the shares of these companies are listed on the Main Board
and the Growth Enterprise Market of the Stock Exchange respectively. He
holds a Master Degree in Business Administration and a Master of Science
Degree in E-Commerce (Business Programme), both from The Chinese
University of Hong Kong as well as a Master of Science Degree in China
Business Studies from The Hong Kong Polytechnic University. Mr. Ma is a
fellow member of The Association of Chartered Certified Accountants in
the United Kingdom and an associate member of Hong Kong Institute of

Certified Public Accountants.
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Ms. Rhoda CHAU, Yuen-fun, aged 59, first joined the Group (the
Company together with its subsidiaries, collectively the “Group”) in 1993
(thereafter left the Group for a short duration during 2009 and re-joined
the Group in the same year) and is the Group Financial Controller. Ms.
Chau holds a Master of Professional Accounting degree from The Hong
Kong Polytechnic University. She is a fellow member of both of the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the Association of
Chartered Certified Accountants. Ms. Chau is responsible for the accounting,
financial reporting and taxation affairs. She has over 34 years of experience
in the fields of auditing, accounting, financial reporting and taxation. Ms.

Chau also acts as a director of certain subsidiaries of the Company.

Mr. Simon CHEUNG, Sung-fung, aged 42, joined the Group in 2007 and
is the Head of Leasing Department. Mr. Cheung is a chartered surveyor. He
holds a Bachelor Degree of Business Administration (Honours) in Marketing
from the City University of Hong Kong and a Master Degree of Science
in Real Estate from The University of Hong Kong. He is also a member of
The Royal Institution of Chartered Surveyors. Mr. Cheung is responsible
for the real estate asset management. He has over 20 years of relevant
experience. Mr. Cheung also acts as a director of certain subsidiaries of the

Company.

Ms. Hazel LAI, Ming-yan, aged 55, joined the Group in 2000 and is the
Senior Manager — Contracts of Project Development Department. Ms.
Lai is a registered professional surveyor. She holds a Bachelor Degree of
Science in Building from the City University of Hong Kong and a Master
Degree of Science in Construction and Real Estate from The Hong Kong
Polytechnic University. She is also a member of The Hong Kong Institute
of Surveyors and The Royal Institution of Chartered Surveyors. Ms. Lai is
responsible for the quantity surveying affairs. She has over 33 years of

relevant experience.

Various businesses and functions of the Company are significantly under
the direct responsibilities of the Executive Directors who are also regarded

as senior executives of the Company.

PROFILES OF SENIOR EXECUTIVES
BRITBRAEEN

ABBF Lt BFES95  R—NAN=ZFEXIMAR
SE(ARRERENBAR - SE[AE@]) (Hk
NZTENFREHAANER - WHRFHERINA
AEE) RESEVKEE AxtHEEEE
TAREEESHETEMN - HABESHMAGR
EEFAARSHAAEEFREE - ARLEEY
P MEBRERBEEE - HELE - g5 M5
RERBBHAAREBE=-THFLR - AXLh
EERRBIETHBARZES -

REELE  RF0RE R_ZELFMALE
B REEBBEIE - REERBIFUEM o KI5
BEEBRTAEMSR2(REB) INERELBUR
BREABEMEL (BHE)BL - FFRREER
HIANEMBEEE8 - RELAEAFHMEERER
B WAERB - THFERABLR - RAEETHEAR
AETHEBRARZES -

BPAMZL  BFS5H R_TTTFNMALE
B REREERBEALE - TRAR - BE L
REMEXBEE - RIFATERTHTABRERE
BTEURBFEAETABRERSHESEERL
B - FHRREEANEMZEREEAERTFAE
ME2ggs RLTAEIHAISFE - REER
=T =FAAEER -

ARRBBREBRBEAB O HATEETEKA
B REMRBR/ARBNSRITRAE -

m

TEIC-FFR

N £5 5 BN



CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
EE®RES

I am pleased to present the results of the Company and its subsidiaries
(the “Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2023 (the "Year") to the
shareholders of the Company.

RESULTS

Profit for the Year attributable to owners of the Company was HK$76.8
million as compared to HK$1,152.2 million for last year. The decrease in
profit for the Year was mainly due to (a) decrease in dividend income from
an investee company; (b) turnaround of fair value changes of investment
properties from gain to loss; and (c) increase in finance costs; despite of
(d) decrease in net loss from results of investments and treasury products
at fair value through profit or loss; and (e) increase in share of results
of investments accounted for using the equity method during the Year.
Earnings per share for the Year was HK$0.04 (2022: HK$0.60).

If the net gain on the major non-cash items of HK$144.5 million (2022:
HK$513.1 million) is excluded, but the accumulated realised fair value
gain and related deferred tax recognised in prior years on disposal of an
investment property of HK$0.5 million is included, the Group will have a
core loss for the Year attributable to owners of the Company of HK$67.2
million (2022: core profit of HK$639.1 million) and a core loss per share
of HK$0.04 (2022: core profit per share of HK$0.34).

The major non-cash items represented the attributable net unrealised
fair value gain on investment properties together with their respective
deferred tax from the Group and its associates of HK$144.5 million (2022:
HK$513.1 million).

DIVIDENDS

The board of directors of the Company (the “Directors” or the “Board") has

not recommended the payment of final dividend for the Year (2022: nil).

Having considered the Company's dividend policy, to preserve more
cash for the Group's future financial, property investment or securities
investment opportunities, the Board has not recommended the payment of
final dividend for the Year (2022: nil).
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CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

For the purpose of ascertaining the members' eligibility to attend and vote
at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company to be held on
24 May 2024 (the “2024 AGM"), the register of members will be closed
from 21 May 2024 to 24 May 2024, both days inclusive. In order to
eligible to attend and vote at the 2024 AGM, all properly completed share
transfers documents accompanied by the relevant share certificates must
be lodged for registration with the Company's Branch Registrar and Transfer
Office in Hong Kong, namely Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services
Limited, at Shops 1712—-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen's
Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong not later than 4:30 p.m. on 20 May 2024.

CULTURE

With its over 100 years of establishment, Chinese Estates instils a culture
that emphasizes on quality and strives for perfection in all aspects of its
operations; innovation and creativity. Historically, the Group specialized in
developing mid to high-end commercial and residential property projects
and earned its reputation for place making its investment properties

through redevelopment and renovation.

Directors play a leading role in promoting the Company's desired culture.
Management and employees instil the culture across the Group through
different channels from time to time. The desired culture is developed
and reflected consistently in the operating practices of the Group. The

Company's purpose, values and strategy align with the Company’s culture.
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT FE®REE

PURPOSE, VALUES, STRATEGY AND BUSINESS
MODEL

The Group's core businesses comprise property investments for rental
and property development as well as securities investments. Investment

properties are primarily located in Hong Kong and the United Kingdom.

The Group's investment properties in Hong Kong include retail and office
assets. Most of the investment properties of Group are highly accessible
and strategically located in prime commercial areas and generate stable
and recurrent rental income for the Group. The Group also participates in

developing modern industrial properties in Hong Kong.

In the United Kingdom, all the Group’s commercial and residential
properties are located in the prestigious areas. The Group aims at
enhancing value and recurrent revenue of investment properties through
conceptualising and implementing redevelopment, renovation works and
repackaging programmes for properties as well as actively managing a
balanced tenant mix for retail properties to achieve long-term sustainable
growth. The redevelopment and revitalization of its flagship project “120
Fleet Street” had been started since 2022. Through the project, the Group
strives to achieve exceptionally high standard of environmental sustainability
and develop a business platform with art and commerce thriving in unison.
In view of the pioneer design and the new feature of the redevelopment,
the Group looks forward to attracting top grade international financial

corporations and first tier professional firms to occupy the office floors.

Apart from the aforesaid, the Group has conducted variety of securities
investment business, such as equity investments, debt investments and
other treasury products, with the aim to yield enhancement for treasury

management.

Meanwhile, the Group is actively grasping the opportunity for acquiring
properties in Hong Kong, the United Kingdom and other countries. The
Group continues its strategy in quality partnerships with property developers
or other parties to the extent commercially feasible and beneficial to the

Group's development.

The Group believes that the stable rental income from its investment
properties, together with the property development and trading as well as
securities investment, forms a diversified cash flow stream which allows the

Group to weather the cyclicality of the real estate business.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Hong Kong Property Investment and Development

As at 31 December 2023, the occupancy rate of the shops of Causeway

Place in Causeway Bay was approximately 89.57%.

During the Year, the average occupancy rate of the office property, Harcourt
House in Wanchai was approximately 74.64%. Together with the retail
portion, the average occupancy rate of Harcourt House was approximately
76.27% during the Year.

Nos. 14—18 Ma Kok Street is an industrial site in Tsuen Wan. It will be
redeveloped into a 25-storey industrial building (including 2 basement
levels for parking and loading/unloading facilities). Its total gross floor area is
approximately 227,954 square feet. Construction of the new development
is currently underway, with the main contract works (basement and
superstructure) in progress. The new building is expected to be completed
by early 2025 and presale of the industrial units is rescheduled to the first
quarter of 2024.

Nos. 86 and 88 Apliu Street is a 25-storey residential-cum-commercial
building in Sham Shui Po. Retail portion at ground floor was fully let
during the Year. Since September 2023, other floors have been let to a
non-governmental organisation to operate a youth hostel in the name
of Joseph's House under the “Youth Hostel Scheme — Subsidy Scheme
for Using Hotels and Guesthouses as Youth Hostels” approved by the
Government. Joseph's House consists a total of 42 rooms with up to 84

hostel places.

No. 1 Hung To Road (33.33% interest), a 33-storey industrial building in
Kwun Tong, the average occupancy rate was approximately 99.27% during
the Year.

Olympian City 3 (25% interest), the retail mall in The Hermitage residences
in West Kowloon, the occupancy rate was approximately 98.11% as at 31
December 2023.

Coronation Circle (15% interest), the retail mall in The Coronation
residences in West Kowloon, the average occupancy rate was approximately
29.85% during the Year.

Grand Central (10% interest) is a joint venture development project of the
Group in Kwun Tong awarded by the Urban Renewal Authority, with a total
gross floor area of around 1,853,561 square feet. It comprises two phases
with 4 residential tower blocks and provides 1,999 residential units in
aggregate. Up to 31 December 2023, 1,022 units of first phase and 971

units of second phase were sold and completed.
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT FE®REE

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
(Cont'd)

Hong Kong Property Investment and Development (Cont'd)

In September 2023, the Group formed a joint venture to acquire the land
parcel at New Kowloon Inland Lot No. 6590, Kai Tak Area 2A Site 2 and
Site 3, Kai Tak, Kowloon (10% interest) by tender. The total site area of
the land is approximately 145,303 square feet and its total gross floor
area is around 992,279 square feet. The land was handed over from the
Government in October 2023. It will be developed into a residential and
retail development together with government, institution or community
facilities. The development is expected to be completed by the fourth
quarter of 2030.

Mainland China Property Investment

Hilton Beijing (50% interest), is a five-star international hotel having
506 rooms. 5th to 14th floors of the hotel main tower were pending for
renovation. Therefore, during the Year, there were 308 rooms available for

rent and its average occupancy rate was approximately 85.66%.

Oriental Place (50% interest), is a 10-storey office building next to Hilton
Beijing. Its average occupancy rate was approximately 86.33% during the

Year.

Overseas Property Investment and Development

“120 Fleet Street” consists of a freehold office building known as River
Court and the Grade II* listed Daily Express Building, situated at 116-129
Fleet Street, London, United Kingdom. It provides a total net internal area
of approximately 429,980 square feet, together with certain car parking
spaces. As at 31 December 2023, demolition works of River Court were
completed. River Court will be redeveloped into a 21-storey high rise Grade
A office led, mixed use building with 2 basement levels, and is expected
to comprise approximately 540,800 square feet of office space and
approximately 18,600 square feet of retail space and will be renamed as
Evergo Tower, while Daily Express Building will be retained and refurbished.

The project is expected to be completed in late 2026 tentatively.

“14 St George Street” is a freehold office building located in London,
United Kingdom with total net internal area of around 51,861 square feet.
Office accommodation is arranged over lower ground, ground and four
upper floors. Its average occupancy rate during the Year was approximately
98.48%.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
(Cont'd)

Overseas Property Investment and Development (Cont'd)

“61-67 Oxford Street and 11-14 Soho Street” is a mixed use freehold
building located in London, United Kingdom, comprising approximately
55,151 square feet in aggregate. The building provides retails, office and
residential accommodation, occupying approximately 33,843 square feet,
13,694 square feet and 7,614 square feet respectively, over lower ground,

ground and six upper floors. As at 31 December 2023, it was fully let.

“11 and 12 St James's Square and 14 to 17 Ormond Yard" is a mixed use
freehold building located in London, United Kingdom. Its total net internal
area is around 82,374 square feet. Office accommodation is arranged
over lower ground, ground and six upper floors. The occupancy rate was
approximately 46.90% during the Year on average. Upgrading works to part

of the office spaces were commenced in October 2023.

Securities Investment

The Group's strategy is to maintain securities investment portfolio for
treasury management. As at 31 December 2023, the Group's securities
investment portfolio comprised of listed equity investments, bonds and
treasury products. The Group's primary objectives when managing capital
are to safeguard the abilities of the entities in the Group to continue as a
going concern, so that it can continue to provide returns for shareholders of
the Company. The Group's strategy for future investments is to invest in a
diversified portfolio to minimise risks with attractive yield, good liquidity and
issuers from reputable entities, so as to maintain a healthy financial status

and grasp every good investment chance.

The net loss recognised from securities investments and treasury products
for the Year was approximately HK$22.2 million. Details of the performance
of securities investments are disclosed in the “Financial Operation Review"

of this annual report.

The Group will continue to closely monitor its portfolio of securities

investment to achieve satisfactory returns.
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT FE®REE

OTHER INFORMATION

Leasing of Windsor House

- Connected Transaction and Continuing Connected Transaction

On 13 March 2023, the Group (as tenant) entered into a tenancy
agreement in relation to the renewal of the leasing of the whole of 39th
floor of Chubb Tower, Windsor House (the “Premises”) with a company
indirectly owned by Ms. Chan, Hoi-wan (an Executive Director, the
Chief Executive Officer of the Company and a trustee of the substantial
shareholders of the Company (who are her minor children)) as trustee
for her minor children (as landlord) (the “Transaction”), for the purpose
of continuing to use the Premises as being part of the headquarter of
the Group. The Transaction constituted a connected transaction and
a continuing connected transaction for the Company under the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”) as more described in the Company’s

announcement dated 13 March 2023.

Changes in Directors, Group Financial Controller,
Company Secretary, Authorised Representative

and Members of Board Committees

On 10 March 2023, the Board appointed Mr. Leung, Yun-fai as an
Independent Non-executive Director (“INED"), and a member of the Audit
Committee, the Remuneration Committee, the Nomination Committee and
the Investment Committee of the Company respectively with effect from

the conclusion of relevant Board meeting held on 10 March 2023.

On 10 May 2023, Mr. Lam, Kwong-wai (“Mr. Lam") resigned from his
offices of an Executive Director, the Group Financial Controller and the
Company Secretary of the Company with effect from the conclusion of the
annual general meeting of the Company held on 25 May 2023. Following
the resignation of Mr. Lam, he ceased to act as an authorised representative
of the Company under Rule 3.05 of the Listing Rules (the "Authorised
Representative”) as well as a member and the Chief Investment Officer
of the Investment Committee of the Company. The Board appointed Ms.
Chau, Yuen-fun as the Group Financial Controller; Ms. Mak, Kai-yee as the
Company Secretary and the Authorised Representative; and Ms. Chan, Lok-
wan (an Executive Director) as a member and the Chief Investment Officer

of the Investment Committee in succession to Mr. Lam.

The Board currently comprised eight Directors with INEDs representing

more than one-third of the Board.
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OTHER INFORMATION (contd)

Forfeiture of Unclaimed Dividends

As announced on 21 July 2023, all dividends declared on or before 31
May 2017 remaining unclaimed on 21 August 2023 be forfeited and

reverted to the Company.

Contract for Services

- Continuing Connected Transactions

On 16 August 2023, the Group entered into a contract for services with
Ms. Chan, Hoi-wan (an Executive Director, the Chief Executive Officer
of the Company and a trustee of the substantial shareholders of the
Company (who are her minor children)), whereby the Group agreed to
provide to Ms. Chan, Hoi-wan and/or her associate(s) or relative(s) leasing
administration services, sale administration services, property management
services, property administration services, asset management and
maintenance services, rental services, advisory and consultancy services,
and other ordinary services for a term of three years commenced on 1
November 2023 (the “Contract”). The entering into of the Contract and the
transactions contemplated thereunder constituted continuing connected
transactions for the Company under the Listing Rules as more described in

the Company's announcement dated 16 August 2023.

Formation of Joint Venture and Successful Tender of Land

- Major Transaction

As announced on 14 September 2023, a joint venture (formed and
ultimately held by the Company, Sino Land Company Limited (stock code:
83), China Overseas Land and Investment Limited (stock code: 688) and
Great Eagle Holdings Limited (stock code: 41)) had on 13 September
2023 received confirmation from the Government accepting its tender for
the land situated at Kai Tak Area 2A Site 2 and Site 3, Kai Tak, Kowloon,
Hong Kong (the “Land”) at the land premium of HK$5,350 million (the

“Acquisition”).

The Land will be developed into a residential and retail development
together with government accommaodation with disposal of the residential

units erected thereon as the prime objective.

The Acquisition and the joint venture arrangements constituted major
transaction for the Company under the Listing Rules as more described
in the Company’s announcement dated 14 September 2023 and circular
dated 6 October 2023.
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT FE®REE

INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Company is continuously committed to maintaining good
communication with shareholders, investors and analysts in order to ensure
their thorough understanding of the Group’s strategies and business

development, thereby enhancing transparency and investor relations.

The Company maintains a Company’s website (https://www.chineseestates.com)
to make the Company's information available on the internet, including the
dissemination of statutory announcements and circulars etc., to facilitate
its communication with shareholders and to provide important information
to the investing public on corporate governance structure, policies and
systems, profiles of the Directors and senior executives as well as terms of

reference of Board committees.

The up-to-date information of the Group is available for public
access on the Company's website. The Company encourages its
shareholders to take advantage of the Company’s website and
welcomes suggestions from investors and shareholders, and invites
them to share their views and suggestions by contacting the Company at

investor.relations@chineseestates.com.

Shareholders can raise their enquiries to the Board or the company
secretary of the Company in writing by sending such written enquiries
to the principal office of the Company in Hong Kong at the address
disclosed in “Corporate Information” of this annual report or by email at
investor.relations@chineseestates.com. Shareholders also have right to

raise questions at general meetings.

PROSPECTS

The global economy proved to be more resilient than expected in 2023,
at 3% global gross domestic product growth surpassed consensus
expectations by 1 percentage point; and was trending towards a state
of new normalcy, amid the uncertainties that have been occurring over
the past year, like tightening financial conditions, simmering geopolitical

tensions, stubborn inflation, etc.

The local residential property market, amid the persistent high interest rates
and the challenging external environment, has turned more sluggish in
the third quarter of 2023. Buyers’ purchasing power is still heavily affected
by the interest rates and the slow economic growth. It is anticipated
that potential interest rate cuts in the later parts of 2024, together with
the recent Government's relaxation measures, could stimulate market

transaction volume and stabilise prices.
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PROSPECTS (Cont'd)

Supported by inbound tourism and private consumption, Hong Kong's
economy has continued to revive since the last quarter of 2023, will remain
as key drivers behind a solid economic growth in the near term. The Group
considers the Government's initiatives in organising of promotional activities
and mega events for tourism could attract more inbound tourists and boost
customer spending, which would benefit the Group's retail investment

properties.

On the social community front, the Group joined hands with a
non-governmental organisation to develop a youth hostel project, named
Joseph's House, which has begun operations during 2023. The Group
is dedicated to creating values for society. In future, we will continue to
participate charitable activities to show our love, care and support to the
society, and to further strengthen the connection with the community and

bring positive changes to the community.

In the United Kingdom, the Group is undergoing property redevelopment
and asset enhancements for our investment properties located in the heart
of London, and thus rental income will be affected. The Group believes that
the revamped properties will meet high demands of top-tier international
commercial occupiers. We consider sustainability as a strategy in creating

long-term business value.

Looking into the year ahead, volatility and uncertainties are likely to remain
in place. The Group is poised to meet challenges and seek opportunities

for future growth.
APPRECIATION

I would like to take this opportunity to express my gratitude to the
shareholders for their continuing support. | would also like to express
my sincere thanks to my fellow directors and all staff members for their

dedication and hard work.

Lau, Ming-wai

Chairman

Hong Kong, 15 March 2024
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FINANCIAL OPERATION REVIEW
UECE S E)

RESULTS

Revenue

Revenue for the year ended 31 December 2023 (“Year") amounted to
HK$479.6 million (2022: HK$1,435.0 million), a decrease of 66.6%
over last year and comprised gross rental income of HK$257.2 million
(2022: HK$293.7 million), gain on sales of investments held-for-trading
on a net basis of HK$65.8 million (2022: HK$28.6 million), dividend
income from listed and unlisted equity investments of HK$81.7 million
(2022: HK$1,023.0 million), interest income from bonds and structured
products of HK$9.1 million (2022: HK$22.0 million), building and property
management services income of HK$51.7 million (2022: HK$52.0 million)
and others of HK$14.1 million (2022: HK$15.7 million). The decrease in
revenue was mainly due to decrease of dividend income from an investee
company engages in property development and trading of HK$938.0

million for the Year.

Gross Profit

Gross profit for the Year amounted to HK$430.3 million (2022:
HK$1,376.7 million), a decrease of 68.7% as compared with last year
which was also mainly due to decrease in dividend income from an

investee company for the Year.
Property Leasing

For property leasing, the rental revenue in non-retail section decreased
by 14.4% to HK$195.1 million and retail section decreased by 5.5% to
HK$62.1 million during the Year. The total rental income in revenue for the
Year recorded a decrease of 12.4% to HK$257.2 million as compared with
last year of HK$293.7 million. The decrease in rental income was mainly
due to the Company's and its subsidiaries’ (collectively the “Group's”)
investment properties located in the United Kingdom are undergoing

redevelopment and asset enhancement works.
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FINANCIAL OPERATION REVIEW

RESULTS (Cont'd)

Property Leasing (Cont'd)

Together with the attributable rental revenue generated from associates
and investee companies of HK$121.3 million (2022: HK$87.0 million),
the total attributable rental revenue to the Group amounted to HK$378.5
million (2022: HK$380.7 million), which represents a decrease of 0.6%

over last year.

Attributable net rental income for the Year showed HK$323.1 million, a

decrease of 0.8% over HK$325.7 million in last year.
Property Development and Trading

During the Year, the Group did not dispose of any trading property (2022:

no disposal).

In respect of properties held by an investee company, sales of 80 units
and certain parking spaces of Grand Central in Kwun Tong (10% interest)
were recorded by the investee company during the Year. Following the
recognition of sales and profits by the investee company, the investee
company declared dividends and hence dividend income from the investee
company had contributed HK$76.0 million (2022: HK$1,014.0 million) to

the Group's revenue and profit during the Year.

The Group's investee company recorded attributable sales of HK$120.2
million (2022: HK$186.8 million) for the Year.

Securities Investments

The Group has in the ordinary and usual course of business conducted
its securities investment activities, as at 31 December 2023, comprised
listed equity investments, bonds and treasury products. During the Year,
the net loss (excluding gain/loss recognised in financial assets measured
at fair value through other comprehensive income (“FVTOCI") reserve)
recognised from securities investments and treasury products representing
net loss on investments and treasury products at fair value through profit or
loss (“FVTPL") of HK$22.2 million (2022: HK$274.0 million).
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FINANCIAL OPERATION REVIEW B # £ % 51 B8

RESULTS (Cont'd)

Securities Investments (Cont'd)

Investments and Treasury Products at Fair Value Through Profit or

Loss

During the Year, the Group disposed of listed investments held-for-trading
and recognised a realised gain of HK$65.8 million (2022: HK$28.6 million)
(the gains/losses of which was included in revenue) with gross proceeds
of HK$617.3 million (2022: HK$1,486.8 million). In addition, realised loss
on bonds of HK$5.9 million (2022: realised gain of HK$0.3 million) and
realised loss on structured products and derivative financial instruments of
HK$0.6 million (2022: HK$0.6 million) were recorded during the Year.

During the Year, the Group recorded an unrealised loss of HK$95.8 million
(2022: HK$318.3 million) representing the changes in fair value of bonds,
listed equity investments and structured product and derivative financial
instrument, comprised unrealised loss on bonds of HK$65.9 million (2022:
HK$160.2 million), unrealised loss on listed investments held-for-trading
of HK$29.8 million (2022: HK$158.1 million) and unrealised loss on
derivative financial instrument of HK$0.1 million (2022: minimal unrealised
gain on structured product), which had no effect on the cash flow of the
Group. The unrealised loss on bonds mainly included bonds issued by
the People’s Republic of China ("PRC")-based real estate developers, the
Group believes that the decrease in price of bonds in the industry of PRC-
based real estate in the Year, among others, was owing to concerns about
the liquidity and going concern issues and the tightening gearing policy over
the real estate developers in the PRC. Given the unsatisfactory performance
of stock market in Hong Kong during the Year, the price of listed equity

investments experienced a downside in general.

During the Year, interest income from bonds and structured products (which
were included in revenue) amounted to HK$8.8 million (2022: HK$21.0
million) and HK$0.3 million (2022: HK$1.0 million) respectively. Together
with dividend income from listed equity investments at FVTPL (which
were included in revenue) of HK$5.1 million (2022: HK$8.3 million), the
Group recognised interest/dividend income from investments and treasury
products at FVTPL of HK$14.2 million (2022: HK$30.3 million) for the

Year.
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FINANCIAL OPERATION REVIEW

RESULTS (Cont'd)

Securities Investments (Cont'd)

Investments and Treasury Products at Fair Value Through Profit or
Loss (Cont'd)

Summing up the realised and unrealised gain/loss and adding the net
income from net dividend income, interest income and other investment
income/expenses of HK$14.3 million (2022: net income from net
dividend income, interest income, other investment income/expenses and
net finance income/costs of HK$16.0 million), the net loss recognised from
securities investments and treasury products was HK$22.2 million (2022:
HK$274.0 million) for the Year.

Listed Equity Investments at Fair Value Through Other

Comprehensive Income

During the Year, the Group disposed all of its listed equity investment
at FVTOCI and recorded a realised loss of HK$65.2 million (inclusive of
transaction costs) (2022: realised gain of HK$15.0 million (inclusive of
transaction costs) and an unrealised loss on fair value change of HK$105.7
million), was recognised as other comprehensive expense. Realised gain/
loss on fair value change is a cash item while unrealised fair value change

is a non-cash item and will not affect the cash flow of the Group.

Other Income and Expenses

During the Year, the Group recorded other income of HK$24.9 million
(2022: HK$18.0 million).

During the Year, administrative expenses decreased by 6.7% to HK$333.9
million (2022: HK$358.0 million). Finance costs increased by 67.8% to
HK$223.4 million (2022: HK$133.1 million) during the Year, including
exchange gain of HK$1.4 million (2022: HK$0.9 million) on translation of
foreign currency bank borrowing. The increase in finance costs was mainly

due to the surge in average interest rate during the Year.

Other gains and losses for the Year recorded a net gain of HK$6.6 million
(2022: loss of HK$7.5 million), the tumning from loss to gain for the Year
was mainly due to reversal of allowance for credit loss recognised in
respect of advance to an associate of HK$7.4 million of which the credit

loss was recorded in 2022.
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RESULTS (contd)

Investments Accounted for Using the Equity Method

The share of results of investments accounted for using the equity method
for the Year recorded a profit from the share of results of associates of
HK$296.3 million (2022: HK$45.4 million). The increase of share of results
of associates was mainly due to fair value change of investment properties
held by associates turned from loss to gain and recognition of reversal of

impairment loss by an associate during the Year.
Fair Value Changes on Investment Properties

Investment properties of the Group in Hong Kong and Mainland China
were revalued at 31 December 2023 by Peak Vision Appraisals Limited
("Peak Vision Appraisals”) whereas investment properties in the United
Kingdom were revalued by Moore Transaction Services Limited ("Moore
Transaction”). Peak Vision Appraisals and Moore Transaction are
independent qualified professional property valuers. An unrealised loss
on fair value changes of investment properties of HK$31.0 million (2022:
unrealised gain of HK$528.5 million) was recorded during the Year. The
unrealised fair value change is a non-cash item and will not affect the cash

flow of the Group.

PROFIT, CORE LOSS/PROFIT, DIVIDENDS,
REPURCHASE AND TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE
INCOME/EXPENSES

Profit

Profit for the Year attributable to owners of the Company was HK$76.8
million as compared to HK$1,152.2 million for last year. The decrease in
profit for the Year was mainly due to (a) decrease in dividend income from
an investee company; (b) turnaround of fair value changes of investment
properties from gain to loss; and (c) increase in finance costs; despite of
(d) decrease in net loss from results of investments and treasury products
at FVTPL; and (e) increase in share of results of investments accounted for
using the equity method during the Year. Earnings per share for the Year
was HK$0.04 (2022: HK$0.60).
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FINANCIAL OPERATION REVIEW

PROFIT, CORE LOSS/PROFIT, DIVIDENDS,
REPURCHASE AND TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE
INCOME/EXPENSES (contd)

Core Loss/Profit

Core profit/loss is a non-Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
("HKFRS") measure, is arrived at by adding (i) reported profit/loss
excluding unrealised fair value changes of investment properties and other
properties together with their respective deferred tax (if applicable) during
the Year; and (i) accumulated realised fair value changes of investment
properties and other properties together with their respective deferred
tax (if applicable) recognised in prior years. The Group believes that the
presentation of non-HKFRS measure facilitates comparisons of operating
performance from period to period by eliminating potential impact of

certain items.

If the net gain on the major non-cash items of HK$144.5 million (2022:
HK$513.1 million) is excluded, but the accumulated realised fair value
gain and related deferred tax recognised in prior years on disposal of an
investment property of HK$0.5 million is included, the Group will have a
core loss for the Year attributable to owners of the Company of HK$67.2
million (2022: core profit of HK$639.1 million) and a core loss per share
of HK$0.04 (2022: core profit per share of HK$0.34).

The major non-cash items represented the attributable net unrealised
fair value gain on investment properties together with their respective
deferred tax from the Group and its associates of HK$144.5 million (2022:
HK$513.1 million).

Dividends

No dividend was paid during the Year (2022: nil).

Repurchase

During the Year, the Company had not repurchased any of the Company's

share.
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PROFIT, CORE LOSS/PROFIT, DIVIDENDS,
REPURCHASE AND TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE
INCOME/EXPENSES (contd)

Total Comprehensive Income/Expenses

Total comprehensive income for the Year attributable to owners of the
Company was HK$227.5 million or HK$0.12 per share (2022: total
comprehensive expenses of HK$403.8 million or HK$0.21 per share),
which comprised (a) profit for the Year attributable to owners of the
Company of HK$76.8 million (2022: HK$1,152.2 million); and (b) other
comprehensive income for the Year attributable to owners of the Company
of HK$150.6 million (2022: other comprehensive expenses of HK$1,556.0
million) which mainly included (i) Pound Sterling (“GBP") exchange gain of
foreign operations of HK$284.6 million (2022: exchange loss of HK$484.0
million); (i) realised loss of HK$65.2 million (inclusive of transaction costs)
(2022: realised gain of HK$15.0 million (inclusive of transaction costs) and
unrealised loss of HK$105.7 million) on fair value change of a listed equity
investment at FVTOCI; and (iii) unrealised loss of HK$49.7 million (2022:
HK$862.5 million) on fair value change of an unlisted equity security at
FVTOCI as a result of the decrease in the carrying amount of the unlisted
equity security by the corresponding amount upon declaration of dividend
of HK$76.0 million (2022: HK$1,014.0 million) (as disclosed in the sub-
paragraph headed “Property Development and Trading” of paragraph

headed “Results” above).

NET ASSET VALUE

As at 31 December 2023, the Group's net asset value attributable to
owners of the Company amounted to HK$14,211.5 million (2022:
HK$13,979.5 million), an increase of HK$232.0 million or 1.7% when
compared with 31 December 2022. With the total number of ordinary
shares in issue of 1,907,619,079 as at 31 December 2023 and 2022,
the net asset value per share attributable to owners of the Company was
HK$7.45 (2022: HK$7.33). The movement in net asset value represented
total comprehensive income for the Year attributable to owners of the
Company of HK$227.5 million and forfeiture of unclaimed dividends

recorded in retained profits of HK$4.5 million.

In view of the redevelopment plan of properties in Tsuen Wan, Hong Kong
and “120 Fleet Street” in London, United Kingdom, certain redevelopment
expenditures which have been authorised and contracted for have been
disclosed in “Capital Commitments” in Note 41 to the consolidated
financial statements. Going forward, further investment in capital

expenditures for these two redevelopment properties are planned.
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FINANCIAL OPERATION REVIEW

NET ASSET VALUE (contd)

In addition, the Group also invested 10% interest in a property
development project located at New Kowloon Inland Lot No. 6590, Kai
Tak, Kowloon, Hong Kong. Details of the transaction were set out in
the announcement and circular of the Company dated 14 September
2023 and 6 October 2023 respectively. Other than the existing projects
and those disclosed in the final results, the Group did not have material
acquisition or disposal of assets and any future plans for material

investment or capital assets.
NET CURRENT LIABILITIES

The Group recorded net current liabilities as at 31 December 2023 of
HK$960.5 million (2022: net current assets of HK$18.8 million), of which
current assets were HK$1,555.1 million (2022: HK$3,078.9 million) and
current liabilities were HK$2,515.6 million (2022: HK$3,060.1 million).

The directors of the Company (“Directors”) are of the opinion that there
will be sufficient financial resources available to the Group to enable it to
meet its liabilities as and when they fall due. The Group believes that the
net current liabilities position as at 31 December 2023 would not have
adverse financial effect to the Group's liquidity or gearing position and the

Group has ability to continue as a going concern.
SECURITIES INVESTMENTS

The Group's strategy is to maintain securities investment portfolio for
treasury management and invest in securities investments and treasury
products with attractive yield and good prospect in order to bring stable

and satisfactory realised return in long run.
Securities Investments and Treasury Products

As at 31 December 2023, the portfolio of securities investments and
treasury products of HK$342.4 million comprised listed investments
held-for-trading, bonds and derivative financial instrument (presented as
financial assets/liabilities measured at FVTPL (non-current and current
assets/liabilities)) (2022: HK$702.3 million comprised listed investments
held-for-trading, bonds and structured product (presented as financial
assets measured at FVTPL (non-current and current assets)) in aggregate
of HK$592.5 million and listed equity investment (presented as financial
assets measured at FVTOCI) of HK$109.8 million), representing 1.8%
(2022: 3.6%) of total assets.
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SECURITIES INVESTMENTS (contd)

Unlisted Securities Investments

The Group also invested in an exempted limited partnership formed
under the Exempted Limited Partnership Law (Revised) of the Cayman
Islands (“Cayman Islands Partnership”) (presented as financial assets
measured at FVTOCI) and the carrying amount was HK$290.0 million as
at 31 December 2022. During the Year, the Group has contributed United
States dollar ("US$") 1.4 million (equivalent to approximately HK$10.6
million) which was funded from its distribution and received distributions
of US$35.4 million (equivalent to approximately HK$276.1 million)
(which were included in financial assets measured at FVTOCI). The Group
recognised fair value loss for the Year of HK$24.5 million (which was
recognised in financial assets measured at FVTOCI reserve). The Group
proceeded winding up of the Cayman Islands Partnership and it was

dissolved at the end of the reporting period.
RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group has established adequate risk management procedures that
enable it to identify, measure, monitor and control various types of risk it
faces. This is supplemented by active management involvement, effective
internal controls and adequate internal audit in the best interests of the

Group.
EQUITY

The number of issued ordinary shares as at 31 December 2023 and 2022
were 1,907,619,079.

DEBT AND GEARING

As at 31 December 2023, the Group's total debt amounted to HK$3,933.8
million (2022: HK$4,975.5 million), comprised bank borrowings of
HK$3,851.8 million (2022: HK$4,886.9 million) and lease liabilities
amounted to HK$82.0 million (2022: HK$88.6 million). Cash and deposits
at banks amounted to HK$592.2 million (2022: HK$2,038.8 million),
pledged deposits amounted to HK$152.9 million (2022: HK$147.8
million) and net debt (including lease liabilities) amounted to HK$3,188.7
million (2022: HK$2,788.9 million).
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DEBT AND GEARING (contd)

Total debt to equity ratio (including lease liabilities) was 27.6% (2022:
35.5%) and net debt to equity ratio (including lease liabilities) was 22.4%
(2022: 19.9%), which are expressed as a percentage of total debt, and
net debt, respectively, over the total equity of HK$14,235.1 million (2022:
HK$14,002.8 million).

If the securities investments and treasury products of HK$342.4 million
(2022: HK$702.3 million) are included, the net debt to equity ratio would
be 20.0% (2022: 14.9%).

As at 31 December 2023, the Group's bank borrowings of HK$3,851.8
million, 49.1%, 7.8%, 1.9% and 41.2% were repayable within 1 year,
on demand (bank borrowings that contain repayment on demand clause
but repayable within a period of more than one year), 1 to 2 years and
2 to 5 years respectively. Of which the Group's bank borrowings were
denominated in HK$ (58.0%) and GBP (42.0%). As at 31 December
2023, the Group's bank borrowings were carried at interest rates calculated
with reference to cost of funds, Hong Kong Interbank Offered Rate or
compounded reference rate and all the Group's bank borrowings were on
floating rate basis. No hedging for interest rate is subsisted at the end of

the reporting period.
PLEDGE OF ASSETS

As at 31 December 2023, the Group had pledged the following assets with

their respective carrying amounts:

(@) The Group's investment properties of HK$9,281.6 million (2022:
HK$8,869.0 million), properties of HK$40.3 million (2022: HK$38.2
million) and bank deposits of HK$152.9 million (2022: HK$147.8
million) were pledged to the banks to secure general banking

facilities granted to the Group.

(b) Interests in certain subsidiaries of the Company have been pledged
as part of the security to secure certain bank borrowings granted to

the Group.
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FINANCIAL AND INTEREST INCOME/EXPENSES

Interest income was included in revenue and investment expenses, net.
Interest income for the Year increased to HK$46.4 million (2022: HK$40.2
million), representing an increase of 15.4% as compared with last year
which was mainly due to increase in interest income from bank deposits as

result of the increase in interest rates during the Year.

Finance costs included interest expenses on bank borrowings and lease
liabilities; exchange difference on translation of foreign currency borrowings;
and arrangement fee and facility and commitment fee expenses. Interest
expenses (excluding interest expenses on lease liabilities) for the Year
amounted to HK$218.1 million, representing a significant increase of
74.1% over last year of HK$125.3 million. Interest capitalised for the Year
was HK$11.0 million (2022: HK$4.5 million). The increase in interest
expenses was mainly due to the surge in average interest rate during the
Year. The average interest rate over the year under review was 5.93%
(2022: 2.58%), which was expressed as a percentage of total interest
paid (excluding interest on lease liabilities) over the average total interest-

bearing borrowings.
REMUNERATION POLICIES

As at 31 December 2023, the Group employed a total of 495 staff (2022:
498 staff) including about 249 staff (2022: 260 staff) employed under the
estate management company in Hong Kong and 9 staff (2022: 8 staff) in
the United Kingdom.

Employees were remunerated on the basis of their performance,
experience and prevailing industry practice. Remuneration packages
comprised salary and year-end discretionary bonus based on market
conditions and individual performance. The executive Directors continued
to review employees’ contributions and to provide them with necessary

incentives and flexibility for their better commitment and performance.
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FINANCIAL OPERATION REVIEW

UNITED KINGDOM AND MAINLAND CHINA

As at 31 December 2023, the Group's investment properties (excluding
properties occupied for own use) in the United Kingdom with carrying
amount of GBP705.4 million (equivalent to approximately HK$7,023.7
million) (2022: GBP717.2 million (equivalent to approximately HK$6,746.3
million)) incurred a net loss of HK$297.6 million (2022: net profit of
HK$468.3 million) to the Group for the Year, the loss mainly included in
gross profit, other income, fair value changes on investment properties,
administrative expenses, finance costs and taxation. Due to appreciation of
GBP against HK$ during the Year, GBP exchange gain of foreign operations
included in other comprehensive income for the Year amounted to
HK$284.6 million (2022: exchange loss of HK$484.0 million). As at
31 December 2023, the Group's net investment in the United Kingdom
amounted to HK$5,517.3 million (2022: HK$4,570.9 million) representing
38.8% (2022: 32.6%)) of the Group's total equity.

Profit incurred by the Group's investment in Mainland China (mainly
included in administrative expenses, share of results of investments
accounted for using the equity method, other gains and losses and taxation
(2022: also included in fair value changes on investment properties)) for
the Year amounted to HK$156.9 million (2022: loss of HK$28.8 million).
Due to depreciation of Renminbi ("RMB") against HK$ during the Year,
RMB exchange loss of foreign operations included in other comprehensive
income for the Year amounted to HK$4.0 million (2022: HK$15.4 million).
The Group's net investment in Mainland China as at 31 December 2023
amounted to HK$352.5 million (2022: HK$200.8 million) representing
2.5% (2022: 1.4%) of the Group's total equity.

PROPERTY VALUATION

As at 31 December 2023, property valuations in respect of the Group's
investment properties in Hong Kong and Mainland China were carried
out by Peak Vision Appraisals (2022: B.Il. Appraisals Limited), whereas
the investment properties in the United Kingdom were carried out by
Moore Transaction (2022: LCH (Asia-Pacific) Surveyors Limited), both are
independent qualified professional property valuers. The valuations were
based on investment method and/or direct comparison method and/
or residual method as the valuation methodologies and were used in

preparing 2023 final results.
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PROPERTY VALUATION (contd)

The Group's investment properties were valued at HK$13,957.7 million
(2022: HK$13,396.7 million (including those presented as assets classified
as held for sale)), a decrease of 0.2% over 2022 after adjusted for the
additions, disposal and exchange adjustments of investment properties
during the Year. The decrease in fair value of HK$31.0 million was
recognised in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income for the
Year. The Group shared an increase in fair value of investment properties

of associates of HK$164.3 million for the Year.

The decrease in fair value of HK$31.0 million was mainly derived from the
decrease in fair value of redevelopment properties located in Hong Kong
and the United Kingdom. The unrealised fair value change is a non-cash

item and will not affect the cash flow of the Group.
MONEY LENDING BUSINESS

As one of the principal activities of the Group, the Group conducted
its money lending business through its wholly-owned subsidiary(ies)
(the "Money Lending Subsidiary(ies)”), to grant loans to individuals
and corporations in return for interest income. The Money Lending
Subsidiary(ies) has (have) either maintained a valid money lenders licence
granted by the Licensing Court or made loans which are exempted under
the Money Lenders Ordinance (Cap. 163) (the "MLO"). The licensing of
money lenders and regulation of money-lending transactions are governed
by the MLO. The Group is required to and has, at all times, strictly complied
with all relevant laws and regulations including the MLO, Guideline on
Compliance of Anti-Money Laundering and Counter-Terrorist Financing
Requirements for Licensed Money Lenders as well as Guidelines on
Licensing Conditions of Money Lenders Licence issued by the Companies
Registry of Hong Kong in conduct of money lending business. The Group
has followed all forms and procedures prescribed under the provisions
of the MLO when making relevant application for the renewal of money

lenders licence and conducting money lending business.

During the Year, the Group has no money lending transaction transacted
(2022: nil) and no loan outstanding as at 31 December 2023 (2022: nil).
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MONEY LENDING BUSINESS (contd)

The Group has put in place procedural manual on money lending
business which sets out policies and procedures including (a) customer
due diligence check and reporting suspicious transactions; (b) ongoing
monitoring of existing borrower; (c) loan drawdown control; (d) loan

repayment control; (e) record keeping; and (f) staff training.

The Group has adopted a credit policy to manage its money lending
business which includes compliance with all applicable laws and
regulations, credit assessment on potential borrower and the potential
borrower’s assets, the credibility, the necessity in obtaining collaterals
and determination of suitable interest rate to reflect the risk level of the
provision of loan. The Group has adopted various commercial terms for
granting loan facilities to its potential borrowers, such commercial terms
will depend on the credit assessment and/or collateral level of particular
borrower. Where collaterals are required, such loans are generally secured
by properties by first or second mortgages, equitable mortgages or other

assets as collaterals.

Under the Group's current credit policy, unless otherwise approved by the
directors of the Company under special circumstances (i) no loan, whether
secured or unsecured, shall be granted by the Group that exceeds the
maximum loan amount preset by the Group, (ii) for secured loans, the
loan to collateral value ratios shall not exceed 90% and the tenor shall
not exceed 30 years, and (iii) for unsecured loans, they should meet the
requirement that the debt to income ratio of a borrower shall not exceed

70% and the tenor shall not exceed 36 months.

The Group will only provide money lending services and grant loan facilities
to a relevant borrower after the borrower has passed the Group's due
diligence process and other applicable internal control procedures. Due
diligence performed by the Group generally involves know your client
procedures including obtaining information as to source and amount of
income, proof of other net assets, identity document copy and address

proof.
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MONEY LENDING BUSINESS (contd)

Most of the potential borrowers of the Group's money lending services
are the Group's potential customers interested in acquiring properties
sold by the Group who during commercial negotiation with the Group has
indicated that they will require financing arrangements in purchasing the

properties.

For ongoing monitoring of the loan performance and their risk levels,
the Group will closely monitor the status of interest and loan principal
collections and perform annual valuation of the collaterals held by the

Group to assess the recoverability of the loans granted by the Group.

There is also internal audit function within the Group to examine the
operation of money lending business to ensure proper procedures and
control are implemented, and reported the result of the audit to the audit

committee of the Company.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The board of directors (the “Directors” or the “Board”) and management of
the Company (together with its subsidiaries, the “Group”) are committed to
principles of good corporate governance so as to safeguard the interests of

shareholders and enhance value to the shareholders.

Throughout the year ended 31 December 2023 (the "Year"), the Company
had applied the principles and complied with substantial code provisions
(the “Code Provisions”") and certain recommended best practices set out in
the Corporate Governance Code (the “CG Code") contained in Appendix
C1 (formerly Appendix 14) to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) (the
“Listing Rules”).

CULTURE

The Company's purpose, values and strategy aligned with the Company's
culture. Directors play a leading role in promoting the Company's
desired culture. Management and employees instil the culture across
the Group through different channels from time to time. The desired
culture is developed and reflected consistently in the operating practices
of the Group. Description of the Company's culture can be found in the

“Chairman'’s Statement” of this annual report.

THE BOARD

Board Composition

The Board currently comprised two Executive Directors (“ED(s)"), two
Non-executive Directors (“NED(s)") and four Independent Non-executive
Directors ("INED(s)"), with INEDs representing more than one-third of the
Board. Names of each member of the Board are set out in this Corporate
Governance Report. Changes of the composition of the Board during the

Year are set out in the “Directors’ Report” of this annual report.

During the Year, Mr. Lau, Ming-wai acted as the Chairman of the Board (the
“Chairman”) and Ms. Chan, Hoi-wan acted as the Chief Executive Officer
("CEO").

“List of Directors and their Role and Function” has been maintained at
the websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange. The Directors’
biographies and the relationship among the Board members, if any, are
set out in the “Profiles of Directors” of this annual report and available on
the Company's website. Save as disclosed in such profiles, there is no
financial, business, family or other material/relevant relationship among the

Directors.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

THE BOARD (contd)

Responsibilities of Directors

The NEDs and INEDs with diversified expertise, skills and experience play
an important role on formulating strategy and ensuring that the Board
maintains high standards of corporate governance as well as taking the lead
where potential conflict of interests arises. INEDs bring strong independent

judgment, knowledge and experience to the Board.

On monthly basis, senior management provides the Directors with
operational and financial reports of the Group's performance, position and
prospects. All Directors are kept informed of and duly briefed of major
changes and information that may affect the Group’s businesses in a timely

manner.

Directors could have recourse to seek independent professional advice
in performing their duties at the Company’s expense and are encouraged
to access and consult with the Company's senior management or the

company secretary (the “Company Secretary”) independently.

Directors had provided their annual confirmation to confirm they were able

to devote sufficient time to discharge their responsibilities to the Board.
Retirement by Rotation and Specific Term of Office

The Company's Bye-laws provides that no Director (save for the executive
chairman and any managing director) shall hold office for a continuous
period in excess of three years, or past the third annual general meeting,
following the Directors’ appointment or re-election, whichever is longer,
without submitting himself/herself for re-election by the shareholders at
the annual general meetings. Accordingly, Directors shall retire by rotation
at least once every three years and a specific term of office has been fixed
for appointment of Directors. During the Year, there was no executive

chairman or managing director in the Board.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

THE BOARD (contd)

Board Meetings

The Board met regularly throughout the Year to discuss the overall strategy,
the operational and financial performance of the Group. Four regular Board
meetings were held during the Year. Advance notices of not less than
fourteen days were served upon each Director for regular Board meetings.
Agenda and accompanying Board papers were sent to Directors in a timely
manner and at least three days before the meetings (or such other period
as agreed). Adequate explanation and information were provided to the
Directors by the management to facilitate the Directors in decision-making.
Each Director has to declare his/her interest and abstain from voting on
any resolution in which he/she or any of his/her associate has a material
interest in accordance with the Bye-laws of the Company and the Listing

Rules.

The agenda of each Board meeting is set by the Chairman in consultation
with members of the Board such that they are given an opportunity to
include agenda items. Draft and executed Board minutes were sent in
good time to all Directors for their comments and records. Minutes of the
Board meetings recorded in sufficient details were kept by the Company

Secretary.
Board and Management Functions

The functions reserved to the Board are basically provided in the Bye-
laws of the Company and the Board from time to time delegates certain
functions to senior management whenever required. In short, the Board
has reserved for its decision on matters relating to the Group's strategy,
major acquisitions and disposals, major capital expenditure, annual and
interim results, Directors’ appointment and other significant financial and

operational issues.

On top of daily business operation, senior management is responsible for
the preparation of annual and interim consolidated financial statements
for the Board's approval, execution of business strategies and initiatives
adopted by the Board, implementation of adequate system of internal
control and sound risk management practices and is required to report to
the Board and obtain its prior approval on important matters at all times.
Notwithstanding the delegation, the Directors acknowledge that it is the
responsibility of the Board for preparing the financial statements, which give

a true and fair view of the financial results of the Group.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

THE BOARD (contd)

Board Independence

As part of the established governance framework, the Company has in
place mechanisms that underpin a strong independent Board and that
independent views and input from Directors are conveyed to the Board.
The governance framework and mechanisms are kept under regular review

to ensuring their effectiveness.

The composition of the Board (more than one-third of the members were
INEDs), the Audit Committee, Nomination Committee and Remuneration
Committee (collectively the "Board Committees”) (all of the members
were INEDs) exceeded the independence requirements under the Listing
Rules during the Year. The Audit Committee, Nomination Committee and
Remuneration Committee were chaired by INED. The Company's selection,
nomination and appointment/re-appointment process for Directors
(including INEDs) is set out in this Corporate Governance Report. The
Directors’ fees of INEDs were subject to annual assessment with reference
to their duties and responsibilities and the prevailing market conditions
as appropriate. None of the INEDs receives remuneration based on

performance of the Group.

In performing their duties, Directors (including INEDs) could consult
independent professional advice as and when required and to access the
Company's senior management or the Company Secretary independently.
Management updates and all material information on performance and
key activities and projects were given to the Directors to facilitate decision-
making. For Board and Board Committees meetings, proper meeting
arrangements and procedures were in place to facilitate open, constructive,

informed discussions and thoughtful consideration of relevant issues.

The INEDs have historically and consistently demonstrated strong
commitment, and the ability to devote sufficient time to discharge
their responsibilities at the Board. Their commitment is subject to self-
confirmation each year. The Board has received from each INED a
written annual confirmation of his/her independence and satisfied that
the independence of INEDs up to the date of this annual report is in

accordance with the Listing Rules.

The Board has conducted an annual review in December 2023 and
considered the existing mechanism to ensure Directors’ independent view
and input are available to the Board was effective and adequate during the

Year.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT TH¥ERHEE

THE BOARD (Contd) EESw

EERIIRXE

Directors’ Training and Support

ARAEBESEERZAZEZHTANBRABTER
B - AHAAMBMEER R EHR A REME

The Company encourages its Directors to possess up-to-date knowledge

in order to discharge their duties. Information regarding major changes in

Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards and Listing Rules as well as other

laws/rules/regulations had been provided to the Directors.

During the Year, the Company has arranged a training session for the
Directors regarding “Environmental, Social and Governance Updates”. The
training was delivered by professional. Meanwhile, Directors had provided
their record of trainings to the Company. The Board considered the

trainings attended by the Directors are sufficient to discharge their duties.

ROE%

A summary of the trainings attended by the Directors during the Yearisas T :

follows:

BAGHRRUNERBE 2 EHBERRTRES -

RAFE  ARRR/EFLHT —KIEI - RBH
BIRE MHERERZEHN] ZBIBEXEAL

B o ELEE - BEECRARREHEET
CEEZERREFEMBHEZBIIRAERER
THRE BEFRAFEAMSEZEIIREZL

Training Matters 3Z 3|18

Business/
Economic/
Management/
Accounting/ Information
Regulatory/ Tax/ Technology
Corporate Legal Finance [5E 94
Governance EEHRTE a2t/ KBRS
Name of Directors R HEER EE BB EBH
Executive Directors HITESE
Ms. Chan, Hoi-wan [ -
Ms. Chan, Lok-wan PREERRZ T -
Mr. Lam, Kwong-wai* il vt = b
Non-executive Directors FHITES
Mr. Lau, Ming-wai 2B 1& 4 a a -
Ms. Amy Lau, Yuk-wai EELZT a a =
Independent Non-executive Directors BYFHITES
Mr. Chan, Kwok-wai PR B (& Sc £ a&b a&b b
Mr. Leung, Yun-fai® BB EA a&b a&b b
Ms. Phillis Loh, Lai-ping ERSFLL a&b a&b a
Mr. Ma, Tsz-chun BEEEE a&b a&b a&b a&b
Notes: B5E
Training Method BT =
a:  attending seminar/webinar/work meeting/virtual conference/course a: 2HEfFE /WEWEIe  TEeE EHS
EY
b:  self-reading b: EBEf78E

* Resigned on 25 May 2023
A Appointed on 10 March 2023

*

A

R -_=—FFHA-_THHEHET
R-TB-=F=-F+HEEE

“EocEER EABXEE
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BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established Audit Committee, Remuneration Committee
and Nomination Committee with clear written terms of reference which are
of no less exacting terms than those set out in the CG Code. Details of the
respective committee’s terms of reference are available at the Company's
and the Stock Exchange's websites. All the INEDs, i.e. Mr. Chan, Kwok-
wai, Mr. Leung, Yun-fai, Ms. Phillis Loh, Lai-ping and Mr. Ma, Tsz-chun
are members of the Board Committees with Mr. Chan, Kwok-wai acts as
chairman of the Audit Committee and the Remuneration Committee while
Ms. Phillis Loh, Lai-ping acts as chairman of the Nomination Committee.
The members of Audit Committee possess appropriate professional
qualifications, accounting or related financial management expertise, which

is higher than the Listing Rules’ requirement.

Agenda and accompanying meeting papers were sent to the members
in a timely manner and at least three days before the meetings (or such
other period as agreed). Draft and executed minutes of the meetings were
sent in good time to all members for their comments and records. Minutes
of the meetings recorded in sufficient details were kept by the Company
Secretary. Professional advice and sufficient resources would be given
whenever necessary to allow the Board Committees to discharge their

duties.

Audit Committee

Role and Function

The Audit Committee is responsible for reviewing the Group's corporate
governance, financial reporting, risk management and internal control. It

plays an advisory role and makes relevant recommendations to the Board.

Meetings

The Audit Committee held four meetings during the Year, with the presence
of the representative(s) of the Group’s internal audit department (“Internal
Audit Department”) in those meetings involving discussion on internal
audit reports prepared by Internal Audit Department. Senior management
was co-opted to join the meetings of the Audit Committee to explain the
financial and business conditions of the Group to the committee members

from time to time.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT TH¥ERHEE

BOARD COMMITTEES (contd)
Audit Committee (Cont'd)
Works Performed

The works performed by the Audit Committee in the Year are summarised

below:

(1)  reviewed the Group's final and interim results and draft consolidated
financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2022
and for the six months ended 30 June 2023 respectively before
recommending them to the Board for approval, with the presence of
the Company's external auditors (the “Independent Auditors”) in the

meeting reviewing final results;

(2) reviewed the overall performance including the performance of

investment properties and development properties of the Group;

(3) reviewed the accounting principles and practices adopted by the
Group and the requirements of the Listing Rules and statutory

compliance;

(4) recommended to the Board the re-appointment of the Independent

Auditors for shareholders" approval;

(5) reviewed the Group's internal control, risk management, financial

reporting and auditing matters;

(6) reviewed and discussed significant audit findings in a meeting with

the presence of Independent Auditors;

(7) prepared and submitted to the Board an audit committee report
detailing the works performed by the Audit Committee during the
year 2022, presented its findings and made recommendations to

the Board for consideration;

(8) carried out annual review on the continuing connected transactions

of the Group;

(9) reviewed the adequacy of resources, qualifications and experience
of staff of the Group's accounting, financial reporting and internal
audit functions as well as environmental, social and governance
performance and reporting, and their training programmes and
budget;
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT H¥ERBEE

BOARD COMMITTEES (contd)

Audit Committee (Cont'd)

Works Performed (Cont'd)

(10)

an

(12)

(13)

(14)

(15)

(16)

a7

(18)

(19)

(20)

@n

(22)

discussed with Independent Auditors the nature and scope of the
annual audit and reporting obligations of the Independent Auditors
for the Year; reviewed and approved the terms of engagement

letters, and fees for audit and non-audit services for the Year;
reviewed the arrangement for employees and those who deal with
the Company to raise concerns about possible improprieties in

financial reporting, internal control or other related matters;

reviewed and discussed internal audit reports prepared by Internal

Audit Department;

considered and approved the internal audit plan for the year 2024;
reviewed the effectiveness of internal audit function;

reviewed the Company's policies and practices on corporate
governance, compliance with the CG Code and disclosure in the
Corporate Governance Report;

reviewed the Company's policies and practices on compliance
with legal and regulatory requirements and the compliance of such

policies and practices;

reviewed the code of conduct for the Directors and the compliance

of such code;

reviewed the code of practice for employees;

reviewed the sufficiency of training and continuous professional

development for the Directors and senior executives;

reviewed the progress of risk management;

reviewed the effectiveness and adequacy of risk management and

internal control systems; and

reviewed the impact of adoption of new Hong Kong Financial

Reporting Standards.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

BOARD COMMITTEES (contd)
Audit Committee (Cont'd)
Works Performed (Cont'd)

In March 2024, the Audit Committee reviewed (i) the Group's final results
and draft audited consolidated financial statements for the Year; (i) the
Company's compliance with the CG Code during the Year and disclosure
in the Corporate Governance Report; (iii) the sufficiency of training and
continuous professional development for Directors and senior executives
for the Year; (iv) the effectiveness and adequacy of risk management
(include material environmental, social and governance risks, if any) and
internal control systems for the Year; and (v) the effectiveness of internal
audit function of the Group for the Year. The Audit Committee also
made recommendation to the Board on the re-appointment of retiring
Independent Auditors for shareholders’ approval at the forthcoming annual
general meeting (the “2024 AGM").

Independent Auditors

In order to enhance independent reporting by the Independent Auditors,
the engagement director of the Independent Auditors is subject to
periodical rotation, and the nature and ratio of annual fees payable to the
Independent Auditors for non-audit services and for audit services are
subject to scrutiny by the Audit Committee. A policy of non-audit services
from the Independent Auditors was established. The Audit Committee
considers whether there is clear efficiency and value-added benefit to the
Company from that work being undertaken by the Independent Auditors;
whether there is adverse effect on the independence of their audit work or
the perception of such independence; the nature of the non-audit services
envisaged to be provided by the Independent Auditors; and the related fee
levels individually and in aggregate relative to the audit fees. In addition, a
policy restricting the employment of employees or former employees of
the Independent Auditors as senior executives or financial positions with

the Group has also been in place.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

BOARD COMMITTEES (contd)
Audit Committee (Cont'd)
Independent Auditors (Cont'd)

During the Year, the Independent Auditors had been engaged in providing
non-audit services in relation to (i) annual review of continuing connected
transactions of the Company at a fee of HK$100,000; and (i) formation of
joint venture and successful tender and acquisition of land by joint venture
at a fee of HK$350,000. The audit fees of the Independent Auditors for
auditing the consolidated financial statements of the Group for the Year
was HK$2,128,000. The relevant engagement letters had been reviewed

and approved by the Audit Committee.

Prior to the commencement of the audit of accounts of the Group, the
Audit Committee had reviewed the Independent Auditors’ independence
and objectivity as required under the Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants, reviewed the terms of their engagement as well as the nature

and scope of the audit and reporting obligations.

The Audit Committee was satisfied with the findings of their review of the
engagement process, effectiveness, independence and objectivity of the

Independent Auditors.
Remuneration Committee
Role and Function

The Remuneration Committee is responsible for reviewing the remuneration
policies for all Directors and senior executives. The Remuneration Committee
is also responsible to review regularly and make recommendations to the
Board on the remuneration package of individual EDs and senior executives
as well as the remuneration of NEDs. It would consult the Chairman or the

CEO on the remuneration proposals whenever it thinks fit.

The objective of remunerating the Directors and senior executives of the
Company is to ensure that there is an appropriate level of remuneration to
attract and retain experienced businessmen or professionals of high calibre
to act as the Directors and senior executives to oversee the Company's

businesses and development.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

BOARD COMMITTEES (contd)

Remuneration Committee (Cont'd)

Meetings

The Remuneration Committee held two meetings during the Year.
Works Performed

The works performed by the Remuneration Committee in the Year are

summarised below:

(1) assessed the performance of EDs, reviewed and recommended to
the Board the EDs’ and senior executives’ remuneration packages for

the Year;

(2) recommended to the Board the renewal of service agreement with a

director of a subsidiary of the Company;
(3) noted the annual discretionary bonus to employees; and

(4) recommended to the Board to fix the Directors’ fee of NEDs for the

Year.

In January 2024, the Remuneration Committee made recommendations
to the Board and the Board has approved the fix of EDs' remuneration
packages including (i) the annual salary of Ms. Chan, Hoi-wan at
HK$100,000; and (ii) the monthly salary of Ms. Chan, Lok-wan at
HK$65,000, for the year ending 31 December 2024 with reference to their
duties and responsibilities in the Group as well as the prevailing market

conditions.
Remuneration Policy for EDs

The primary goal of the remuneration policy on EDs' remuneration package
is to enable the Company to retain and motivate EDs by linking their reward
with performance as measured against corporate objectives. In determining
guidelines for each reward element, the Company refers to remuneration

surveys on companies operating in similar businesses.
Remuneration Policy for NEDs and INEDs

The Directors' fees of NEDs and INEDs are subject to annual assessment
with reference to their duties and responsibilities and the prevailing market
conditions as appropriate. Reimbursement is allowed for out-of-pocket
expenses incurred in connection with performance of their duties. None of

the INEDs receives remuneration based on performance of the Group.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (contd) EESBETZE®w
Nomination Committee REAZE®
Role and Function Ae kB

The role of the Nomination Committee is to lead the process and make REZEGZACARFTETIEZAESHERE
recommendations for appointments to the Board, whether as additional ~ S BL#5 2 EREF 22 R A - B D 7 @ ¥ 2 PREL R
appointment or to fill up the casual vacancy of directorship as and when i * ARERAEARRFZEBEERFTET  fEH
they arise, in the light of challenges and opportunities facing the Company, 4BERpLETHEEF SR HEE -

as well as business development and requirements of the Company.

I\/Ieetmg 7;1_‘ %
The Nomination Committee held one meeting during the Year. REZEENAFERITRGE -
Works Performed B1T2 Tk

The works performed by the Nomination Committee in the Year are RBZEB SR AFERIT 2 TIEBMMT ¢

summarised below:

(1)  reviewed the structure, size, composition and diversity of the Board; (1) WMRNEFGZERE  AB - @AXEZERl:

(2) identified suitable individual qualified to become INED and (2) YEABABRKABIYIFRTEEZ AL - TR

recommended to the Board on the appointment of an INED based THRBESE - B - BERER  URES
on the nomination policy, procedures, process and criteria and board ST RERNEETGRERTE BB
diversity policy stated below; TE=E

(3) recommended to the Board on the re-appointment of Directors for  (3) MEEEREEFZTEET 2 EZZHBERN
shareholders’ approval; and i IS

(4) assessed the independence of an INED, who served more than nine  (4) FI#— 2B ERTES(HREBANEL
years and was subject to re-election at therelevant annual general REARRBEF ARG EEB) 2B -

meeting.

After the Year end, the Nomination Committee (i) made recommendation RAFETLER  RELEZEC(O)REFZTEMLTZ
to the Board on the re-appointment of retiring Directors for shareholders’ ZEEHRESEREEZ  HEER _ZT-_MNERR
approval at the 2024 AGM:; and (i) assessed the independence of INEDs, BHEAE it/ R()AREBBAFLHENR T
who served more than nine years and are subject to re-election at the Z—UFRRBEFAG LEE 2 BIERNTEECHE
2024 AGM. SMEEREAZ
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BOARD COMMITTEES (contd)

Nomination Committee (Cont'd)
Nomination Policy, Procedures, Process and Criteria

The Nomination Committee reviews the structure, size, composition
and diversity (including the evaluation of skills, knowledge, professional
experience, cultural and educational background, gender and age of the
Board members and assessment on the independence of the INEDs) of
the Board at least annually. It is responsible for making recommendations
on any proposed changes to the Board to complement the Company's
corporate strategy and succession planning for the Directors from time
to time and selecting suitable and qualified individuals to become Board
members. In evaluating and selecting candidate(s) for directorship,
the Nomination Committee considers the character and integrity; skills
and expertise; professional and educational background; potential time
commitment for the board and/or committee responsibilities; and the
elements of the Board Diversity Policy as stated below etc. The Nomination
Committee makes recommendation to the Board to appoint the
appropriate person among the candidates nominated for directorship. The
Board appoints suitable candidate(s) in accordance with the Bye-laws of

the Company and the Listing Rules.
Board Diversity Policy

The Company recognises and embraces the benefit of having a diverse
board, and sees increasing diversity at board level as an essential element
in maintaining a competitive advantage and achieving long-term sustainable
growth for the Group. A board diversity policy (the “Board Diversity
Policy”) had been adopted since September 2013. Elements of the Board
Diversity Policy include gender, age, cultural and educational background,
professional experience, skills and knowledge of Directors. Under the Board
Diversity Policy, candidates are selected based on merit and contribution
such candidate can bring to the Board. The Board currently comprised four
males and four females and thus gender parity has been achieved. The
elements of the Board Diversity Policy have substantially been included
in the current Board composition. It was concluded in the Board's yearly

review that the Board Diversity Policy was effective during the Year.

The Board put emphasis on gender diversity across all levels of the Group.
As at 31 December 2023, the male-to-female ratio in the Board, senior
executives and workforce of the Group are 50:50, 20:80 and 59:41
respectively. It was considered that the overall gender diversity of the
Group was above average. The Board targets to maintain the current level

of gender diversity at all levels of the Group.
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INVESTMENT COMMITTEE

Investment Committee had been established since 2014 with written
terms of reference in place. During the Year, it comprised Ms. Chan, Hoi-
wan as chairman, Mr. Lam, Kwong-wai (up to 25 May 2023) and Ms.
Chan, Lok-wan (since 25 May 2023) as chief investment officer, Mr. Chan,
Kwok-wai, Mr. Leung, Yun-fai (since 10 March 2023) and Mr. Ma, Tsz-chun
as members. It is empowered to manage the investment business of the
Group (other than real estate investment) and to make recommendations
and provide advice to the Board in relation to investment or potential

investment.

ATTENDANCE RECORD OF DIRECTORS

Attendance record of each of the Board members is as follows:

B-_ZT—WFKY - EEmBESGET

CHEHERIBL T HEE
R A (BE_SE_=FRA_+HABI)
kE#Ezt (BT _=FAA=-+RAR) LT
RERE  REESLE  REBEE(BEZZ_=F
“ATHER)RERELERAKE - REZEGE
RETEASE REEXK(BMERERIN - LA
RBEHERALBERABEENESSIELERER
REER -

EEHFERTE

BEFERBZHFLEHIIMT -

Attendance Record of Directors £ i 31 5%

Audit
Regular Ad hoc Committee
Board Meeting  Board Meeting" Meeting

Name of Directors EEne cHEZEeE KHEZeed BRZES
Executive Directors HrEE

Ms. Chan, Hoi-wan Bel@&L  4/4 (100%) 4/4 (100%) N/A i@
Ms. Chan, Lok-wan BEEZL  4/4 (100%) 4/4 (100%) N/ARER
Mr. Lam, Kwong-wai* KB EES 1/1 (100%) 2/3 (67%) N/A TR

Non-executive Directors FHTES

Remuneration ~ Nomination Investment Annual
Committee Committee Committee General
Meeting Meeting Meeting Meeting

€4 FHZEEEeE REZEE8E REZEEEE RRBEEAS

N/A TiEA N/A T 4/4(100%)  1/1(100%)
N/A NiER N/A TR 3/3 (100%) 1/1 (100%)
N/A MR NATER 1/1(100%)  Absent i/

M. Lau, Ming-wai BBERE  3/4(75%) 0/4 (0%) N/ANER N/A NER NATER N/A iR Absent H/%
Ms. Amy Lau, Yuk-wai FELE  4/4(100%) 4/4 (100%) N/A R N/A @R N/A T N/A i@ 1/1 (100%)
Independent Non-executive B3 3k #47
Directors gz
Mr. Chan, Kwok-wai BEIESLE  4/4 (100%) 4/4 (100%) 4/4 (100%) 2/2 (100%) 1/1 (100%) 4/4(100%)  1/1(100%)
Mr. Leung, Yun-fai* ZEBEE 3/3(100%) 3/3(100%)  3/3(1000%) 1/1 (100%) N/A TEF 3/3(100%)  1/1(100%)
Ms. Phillis Loh, Lai-ping EBELL  4/4(100%) 4/4 (100%) 4/4.(100%) 2/2 (100%) 1/1 (100%) N/A TR 1/1 (100%)
Mr. Ma, Tsz-chun SEEELE  4/4(100%) 4/4(100%)  4/4 (100%) 2/2 (100%) 1/1 (1000%) 4/4(100%)  1/1(100%)
Notes: 5T

A To avoid conflict of interest, Director(s) was/were absent at ad hoc Board
meeting(s) that he/she was required to abstain from voting.

* Resigned on 25 May 2023

+ Appointed on 10 March 2023
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MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted a code of conduct regarding securities
transactions by Directors on terms without deviation from the required
standard set out in the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors
of Listed Issuers contained in Appendix C3 (formerly Appendix 10) to the
Listing Rules (the "Model Code"). All Directors, after specific enquiries by
the Company, confirmed that they had complied with the required standard

set out in the Model Code and the said code of conduct during the Year.

The Company has also adopted a code of conduct regarding securities
transactions by relevant employees on terms no less exacting than the
required standard set out in the Model Code. All the relevant employees
(the "Relevant Employees”) who, because of office or employment, are
likely to be in possession of unpublished inside information in relation
to the Group's securities had been requested to follow such code when
dealing in the securities of the Company. After specific enquiries by the
Company, the Relevant Employees confirmed that they had complied with

the required standard set out in the said code during the Year.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board acknowledges its responsibility to ensure that the Group
maintains effective risk management (include material environmental,
social and governance risks, if any) and internal control systems and
review of their effectiveness through the Audit Committee at least annually.
The Board oversees the Company’s senior management in the design,
implementation and monitoring of the risk management and internal
control systems and acknowledges that such systems are designed to
manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business
objectives, and can only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance
against material misstatement or loss. Internal Audit Department is
responsible for reviewing relevant financial, operational and compliance
controls and risk management functions, and reporting their findings and

advice to the Audit Committee.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL
(Cont'd)

Internal Audit

Internal Audit Department reports directly to the Audit Committee and is

independent of the Company’s management, with key tasks to:

(1) assess and monitor internal controls of the Group with unrestricted
direct access right to any levels of management whenever it

considered necessary;

2) conduct comprehensive internal audits of the practices and
p p
procedures, income and expenditures, and internal control of all

business units of the Group on a regular basis; and

(3) carry out special reviews and investigations on areas of concern

identified by the management for corrective actions.

Internal Audit Department produces an annual internal audit plan
based on a risk assessment methodology for the Audit Committee’s
approval. Internal audits are carried out on a regular basis according to
the approved plan. Internal audit reports summarising audit findings
and recommendations are prepared from time to time for the Audit
Committee's review and discussion. Management is responsible for
ensuring that control weaknesses highlighted in internal audits are rectified
within a reasonable period. Internal Audit Department would monitor the

proper implementation of corrective measures.

During the Year, Internal Audit Department had conducted six internal
audits, relevant reports had been submitted to the Audit Committee for
consideration. The Audit Committee was satisfied with the scope and
quality of works done, and the extent and frequency of communication
of internal audit reports by the Internal Audit Department. The Audit
Committee was also satisfied with the effectiveness of the internal audit

function of the Group.

Pursuant to whistleblowing policy of the Group, employees and other
stakeholders can report the possible improprieties in relation to financial
reporting, internal control or other matters of the Group to Head of Internal
Audit Department, who shall then report to the chairman of the Audit
Committee. Internal Audit Department has not received any report during
the Year.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL
(Cont'd)

Risk Management

Risk Management Framework

The Company established an Enterprise Risk Management Framework that
includes a risk management policy and procedures, as well as a designated
risk management officer who helps to deploy the risk management process

across the business.

Risk Management Process

Our risk management process includes risk identification, risk assessment
and prioritisation, risk owner appointment, risk treatment and upward
reporting and monitoring of identified risks to the Audit Committee. A
corporate risk register has been established to track and document the
identified risks, risk owners, mitigating actions and control measures, and

facilitates continuous update of risk treatments.

Half-yearly reviews were conducted to follow up on the significant risks
and related actions as documented in the corporate risk register, and the
results reported to the Audit Committee. The year end risk management
assessment result was reported to the Board through the Audit Committee.
The Company will continue to enhance and standardise our approach to

manage risks.

Subsequent to the Year, the Audit Committee had reviewed the
effectiveness and adequacy of risk management (include material
environmental, social and governance risks, if any) system for the Year
and the Board was satisfied with the effectiveness and adequacy of the
risk management (include material environmental, social and governance
risks, if any) system of the Group and considered that the Company had
complied with the Code Provisions in respect of risk management during
the Year.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL
(Cont'd)

Internal Control

Annual Review

Based on the annual assessment made by the Independent Auditors and
the works done by Internal Audit Department, the Audit Committee and
the Board were satisfied with the effectiveness and adequacy of the system

of internal control of the Group and concluded that:

(1) the Company had complied with the Code Provisions in respect of

internal control during the Year;

(2) a framework of prudent and effective controls had been established

to identify, evaluate and manage the risks;

(3) internal control and accounting systems of the Group were effective

and adequate;

(4) significant risks and control failings or weaknesses (if any) that
may influence the Group and the changes since last annual review
had been identified, evaluated and managed through the ongoing

monitoring process;

(5) material transactions of the Group were executed with the

management's authorisation;

(6) the Company's processes for financial reporting and Listing Rules

compliance were effective; and
(7) the resources, qualifications and experience of staff of the Group's

accounting, financial reporting and internal audit functions, and their

training programmes and budget were adequate.
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COMMUNICATIONS WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Company had established a shareholders’ communication policy
(the “Policy”) and the Board had undertaken to review the Policy at least
annually to ensure its effectiveness. The Policy sets out the framework
in place to promote two-way communication with shareholders. It also
aims to set out the provisions with the Company's objective of providing
the shareholders of the Company timely, ready and equal access to the
Company's information from time to time so as to allow shareholders to
exercise their rights in an informed manner, and to allow shareholders to

share with the business affairs of the Company.

Under the Policy, channels for communication mainly include: (i)
holding general meetings; (ii) publication of financial reports, notices,
announcements or circulars at the Company’s website and the Stock
Exchange's website; (iii) disseminating latest information of the Group or
press releases issued by the Company through the Company's website;
and (iv) maintaining a continuing dialogue with shareholders and
stakeholders by allowing them to raise their enquiries to Investor Relations,
contact information is disclosed in “Corporate Information” of this annual

report and the Company's website at https://www.chineseestates.com.

The Company acknowledges that general meetings are good
communication channel with shareholders that the Directors and the
chairmen of the Board Committees are encouraged to attend and answer
questions from shareholders at general meetings. The chairmen of the
Audit Committee, the Remuneration Committee and the Nomination
Committee as well as the Independent Auditors had attended the annual
general meeting of the Company held on 25 May 2023 (“2023 AGM") to

answer questions from shareholders.

At the commencement of each general meeting, the chairman of the
meeting had explained the procedures for conducting a poll to the
shareholders and the shareholders were allowed to raise any question
concerning the poll procedures. At each of the meetings, separate
resolutions were proposed by the chairman of the meeting and put forward
to the shareholders for poll voting. Details of poll results are available at the

Company's website.
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COMMUNICATIONS WITH SHAREHOLDERS
(Cont'd)

The Company regulates the handling and dissemination of inside
information as set out in the corporate communications manual to
ensure inside information remains confidential until the disclosure of such
information is appropriately approved, and the dissemination of such
information is efficiently and consistently made. Such manual also provides
guidance for coordinating the disclosure of material information to investors,
analysts and media, identifies who could speak on the Company’s behalf,
and outlines the responsibility for communication with various stakeholder

groups.

As the Policy includes various channels for shareholders and stakeholders
to communicate their views on matters affecting the Company, the Board
considered it was effective and adequate during the Year in its annual

review.

DIVIDEND POLICY

The Board has adopted a dividend policy for the Company that aims to
set out the principles and guidelines of the Company in relation to the
declaration, recommendation and payment of dividends to its shareholders
(the "Dividend Policy").

Under the Dividend Policy, the Company does not have any pre-
determined dividend payout ratio. Distribution of dividends should be
in the interests of the Company and its shareholders as a whole. When
considering dividend declaration or recommendation, the Board shall take

into account the following factors:

(1)  business condition and strategy of the Group;

(2) capital requirement for the Group’s existing/potential project or

investment;

(3) earnings, financial and cash flow position and distributable reserves

of the Company and the Group; and

(4) other factors that the Board deems relevant.
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DIVIDEND POLICY (contd)

The declaration and payment of dividends is subject to the provisions of
the Bye-laws of the Company, the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as
amended from time to time) and any other applicable laws, rules and

regulations.

The Company's dividend distribution record in the past may not be used
as a reference or basis to determine the level of dividends that may be

declared or paid by the Company in future.

The Board has the sole discretion to recommend or not to recommend
final dividends to the shareholders for approval; and to declare or not to
declare any other dividends, including but not limited to interim and/or
special dividends, after taking into consideration the factors as stated in (1)
to (4) above.

The Dividend Policy may be updated, amended, modified and/or cancelled

from time to time as the Board may think fit and necessary.
SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS

Convene a Special General Meeting

Shareholders holding at the date of the deposit of the requisition not less
than one-tenth of the paid-up capital of the Company carrying the right of
voting at general meetings of the Company can at all times submit a signed
written requisition, specifying the purpose, to the Board or the Company
Secretary to request the convening of a special general meeting (“SGM")
and deposit the requisition at the principal office of the Company in Hong
Kong or the registered office of the Company in Bermuda, the addresses

are disclosed in “Corporate Information” of this annual report.

If within twenty-one days of such deposit the Board fails to proceed to
convene the SGM, the requisitionist(s), or any of them representing more
than one half of the total voting rights of all of them, may convene a SGM,
but any SGM so convened shall not be held after the expiration of three

months from twenty-one days of the deposit.
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SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS (contd)

Put Forward the Proposals at Shareholders’ Meeting

Shareholder(s) representing not less than one-twentieth of the total voting
rights of all shareholders having a right to vote at the general meeting at
the date of the requisition or shareholders not less than 100 in total can
submit a written requisition to the Board or the Company Secretary to

propose a resolution at the general meeting (the “Written Requisition”).

The Written Requisition must be accompanied by (i) the proposed
resolution; and (ii) a statement of not more than 1,000 words with respect
to the matter referred to in the proposed resolution or the business to be
dealt with at the general meeting. The Written Requisition must contain
the signatures of all the requisitionist(s). The Written Requisition must
be deposited at the principal office of the Company in Hong Kong or the
registered office of the Company in Bermuda, the addresses are disclosed
in “Corporate Information” of this annual report, not less than six weeks
before the general meeting in the case of a requisition requiring notice of
a resolution and not less than one week before the general meeting in the

case of any other requisition.

Provided that if, after a copy of the Written Requisition requiring notice of
a resolution has been deposited at the principal office of the Company
in Hong Kong or the registered office of the Company in Bermuda, an
annual general meeting is called for a date which is six weeks or less after
the copy has been deposited, the copy though not deposited within the
time required shall be deemed to have been properly deposited for the

purposes thereof.

The shareholders concerned must deposit a sum of money reasonably
sufficient to meet the Company’s expenses in serving the notice of the
resolution and circulating the statement given by the requisitionists to all
shareholders in accordance with the requirements under the applicable

laws and rules.

Propose a Candidate for Election as a Director at an Annual

General Meeting

Procedures for shareholders to propose a person for election as a
Director had been established and published at the Company's website

(https://www.chineseestates.com).
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SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS (contd)

Shareholders’ enquiries

Shareholders can raise their enquiries to the Board or the Company
Secretary in writing by sending such written enquiries to the principal
office of the Company in Hong Kong at the address disclosed
n “Corporate Information” of this annual report or by email at
investor.relations@chineseestates.com. Shareholders also have right to

raise questions at general meetings.
CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

During the Year, the Bye-laws of the Company have been amended
with a new set of Bye-laws adopted. The reason and details of the
amendments are set out in the Company’s circular dated 27 April
2023. An updated version of the Company’s Memorandum and
Association and Bye-laws is available at the websites of the Company

(https://www.chineseestates.com) and the Stock Exchange respectively.
DEVIATIONS FROM CODE PROVISIONS

Chairman/Non-executive Director Attending General Meeting

Mr. Lau, Ming-wai, the Chairman of the Board and a NED, was unable to
attend 2023 AGM as he had business engagement. Mr. Chan, Kwok-wai,
the chairman of the Audit Committee and Remuneration Committee, was
elected as the chairman of 2023 AGM to ensure effective communication
with shareholders of the Company at 2023 AGM. The chairman of
Nomination Committee, Ms. Phillis Loh, Lai-ping had also attended 2023
AGM.

CONCLUSION

The Company believes that corporate governance principles and practices
are essential to the business communities. Ongoing effort will be put
to review its corporate governance practices from time to time so as
to accommodate the changing circumstances. The Company will strive
to maintain and strengthen the standard and quality of its corporate

governance.
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DIRECTORS' REPORT
EEERESE

The directors of the Company (the “Directors” or the “Board”) are pleased
to present to the shareholders their report together with the audited
consolidated financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries
(collectively the “Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2023 (the

"Year").

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

During the Year, the Company acted as an investment holding company
and its subsidiaries were principally engaged in property investment and
development, building and property management, brokerage, securities

investment, money lending and cosmetics distribution and trading.
BUSINESS REVIEW

A review of the business of the Group during the Year, discussion on
the Group's future business development and description of possible
risks and uncertainties that the Group may be facing can be found in the
“Chairman’s Statement” of this annual report. Furthermore, the financial risk
management objectives and policies of the Group can be found in Note 5
to the consolidated financial statements. Particulars of important event(s)
affecting the Group that has/have occurred since the end of the Year (if
any) are contained in the “Chairman’s Statement” of this annual report.
An analysis of the Group's performance during the Year using financial key
performance indicators is provided in the “Financial Operation Review”
of this annual report. Discussions on the Group's environmental policies
and performance, relationships with its key stakeholders, and compliance
with the relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impact on
the Group are provided in the “Chairman’s Statement”, the “Corporate
Governance Report”, the “Directors’ Report” and the “Environmental, Social

and Governance Report” of this annual report.
OPERATING SEGMENTS INFORMATION

The Group's revenue and contribution to profit for the Year from operations
analysed by principal activities are set out in Notes 7 and 8 to the

consolidated financial statements.
SUBSIDIARIES AND ASSOCIATES

Particulars of the Company's principal subsidiaries and associates as at
31 December 2023 are set out in Notes 46 and 47 to the consolidated

financial statements.
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RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the Year are set out in the consolidated

statement of comprehensive income on pages 115 to 116.

During the Year, the Board did not declare any interim dividend (2022: nil).

The Board resolved not to recommend the payment of final dividend for
the Year (2022: nil).

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results, assets and liabilities of the Group for the last five

years is set out on pages 273 to 274.

PRINCIPAL PROPERTIES AND PROPERTY
DEVELOPMENT RIGHTS

Details of the principal properties and property development rights of the
Group as at 31 December 2023 are set out on pages 275 to 280.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Movements in property, plant and equipment during the Year are set out in

Note 20 to the consolidated financial statements.
INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

During the Year, the Group did not acquire any investment properties
(2022: nil); the Group has disposed of an investment property with
carrying amount of approximately HK$27,602,000 (presented under assets
classified as held for sale) (2022: nil).

Other movements in investment properties during the Year are set out in

Note 19 to the consolidated financial statements.
CHARITABLE DONATIONS

Charitable donations made by the Group during the Year amounted to
approximately HK$10,278,000 (2022: HK$11,066,000).

DIRECTORS' REPORT EZESHEE

FERTE

REBRAREEZEEHREISEF6EZEA
EEINEERERA -

MAEER  BEESWESREMNTHRE (-
ZF )

EHRRTEBAREAFEZRPRE (T
$ P )

MBEHME

AEBBERFZELE -
273E 2748 °

TENERYERERER

BENRBEHMEHRNSE

AEER-_Z-_ZF+_A=Z+-—HZEZEYER
Y RER BN E2752 52808 °

M - BEKRE

ME - BMERRERRNFERAZEHBFRANEE
Bz MIE20 -

REWM=E

RAFERN  AEEBTEBA(CTZZF : 8)F
AR EWE  AEED HEIRMEEL27,602,000%5
T(ZEBEZZF - B) 7 —EREME (2T AFHED
EZRBE) -

Ht iR EMERERFERN 2 ZHFEHNGEE B
WERMEE19 -

BEB

REBRAFERNZESIBHEELA10,278,000/%8

T(ZZE= =4 : 11,066,000 7T) °

CECC-FFHR EABXEE

59



DIRECTORS’ REPORT E=ZEg#HEE

GROUP BORROWINGS AND INTEREST
CAPITALISED

Details of secured bank borrowings repayable within one year or on
demand and long-term secured bank borrowings are shown in Note 35 to

the consolidated financial statements.

During the Year, interest capitalised amounted to approximately
HK$10,988,000 (2022: HK$4,475,000) by the Group.

RESERVES

Movements in the reserves of the Group during the Year are set out on
pages 120 to 124.

As at 31 December 2023, the Company's reserves available for distribution,
calculated in accordance with the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as
amended), amounted of approximately HK$13,882,680,000 (2022:
HK$13,650,710,000).

SHARE CAPITAL

Movement in the share capital of the Company during the Year is set out in

Note 36 to the consolidated financial statements.
PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

No pre-emptive rights exist under the laws of Bermuda, being the

jurisdiction in which the Company is incorporated.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY'’S LISTED SECURITIES

During the Year, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries had

purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company's listed securities.
EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

During the Year, the Company did not enter into any equity-linked

agreement.
MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts, other than employment contracts, concerning the
management and administration of the whole or any substantial part of the

Company's businesses were entered into or existed during the Year.
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The revenue and aggregate revenue attributable to the Group's largest
customer and five largest customers accounted for approximately 9.8%
and 30.9% of the Group's total revenue (excluding the Group's interest
income from bonds and structured products, dividend income from listed
and unlisted equity investments and gain on sales of investments held-for-

trading) for the Year respectively.

At no time during the Year did a Director, a close associate of a Director or
a shareholder of the Company (which to the knowledge of the Directors
own more than 5% of the Company’s share capital) have an interest in any

of the Group's five largest customers.

The aggregate purchases attributable to the Group's five largest suppliers

amounted to less than 30% of the Group's total purchases for the Year.

DIRECTORS

The Directors during the Year or up to the date of this Directors’ Report are:

Executive Directors:
Ms. Chan, Hoi-wan (Chief Executive Officer)
Ms. Chan, Lok-wan
Mr. Lam, Kwong-wai
(resigned on 25 May 2023)

Non-executive Directors:
Mr. Lau, Ming-wai (Chairman)
Ms. Amy Lau, Yuk-wai

Independent Non-executive Directors:
Mr. Chan, Kwok-wai
Mr. Leung, Yun-fai
(appointed on 10 March 2023)
Ms. Phillis Loh, Lai-ping
Mr. Ma, Tsz-chun

Ms. Amy Lau, Yuk-wai, Ms. Phillis Loh, Lai-ping and Mr. Ma, Tsz-chun will
retire from office at the forthcoming annual general meeting pursuant to
Bye-law 111 of the Bye-laws of the Company and all being eligible will
offer themselves for re-election.
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SERVICE CONTRACTS OF DIRECTORS

None of the Directors has a service contract with the Company or any of
its subsidiaries which is not determinable by the employer within one year

without payment of compensation (other than statutory compensation).

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES'
INTERESTS IN THE SECURITIES OF THE
COMPANY AND ASSOCIATED CORPORATIONS

As at 31 December 2023, the interests and short positions of the Directors
and chief executives of the Company in the shares, underlying shares and
debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporations (within
the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance, Chapter
571 of the laws of Hong Kong (the “SFO")) as recorded in the register
kept by the Company pursuant to section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise
notified to the Company and The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the "Stock Exchange™) pursuant to Appendix C3 (formerly Appendix 10)
of Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers
contained in the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock

Exchange (the "Listing Rules") were as follows:

1 The Company

EERBEL

ARBREEMHE AR L EEEERFER—F
W& B EE RIS QR AFLRECKERERIN
ZIRIEEH o

EENESTBRAEREARTR
MEBEE 2 RS En

RZEBZ=F+ZA=+—H EFREARTER
THRABRARBRLEE(IENEE (ER REBE
PIEST1E(EFRBEED) ([FHFRIBE GG
EXVED) 2 Bx D - ARG REFPEE 2w K
B RARARREES R KRIEIS2GETF2E
TS IRIBEE BB AR AR AR ([BF))
BHEMRBN( EMRR DM EC3 (RITEM 8 T) (E
METAZERITEFZ D HIZETR) MGARAF]
ME AR -

Percentage of

Number of Issued Share
Name of Director Shares Held Capacity Capital
EEpE FrERoE B 54 |ERTREBS L
Ms. Chan, Hoi-wan (“Ms. HW Chan") 1,430,700,768 & Interest in controlled 74.99%
BRel B+ (R E L) corporation and interest of
children under 18
N2k VNCI - 58
RM8RTF R Z
Note: B3
* These shares of the Company were indirectly owned by Sino * AN F)ZZ SR BSino Omen Holdings

Omen Holdings Limited (as disclosed under “Substantial
Shareholders’ Interests in the Securities of the Company”), the
entire issued share capital of which was held by Ms. HW Chan as
the trustee of her minor children Lau, Chung-hok, Lau, Sau-wah
and Lau, Sau-yee.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES'
INTERESTS IN THE SECURITIES OF THE
COMPANY AND ASSOCIATED CORPORATIONS
(Cont'd)

I Associated corporations of the Company

DIRECTORS' REPORT EEgHEE

BEERBSTHAERAQATR
BB ZE2E S ERz®

N RAFZHEEEE

Percentage of
Name of Associated Number of Issued Share
Name of Director Corporations Share(s) Held Capacity Capital
EEps HEEBAR R0 E 5 | ERTRZASL
Ms. HW Chan Sino Omen Holdings Limited 50,000 * Interest of children under 18 100%
BelExt Rm18FT R et
Ms. HW Chan Solar Bright Ltd. 1 & Interest in controlled 100%
B ELt corporation and interest of
children under 18
S YN 4
w18 F R R
Note: PiEE

* Ms. HW Chan (as the trustee for her minor children Lau, Chung-
hok, Lau, Sau-wah and Lau, Sau-yee) directly held the entire
issued share capital of Sino Omen Holdings Limited. Sino Omen
Holdings Limited directly held the entire issued share capital of
Solar Bright Ltd.. Therefore, Ms. HW Chan as the trustee for her
said minor children was also regarded as interested in the entire
issued share capital of Solar Bright Ltd..

The interests stated above represent long position. The percentage shown
was the number of shares the relevant Director was interested in expressed

as a percentage of the number of issued shares as at 31 December 2023.

Save as disclosed above, none of the other Directors and chief executives
of the Company had or were deemed under the SFO to have any interests
or short positions in the shares, underlying shares or debentures of the
Company or any of its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part
XV of the SFO) as at 31 December 2023.

During the Year, none of the Directors and chief executives of the Company
nor their spouses or children under 18 years of age were granted or had
exercised any right to subscribe for any securities of the Company or any of

its associated corporations.

* R BLL(ERERKFFLETE -
B FEERBIBRZEFEA) BEERFESInO
Omen Holdings LimitedZ & B B 1T A »
Sino Omen Holdings Limited & ##%4& Solar
Bright Ltd.Z 2 #E BT o it - FREL
BUTERE FMRKEFFLZETA
IR 48 A A Solar Bright Ltd. 2202 377 M%
o

LSRR - BTN BDLEREHESEN
Eo=F+ A=+ -HFABEAZROHBBIEER
TEROBBEZADL -

BEXHIEBEN RZE_=F+ZA=+—
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS' INTERESTS IN FERRRA QAR 2T HE =
THE SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

As at 31 December 2023, so far as are known to any Directors or chief EHEEEBXARBERITRABMAE  RZT=Z=
executives of the Company, the following parties (other than Directors or  F+Z=A=+—H KA RIRIEFEHRBEEHE
chief executives of the Company) were recorded in the register kept by — 336/57B{EF 2 B MAE S BTMEARF » HiE
the Company under section 336 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to Sk A SRR A A AR BB 1T A 5% A
the Company, as being directly or indirectly interested or deemed to be ~ t##H 2 AL (BEER AR A ZSTHRABRIN 10

interested in 5% or more of the issued share capital of the Company: ™

Percentage of

Number of Issued Share

Name of Substantial Shareholders Shares Held Capacity Capital

FERRER Frs IR 8 B ; 54 BERTREABIL

Mr. Joseph Lau, Luen-hung ("Mr. Joseph Lau”) 1,430,700,768 A Interest of spouse and 74.99%
Dmrng A (B2 ST A D) interest of children under 18
Bl 2 #Eam &
KW 185 F R sk

Sino Omen Holdings Limited 1,430,700,768 e Interest in 74.99%
(Incorporated in the British Virgin Islands) controlled corporation
(REB R R A S M) RE SRR 2w

Solar Bright Ltd. 1,430,700,768 & Beneficial owner and interest 74.99%
(Incorporated in the British Virgin Islands) in controlled corporation
(P33 /88 4 R R A S e AR S2) BEHBEAEAR
NS NS X

Century Frontier Limited 476,425,000 £ Beneficial owner 24.97%
(Incorporated in the British Virgin Islands) BB A

(70 5288 4 PR R B B R A ST)

Joseph Lau Luen Hung Investments Limited 230,984,820 & Beneficial owner 12.10%
(Incorporated in the British Virgin Islands) EmfEA
(REBAER AT ML)
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS' INTERESTS IN
THE SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY (contd)

Notes:

= Mr. Joseph Lau was deemed to be interested in the same parcel of
shares that his spouse, Ms. HW Chan, and his minor children, Lau,
Chung-hok, Lau, Sau-wah and Lau, Sau-yee, were interested or deemed
to have interests.

* Solar Bright Ltd. held the entire issued share capital of Century
Frontier Limited and Joseph Lau Luen Hung Investments Limited and
therefore was deemed to be interested in 476,425,000 shares of the
Company held by Century Frontier Limited and 230,984,820 shares
of the Company held by Joseph Lau Luen Hung Investments Limited
respectively. In addition, Solar Bright Ltd. directly held 723,290,948
shares of the Company. As such, Solar Bright Ltd. was interested or
deemed to have interested in a total of 1,430,700,768 shares of the
Company. Sino Omen Holdings Limited held the entire issued share
capital of Solar Bright Ltd. and therefore was deemed to be interested
in 1,430,700,768 shares of the Company, which were referred to in
the interests of Ms. HW Chan as disclosed under “Directors’ and Chief
Executives' Interests in the Securities of the Company and Associated
Corporations”.

All the interests stated above represent long positions. As at 31 December
2023, no short positions were recorded in the register kept by the

Company under section 336 of the SFO.

ARRANGEMENTS TO PURCHASE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

There were no arrangements to which the Company or any of the
Company's subsidiaries was a party to enable the Directors to acquire
benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the

Company or any other body corporate during the Year.
DIRECTORS’ INDEMNITIES

According to the Company’s Bye-laws, each Director shall be entitled to
be indemnified out of the assets of the Company against all losses or
liabilities (to the extent allowed by the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda
(as amended)) which such Director may sustain or incur in or about the
execution of the duties of the Director's office or otherwise in relation
thereto. The Company has provided indemnity to independent non-
executive directors of the Company (“INEDs") by issuing a letter to each
of the INEDs. The Company has also arranged appropriate directors’
and officers’ liability insurance coverage for the Directors and officers of
the Group which was in force during the Year and up to the date of this

Directors' Report.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESSES

During the Year, Ms. HW Chan and Mr. Lau, Ming-wai had personal and/or
directorship interests in private companies engaged in property investment
business and securities investment business; Ms. HW Chan had personal
and/or directorship interests in private companies engaged in money
lending business and property development business; and Mr. Lau, Ming-
wai had personal and directorship interests in a private company engaged
in property management business. As such, they were regarded as being
interested in such businesses, which competed or might compete with the

Group.

In addition, Mr. Joseph Lau, a former executive Director, Chairman of the
Board and Chief Executive Officer of the Company, had through the then
private companies wholly-owned by him acquired the retail shops of York
Place, Excelsior Plaza (include Laforet) and Southorn Centre (also known as
Wanchai Computer Centre) from the Group in 2010, certain floors and car
parking spaces constituted part of the properties known as Silvercord and
the properties known as The ONE from the Group in 2015 as well as the
properties known as Windsor House from the Group in 2016 (collectively
the “Private Properties”). Ms. HW Chan was a director of and deemed to
have interests in the companies directly or indirectly holding the Private
Properties during the Year. There might be potential leasing competition
for existing and prospective tenancies between the Private Properties and
investment properties held by the Group. In order to manage such potential
leasing competition, Mr. Joseph Lau had provided certain undertakings and
the Company had agreed with the Stock Exchange to implement certain
measures for monitoring the compliance of such undertakings. Details of
such undertakings and monitoring measures were set out in the circulars
of the Company dated 18 June 2010, 23 September 2014, 7 January
2015 and 15 January 2016. The INEDs had carried out an annual review
on the compliance of the said undertakings and monitoring measures and
confirmed that such undertakings and monitoring measures were duly
complied with and considered adequate monitoring measures were in

place to avoid the potential leasing competition during the Year.

The Directors are aware of their fiduciary duties and will act honestly and
in good faith in the interests of the Company and will avoid any potential
conflict of interests and duties. The Company comprises four INEDs and all
of them are members of the audit committee of the Company, so that the

interests of its shareholders can be adequately represented.
Other than as disclosed above, none of the Directors were interested in

any businesses apart from the Group’s businesses, which competed or was

likely to compete, either directly or indirectly, with the Group's businesses.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CONTROLLING
SHAREHOLDERS' INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

Save as the agreement(s) disclosed under the heading “"Connected
Transactions” below and the facility agreement(s) entered into between
the Group and Ms. HW Chan as disclosed under “Material Related Party
Transactions” in Note 45 to the consolidated financial statements, there
were no other transactions, arrangements or contracts of significance in
relation to the Company's businesses, to which the Company or any of the
Company's subsidiaries was a party, subsisting at the end of the Year or at
any time during the Year, and in which a Director or an entity connected
with a Director had, whether directly or indirectly, a material interest, nor
there were any other transactions, arrangements or contracts of significance
in relation to the Company's businesses between the Company or any
of the Company's subsidiaries and a controlling shareholder or any of its

subsidiaries.
CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

(1) Connected Transactions and Continuing Connected

Transactions

The Group had entered into the following tenancy agreements with
a connected person of the Company. The entering into the relevant
tenancy agreements as well as the rental payments, the service
charges and rates payments, the fit-out administration fee payments
and the dedicated lift maintenance payment thereof (where
applicable) constituted connected transactions and/or continuing
connected transactions for the Company. These transactions were
exempted from the independent shareholders’ approval requirement,
but were subject to the reporting, announcement and (to the extent
constituting continuing connected transactions for the Company)

annual review requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (contd)

(1) Connected Transactions and Continuing Connected

Transactions (Cont'd)

ot

[BA 2

%

Z ()

(1) BEXZRBEBEXRZ(H)

Name of the connected person and nature

Name of the parties to the of connected person’s interest in the
transaction(s) Date and principal terms of the transaction(s)  Caps for the Year transaction(s)

REHER RZABRTERR FELR BEATEBREEALRARZ R ZAENE
Date of Announcement: 12 June 2020

AR —E-FEXATZA

Chinese Estates, Limited (‘CEL") | Tenancy agreement dated 12 June 2020 entered For senvice charges and WHL

(a direct wholly-owned

subsidiary of the Company)
EANBEBRAR(ER])

(AREZBERZERENE

G

(Tenant)

(EP)

Windsor House Limited ("WHL")
(Landlord)
(#3)

into between CEL and WHL in relation to leasing of
the whole of 39th floor of Chubb Tower, Windsor
House at a monthly rental of HK$1,409,500 for

a term of 3 years from 13 June 2020 to 12 June
2023 for the purpose of headquarter of the Group
HEEAWHEVABA-S-2F A+2H
WAERE EEREREAEREASKRED
B2E BARSA14095008T - =T
TERNATZEE-E-ZFEAATZBILAH
= ERFEEEHZA

Date of Announcement: 28 March 2022

AEH . —F==

Landrich (HX.) Limited
("Landrich")
(an indirect wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company)
B (ER)BRAR(ER])
(FRrl AR EREME
NG
(Tenant)
(8F)

CEL
28
(Tenant)

(EP)

WHL
(Landlord)
%)

ZA=+/A

Tenancy agreement dated 28 March 2022 entered
into between Landrich and WHL in relation to
leasing of Room 3602 on the 36th floor of Chubb
Tower, Windsor House at a monthly rental of
HK$169,500 for a term of 3 years from 1 April
2022 to 31 March 2025 in connection with the
sale of Nos. 14-18 Ma Kok Street redevelopment
project in Tsuen Wan

HEREWHET Y AR Z-ZF=A=+)
BoiEEthE  AEREEEAEREASAE
36183602% - §AEEH16950087T - H-%
ZZEMA-BECERF-A=T-BIA
H=F ARHENREEEAGI4ZI18RNE
J=3E)E

Tenancy agreement dated 28 March 2022 entered
into between CEL and WHL in relation to renewal
leasing of the whole of 19th floor, the whole of
20th floor and the whole of 21st floor of Chubb
Tower, Windsor House at an aggregate monthly
rental of HK$2,350,000 and for a term of 3 years
from 1 November 2022 to 31 October 2025 for
the purpose of headquarter of the Group
MEEEWHLETUABA-Z-_F=A-T/
BOEERE  FREEEEAEREASAR
1982 E 20B2ER21ERE AR
£A235000087 B4 +—A—H
ECRCRETAST-HLEAB=F  fFRA
SELH A
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rates payment (from

1 January 2023 to 12 June
2023)

- HK$1,900,000
RBERZMFE (R
T_=f-A-REC%
“=ERATZA)

- 1,900,000

For fit-out administration
fee payment (from

1 January 2023 to 12 June
2023)

- HK$500,000
RETHETEH-F
Z=E-A-HECIZC
ZERATZR)

- 500,000 T

For service charges and
rates payments

- HK$6,900,000
RBEREEFE

- 6,900,000 T

For fit-out administration
fee payments
- HK$550,000

\\\\\

- 550,000 T

For dedicated ift
maintenance payment
- HK$450,000
EZRABRRENE
- 450000 T

At the date of the announcement, WHL was a
company indirectly owned by (i) Ms. HW Chan (an
executive Director and a trustee of the substantial
shareholders of the Company (who are her minor
children)), bath in her capacity as a trustee of her
minor children and in her own capacity; and (i) a
family trust of Mr. Lau, Ming-wai (a non-executive
Director and the Chairman of the Board)
REDHEE - WHLA R A ()R B LE
TEERFRAZFERR (B AKEFL)Z
EENMERKEF R GRAZFHRAR
G250 RAEERECEATEERES
SER) 2R GEREREE 2 2T

WHL

At the date of the announcement, WHL was a
company indirectly wholly-owned by Ms. HW Chan
(an executive Director, the chief executive officer

of the Company and a trustee of the substantial
shareholders of the Company (who are her minor
children)) as trustee for her minor children
RELTHEE  WHLA AR L L (E1
B ARAZTBBHRARA FERE
(BzARETFR) 2 ERANERREFR 2
A ENEERERE 2 AR



CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (contd)

m
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Connected Transactions and Continuing Connected

Transactions (Cont'd)
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(1) BEXSREERERS ()

Name of the connected person and nature

Name of the parties to the of connected person’s interest in the
transaction(s) Date and principal terms of the transaction(s)  Caps for the Year transaction(s)
REHER RZABRTERR FELR BEATEBREEALRARZ T 2AENE
Date of Announcement: 13 March 2023
AGEH . —E-Z#ZF1=ZH
CEL Tenancy agreement dated 13 March 2023 entered | For senvice charges and WHL
B into between CEL and WHL in relation to renewal | rates payment (from
(Tenant) leasing of the whole of 39th floor of Chubb 13 June 2023 to 31 At the date of the announcement, WHL was a
(HP) Tower, Windsor House at a monthly rental of December 2023) company indirectly wholly-owned by Ms. HW Chan
HK$1,090,000 for a term of 2 years 4 months and | - HK$1,700,000 (an executive Director, the chief executive officer
WHL 19 days from 13 June 2023 to 31 October 2025 | RIEBRZHFIE(BRZ | of the Company and a trustee of the substantial
(Landlord) for the purpose of headquarter of the Group TZ=FRATZHEZ | shareholders of the Company (who are her minor
&) HEEAWHEIUASBAZS-=F=F1+=A | TZ=FFZA=+— | chiden)) as trustee for her minor children
WHERE BHEMSESAEZREASARY | A) RERMEE  WHLA—HBRAE L L (5T
B2E BAHEER10000008T m-F- | -170000027T S AREZTH@RRALEZIRRR
ZERATZREZS-RFTA=T-ALA (RzAKREF R 2 ERANERRE TR 2
SRENEAS AR  EAREEESZA Forfitout administiation | FEAZ FNREL ARG A
fee payment (from
13 June 2023 t0 31
December 2023)
- HK$500,000

FEEOIREFAR-E

ZZERAt=AZCE
ZZEFTZA=1-R)

- 500,000 7

Continuing Connected Transactions

The Group had entered into the following contracts for services with
a connected person of the Company. The entering into the relevant

contracts for services and the transactions contemplated thereunder

2 HERE

constituted continuing connected transactions for the Company 5 o

under the Listing Rules.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (contd) BERZ @)
(2) Continuing Connected Transactions (Cont'd) 2 BHEBEXZE
Name of the connected
person and nature of
connected person's
Name of the interest in the
parties to the transaction(s)
transaction(s)  Date and principal terms of the transaction(s) Caps forthe Year ~ BEATZBREEALR  Listing Rules implications
RAHER RABHRITRN EELR R ZARNE tHRAZEE
Date of Announcement: 14 August 2020
ARE  ZEZFE/F 1A
Date of Circular: 7 October 2020
BRAE —8-FF1HtA
Date of Special General Meeting: 28 October 2020
BEBHAGRY —8-FF1H=1/1H
CEL On 14 August 2020, CEL entered into a contract for semvices with For service charges | Ms. HIW Chan As ane or more of the applicable
£E Ms. HW Chan regarding the provision of (i) leasing administration payeble by Ms. HW | Bl s+ percentage ratios for the expected
senvices (including without limitation matters relating to dealing Chan (from T January annual caps were more than
Ms. HW Chan with tenants, rent collection and taking legal actions, but excluding | 2023 to 31 October | At the date of the 5%, the contract for services and
et senvices in relation to the referral of potential tenants and the 2023) announcement, Ms. HW the transactions contemplated
negotiation with existing and/or potential tenants regarding terms - HK$54,600,000 Chan was an executive thereunder were subject to reporting,
of lease of properties), (ii) sale administration sevices (including BslBg iﬁiﬁiﬁz Director and a trustee of the | announcement, circular, independent
without imitation the appointment of and coordination with estate | FREE(H=F== | substantial shareholders of shareholders' approval and annual
agents for such sale but excluding any sale agency senvice), (i) F-R-HZ 7- “2- | the Company (who are her | review requirements pursuant to
property management senvices (including matters relating to =EtA=1-R) | mino children) Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules
management, maintenance, operation, servicing and repairs of -54600000%T | REAMBHE - BilBRr | AREEFELRZ-EISEE

properties), (1v) property administration sevices (including without
limitation accounting, recruitment, human resources administration
works, taxation, marketing and information technology services)
(the "Property Administration Services"), (v) asset management
and maintenance services (including property, household and other
management and maintenance services in relation to properties and
assets) (the "Asset Management and Maintenance Senvices"), (vi)
rental sevices (including rental of motor vehicles, car plates, vessels,
car parking spaces, premises and other rental senvices) (the “Rental
Senvices"), (vi) advisory and consultancy senvices (including generl
advisory, consultancy, administration, liaison, personnel support
senvices and such other services (including without limitation
accounting and taxation services) ancillary and/or incidental thereto)
(the "Advisory and Consultancy Services"), and (viii) other ordinary
senvices (including without limitation securities and other financial
senvices) (collectively, the "Existing Senvices") to Ms. HW Chan, her
associates andjor relatives for a term of 3 years commencing from
1 November 2020 0 31 October 2023 (the "Existing Contract”)
RZZ-EEN\AT0A - EBERSIER T —Hm -2
“EET-A-HECRCCETAST-RLARCFNR
BAH NAEBERRARLT  EREAR/ LHBRE()
RETHRB(REETRRARERR AR  WARFRER
18 BTREREENBERPIRARERPR/E
APRAEBNS 2 BERT L RE) - (n)fﬁgﬂﬂlﬂﬁ%’{( &
EARRRAS HEBEREREHERBNETHE A
BEEMHERERE)  (MEEERE(REERNELE
B RE 2B REREEZZE) (WNETHRR(AE
ET Bt - ANERTBIE B mSRER
B (0EI0RE) - EEERRRERE (R
BBNEREEZ DR REREMERRAERSR) (BEE
BREERB]) - ()VEERB(RAER = HhE BE
i - 5402 MERAMAERE) (AERE]) - (i)H A RER
Tk (afE— et BR 700 B8 ASZRRBRER
RER/SHBRE (DEETRASHREBRS) (#HR
BRARKD - kit —REHOEETRRES REME
IR (ERRARK]) (REa40)
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (contd)

(2) Continuing Connected Transactions (Cont'd)
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/i

BERS

TJr

(2) HEBREXS(E)

Name of the connected
person and nature of
connected person's
Name of the interest in the
parties to the transaction(s)
transaction(s)  Date and principal terms of the transaction(s) Capsforthe Year ~ BEALRBEREEALR  Listing Rules implications
RAHER RABHBRITRN EELR RN ZARNE LHRAZEE
Date of Announcement: 16 August 2023
AAH . ZEZZENF1AR
CEL As the Existing Contract expired on 31 October 2023, on 16 August | For service charges | Ms. HW Chan As the applicable percentage rafios in
g 2023, CEL entered into a contract for senvices with Ms. HW Chan payable by Ms. el e respect of the caps exceeded 0.1%
regarding the provision of the same and/or similar Existing Services | HWW Chan (from 1 but were less than 5% on an annual
Ms. HW Chan to Ms. HW Chan, her associates and/or relatives for a term of 3 November 2023t0 | At the date of the basis, the entering into of the contract
Feldat years commencing from 1 November 2023 to 31 October 2026 31 December 2023) | announcement, Ms. HW for senices and the transactions
BNRBANRZE=FHA=+—RI%H EBRZTZ | -HKI10300000 | Chanwas an execuive contemplated thereunder were only
ZENATABERABRLIU-HB-E_ZF+-A— | RIABRLEINZ | Director, chief executive subject to reporting, announcement
RE-S-RFTE-T-ALAS-FHREAN A28 | BEEE-F=Z | officerof the Companyand | and annual review requirements but
BrRdELt  EREAR/SEBREARE/FAENE | FT-F-HZ=%| atusteeof thesubstantial | were exempt from the shareholders'

ELv Z=EFZF=+—| shareholders of the Company | approval requirement pursuant to
A) (who are her minor chidren) | Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules
-1030000087T | AALHEH RIBLL | @R ERIERAANERERH

BUTES ARAZAH | BB0I%ESR%  HETIRE

ERRADRZIBRR | AOREETHENIRHBET
(RZAREFRZERA | BB DARFREGLA

T ERELTRAZASER
SEBRRYEZRTE

Having reviewed the above continuing connected transactions, the INEDs,
pursuant to rule 14A.55 of the Listing Rules on the requirement to carry out
an annual review on the continuing connected transactions, confirmed that
the transactions were made in the ordinary and usual course of business
of the Group (other than household management and maintenance
services under the Asset Management and Maintenance Services, the
Property Administration Services, the Rental Services and the Advisory and
Consultancy Services under (2) above); on normal commercial terms;
and in accordance with the relevant agreements governing them on terms
that were fair and reasonable and in the interests of the shareholders of
the Company as a whole. For continuing connected transactions under
(2) above, having considered the reasons and benefits in respect of the
provision of household management and maintenance services under the
Asset Management and Maintenance Services, the Property Administration
Services, the Rental Services and the Advisory and Consultancy Services as
mentioned in the Company's announcements dated 14 August 2020 and
16 August 2023 as well as circular dated 7 October 2020, the INEDs were
of the view that, although the provision of such services contemplated
under the respective contracts for services were not in the ordinary and
usual course of business of the Group, the terms of such services were
fair and reasonable so far as the Group were concerned and on normal
commercial terms, and were in the interests of the Company and its

shareholders as a whole.

BIUIFAITEEIRE EMRBIE 14A55& 2 3R EH
BEBRERFHETFESREZ TR LS ERE
R5%  BARAZERHIBAEBEZHER—REB
(FEQETZEEEERRERBETZRE
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REERRFBIRIN - BB — AR IR TOETT IR
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (contd)

The auditors of the Company, pursuant to rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules,
provided and confirmed in their letter made in accordance with Hong
Kong Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000 (Revised) “Assurance
Engagements other than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial
Information” and with reference to Practice Note 740 (Revised) “Auditor's
Letter on Continuing Connected Transactions under the Hong Kong Listing
Rules” issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
that the above continuing connected transactions:

(1) nothing has come to the auditors’ attention that causes the auditors
of the Company to believe that the disclosed continuing connected

transactions have not been approved by the Board;

(2) for transactions involving the provision of goods or services by the
Group, nothing has come to the auditors’ attention that causes the
auditors of the Company to believe that the transactions were not,
in all material respects, in accordance with the pricing policies of the

Group;

(3) nothing has come to the auditors’ attention that causes the auditors
of the Company to believe that the transactions were not entered
into, in all material respects, in accordance with the relevant

agreements governing such transactions; and

(4) with respect to the aggregate amount of each of the continuing
connected transactions, nothing has come to the auditors’ attention
that causes the auditors of the Company to believe that each of the
continuing connected transactions has exceeded the annual cap set

by the Company disclosed in relevant announcement.

Save as aforesaid, there were no other discloseable non-exempted
connected transaction or non-exempted continuing connected transaction
under the Listing Rules during the Year and up to the date of this Directors’
Report.

Save as aforesaid, none of the "Material Related Party Transactions” for
the Year as disclosed in Note 45 to the consolidated financial statements
constituted discloseable non-exempted connected transaction or non-

exempted continuing connected transaction under the Listing Rules.

To the extent of the above “Material Related Party Transactions” constituted
connected transactions or continuing connected transactions as defined
in the Listing Rules, the Company had complied with the relevant

requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules during the Year.
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DISCLOSURE PURSUANT TO RULE 13.21 OF
THE LISTING RULES

As disclosed in the Company's announcement dated 25 November 2021,
an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company (the “Borrower”) as
borrower has on 25 November 2021 entered into a facility agreement
(the "Facility Agreement”) with a bank (the “Bank”) as lender in respect
of a term loan facility (the “Facility”) in the principal sum of up to
HK$610,000,000 and it is a term of the Facility Agreement that the
Company entered into a guarantee (the “Guarantee”). The Facility will be
repayable in 12 successive quarterly instalments with the final repayment
date falling 36 months after the date on which the advance under the

Facility is made.

Pursuant to the Facility Agreement and the Guarantee, the Borrower
and the Company shall procure that the substantial shareholders of the
Company (as disclosed at pages 74 to 75 of the 2020 annual report of
the Company) and/or their ultimate beneficial owners together with their
respective associates and connected persons in aggregate shall maintain
not less than 30% shareholding in and remain a single largest shareholder

of the Company.

A breach of the abovementioned undertaking may constitute an event
of default under the Facility Agreement, whereby the Bank may, among
others, cancel the Facility and declare that all sums accrued or outstanding
(including accrued interest) under the Facility Agreement be immediately
due and payable. The occurrence of such event may trigger the cross
default provisions of other banking or credit facilities available to the Group
and, as a possible consequence, these other facilities may also be declared

by the relevant lenders to be immediately due and payable.

RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEMES

The Group operates two retirement benefit schemes:

(1) the provident fund scheme as defined in the Occupational
Retirement Schemes Ordinance, Chapter 426 of the laws of Hong
Kong (the "ORSO Scheme"); and

(2) the provident fund scheme as defined in the Mandatory Provident
Fund Schemes Ordinance, Chapter 485 of the laws of Hong Kong
(the "MPF Scheme”).
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RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEMES (contd)

Both the ORSO Scheme and the MPF Scheme are defined contribution
schemes and the assets of both schemes are managing by their respective

trustees accordingly.

The ORSO Scheme is available to the Group's full-time permanent staff
employed in Hong Kong before 1 December 2000. Contributions to the
ORSO Scheme are made by the Group at 5%, 7.5% or 10% based on
the staff's basic salary depending on the length of service. Staff members
are entitled to 100% of the Group's contributions together with accrued
returns after completing 10 years of service or more, or attaining the
retirement age, or are entitled at a reduced scale between 30% to 90%
of the Group's contributions after completing a period of service of at least
3 years but less than 10 years. The ORSO Scheme allowed any forfeited
contributions (made by the Group for any staff member who subsequently
left the ORSO Scheme prior to vesting fully in such contributions) to be

used by the Group to offset the current level of contributions of the Group.

The MPF Scheme is available to all employees aged 18 to 64 and with
at least 60 days of service under the employment of the Group in Hong
Kong. Contributions are made by the Group at 5% based on the staff's
relevant income. The maximum relevant income for contribution purpose
is HK$30,000 per month. Staff members are entitled to 100% of the
Group's contributions together with accrued returns irrespective of their
length of service with the Group, but the benefits are required by law to be

preserved until the retirement age of 65.

In order to provide similar benefits to those who joined the MPF Scheme
and the ORSO Scheme, the Group provided an additional portion (the
“Top-up Portion”) for those who joined the MPF Scheme. The purpose
of the Top-up Portion is to match up the benefits of the MPF Scheme
with that of the ORSO Scheme by providing those staff under the MPF
Scheme with basic salary over HK$30,000 and/or years of service over 5.
Contributions to the Top-up Portion are made by the Group at 5%, 7.5%
or 10% of the staff's basic salary less the Group’s mandatory contribution

under the MPF Scheme as mentioned above.

The Group's total cost for the schemes charged to consolidated statement
of comprehensive income for the year ended 31 December 2023
amounted to approximately HK$8,548,000 (2022: HK$8,615,000). In
addition, an amount of forfeited employer’s contributions for the schemes
amounted to approximately HK$408,000 (2022: nil) that was utilised
towards reducing the Group’s contributions during the Year. As at 31
December 2023, the available balance to reduce future contributions
amounted to approximately HK$18,000 (2022: HK$11,000).
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Hin

PUBLIC FLOAT NBRER

3

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company and RIEAQRRBENAMENRESHNE A2 7
within the knowledge of the Directors, the Company had maintained the RAFEAREEZEARFRABILEIZ ETHRAET
prescribed amount of public float during the Year and up to the date of this ~ ##FETHE I ARFRE -

annual report as required under the Listing Rules.

AUDITORS B Em

The consolidated financial statements for the Year were audited by AEEZEAPHRERABEFESTAMEHBMERA
HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited (“HLB") who would retire at the — &1 ([E#]) #ix - ZFHRI/T R BN G 21T 2 AR R
conclusion of the forthcoming annual general meeting, and being eligble, AT AEERIFTMER  HAEKRTES ERE
offer themselves for re-appointment. A resolution will be proposed to the — ff - RENERITZ REBEF A L BREERE
shareholders at the forthcoming annual general meeting to re-appoint HLB AR R ZEEIMRERE —HRER -

as the auditors of the Company.

On behalf of the Board REES=S

Chan, Hoi-wan 2

Director PR g 28

Hong Kong, 15 March 2024 B —Z_ME=A+HAH
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

RE  HEREGHRES
ABOUT THIS REPORT

This environmental, social and governance ("ESG") report (“this Report”)
captures the ESG performance of the Company (or “Chinese Estates”) and
its subsidiaries (together, the “Group”) during the reporting period. The
information collected during report preparation process and disclosed in
this Report will serve as the basis of the Group's ESG strategy, management
and future improvement.

Reporting Standard

This Report was prepared in accordance with the requirements as set out
in Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting Guide (the “Guide”),
Appendix C2 (formerly Appendix 27) of the Rules Governing the Listing
of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”) (the “Listing Rules”).

Reporting Period

Unless otherwise specified, this Report covers the Group's progress and
performance on ESG issues from 1 January 2023 to 31 December 2023
(the "Reporting Period").

Reporting Scope and Boundary

Unless otherwise specified, the reporting scope of this Report only
covers the Group's operations in Hong Kong. The reporting principles of
“Materiality”, "Quantitative”, “Balance” and “Consistency” as set out in the
Guide underpin the preparation of this Report, the contents of this Report
and the presentation of information.
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ABOUT THIS REPORT (contd)

Reporting Scope and Boundary (Cont'd)

Reporting Principles
EHEFA

BARARE @

HREBERARGE)

Materiality
B2

The materiality assessment was conducted to identify material
issues during the Reporting Period, thereby adopting the confirmed
material issues as the focus for the preparation of this Report. For
further details, please refer to the sections headed “Stakeholder
Engagement” and “Materiality Assessment”.

RMERN  AEEETEEUTEUBRNE2HE - KEHE
FTEZRBERTRENERES - EZHBEHL2H(BNHESR
R [ BRI E]EE -

Quantitative

21t

To measure the effectiveness of ESG related policies, the Group has
adopted the Guide and relevant guidelines published by the Stock
Exchange, in measuring and presenting quantitative environmental
and social key performance indicators ("KPIs"). Details of the
standards used are described in the relevant sections of this Report.
RESESCIAERBUR B ML - AREE B RNIES| K 3P T)3
MMRES - WEERZFIE(IRE R SRRESEZ (R
BRHERRD) - FTABEA 2 FBERAREHH =& A/ -

Balance
T

This Report aims to provide an unbiased and balanced
representation of the Group’s ESG performance. It avoids selections,
omissions, or presentation formats that may inappropriately
influence a decision or judgment by the report reader.
ABEEENMR NG R TFEMERAEERESCKRIR - BEA
g ThRETEREESARNAENER  BERAEWME
= o

Consistency

—

Unless otherwise stated, the Group uses consistent reporting
standards and methodologies to allow for meaningful comparisons
of ESG data over time.

BIESZBHA  DAIAREE S A B ERER R E T
7% QESCEUBRRAMEAERMLE -

Board Approval

Exaite

The board of directors of the Company (the “Board”) has approved this AARIEEFS(EEENER _T-NF=A+EHH

Report on 15 March 2024.

BAERIRE o

CECC=EFR EABEER /7



/8

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

ABOUT THIS REPORT (contd)

Board Statement

The Group considers sustainability as a strategic approach to create long-
term business value. To achieve sustainable development, we strive to
address ESG concerns by integrating ESG principles into our operation
and management process. A well-structured ESG management approach
helps us to identify the ESG related risks and ensure daily operations are
aligned with the Group's ESG practices. Chinese Estates has a solid ESG
governance structure which comprises of the Board and the Sustainability
Working Group (the "Working Group”). As the highest governing authority
in the Group, the Board has ultimate responsibility for all sustainability
related matters, providing vision and strategic direction for our sustainability
activities, formulating corresponding business strategies and policies,
and overseeing overall ESG management and reporting. The Board
also regularly reviews the Group's sustainability risks and opportunities,

performance and progress.

Under the Board, the Working Group plays a vital role in overseeing the
Group's sustainability strategies, daily operations and risk management.
The Working Group comprises of department heads and managers from
key divisions, including Administration, Building Management, Company
Secretarial, Human Resources, Leasing, Marketing, Project Development
and Internal Audit. The Working Group has the strategic and operational
responsibility to manage sustainability issues, monitor the progress of our
sustainability activities and ensure the Group stays on track and in balance
with the three sustainability dimensions of economic, environmental and
social impacts at all times. Under delegated authority from the Board,
the Working Group is responsible for monitoring sustainability matters
in operations, reviewing stakeholders’ feedback and updating respective
policies. We listen to our stakeholders and consider their views, comments
and recommendations on ESG management. Our efforts in understanding
and managing the ESG related risks enable us to achieve our objective
of creating greater values for all stakeholders. All ESG related matters are
reported to the Board on regular basis.

In prior years, based on the preliminary qualitative environmental targets
set, we have further benchmarked against our peers, analysed our historical
environmental data, and developed our quantitative environmental
targets. These targets help ensure that our approach to environmental
management and our initiatives to enhance environmental performance
can be carried out effectively and consistently throughout the Group. In
addition, we recognised that our climate resilience is critical to our business
operation and competitiveness in the long run. We conducted a more in-
depth climate assessment to identify and analyse the risk level of both
physical and transition risks related to the Group in order to understand the
potential impacts to our business.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT IR3E - HERERHKES

Approach to Sustainability

A

Stakeholder Engagement

BARARE @

BERUREARRENTZE
A FFHESH

To understand stakeholders’ expectations and ESG related issues

that are relevant and important to the Group, we are committed to

maintaining constant communication with our stakeholders. This

Report captures the highlights of our sustainability performance and

achievements in the Reporting Period.

Chinese Estates engages with stakeholders to understand their

expectations and to address their concerns regarding ESG related

issues of the Group. We constantly engage with our key stakeholders

through diverse communication channels to collect their opinions.

The table below shows various communication channels with our

key stakeholders:

RTBFNENREREAEEEHEBER
MESGHHRZE - RN ERNERFES
B AMERBRBEMNMERNTHERR
R KBLE) SRR o

EANEEXZFNESE AT RMOMOHE
I eSS A EBESCHBFEEN BT - 1
PMEAERBARREFERTIERNEBABYL
WERMPANER - TRETERMEAZERNE
BBZEERE

Key Stakeholders Communication Channels Issues of Concern
TERFHE BERE BEEE
Corporate website . Social concerns and charity events
. . NSRS HeMEREERD
Community and the Public , — . L
HERABAL Company's publications . Cllmat‘e change mitigation and
DAY adaptation
AR N E e RARE ML
Day-to-day communication through Quality of service
frontline employees BR7%SE =
BBAGRETINHEEER . Customer data and privacy protection
Management service surveys RIEZPERRILE
Customers/Tenants EE RGeS
BP /P -
Tenant satisfaction surveys
HEmEERAE
Customer hotline
B RIS AR
Intranet Employees’ benefits
QY EER=A
Channels for employees’ feedback Company activities
such as forms and suggestion boxes NCIVEE D)
KR ERERMEEERERS . Training and development
Employees . . N
EE Emplozlee trainings and meetings iﬁaJ'\&?é‘J?é
REEIEEE . Occupational health and safety
Performance appraisals BERRELE
FEFZ
Team building activities
BB &S
TEZ=FFR EABXEE
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ABOUT THIS REPORT (contd)

Approach to Sustainability (Cont'd)

A.  Stakeholder Engagement (Cont'd) A BHEZHEE)
Key Stakeholders Communication Channels Issues of Concern

TEROE

BIEHE

Government and Regulatory
Bodies

BT R EEHE

Regulatory documented information
EEX A
Regular meetings

— P
TEHE®

Compliance with the relevant laws and
regulations
HBDEREDER 2 BFIHRN

Business integrity and ethics

) SE S B IR

Annual and regular meetings

Stable business relationships

Industry Associations FENREHRGE BEREBRIER
RN Events Business development

BHED EBER

Meetings Social concerns and charity events
Non-governmental g HEMERAEED

Organisation ("NGO")
Partners

BT
([BEBUTHAED & EREH

Sponsorships and donations

B 1B

Volunteer activities and charitable
activities

BETERPREZEY

Shareholders/Investors

PR HEE

Circulars/announcements/notices/
publications

Bk NS HRY
Financial reports

B mE

General meetings

RERAE

Investor relations enquiry
REEWEREH

Corporate website

NSIEEhh

Corporate governance and risk control
EER KRR BT

Investment returns

% & Bl

Sustainable operations

AR E

Suppliers/Contractors/
Service Providers/
Professional Advisors

s, A,

RRFG HLIER B X R R

Ongoing direct engagements
FERERS2H

Procurement process

REEIEFF

Regular meetings

g

On-site audit management system

BRIGRTEEHIE

Stable business relationships
TRE B EB IR

Business integrity

[ESELEH

Supplier evaluation and management

HERmE REE

The Board and
Senior Management
BEEehaMERE

Intranet

PR 48

Regular meetings
EHIEH

Trainings and seminars
EII R E

Compliance operation
BREE

Risk management

[\ B 3

Business development
EBEE

Financial performance

BRI
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ABOUT THIS REPORT (contd)

Approach to Sustainability (Cont'd)

B.

Materiality Assessment

To better understand our stakeholders' expectation and opinions, we
conducted a materiality assessment for the Reporting Period with the
support of an independent consultant. We first identified a list of ESG
related topics that are potentially material to the business operation
of the Group day-to-day. A survey was also conducted for both
internal and external stakeholders in prioritising the importance of
the identified ESG topics to both the Company and its stakeholders.
Having considered the survey results, peer benchmarking exercise
results and compliance requirements, certain sustainability issues
have been identified as material to the Group. The results serve as a
guide to the Group on the ESG management and disclosure of this
Report. The results were discussed in the Working Group meeting
and were endorsed by the Board.

High &

HEhENnEEN

Importance to Stakeholders

Low 1E

Materiality Matrix
EEu e

Importance to the Group's Business

HAREERBNERME
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ABOUT THIS REPORT (contd)

Approach to Sustainability (Cont'd)

B.  Materiality Assessment (Cont'd)

Aspect
LR

BRUFERRENGTEGE)

B. EEMFMEGE)

Material sustainability issues
AFERRERE

1. Energy efficiency
BEIRES

2. Waste management

FEEYE IR
Environment 3. Use of materials
RIE MEHE A
4. Responding actions to climate risks
SRR b B 1T ED
5. Environmental compliance
RIBAR
6.  Employment policies and labour rights
TR IB TR 2 55 THER
7. Diversity and equal opportunity
ST R T EHE
Employment 8. Occupational health and safety
=2 BEREREZS
9.  Employee training
EEEI
10.  Prevention of child labour and forced labour
PilbET RoakssT
11.  Responsible supply chain management
BRAHEEER
12.  Products/service quality and safety
Em/ REEEREE
13.  Tenant satisfaction, customer service quality and complaint handling
Operations APREE - 2P R T ERIRAE
.
=2 14.  Intellectual property rights
N
15.  Tenant/visitor privacy and data protection
P/ HELB R ERHRE
16.  Anti-corruption
k&)™
Community 17. Community Investment
Fan HRikE
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

We are committed to achieving and maintaining a high standard of
corporate governance to safeguard the interests of our investors and other
stakeholders. Our corporate governance practices are in strict compliance
with the Prevention of Bribery Ordinance (Chapter 201 of the laws of Hong
Kong) and relevant anti-corruption laws. To uphold the highest standard
of corporate governance, the Board and management are dedicated to
ensuring corporate integrity and business ethics in all our business activities.
All management and staff must abide by the standards of operating ethics
and employee conduct set forth in the Group's Code of Practice (the “Code
of Practice”). Our employees should avoid any conflict of interest and
ensure all business decisions are made objectively and in the interests of
the Group. No employee should accept advantages, gifts or entertainment
from our current and future business partners in contravention of the Code
of Practice. Any acts of non-compliance may lead to strict disciplinary or
legal action.

To ensure the accountability and openness of our management, our
employees are encouraged to report any misconduct and malpractices
concerning financial reporting, internal control or other related matters. A
whistleblowing policy is brought into place to provide reporting channels
and guidance for our employees to report any suspected cases, and to
provide reassurance to whistleblowers of the protection that the Group will
extend to them against unfair dismissal or victimisation for any genuine
reports made under this policy. During the Reporting Period, no reported
case was received by Internal Audit Department/the Audit Committee.

To raise internal awareness on anti-corruption, we organised anti-corruption
training to our directors and staff from time to time. During the Reporting
Period, the anti-corruption training was provided to all new joiners of the
Group and a total of 30 staff participated the training with 30 accumulated
training hours. We provided case studies and practical tips to ensure our
employees can uphold ethical standard under real-life situations.

During the Reporting Period, no concluded legal cases relating to
corruption were brought against the Group. For more information about our
corporate governance policies and practices, please refer to the “Corporate
Governance Report” of this annual report.
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OPERATIONS

To achieve higher operational efficiency, Chinese Estates actively engages
with employees, tenants, visitors and suppliers to understand their needs
and expectations. The Group makes every effort to provide quality products
and services to our tenants and visitors while ensuring a healthy and safe
environment for our tenants and visitors.

A. Commitment to Product and Service Quality

Chinese Estates strives to offer high-quality products and services
with excellence and creativity. We strictly abide by all relevant laws
and regulations regarding product safety, anti-competition behaviour,
advertising and labelling. We have formulated the Product and
Services Responsibility Policy to communicate our expectations and
requirements on delivering high-quality products and services in our
project development as well as building management businesses.
The policy also demonstrates our commitment on safeguarding the
environment, as well as the safety and health of our tenants and

visitors.

A holistic quality control system and assurance procedures are in
place to manage the quality of products and services. When it comes
to property planning, design and development, where we control
the quality through careful selection and close monitoring of our
contractors and suppliers, we also communicate to them about our
commitment to the environment such that environmental impact is

considered throughout the properties’ life cycles.

We are committed to safeguarding the health of our tenants and
visitors. During the Reporting Period, Windsor House (Public Area
of Office Building) and The ONE (Common Area of Shopping Mall)
were awarded the Indoor Air Quality Certificate (Excellent Class) by
the Environmental Protection Department, while Windsor House
(Public Area of Shopping Mall) and Harcourt House (Public Area
on G/F, 3/F to 6/F, 10/F to 21/F and 24/F) obtained the Indoor
Air Quality Certificate (Good Class). In addition, Windsor House was
certified with the standards of the Quality Water Supply Scheme for
Buildings — Fresh Water (Management System) (Silver) by the Water
Supplies Department for 2023 to 2025. These achievements show
our efforts in providing quality products and services.
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OPERATIONS (contd)

Tenant Communication and Satisfaction

It is essential to improve our customer satisfaction. While we are
building trust with our tenants and visitors, we do not compromise
our professionalisms and business ethics.

Collecting feedback is vital to the enhancement of customer
experience and our business growth. To improve our products and
services, we listen to our tenants and visitors and take every opinion
seriously. We have established multiple communication channels
for our tenants and visitors to provide valuable feedback. During the
Reporting Period, we conducted tenant satisfaction surveys in 10 of
our managed properties and achieved an average mark of 78.4/100
in the overall performance of management service.

In addition, our frontline employees are equipped with adequate
knowledge and skills in handling complaints from tenants and visitors.
We strive to respond to their inquiries and complaints promptly with
follow-up actions to ensure that tenants and visitors are satisfied with
the solutions. During the Reporting Period, we received 128 service-
related complaints (2022: 253).

Tenant and Visitor Safety

The safety of tenant and visitor is our top priority. We put ample
resources in emergency response training for our frontline
employees. During the Reporting Period, we organised training
courses to our staff on various aspects, including (1) Emergent Cases
Response & Tackling Measures, and (2) Criminal Cases Dealing
Procedures & Guidelines.

Since the COVID-19 pandemic, the Group has adopted various
preventive measures in its properties to safeguard the health of
owners and users. For instance, we intensify disinfection in common
areas, and provide hand sanitizers and disinfectants in most of the
entrances of our managed properties.
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OPERATIONS (contd)

D.

Supply Chain Management

To support our diversified operational activities, we engage a diverse
range of contractors and suppliers. We have high expectation on
our suppliers and we require them to uphold the same level of
business ethics and conduct as we do. Among all contractors and
suppliers, we consider those who support our building and property
management as well as property development to be of higher
environmental and social risks. We have formulated our Supplier
Code of Conduct and required the aforementioned contractors and
suppliers to acknowledge it as part of the contractual agreement.
The Supplier Code of Conduct outlines our minimum requirements
for supplier behaviour, covering compliance of laws and regulations,
health and safety, non-discrimination, labour practices, anti-
corruption, employee. We have a standard tendering process to
manage contracts, consultants and to source building materials for
our development projects. We concern environmental and safety
risks throughout the whole value chain. As such, we have clearly
stated our requirements on the environmental and occupation safety
and health compliance on the tender contract.

The Group adopts a fair and transparent approach to select, monitor
and evaluate our contractors. A contractor assessment tool is in place
to regularly assess the performance of contractors for our building
and property management business. Besides, property managers
and estate officers conduct regular inspections to contractors works.
Clarification and explanation are required in case our requirements
are not met by any contractor. Depending on the severity of the
issue, contractor who failed to take corrective actions may result in
termination of the contract. During the Reporting Period, there were
331 active property management and/or property development
related contractors, of which all located in Hong Kong (2022: total
of 283 active contractors of which all located in Hong Kong). All of
them have undergone the contractor assessment procedures of the
Group.
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OPERATIONS (contd)

E. Tenant/Visitor Privacy and Data Protection

Chinese Estates is aware of the emerging concern of data privacy
from our tenants and visitors. We inform our tenants and visitors
the purposes for which their personal data are collected and ensure
that the data collected are not excessive. The Group has established
Privacy Policy to provide clear instructions and guidelines to our
employees on handling personal data. We also offer data protection
training to all employees in orientation and refresher programmes
to make sure that our policies are effectively communicated to
employees in different positions. The Group strictly complies with
all relevant laws and regulations, including but not limited to the
Personal Data (Privacy) Ordinance (Chapter 486 of the laws of Hong
Kong). During the Reporting Period, there was no non-compliance
regarding the consumer data protection and privacy of tenant and
visitor data.

F. Intellectual Property Rights

Chinese Estates respects the intellectual property rights and upholds
all applicable laws and regulations. These include but are not limited
to Trade Marks Ordinance (Chapter 559 of the laws of Hong Kong),
Registered Designs Ordinance (Chapter 522 of the laws of Hong
Kong), Patents Ordinance (Chapter 514 of the laws of Hong Kong)
and Trade Descriptions Ordinance (Chapter 362 of the laws of Hong
Kong). Our Information Technology Department verifies and confirms
all hardware and software purchased or installed are licensed to
ensure that our daily operation does not violate any intellectual
property provisions.

ENVIRONMENT

Recognising the environmental impacts arising from our day-to-day
business operations, Chinese Estates makes every effort to mitigate those
impacts so as to minimise the harm to our environment. We have been
taking various measures to reduce the adverse impacts of air emissions,
wastewater discharge, waste generation and natural resource consumption.
Furthermore, we promote the efficient use of resources, such as energy,
water and other raw materials in our daily operations to fulfil our
commitment to the environment.

Chinese Estates strictly complies with all the relevant provisions of
environmental laws and regulations. These include but are not limited to
the Buildings Energy Efficiency Ordinance (Chapter 610 of the laws of
Hong Kong), Waste Disposal Ordinance (Chapter 354 of the laws of Hong
Kong) and Water Pollution Control Ordinance (Chapter 358 of the laws of
Hong Kong). During the Reporting Period, there were no cases of breach of
related laws and regulations.
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ENVIRONMENT (contd) RIB @

To reaffirm our commitment to environmental protection, we have set AZERKEMHRERENEE  RMEBASERE
the environmental targets through a progressive process involving desktop T ZE ~ JE S HUIE 25 25 A [F) 17 55 28 B9 80 3 72 /7 5% 08
research, historical data review and peer benchmarking. The Working IRBHRZ - T/ MAERRIBERV I EHN B ZME
Group monitors the environmental performance and reviews the progress & ° B E — B EAS*ETRIRE B BIZ
of the targets. The details of our targets for Group 1 portfolio* on various BIFEEREHEN « 2R - KERREEY - 515

environmental aspects, including greenhouse gas (GHG) emission, energy, ~ ZAF :

water and waste are as follows:

Environmental Targets for Group 1 Portfolio*
E-EYFASTNWRERR

GHG Emission Reduce indirect GHG emission (Scope 2) intensity by 19.8% by 2030 against the base year 2019
B EREEHER RZZ=ZF7 - AERAEREHN(EE)ZEEEF _FE— N FHI19.8%

Energy Reduce electricity consumption intensity by 13.2% by 2030 against the base year 2019

BEIR RZZB=ZFF -  REETELEEF_Z-NFRD13.2%

Water Reduce water consumption intensity by 7.7% by 2030 against the base year 2019

KEIR MRZZ=FFF MKEEELELEF _Z-NFRI7.7%

Waste Maintain paper consumption level below the baseline level, which is 122,000 kg in 2019

REZY) HRFASROB R K FEREGKFEAT - BIZZ— N F19122,0000 T

Environmental Performance of Group 1 Portfolio*

BE-RUEXASTNRARE

Unit 2023 2022
B
Indirect GHG emission (Scope 2) intensity Tonnes of carbon dioxide equivalent 0.01 0.01
MEAEREFR(BED)TE (tCO,e)/square feet
W—EtmEE THR
Electricity consumption intensity Gigajoule (GJ)/square feet 0.06 0.06
REEEE THRERFHR
Water consumption intensity Cubic metre (m?®)/square feet 0.08 0.07
FKkERE SMTTRFIR
Paper consumption Kilogramme (kg) 94,000 89,000
SR OHRE NIy
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ENVIRONMENT (contd)

We take environmental impacts into account in the entire lifecycle of our
business projects, including planning, design, development and operation.
We have formulated the Environmental Policy to guide our employees to
act in an environmentally responsible manner during business operation.
The policy has demonstrated our commitment to assessing and monitoring
the environmental implications of our operations and to integrate
environmental consideration in our property investment, development
projects as well as building and property management businesses. We also
communicate our Environmental Policy with our consultants, contractors
and other stakeholders to promote sustainability throughout the value
chain. Meanwhile, various measures are in place in different business units
to manage our environmental impacts. At self-owned or managed sites,
we adopt green initiatives and promote environmental awareness. In our

offices, we strive to create a green workplace for our employees.

During the Reporting Period, the Group continued to monitor the
environmental targets and made progress in achieving the targets by 2030.

A. Energy and Carbon Management

Buildings contribute to 90% of the city's electricity consumption
and 60% of the city's carbon footprint®. As a property developer
and property manager, Chinese Estates is obliged to play our part to
reduce electricity and energy consumption across our portfolio. In
this regard, we implement energy-saving initiatives to better manage
our use of energy. For instance, we conduct regular energy audit at
the properties that we manage, including Windsor House, Harcourt
House and Wanchai Computer Centre, to analyse their energy
consumption, and identify opportunities to reduce energy usage and
carbon footprint.

To demonstrate our commitment to reducing energy usage,
we support the Charter on External Lighting launched by the
Environment and Ecology Bureau. We are committed to minimising
the light nuisance and energy wastage by switching off unnecessary
outdoor lighting at night. During the Reporting Period, The ONE,
Windsor House and Wanchai Computer Centre were honoured
with the Platinum Award, while Excelsior Plaza and Causeway Place
were honoured with the Gold Award. Besides, we actively engaged
in green events organised by NGOs, such as the Earth Hour by
World Wide Fund (WWF) in March 2023 and the No Air Con Night
by Green Sense in October 2023, to educate and encourage
our managed properties’ owners and tenants to reduce energy
consumption.

A Carbon Neutral@HK, Hong Kong's Climate Action Plan 2050, “Chapter 4:
Decarbonisation Strategies « Targets « Actions”, https://www.eeb.gov.hk/
sites/default/files/pdf/cap_2050_en.pdf (2021)
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ENVIRONMENT (contd) BREB

A. Energy and Carbon Management (Cont'd) A BRERRERE)
To create an environmentally friendly atmosphere and encourage REERBRERFNN LIES ISR EIT
green behaviour at our workplace, the Group appoints the Green R AEEREZRERAE/NESIE RNITH
Office Team to formulate and implement energy conservation NEERERES o R AR/ NERICTEEE
strategies at offices. The Green Office Team adopts various measures LAsEosE B ¥ EnRE M B - 2Ol E - HRME
to enhance the employees’ awareness of energy-saving. For example, BERERZMLET  REERSE@ERRERN
stickers are posted next to light switches and electronic appliances BB - BN ERIETRE iﬁl«/ﬁﬁﬁﬁifﬁ
to remind employees to turn off idle electronic appliances and lights. EZ

RERIE - RERAENESFHMERE
Reminder emails are also sent out to communicate these initiatives EITMINRE - RGN Mﬁxﬁlf;?i o
to our employees. To ensure the green office initiatives are carried

out effectively, the Green Office Team will review all initiatives twice

a year.

Case study: Improving Chiller Efficiency to Save Energy
EIRFAR | RALKEYRUGHTEER

During the Reporting Period, energy saving innovation was piloted on Windsor House. The Group has engaged an energy
management expert to install new electronic equipment on two chillers of Windsor House, which adopted non-chemical and
patented electromagnetic technology to remove precipitation fouling and rusts deposits on the cooling system. Hence, the
efficiency of the chillers’ operation was enhanced and the lifetime of the cooling system including chillers and piping could
be prolonged. As such, the Group would save the capital expenditure to replace the system and reduce the waste due to the
disposal of worn-out chillers and hardware.

RBERAN - EEKREETHRAFTAMTE - REEDZZEEE SER EREMARKELZENEFR
1 T?x’ﬁﬁ#ﬂ:@*&ﬁ*'J%EEH?Z?TI%B‘%/%@IL\,ybim/n/ﬁx/’ﬁf&ﬁﬁ%?i% E i /77K%E’UT%%{’E§$($?%L‘ME% M
RARG(BELKELREBNSHEALER - it AEBEBEHEERARNEARF - WD ERERE S KHE
KAEHERHDRE ©

The new technology is expected to reduce chiller energy consumption by not less than 7% when comparing with the
original chillers of Windsor House.
B2 EANERBRQKEAAL - BRI TR R AT PR K REBE T DA 70% ©

B. Climate Change B. RIREt

In the context of emerging climate change, extreme weather is EREREBEOERT  RmRARREZTE
more likely to pose greater challenges among all industries and E R EBEFBRE RS - FREIR
our business operations. As an environmentally responsible and 5EE EEREPESNASERRAR &K
sustainable company with a long-term vision, we continue to be P4 TE R+ B IR MTH IR b S &
proactive in strengthening our climate resilience and adaptation in FERE S - AEENBAENRIRRR - REEDH
response to the potential climate risks. The Group has identified RIRNEELBENERNRRMEEEE - HMEENHE
significant climate-related issues to the Group's operation and also CRIREALBUR) - BB 32 RAR 240 Ak 1)
implemented the Climate Change Policy to outline the commitment A REINERAZEME LER  BER
to managing climate change risks and set out approach on mitigation, FEST ) 77 & -

adaptation and resilience to tackle these issues.
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ENVIRONMENT (contd)

B.

Climate Change (Cont'd)
Physical Risks

From the climate risk assessment, we observed that flooding and
extreme wind or typhoon are the most relevant climate hazards
to our operations. To mitigate and minimise the operational
and financial impacts of climate risks, we implement various
countermeasures for the respective physical risks.

Extreme precipitation and sea level rise may lead to an increase
in the occurrence of flooding, which may result in widespread
devastation to our properties located near the coastal area or rivers,
increasing the operational expenditure for repair and maintenance.
To prevent massive damage to our business operations, we
implement a range of mitigation measures. For example, we will
conduct a flood risk assessment and avoid property development in
a flood zone; consider implementing property-level flood protection
strategies, including water barriers to stop flooding from street
into the properties, flood resistant building materials and installing
CCTV to monitor the street water level around the properties so as
to identify flooding and immediately report to Drainage Services
Departments for any blockage; flood insurance, emergency plans in
response to flood events; and set up a warning system.

As the intensity and frequency of extreme wind events increases,
extreme wind or typhoon has also been considered as another
relevant physical risk. Especially, windows or glass curtain walls are
susceptible to shattering due to strong wind, disrupting business
operations and threatening the physical safety of any person. As a
responsible company, we ensure all of our buildings are structurally
safe under any circumstances, including extreme weather conditions.
To enhance the overall resilience of our properties against extreme
wind or typhoon exacerbated by climate change, we will conduct
regular facade inspection and maintenance, strengthen the existing
wind resilience measures, and adopt wind-resistant building designs
for properties.

Transition Risks

With the more stringent ESG reporting and climate regulations,
the Group may incur increased compliance costs to fulfill the
climate policies and regulations. Failure to meet certain climate-
related requirements may expose the Group to the risk of claims
and litigation, which may result in a decline in corporate reputation.
Therefore, the Group will regularly monitor regulatory changes in
laws, policies and regulations to ensure compliance and also consult
professional entities to improve our compliance with climate change
disclosures.
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ENVIRONMENT (contd)

B.

Climate Change (Cont'd)

Transition Risks (Cont'd)

In addition, the investors and stakeholders may favor companies well
prepared for climate change or divesting from companies failing to
implement effective measures to manage climate risks. The Group
has been maintaining high transparency on ESG issues to build trust
and confidence among investors and other stakeholders and closely
communicating with stakeholders to understand their concerns and
expectations.

Opportunities

The Group recognises that climate change poses risks and also
presents opportunities to its operation. It has been exploring
opportunities to improve resource efficiency and reduce waste,
for example, dual flush toilets and water-saving tapes have been
installed in the Group's certain self-owned or managed properties to
promote the efficient use of water and reduce operating costs. The
Group will continue to explore further opportunities that may arise
from new climatic conditions.

Waste Management

The Group is committed to diverting waste from landfill sites.
As such, we implement different waste management initiatives
in the properties and offices we own or manage to minimise
waste generation. We actively promote reusing and recycling to
maximise the lifetime of useful materials. The Group also engages
conscientious recycling contractors to collect and process the
recyclable materials responsibly.

At our managed properties, we encourage our tenants and residents
to practise waste separation at source. We have placed multiple
recycling bins in the properties under our management, such as The
ONE and Windsor House.
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ENVIRONMENT (contd)

C.

Waste Management (Cont'd)

To reduce food waste, the Group has been collaborating with our
business partners and suppliers to initiate a food waste reduction
programme. A food waste recycling machine in The ONE treats the
food waste collected from the catering tenants of The ONE. The
liquid-form food waste recycled product from the recycling machine
is then donated to O « Park1 (located at Organic Resources Recovery
Centre Phase 1, No. 5 Sham Fung Road, Siu Ho Wan, North Lantau)
for their further green electricity generation.

At our offices, waste reduction initiatives are also in place to create
an environmentally friendly working environment and cultivate green
minds. We established e-communication channels to substitute the
use of paper to promote a paperless working environment. Not only
can we minimise paper wastage at the source, but also increase the
efficiency in our daily communication within and outside the Group.

To encourage recycling at our offices, not only do we set up
collection points for paper recycling, but we also place boxes around
the offices to collect reusable stationaries, such as file folders,
single-sided used paper and pens. Used printer cartridges are
returned to suppliers. Retired but functional electronic appliances,
such as computers, printers and fax machines, are donated to NGOs
to support those in need.

Use of Resources

Being a responsible corporate citizen, the Group is committed to
using resources efficiently and promoting recycling in our community.
Energy and water are significant parts of natural resources
consumption in our business activities. To manage our impacts on
energy and water, we adopt different measures to promote the
effective use of energy, water, and other raw materials. For examples,
we approach some potential tenants and encourage them to rent the
vacant roof space in Windsor House for installing their solar panels to
provide green energy to HK Electric.

Also in our Fanling Organic Farm which produces organic vegetables
and sells in low cost to our office colleagues, with this income to be
used in some other charity purposes. Furthermore, we also installed
some solar panels in this Organic Farm to provide green energy for
the operation of the Farm, as well as aligning the green purpose of
the Organic Farm.

Besides, we use carpets that are produced from recycled materials
in a number of our commercial properties and conserve the use of
water by installing dual flush toilets in some of the properties we
own or manage.
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ENVIRONMENT (contd) REw
D. Use of Resources (Cont'd) D. XEREAGE)
The environmental metrics for 2023 and 2022 is tabulated below: ZEC=FRITI_FHRBEEENAT
2023 2022
Unit Group 1 Group 2 Group 1 Group 2
B portfolio*  portfolio* Projects* portfolio* portfolio* Projects*
-8 58 F8 F_H
NELE PEEE* BE*  WEESr DEAser HR*
Energy consumption'’
B!
Electricity Kilowatt Hour (kwh) 31,004,233 5,318,407 135,808 30,560,644 5,459,243 103,603
& FRE
al 111,615 19,146 489 110,018 19,653 373
ThEE
Towngas al 0 19 0 0 14 0
ER ThEE
Energy consumption intensity GJ/HK$ million Group's 274 91
RREREE total revenue
TREE BEET
AEEARA
GJ/HKS million 645 640
Hong Kong properties-
related revenue
FREE/BEET
EEMERBRA
GHG emissions?
BERBHN
Scope 1 - Direct emission tCOe 0 0 0 0 0 487
BE - BEREER M_AliHE e
Scope 2 - Indirect emission tCOe 17,974 2,451 53 18,107 2471 74
8E2 - RN M-AliEe
Scope 3 - Other emission tCO.e 9 N/A
(business travel)®
HED - A (EHKRT): MB_atRE: B
Total GHG emission tCOe 20,487 21,139
RERBHIGE M-aliREe
GHG emissions intensity tCO,e/HK$ million Group's 43 14
BERBHHEE total revenue
M_alREe
BEETASEBNA
tCO,e/HK$ million 101 104
Hong Kong properties-

related revenue
BE_EiEse/ B8
BITABNERBRA
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ENVIRONMENT (contd) BRIR @)
D. Use of Resources (Cont'd) D. XEREAGE)
The environmental metrics for 2023 and 2022 is tabulated below: TEC=FRIZZIEMRFEENT
(Cont'd) (&)
2023 2022
Unit Group 1 Group 2 Croup 1 Croup 2
By portfolio*  portfolio*  Projects* portfolio* portfolio* Projects*
-8 %-8 EF-8 -8
WERE  YEEE* BE*  MFEEE* MEEA* HE*

Non-hazardous waste

BEEEY
Waste collected Litres (L) 23,512,524 9,154,080 0 21,735540 9,009,780 0
PR Y Tt
Tonnes* - - 1,023 - - 37467
g
Paper consumption® kg 94,308 3,616 338 89,279 3,486 188
HRER NI
Paper recycled kg 6,552 241 0 6,025 216 0
ElEE NI
Metal/Aluminium recycled kg 868 0 28,700 568 1 0
©R/RE NI
Plastic recycled kg 1,177 32 0 704 0 0
ZRER NI
Food waste recycled L 816 N/A N/A 608 N/A N/A
e Tt TER TER TER TEm
Water consumption
kg
Water m’ 143,747 52,232 2,784 127,282 42,715 7,670
S IHA
Water consumption intensity m?/HK$ million Group's 414 124
HKEEE total revenue
UHKR/AEETAEE
LSO
m3/HK$ million 976 874
Hong Kong properties-
related revenue
YRR/ BEETEE
MERBRA
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ENVIRONMENT (contd) IRIE )

Notes to reporting boundary for environmental metrics

Group 1 portfolio refers to properties that are owned by Chinese Estates,
and properties owned by Chinese Estates’ substantial shareholder which
Chinese Estates is managing as an agent. We consider Group 1 to be
remained in our portfolio for a long period of time. Group 1 portfolio
includes: Chinese Estates’ headquarters, The ONE, Silvercord, Windsor
House, Causeway Place, Excelsior Plaza (include Laforet), Wanchai
Computer Centre and Harcourt House.

Group 2 portfolio refers to properties that are currently not owned by
Chinese Estates, but the owners have appointed a subsidiary of Chinese
Estates to be the property manager (other than those covered in Group 1
portfolio). For electricity and water consumption, we only cover areas that
we have control. General waste collected refer to those collected from
the entire property. Group 2 portfolio includes: Chic Castle, Evergreen
Garden, i-home, Indihome, Manhattan Avenue, Miami Crescent, MOD
595, One South Lane, One WanChai, Sunrise Villa, The Bellevue Place
and York Place.

Projects refer to development, redevelopment and other ongoing
construction projects that are owned by Chinese Estates. Projects in the
Reporting Period include: “Nos. 14—-18 Ma Kok Street, Tsuen Wan".

Energy conversion is based on including but not limited to "How
to prepare an ESG Report — Appendix Il: Reporting Guidance on
Environmental KPIs" issued by the Stock Exchange.

GHG emissions data is presented in terms of carbon dioxide equivalent
and are based on, including but not limited to, the “The Greenhouse Gas
Protocol: A Corporate Accounting and Reporting Standard” issued by the
World Resources Institute and the World Business Council for Sustainable
Development, “How to prepare an ESG Report — Appendix Il: Reporting
Guidance on Environmental KPIs” issued by the Stock Exchange, “2022
Sustainability Report” published by CLP Holdings Limited, “Sustainability
Report 2022" published by Hong Kong Electric and “Environmental,
Social and Governance Report 2022" published by The Hong Kong and
China Gas Company Limited, and the global warming potential values
from The Intergovernmental on Climate Change (IPCC) Synthesis Report
(AR5) (2014).

GHG emissions in relation to business travel is newly disclosed during
the Reporting Period.

Waste collected for projects include construction waste and general waste
for the Reporting Period. Only construction waste was included for last
year.

Paper consumption is round up to the nearest thousand for the
presentation here. For details, please refer to the paragraph “Use of
Resources” in this section.
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EMPLOYMENT

Employees play a critical role in the success of the Group. Chinese Estates
endeavours to create an equal, healthy and inclusive workplace for our
employees to grow together with the Group. Our Workplace Employment
Policy outlines the guidance to prohibit any discrimination and harassment,
offering healthy and safe workplaces, as well as provide comprehensive
trainings and professional development to employees. The policy is
reviewed regularly by the management to ensure the rights of employees
within the company are protected. With dignity and respect, we recognise
employees from diverse backgrounds, and we comply with the applicable
laws and regulations including but not limited to the Employment
Ordinance (Chapter 57 of the laws of Hong Kong).

Chinese Estates strictly prohibits the use of child and forced labour in all
our business activities. Stringent background check will be conducted on
applicants during the hiring process to avoid accidental recruitment of child
and forced labour. During the Reporting Period, the Group has complied
with relevant laws and regulations relating to preventing child and forced
labour, including but not limited to the Employment of Children Regulations
(Chapter 57B of the laws of Hong Kong).

We also require our suppliers and contractors to align with our commitment
to ethical labour practice by confirming the compliance on no child or
forced labour in the Supplier Code of Conduct and such requirements also
forms part of the contractual agreement with the suppliers and contractors.
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EMPLOYMENT (contd)

A.

People

Equal Opportunities

The Group adheres to providing employees with a pleasant and
harmonious working environment that can improve productivity
and staff morale. Our employees are required to comply with the
guideline of equal opportunities specified in the Code of Conduct
and to treat everyone with respect and dignity. We adhere to the
non-discrimination policy during the recruitment process. Applicants
are assessed based on their skill, ability and working experience
regardless of gender, age, ethnicity, religion, race, disability, marital or
family status, or any other characteristics protected by law. We assure
that our recruitment process remains fair and competitive and we
provide equal opportunities to employees in making all employment
decisions by us.

Remuneration

To attract and retain talent, we provide employees with a fair
and competitive remuneration package. Appraisal is conducted
annually by department heads. Salaries are reviewed based on the
performance and experience of the employees. Our promotion
policies are performance-based. Employees are rewarded with a
year-end discretionary bonus based on market conditions when
certain individual performance levels are met. Our remuneration
packages and policies are reviewed regularly to assure that
employees are assessed and rewarded based on their capabilities,
responsibilities and performance.
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EMPLOYMENT (contd) EBRE®
A. People (Cont'd) A. EEE)
Workforce Composition 1ESH A
b Y4
~w Total Number of Workforce
EEHAH
Q ‘ 2023 2022
No. of people No. of people
asih” 486 R
x Total Number of Workforce by Employment Category
REBERE S NESEH
Senior Manager or Above Manager or Assistant Manager Senior Supervisor or Below
SRR E PR Bh IR 18 SREFEFIUT
2023 2023 Ea 2023
‘ 1 9 l;l\ogzof people 49 l)l\ogof people t m 41 8 l;l\ogof people
2022 2022 ‘W, 2022
‘\ 23 l}l\ogzof people ‘ 1 4 4 l)l\ogof people ) “ 453 T\OQM people
W
~w& Total Number of Workforce by Gender
RIS HNEEEH
Male Female
B hog i3
m 2023 2023
PPN 0. of people No. of people
287 T\%lfp . \ 199 N o
2022 o of oo 2022 o o e
30 5 )\oglo people 2 »] 5 }\o%(o people
W
~w& Total Number of Workforce by Age Group
RERARNSDNESEH
49 59

229 2 s .\
N%023 2022
.c;f\g(eople No. c;f\;;ople
_/'208 \/ 235

T <30 years old
30BRA T

30-50 years old

B 305z50%
>50 years old
B somiA Lt
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EMPLOYMENT (contd)
A. People (Contd)

Workforce Composition (Cont'd)

BE -

== Total Number of Workforce by Employment Type

ZEEERLEIDNESRE

Full-time

2R

1& & =)
A BB (#E)
1ES A A (&)
Part-time

TR

2023 2023
No. of | No. of |
4 43 )\o%(o people 43 )\O§5(O people
2022 2022
4 6 7 l)l\ogiof people 53 D‘\Oéj(m people
W
~w Total Employee Turnover Rate
BEBRAE
2023 2022

7
LA

=< Employee Turnover Rate by Gender

BRI D HEERAR

Male
B

33.6%  26.6%

== Employee Turnover Rate by Age Group

BERARE D NEERAR
2023
2022

2023
2022

2023
2022

. <30 years old
30BRA T

an@le
2023 r 2023
28.4% | 41.1%
2022 2022
17 8% ¥ 385%
72.2%
80.3%

. >50 years old
505%5A £

. 30-50 years old
305 E505%
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EMPLOYMENT (contd) =349

A. People (Cont'd) A. EE®E)
Workforce Composition (Cont'd) ESA A (E)
‘\ Employee Turnover Rate by Geographical Region
BB BE D NEERAR
Hong Kong

> | o
_'ﬁ‘\ ‘h 2023 2022

‘h..'rf 33.696 26.696

Occupational Health and Safety

Chinese Estates strives to provide a safe and health workplace
by managing the inherent risks in our operations. We comply
with all applicable laws and regulations including the Employees'
Compensation Ordinance (Chapter 282 of the laws of Hong Kong),
the Occupational Safety and Health Ordinance (Chapter 509 of
the laws of Hong Kong) and relevant safety practices stipulated in
Construction Sites (Safety) Regulations (Chapter 591 of the laws of
Hong Kong).

To ensure the health and safety of our building management front-
line employees, regular random safety inspections are conducted.
Property managers and estate officers are required to report any
injuries at work, including our employees and contractors and to
submit an incident report to the Human Resources Department for
record. Besides, we offered some of our training workshops through
online self-paced learning as well as some training courses organised
by other organizations (i.e. Labour Department) to safeguard our
employees’ safety.

During the pandemic situation in the Reporting Period, government-
required preventive measures are adopted. Apart from introducing
Employee Guidelines on prevention of COVID-19, we also distributed
surgical masks and hand sanitizers to our employees to protect them
in case of need.

During the Reporting Period, there were 6 confirmed injury incidents
(2022: 4). 34.5 lost days due to work injury or occupational diseases
was recorded (2022: 11). No workplace fatalities for our employees
was recorded in the past three years (including the Reporting
Period).
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EMPLOYMENT (contd)

C.

Career and Personal Development

To improve service quality and maintain the competitiveness of
our employees, we provide trainings to employees in delivering
exceptional services to tenants and visitors and to cope with business
needs. In addition, we encourage employees to pursue further

education for self-enhancement or career development.

New hire orientation is provided to new staff to support them in
getting familiar with our corporate culture and understand their duties
and skills required for their roles. On-the-job training is provided to
enhance employees’ job-related techniques and consolidate industry
knowledge.

Our Educational and Training Sponsorship Scheme supports
employees’ continuing education and skills training. Employees
enrolled in qualified courses with satisfactory performance are eligible
to apply for the sponsorship with reimbursement up to 100% of
the tuition fee. These include higher education courses relevant to
employees’ job duties organised by local educational institutions. The
external training programmes enable employees to enhance their
professionalism and maximise their potential, as well as become

well-rounded in their careers within the Group.

In alignment between our business needs and interest of our
employees, we regularly offer training that is tailored to individuals
and industry-specific. Training topics consist of the integral of various
business segments to equip employees with the necessary skills and
knowledge to manage the complex business scenario. During the
Reporting Period, we organised trainings and seminars on property
management and data privacy.

Building and property management is one of the key business
segments which highly depends on specialised knowledge and
practical skills that goes beyond the professional qualification.
Therefore, we regularly offer specialised trainings under various
circumstances, including topics ranging from occupational health and
safety to customer service. Apart from receiving specific professional
training, back-office employees should abide by the annual training
plan while front-line employees would attend regular on-site trainings
with tracked records of attendance.

102 CHINESE ESTATES HOLDINGS LIMITED ~ ANNUAL REPORT 2023

BiR  dHERERBEE

=3 -4C

BERBARE

RREERBERREFETINEF N - RAR
BRERHERAERL LD TREEL RS
A BNEBEFEE - U BAISEIEBRFE
BE - NBREFRBEREE -

BRI ARE TRHEN ARSI - AEBEK
ERBRMNEEER TR MBENEE
FER PR IEE - B EREEHAEREI - g
SRE TRRBARMYEETRAE -

HMOHE BIE B B X R B FEEER
BRI - 28 BRRIELEFZHEK
BEMREBNAEMPBERE00%FEHHH
BB - ZFRIEZRBEEBTHMRIERMAR - WH
ABERBRPHOSERERIE - SMERE
RIZEEBREMIRTTEE N BERAMNEL -
BERAEEANEXRETEER -

RERMINERE R MR B MR EER — B
BMERRHERRERNER R ETEESFT
EH Y - B ETERA T EEE D ENT
1F - EREABEEEMEBBRMTEOREE
RA#E - RIEHA - RAELHMEEERER
BRALSAE B S MR o

BAEP—EXI2EBEOE - BFRMEE
BEIFREEEFAANERRE  EEBHE
EEBRMTE o Bt BARBETRIBEREE
HEMEY > TERERERREREUESR
PR - BEXEFEZEREI - RBBAE
BRERETFEZIE - MARESRLEE
EEE IR - WHERSRHFE X



ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT IR3E - HERERHKES

EMPLOYMENT (contd) & & =)
C. Career and Personal Development (Cont'd) C BEHEEAZE®E
Development and training data of the Group in 2023 and 2022 are NTRREER_ZE_=FR_ZTF__FNE
as follows: e R 35 ) B
Unit
= ivi 2023 2022
(Note)
(R 31)

Percentage of Employees Received Training by Gender
RUREINZIREEEDI L
Male 5% % 21.6 7.2
Female Z 1t % 32.7 3.7
Percentage of Employees Received Training by Employment Category
REREHNEINZIEERDL
Senior Manager or Above 1= &S HE 3K A £ % 89.5 0.0
Manager or Assistant Manager 4% 3% sk B 32 45 12 % 73.5 0.0
Senior Supervisor or Below =& EEK AT % 17.7 6.6
Average Training Hours Per Trained Employee by Gender
BB NS ERIEEFTHIZIEY
Male 551 Hours /)N 1.7 2.0
Female 214 Hours /NE 1.6 2.0
Average Training Hours Per Trained Employee by Employment Category
REREHNEAINEAZIEEFHZIRY
Senior Manager or Above = & 4C 18 8k LA F Hours /)N 2.0 0.0
Manager or Assistant Manager 4% 32 sk B 12 4€ 32 Hours /JNEs 1.7 0.0
Senior Supervisor or Below = &R EF KA T Hours /J\E§ 1.5 2.0

Note: Development and training data covers Building Management B EE iﬁi&ﬁﬁ?\iﬂ@%%&%%ﬂl%&ﬁi@%%%%

Department and Human Resources Department for the Reporting BEHEANERE -
Period.
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COMMUNITY

Chinese Estates is dedicated to creating values for society while striving for
company growth. We are keen to engage in various charitable activities,
donation and sponsorship events to show our love and care to the
society. Our Community Investment Policy demonstrates our commitment
to making a positive social impact through integrating the community
development plan with business operations. Besides, the Community
Investment Policy summarise the focus areas for our community
programmes, namely environmental protection and conservation and youth
and children development. To demonstrate our dedication on the ongoing
support to improve the children’s education, our Group commits to a total
donation of RMB18 million over the three years from 2022 to 2024 to
the Spring Buds Project. During the Reporting Period, we have made the
second stage of donation of RMB6 million. Further details can be referred
to the case study below.

We strive to nurture a culture of social responsibility through partnership
with NGOs in organising community activities to promote a caring culture in
the society. To support the Government's vision on addressing the housing
needs of young people, the Group joined hands with a NGO to launch a
youth hostel project, namely Joseph’s House, which has begun operations
during 2023. Further details can be referred to the case study below.

Employees are welcomed to join the Chinese Estates Volunteer Team to
interact with people from different sectors of the community and help the
people in need. We also encourage our employees to give back to society
by joining different volunteer and charitable activities. During the Reporting
Period, we participated in 16 charitable activities, contributing to a total of
76 volunteering hours and covering monetary donations on the charitable
events and projects having the worldwide reach to the needy. These
includes:
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COMMUNITY (contd)

Organisation

A8
Joseph's House
hEE

The Community Chest of Hong Kong

BE -

HE®

Charitable Activities
ZETE

Farming event to harvest vegetables to people in need
EMEBRETENAMKEIH

Skip Lunch Day, Green Low Carbon Day, Dress Casual Day,

YN Love Teeth Day
NI RA » % BEKA « AHESFERE - ARE
=

World Vision Skip-A-Meal

tRSHE g —2

Heep Hong Society

HhEE 13 BR

Orbis
B
Ocean Park Conservation Foundation Hong Kong

EEEFREREES

With the consideration beyond financial return, Chinese Estates integrates
community investment into business operation. We leverage our resources
to support the local community by offering shopping mall spaces that are
under our management to different organisations for hosting exhibitions,
charity sales and publicity events. For instances, during the Reporting Period,
The ONE sponsored venue and promotion channels for STEM Competition
Award Ceremony and STEM activities by Lions Clubs International District
303 — Hong Kong & Macao, China; Hong Kong Humanity Award by Hong
Kong Red Cross; blood donor recruitment roadshow booth by Hong Kong
Red Cross; exhibition and donor recruitment by Heep Hong Society;
workshops to raise awareness of autism by LoveXpress. WINDSOR also
sponsored venue to Ocean Park Conservation Foundation Hong Kong for
Flag Day.

We believe that the business — community partnership will provide long-
term benefits to the society and foster a friendly and caring culture in the
Company.

Heep Hong Society Charity Raffle

BRERS

Mid-Autumn Festival Charity Sales, World Sight Day
BILHTRIREE -t RAREH

Run for Survival

HRRREE

FEABETRZENHER - TIELSRERAZE
BEE - RPIFARMOERZEARMAE - LS
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EERAFEE - flan - RIREEHA - The ONEAE
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COMMUNITY (contd)
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Case study: Community Involvement Impacting Positive Changes
BRWRE  HESEISEEEEL

1.

Joseph’s House

hEE

In response to the Youth Hostel Scheme introduced by the Hong Kong Government and with an aim to support the housing
needs of Hong Kong working youth, the Group joined hands with a NGO to launch a youth hostel project, namely Joseph’s
House. Joseph's House being the first hostel in Kowloon under this scheme is located at Nos. 86 and 88 Apliu Street, Sham
Shui Po and has begun operations during 2023. Joseph’s House offers 42 rooms providing up to 84 hostel places and also
has a common area with TV, sofa, refrigerator, microwave and other essential home appliances available for residents.
RERBABNHLNITFESE]  IXEEEEBRTFONEERE  AEBEIBTRBERERLTFERE
B &RIMMES] - [MES IR TERUNNEZES  URRKEERE6 R8s WER - T - =FF
B8 - [(PEFREREFHAHEZAEEN - BRE—EAXRZEZEH BEEHR - Mt SHE - UREFNEM
EEMNBELRKAES -

The Group is passionate about making positive impact to our community and hope to collaborate with our Government to
support young people in having their own living space and enable them to accumulate savings for pursuing their aspirations
in personal development. Meanwhile, the youth tenants under this scheme shall commit to providing community or
volunteer services to the neighbourhood community.

AEEARRPRHEREREACE  HERARN - EXFFEARFECHNEEEZM - WEMMIRBERFKE A EKE
ANBERHFRE o R - UL EI T H S EEEE A /M 2 RIZH MR SRR RS -

For detailed information about Joseph's House, please visit the website https://www.josephshouse.hk.
BANMPEE | ZFMER - 78S B https://www josephshouse.hk ©
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COMMUNITY (contd) HE )

2.  Charity Visit to Liangshan and Support to China Children and Teenagers’ Fund
RUABKRFEHRXIBHBERESFEES

In July 2023, Ms. Chan, Hoi-wan (Executive Director and the Chief Executive Officer of the Company) together with the
representatives from China Children and Teenagers' Fund and Hong Kong Committee of The United Nations Children’s Fund
(UNICEF Hong Kong) visited Liangshan of Sichuan province to meet the beneficiary girls and their families under the Spring
Buds Project and joined the youth development camp to deliver care and encouragement to the local children.
RITFZ=F+A AR TEERITRAHRIBLLBAPRERZEVFES G MBERARERE BT BESR
gRRIFHIIRL - RE[FEAIZELERARE - YV2EKRES - /AEMERFE C@ENSD -

To demonstrate our dedication on the ongoing support to improve the children’s education, our Group commits to a total
donation of RMB18 million over the three years from 2022 to 2024 to the Spring Buds Project. During the Reporting Period,
we have made the second stage of donation of RMB6 million.

AERRMUUSEZERENREIR  AEEAFEH _S - _FE_ZT_NF=FAMIEFEFEIBREH
18,000,000 A K# - &S HIA - HIFIE 5em E — B #8586,000,000 A R

In addition, we have also donated RMB2 million to China Children and Teenagers' Fund on flood prevention, disaster
preparedness and emergency relief for China children and their families.

AN - FAFITRA P B R E D FE S EIBRN2,000000ARE - BRHERERERKENDL - BUAMEBSRMIE -

AR ER
A MAEE " BRI R ARTHE

572 1800 K7

3. Food TranSmarter

B R B AR

Food TranSmarter is the first-ever system in Hong Kong to automatically liquefy food waste into slurry. As Hong Kong's
first shopping mall to introduce Food TranSmarter, The ONE organised 2 batches of visiting event for primary students in
April and July 2023, more than 50 people joined the events. The aim of the visits is to enhance the understanding and
commitment of students towards environmental protection.

[EerBAERIEREE —EE DR DMEKERNELS - FRTEEESHEE B ERIMNES - The ONERZF
Z=EFMAREARNEERBMADEIRE - 2IABFBS0A - BEMBBEEIRRE T 8 RAGH -

—Eo=FFR #ABxEE 107
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REASONS FOR NOT REPORTING CERTAIN
“COMPLY OR EXPLAIN" PROVISIONS OF THE

AWIE S PE T NETHEE]
R AFEH 2 R EH

GUIDE

“Comply or explain” Provisions

[ T8 <F 5h BR324k 3L

Reasons
BEE

A. Environmental
A RE

Aspect Al: Emissions

EBEAT : BERY

KPIAT.1
RARAEIEIRALT

The types of emissions and respective emissions data.

eI RARRE TR IR

During the Reporting Period, there was no significant
emission of NOx, SOx and other pollutants in our
operations.

RBEPR - RMELESTEASHHASL
W A REMITRY)

KPIA1.3
PSS MIEIRALS

Total hazardous waste produced (in tonnes) and,
where appropriate, intensity.

FELBERZEYEE AT E) &k (nER) =

During the Reporting Period, there was no significant
production of hazardous waste in our operations.
RBEPR - BMELESUREEAEBEREE

Z o =Y o
Aspect A2: Use of Resources
[EEA2: ERER
KPI A2.4 Description of whether there is any issue in sourcing | During the Reporting Period, there was no issue in
BASRAEIEIZA2.4 | water that is fit for purpose, water efficiency target(s) | sourcing water for our operations.
set and steps taken to achieve them. REREEAA - FAPIEE E R & SKEUKR T E &)
Rl SREUE KR LRI B M ARE - LARFFRTSZ | RE -
B RK R Es B AR M R E R S L B AR PR BRI A 22
B o
KPI A2.5 Total packaging material used for finished products | The issue of packaging materials is considered not
RSB MIEIZA2.5 | (in tonnes) and, if applicable, with reference to per | significant in our operations.
unit produced. BEMBEEMOLEN S L TEKX -
NPT EEM R EE AR E) & (@
R)BEEBMAE -
B. Social
B. # &

Aspect B6: Product Responsibility
fEEB6 : EmEE

KPI B6.1
BSR4 K IR 1RB6.1

Percentage of total products sold or shipped subject
to recalls for safety and health reasons.
EENEEXEMEHT AL BERIEAMA
B GRS A
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During the Reporting Period, no products sold or
shipped subject to recalls for safety and health
reasons.

RBEHR - TECEXCEXEMA L S R
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M st E BT A R
HODGSON IMPEY CHENG LIMITED

HLB

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF CHINESE ESTATES HOLDINGS LIMITED
(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Chinese Estates
Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively referred
to as the “Group”) set out on pages 115 to 272, which comprise the
consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December 2023,
the consolidated statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated
statement of changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash
flows for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial
statements, including material accounting policy information and other

explanatory information.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at
31 December 2023, and of its consolidated financial performance and its
consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs") issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants ("HKICPA") and have been properly
prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong

Companies Ordinance.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing ("HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under those
standards are further described in the Auditors’ Responsibilities for the
Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report. We
are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of
Ethics for Professional Accountants (the “Code"), and we have fulfilled
our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe
that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to

provide a basis for our opinion.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT RV B M| EE

KEY AUDIT MATTER

Key audit matter is that matter that, in our professional judgment, was of

most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial statements of

the current period. This matter was addressed in the context of our audit

of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our

opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on this matter.

Key audit matter

How our audit addressed

the key audit matter

Valuation of investment properties

Refer to Notes 19 and 23 to the consolidated financial statements

The management has
estimated the fair value
of the Group's investment
properties to be approximately
HK$13,957,718,000 as at
31 December 2023 with
a net loss on fair value
changes for the year ended
31 December 2023 recorded
in the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income of
approximately HK$31,007,000.
Independent external
valuations were obtained in
respect of all of the portfolio
of the Group, and also of
the investment properties
held by the associates of the
Group, in order to support the

management’s estimates.

The valuations are dependent
on certain key assumptions that
require significant management
judgment including, but not
limited to, reversionary yield
and rental income from future
reversion leases in light of

current market conditions.

110 CHINESE ESTATES HOLDINGS LIMITED

Our procedures in relation to
management's valuation of investment
properties included, but were not

limited to:

— evaluating the independent external
valuers’ competence, capabilities
and objectivity;

— assessing the valuation
methodologies used and the
reasonableness of the key
assumptions and parameters based
on our knowledge of the property
industry and using our auditors’

valuation experts; and
— checking, on sample basis, the
accuracy and relevance of the input

data used.

We found the key assumptions were

supported by the available evidence.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT BV BB EE

OTHER INFORMATION IN THE ANNUAL
REPORT

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises all the information included in the annual report, but
does not include the consolidated financial statements and our auditors’

report thereon (the "Other Information™).

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the
Other Information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion

thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the Other Information and, in doing so,
consider whether the Other Information is materially inconsistent with the
consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit
or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we
have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of the
Other Information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to

report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS
AND THE AUDIT COMMITTEE FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with
HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of the consolidated
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due

to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group's ability to continue as a going concern,
disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the
going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either intend to
liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative

but to do so.

The Audit Committee is responsible for overseeing the Group's financial

reporting process.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT BV B EE

AUDITORS' RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors'
report that includes our opinion. We report our opinion solely to you, as
a body, in accordance with Section 90 of the Companies Act 1981 of
Bermuda (as amended) and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents
of this report. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not
a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always
detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from
fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of

users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We

also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional

omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

. Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on

the effectiveness of the Group's internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures

made by the directors.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT BV BB EE

AUDITORS' RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (contd)

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We
also: (Cont'd)

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group's ability
to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditors’
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained
up to the date of our auditors’ report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going

concern.

. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair

presentation.

. Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group to
express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are
responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the

group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit
findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we

identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and
to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable,

actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards applied.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT BV B EE

AUDITORS' RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (contd)

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we determine
that matter that was of most significance in the audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period and is therefore the key audit
matter. We describe this matter in our auditors’ report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in
extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing
so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits

of such communication.

The engagement director on the audit resulting in this independent

auditors’ report is Ng Ka Wah.

HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Ng Ka Wah
Practising Certificate Number: PO6417

Hong Kong, 15 March 2024
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Revenue
Cost of goods and services provided

Gross profit

Other income

Investment expenses, net

Administrative expenses

(Loss) gain on disposals of equipment, net

Fair value changes on investment properties

Finance costs

Other gains and losses

Share of results of investments accounted for
using the equity method

Profit before tax
Income tax expense

Profit for the year

Other comprehensive income (expenses)
Items that will not be reclassified to
profit or loss
Gains and losses on investments in equity
instruments measured at fair value
through other comprehensive income
Share of other comprehensive expenses
of investments accounted for using
the equity method

Items that may be reclassified
subsequently to profit or loss
Exchange differences on translation of
foreign operations

Share of other comprehensive expenses
of investments accounted for using
the equity method

Other comprehensive income (expenses)
for the year (net of tax)

Total comprehensive income (expenses)
for the year

For the year ended 31 December 2023 BHZE =T -=F+-A=+—HILFE
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2023
Notes HK$'000
{hezs F#&xT

7 479,589
(49,257)

430,332
9 24,851

10 (65,461)

(333,872)

(31)

(31,007)

11 (223,373)
12 6,585

296,273

104,297
13 (27,158)

14 77,139

(129,871)

(181)

(130,052)

281,501

(830)

280,671

150,619

227,758

S

I

#

2022
HK$'000
TAT

1,434,990
(58,261)

1,376,729
18,020
(291,127)
(358,048)
352
528,481
(133,121)
(7,522)

45,381

1,179,145
(26,825)

1,152,320

(1,056,433)

(160)

(1,056,593)

(499,395)

(499,395)

(1,555,988)

(403,668)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
=F+ZA=T—RHIFE

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE_-T =

Profit for the year attributable to:
Owners of the Company
Non-controlling interests

Total comprehensive income (expenses)
for the year attributable to:
Owners of the Company
Non-controlling interests

Earnings per share (HKS$)
Basic and diluted

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated

financial statements.
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mETHERHERRE

2023 2022
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
P =T FET FAET
76,832 1,152,235
307 85
77,139 1,152,320
227,451 (403,753)
307 85
227,758 (403,668)

18
0.040 0.604

RAMBRRM TR E B REN—ED -



Non-current assets

Investment properties

Property, plant and equipment

Right-of-use assets

Intangible assets

Investments accounted for
using the equity method

Advances to associates

Financial assets measured at fair value
through profit or loss

Financial assets measured at fair value
through other comprehensive income

Advances to investee companies

Deferred tax assets

Pledged deposits

Deposits and prepayments

Current assets

Stock of properties

Financial assets measured at fair value
through profit or loss

Financial assets measured at fair value
through other comprehensive income

Advances to investee companies

Inventories

Debtors, deposits, other receivables and

prepayments

Securities trading receivables and deposits

Tax recoverable
Pledged deposits
Time deposits, bank balances and cash

Assets classified as held for sale

As at 31 December 2023 RZZE_=F+=-_A=+—H
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ERERE
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3B B ELA 2 T Wi A S R
NP EFEZEREE

BNEXRERRRA

BELERREE

TR

Be RIANKIR

RBEE

MEFE
BBEENARRATEFE
ZERMEE

BB A 2 T Y DA R BR

>
i
E'\t

0

N
&
¢
=
it

FEUWERIE - e - HbEW
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ERER

EEFR - RITEBRERE

B At R 2 A

Notes

B E

19
20
21(a)
22

23
24

25
26
27
28

29(a)
30

31
25
26
27

32

30
29(b)

29(a)
29(c)

33

2023
HK$'000
FERT

13,957,718
169,745
85,056

2,036,149
60,013

60,359

195,680
419,905
877

4,904

16,990,406

23,316

339,319

211,507
4,079

204,431
26,992
259
152,929
592,228

1,555,060

1,555,060

S

2022
HK$'000
TAT

13,369,124
133,944
91,934

1,840,959
42,745

87,635

525,780
101,905
834
76,697
84,081

16,355,638

23316

562,294

109,766

4,642

186,468
41,007
13,886
71,128

2,038,768

3,051,275
27,602

3,078,877

I

EAREEE



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

mEMBRRER

As at 31 December 2023 R=—E-=F+=-HA=+—8H

Current liabilities
Creditors and accruals
Securities trading and margin payable
Deposits and receipts in advance
Lease liabilities
Tax liabilities
Borrowings

Derivative financial instrument

Net current (liabilities) assets

Total assets less current liabilities

Equity attributable to owners of the

Company

Share capital

Financial assets measured at fair value
through other comprehensive income
reserve

Contribution reserve

Statutory reserve

Special reserve

Capital redemption reserve

Translation reserve

Retained profits

Non-controlling interests

Total equity

CHINESE ESTATES HOLDINGS LIMITED

Notes

B E

REaE

FEATBRIE I FE S RUIE 34
ENEHFRFEERRES

e RIEWEIE

HERE 21(b)

BE 35
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2023
HK$'000
FERT

182,939
6,963
84,205
43,275
6,568
2,191,525
929

2,515,574

(960,514)

16,029,892

190,762

195,818
206,627
4,402
2,499,685
138,062

(554,260)
11,530,408

14,211,504
23,597

14,235,101

2022
HK$'000
TAT

245,191
9,809
84,595
35,332
4,022
2,681,151

3,060,100

18,777

16,374,415

190,762

(1,743,622)
206,627
748
2,499,685
138,062

(834,931)
13,522,203

13,979,534
23,309

14,002,843



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

Non-current liabilities
Borrowings
Amounts due to associates
Amounts due to investee companies
Amounts due to non-controlling shareholders
Lease liabilities

Deferred tax liabilities

FRBEE

fE&
REBERRIFRIEA
RAEZRERFFR
REFHE R BRFKIA
HEAE
EENIRAE

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of Directors on 15 March

2024 and signed on its behalf by:

Chan, Hoi-wan FRElEE
Director EE

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated

financial statements.

REMBARREREK

As at 31 December 2023 RZZE-_=F+=-_A=+—H

Notes

B E

35
37
37
37
21(b)
28

2023 2022
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTET FHET
1,660,323 2,205,781
21,431 34,579
13,885 14,648
275 275
38,684 53,244
60,193 63,045
1,794,791 2,371,572
16,029,892 16,374,415

CREEFEN T _NF=-ATHBRHERKET
AR TIEERREZTER

Chan, Lok-wan

Director

PR
EE
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
REREAERSEH X

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE—Z=_=F+=-A=+—HIFE

Attributable to owners of the Company

FDAERARMERAFES

Financial assets

measured
at fair value
through other
Share comprehensive Contribution
capital income reserve reserve
BBREMZHEKE
NRMATEE
BE ceRMEEZHE EERE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T THET THT
(note (i) (note (ii))
GELO) GELD)
At 1 January 2022 R-E-—F—HF—H 190,762 (1,582,049) 206,627
Profit for the year REEHA - - -
Gains and losses on investments in AREMEERENRY
equity instruments measured at fair value through ATEFAEZRATIARE Y
other comprehensive income Yo RIEE
~ Listed equity investment - FARAKRE - (90,766) -
~ Unlisted investments -FLWRE - (965,667) -
Exchange differences on translation of foreign operations SNSRI £ 2 B X 28 - - -
Share of other comprehensive expenses of BleEREAREEZ
investments accounted for using the equity method Eth2ES - (160) -
Total comprehensive (expenses) income for the year — AFE 2 (7 ) W28 - (1,056,593) -
Transfer of reserve upon disposal of the investment RIS —HEBE M 2 E Y R
in an equity instrument measured at fair value AVHEFECRATAREREREY
through other comprehensive income i - 895,020 -
PRC statutory reserve HENETE R - - -
Unclaimed dividends forfeited (note (v)) SRR BEZ BB (B FE(v)) - - -
At 31 December 2022 RZEZ=F+ZA=1—H 190,762 (1,743,622) 206,627
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY #HEeRAERES B R
For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE T -_=F+_-_A=+—HILFE

Attributable to owners of the Company

ARAREANEERARER
Capital Non-
Statutory Special redemption Translation Retained controlling Total
reserve reserve reserve reserve profits Total interests equity
EERE Rl E BEXRERE ER REBR k] FERER RARRAE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TET TET TET TET TET TET TET
(note (iii)) (note (iv))
(P& i) (FEE Gv))
668 2,499,685 138,062 (335,536) 13,257,387 14,375,606 23,224 14,398,830
- - - - 1,152,235 1,152,235 85 1,152,320
- - - - - (90,766) - (90,766)
- - - - - (965,667) - (965,667)
- - - (499,395) - (499,395) - (499,395)
- - - - - (160) - (160)
- - - (499,395) 1,152,235 (403,753) 85 (403,668)
- - - - (895,020) - - -
80 - - - (80) - - -
- - - - 7,681 7,681 - 7,681
748 2,499,685 138,062 (834,931) 13,522,203 13,979,534 23,309 14,002,843

—E-=FEHR gABxsm 121



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HEZE T =_=F+-_A=+—HIFE

At 1 January 2023

Profit for the year
CGains and losses on investments in
equity instruments measured at fair value through
other comprehensive income
— Listed equity investment
— Unlisted investments
Exchange differences on translation of foreign operations
Share of other comprehensive expenses of

investments accounted for using the equity method

Total comprehensive (expenses) income for the year
Transfer of reserve upon disposal/derecognition
of the investments in equity instruments measured
at fair value through other comprehensive income
PRC statutory reserve
Dividend paid to a non-controlling shareholder
Unclaimed dividends forfeited (note (v))

At 31 December 2023

122 CHINESE ESTATES HOLDINGS LIMITED
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RERTERBER

Attributable to owners of the Company

FOAERARMERAFES

Share

capital

LEN
HK$'000
TAT

190,762

Financial assets
measured

at fair value
through other
comprehensive
income reserve
BRHEMEZEKES
URMATEE
ZEREEZRE
HK$'000

TR

(note (1))
iEA0)

(1,743,622)

Contribution

reserve

EERE
HK$'000
TET
(note (ii))
GEA0)

206,627

(65,222)
(64,649)

(181)

(130,052)

2,069,492

190,762

195,818

206,627




CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY SZRERAEAEZEE X
For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE T -_=F+_-_A=+—HILFE

Attributable to owners of the Company

ARAREAEERA#ER
Capital Non-
Statutory Special redemption Translation Retained controlling Total
reserve reserve reserve reserve profits Total interests equity
EERE KRR E EXRERE ER REBR k] FERER RARRAE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TERT TET TEL TET TEL TEL TET TEL
(note (iii)) (note (iv))
(P& i) (FEE Gv))
748 2,499,685 138,062 (834,931) 13,522,203 13,979,534 23,309 14,002,843
- - - - 76,832 76,832 307 71,139
= = = = = (65.222) = (65.222)
- - - - - (64,649) - (64,649)
- - - 281,501 - 281,501 - 281,501
= = = (830) = (1,011) = (1,011)
- - - 280,671 76,832 227,451 307 227,758
- - - - (2,069,492) - - -
3,654 = = - (3,654) = = =
- - - - - - (19) (19)
- - - - 4,519 4,519 - 4,519
4,402 2,499,685 138,062 (554,260) 11,530,408 14,211,504 23,597 14,235,101
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY #4RERAERBEXR

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HEZE T =_=F+-_A=+—HIFE

Notes:

(i)  During the year ended 31 December 2023, all remaining listed
equity investment classified as financial assets measured at fair value
through other comprehensive income (“FVTOCI") was disposed
and the loss on fair value change of approximately HK$65,222,000
representing realised loss on the disposal of all remaining shares of
China Evergrande Group (listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (“Stock Exchange”)) (stock code: 3333) (“China Evergrande”)
(“Evergrande Shares") of approximately HK$65,104,000 and the
transaction costs of the disposal of approximately HK$118,000 (2022:
net loss of approximately HK$90,766,000 comprising unrealised loss of
approximately HK$105,701,000, realised gain on the disposal of certain
Evergrande Shares of approximately HK$15,189,000 and the transaction
costs of the disposal of approximately HK$254,000) was recorded in
financial assets measured at FVTOCI reserve. During the year ended
31 December 2023, the cumulative fair value loss and the transaction
costs in the financial assets measured at FVTOCI reserve that related
to the disposed Evergrande Shares, which amounted to approximately
HK$1,745,755,000 (2022: HK$895,020,000), was transferred to
retained profits upon completion of the disposal.

The cumulative amount of the loss on listed equity investment classified
as financial assets measured at FVTOCI was nil at 31 December 2023
(2022: HK$1,680,533,000).

During the year ended 31 December 2023, the Company and its
subsidiaries (collectively the “Group”) derecognised an unlisted equity
instrument measured at FVTOCI, the cumulative fair value loss of
approximately HK$323,737,000 (2022: nil) in the financial assets
measured at FVTOCI reserve that related to the unlisted equity instrument
was transferred to retained profits.

(i)  The contribution reserve represented the excess amount paid by
Ms. Chan, Hoi-wan, who is a trustee of substantial shareholders of the
Company (“Trustee of Substantial Shareholders”), as the purchaser
in relation to the Group's disposals of debt securities in 2020, at the
consideration of 100% of principal amount over the prevailing market
bid price of the debt securities disposed of was directly recognised in the
reserve as it is deemed as the contribution from the Company's equity
participant.

(i)  The statutory reserve of the Group refers to the People’s Republic of
China ("PRC") statutory reserve fund. Appropriations to such reserve
fund are made out of profit after tax as recorded in the statutory financial
statements of the PRC subsidiaries. The amount should not be less
than 10% of the profit after tax as recorded in the statutory financial
statements unless the aggregate amount exceeds 50% of the registered
capital of the PRC subsidiaries. The statutory reserve can be used to
make up prior year losses, if any, and can be applied in conversion into
the PRC subsidiaries’ capital by means of capitalisation issue.

(iv)  The special reserve represented the difference arising from the aggregate
of the share capital and premium amount of the former holding
company and the Company upon redomicile of the holding company as
a Bermuda Company in 1989 and is non-distributable.

(v)  Unclaimed dividends forfeited represented dividends declared by
the Company on or before 31 May 2017 (2022: 30 August 2016)
remaining unclaimed by shareholders of the Company on 21 August
2023 (2022: 2 November 2022). During the year ended 31 December
2023, unclaimed dividends amounted to approximately HK$4,519,000
(2022: HK$7,681,000) were forfeited and transferred to retained profits.

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated financial
statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
GERTMER

For the year ended 31 December 2023 BHZE =T -=F+-A=+—HILFE

2023 2022
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FH&T
Operating activities REXK
Profit before tax B F5 B 104,297 1,179,145
Adjustments for: EToIEIE 2 %
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment M - BB RERERE 58,791 62,983
Depreciation of right-of-use assets CRREENE 45,811 57,045
Interest expenses F B 221,846 126,486
Interest income from other financial assets Hith & @b & E 2 2B UA (36,066) (16,937)
Dividend income from unlisted equity FEETRAIRE 2 R EWA
investments (76,000) (1,014,750)
Distributions from a financial asset measured at i 38 EL A 2 T i e DA S A
fair value through other comprehensive NFEFEZ -HSREE
income 2K (754) (22,846)
Allowance for credit losses recognised LW E FRIEHR
in respect of trade receivables EEEEER = 1
Unrealised loss arising from change in BEHEZAFEESMEELEZ
fair value of bonds KREIR E5E 65,863 160,172
Unrealised gain arising from change HEEEER XA TEER
in fair value of structured product i 4 2 R BE W - (5)
Unrealised loss (gain) arising from change in MTEeMIAZATEE
fair value of derivative financial instruments MEEZ R EE (W) 99 (1,250)
Unrealised loss arising from change in FFEECREC R EES
fair value of investments held-for-trading i A4 2 RE R G118 29,820 158,105
Unrealised gain arising from change in BRERAREFZ N HEED
fair value of club and corporate debentures e+ 2 R EE R (1,760) (2,432)
Realised gain arising from change in miBEm AR AT EFE L
fair value of financial assets measured at SRMEECATEEZD
fair value through profit or loss MEE 2 #HR W= (4,921) -
Loss (gain) on disposals of equipment, net &SR 2 BB (k) #5 31 (352)
Reversal of financial guarantee on striking off #— e 2 R J) IR EE
of an associate i 8 Bl 7 Bf s AR - 91
Share of results of investments accounted for A AEREARRKREZ
using the equity method ES (296,273) (45,381)
Allowance for credit losses recognised MBBE R RIBERERZ
in respect of advances to associates EEEERE 50 7,421
Reversal of allowance for credit loss BB —fHEE R B FIBRER
recognised in respect of advance to BOz EEHEEH
an associate (7,376) -
Allowance for credit losses recognised MEHZ BT SRR
in respect of interest receivables from bonds ZEE I RE - 11,156
Fair value changes on investment properties REMEZ N TEE 31,007 (528,481)
Overprovision of reinstatement costs A 2 EIERCRB R
in respect of leased properties B = (1,200)
Exchange (gain) loss, net B 5 (Uas) B 183 58 (1,778) 2,380
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS #REREREBR

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HEZE T =_=F+-_A=+—HIFE

Operating cash flows before movements in
working capital

Decrease (increase) in inventories

(Increase) decrease in debtors, deposits,
other receivables and prepayments

Decrease (increase) in financial assets measured
at fair value through profit or loss

Decrease (increase) in securities trading
receivables and deposits

Increase in creditors and accruals

Decrease in securities trading and
margin payable

Decrease in deposits and receipts in advance

Cash generated from (used in) operating
activities

Income tax paid, net

Net cash generated from (used in)

operating activities

FEUERIE - 1BE - HtEARIR
Ko FEAT 5RIE (35 h0) Rl A
BRERARRATFEEZ
ERVEER D ()
EWE 75 2 B IRIA R TR
B ()
JEAS BR IR K e FT SR IR 0
ENEARRPRENRRES
e
& RIBWFIER D

XERAMEEEB RS

ERFEHER

RERARBEXER 2 REFHE
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2023 2022
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHT
132,687 131,351
563 (1,128)
(14,150) 43,861
137,159 (207,802)
14,021 (14,384)
884 3,952
(2.771) (2,257)
(1,952) (77,228)
266,441 (123,635)
(16,779) (16,453)
249,662 (140,088)




Investing activities

Dividends received from associates

Interest received from other financial assets

Payments for investment properties

Payments for purchases of equipment and
leasehold improvement

Net proceeds from/deposit received in respect of
disposal of an investment property

Proceeds from disposals of equipment

Advances to associates

Advances from associates

Advances from investee companies

Advance to an investee company

Decrease in pledged deposits

Net proceeds from disposals of financial assets
measured at fair value through profit or loss

Net proceeds from disposal of a financial asset
measured at fair value through other
comprehensive income

Distributions from a financial asset measured at

fair value through other comprehensive income

Net cash (used in) generated from

investing activities

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

RERERER

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE T -_=F+_-_A=+—HILFE

REXEH

Bl e R EZ BB
ERHEMBEREEZNE
AR EMEFIA

X B E &R LAEY EKS
A
HE—BREMEZPAFHIA
FEBRES
HERBPIS IR
BNBE R R ZFRA
BREBEREZHKIE
BRERRRERFZHA
BN —EEERE QR ZHIE
EREFER 2R

&
2

HERBIERARRDFERE

ZEREBEZEHIRFHE
HE BB H {th 2 N R A SR AR

RNHEFEZ -HEREEZ

RS SRIE 58

70K B3 8 HoAth 2 T Y et DA e R

ATEi B2 —HE WA

(RR)REREXBZREFR

2023
HK$'000
FTHET

27,900
36,783
(274,595)

(21,814)
27,602

(48)
49,057
80,730

(535,000)

332

24,090

44,544

266,205

(274,214)

S

s

2022
HK$'000
TAT

14,154
(262,505)

(79,322)
2,186
355

(95)
31,500
97,550

(1,168)
111,545

206,856

58,865

179,921
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS #FRERERER

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE_-T =

Financing activities
Interest on bank borrowings and
other borrowings paid
Payments for lease liabilities (including interest)
Bank borrowings and other borrowings raised
Loan from a director raised
Repayments of bank borrowings and
other borrowings
Repayment of loan from a director

Dividend paid to a non-controlling shareholder

Net cash used in financing activities

Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January

Effect of foreign exchange rate changes

Cash and cash equivalents at 31 December

Analysis of the balances of cash and

cash equivalents

Time deposits, bank balances and cash

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated

financial statements.
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2023
HK$'000
FTHET

(230,461)
(45,640)
995,231
282,210

(2,140,385)
(282,210)
(19)

(1,421,274)

(1,445,826)
2,038,768
(718)

592,228

592,228

2022
HK$'000
TAT

(119,390)
(57,436)
2,035,287

(2,324,354)

(465,893)

(426,060)
2,479,874
(15,046)

2,038,768

2,038,768
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e BRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE T =_=F+=-_A=+—HILFE

GENERAL INFORMATION

The Company is an exempted company incorporated in Bermuda
with limited liability and its shares are listed on the Stock Exchange.
The addresses of the Company's registered office and principal
office in Hong Kong are disclosed in the section headed “Corporate
Information” of this annual report. The Company is indirectly
owned as to 74.99% by Sino Omen Holdings Limited, a company
incorporated in the British Virgin Islands of which the entire issued
share capital is held by Ms. Chan, Hoi-wan as the trustee of her
minor children, Lau, Chung-hok, Lau, Sau-wah and Lau, Sau-yee.
Further details of the substantial shareholders of the Company
are disclosed in the paragraph headed “Substantial Shareholders'
Interests in the Securities of the Company” in the section headed

“Directors’ Report” of this annual report.

These consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong
Kong dollar ("HK$"), which is same as the functional currency of
the Company and all amounts are rounded to the nearest thousand
(HK$'000) except otherwise indicated.

The Company's principal activity is investment holding and the
principal activities of its principal subsidiaries and associates are set

out in Notes 46 and 47 respectively.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO HKFRSs

The accounting policies adopted in these consolidated financial
statements for the year ended 31 December 2023 are consistent
with those followed in the preparation of the Group's consolidated
financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2022 except

as described below.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HEZE T =_=F+-_A=+—HIFE

2.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO HKFRSs (Cont'd)

In the current year, the Group has applied the following new and
amendments to Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs")
("New and Amended HKFRSs") issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA") for the first time, including
those which are mandatorily effective for the annual period beginning
on or after 1 January 2023 for the preparation of these consolidated
financial statements:
HKFRS 17 Insurance Contracts and the related
Amendments
HKAS 1 and HKFRS Practice

Statement 2 (Amendments)

Disclosure of Accounting Policies

HKAS 8 (Amendments) Definition of Accounting Estimates

HKAS 12 (Amendments) Deferred Tax related to Assets and
Liabilities arising from a Single
Transaction

HKAS 12 (Amendments) International Tax Reform

— Pillar Two Model Rules

Except as described below, the application of the New and Amended
HKFRSs had no material impact on the Group's financial positions
and performance for the current and prior years and/or on the

disclosures set out in these consolidated financial statements.

130 CHINESE ESTATES HOLDINGS LIMITED ~ ANNUAL REPORT 2023

Fade)

ISR R MY EE

R RUE SR E
B2 &8/

RAFE  AKECRRHRAGAMBERRE
RERBEEGFMAG(HESHMAE])
Bz TR R B AMBREERN(ERE
B 3REER ) ZERT ([FET RS IERT BB
BREEL ) BREZER_ZE_=F—A—
B sk 2 & Ftn 2 F 1 BRI 5R BI E RU2 AT R fg
EE

BB EIRE2ER REg& R KBRS
E175%
EEEHENEIRE SHEREZER
BREMBRE 2R

BB RNEE2R

CHES
ER G ERIESH Gt 2 B &
CHES

/

BRGEFEI2E BE-QHELEY
(BFTA) BERABHRBZ
EFETIR
BB ERIE125% BRI E

(ERTA) - B XAEEARR
BTaESN  ERZER BT EERE
BEEANTE %T$%lﬁé$¢§&i@&¢§2

FBRRERBR R, IR GAPBRRABRZ

BEERBREAYE -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #& BB R M
For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE T -_=F+_-_A=+—HILFE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS 2.

TO HKFRSs (Cont'd)

Change in accounting policy as a result of application of
the HKICPA guidance on the accounting implications of
the abolition of the Mandatory Provident Fund - Long

Service Payment offsetting mechanism in Hong Kong

In June 2022, the Government of the Hong Kong Special
Administrative Region (“Government”) gazetted the Hong Kong
Employment and Retirement Schemes Legislation (Offsetting
Arrangement) (Amendment) Ordinance 2022 (“Amendment
Ordinance"), which will come into effect from 1 May 2025
("Transition Date”). Once the Amendment Ordinance takes effect, an
employer can no longer use any of the accrued benefits derived from
its mandatory contributions to mandatory provident fund ("MPF")
scheme to reduce the long service payment ("LSP") in respect of
an employee’s service from the Transition Date (the abolition of
the “offsetting mechanism”). In addition, the LSP in respect of the
service before the Transition Date will be calculated based on the
employee’s monthly salary immediately before the Transition Date

and the years of service up to that date.

In July 2023, the HKICPA published the captioned accounting
guidance relating to the abolition of the offsetting mechanism. In
particular, the guidance indicates that entities may account for the
accrued benefits derived from mandatory MPF contributions that are
expected to be used to reduce the LSP payable to an employee as

deemed contributions by that employee towards the LSP.

To better reflect the substance of the abolition of the offsetting
mechanism, the Group has applied the above HKICPA guidance and

changed its accounting policy in connection with its LSP liability.

The change in accounting policy in the current year had no material

impact on the consolidated financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 31 December 2023 HEZE T =_=F+-_A=+—HIFE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS 2.
TO HKFRSs (Cont'd)

The Group has not early adopted the following amendments to
HKFRSs and revised Int ("Amendments”) that have been issued but

are not yet effective.

HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28

(Amendments)

Sale or Contribution of Assets
between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture?

HKFRS 16 (Amendments) Lease Liability in a Sale and
Leaseback!

HKAS 1 (Amendments) Classification of Liabilities as
Current or Non-current!
HKAS 1 (Amendments) Non-current Liabilities with

Covenants'
HKAS 7 and HKFRS 7

(Amendments)

Supplier Finance Arrangements!

HKAS 21 (Amendments) Lack of Exchangeability?

HK Int 5 (Revised) Presentation of Financial Statements
— Classification by the Borrower
of a Term Loan that Contains

a Repayment on Demand Clause'

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2024

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2025
3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to be
determined

The directors of the Company (“Directors”) are in the process of
assessing the potential impact of the Amendments but are not yet
in a position to determine whether the Amendments will have a
material impact on the Group's performance and financial position
and on the disclosures. The Amendments may result in changes to
how the Group’s performance and financial position are prepared

and presented in the future.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #& BB R M
For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE T -_=F+_-_A=+—HILFE

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION

Basis of preparation of consolidated financial statements

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with HKFRSs (which include all Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs")
and Interpretations (“Ints")) issued by the HKICPA and accounting
principles generally accepted in Hong Kong. In addition, these
consolidated financial statements include applicable disclosures
required by the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock
Exchange (“Listing Rules”) and the disclosure requirements of the

Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622).

Going concern basis

As at 31 December 2023, the Group's current liabilities exceeded its
current assets by approximately HK§960,514,000. Notwithstanding
the above, these consolidated financial statements have been

prepared on a going concern basis.

The management closely monitors the Group's financial performance
and liquidity position. The validity of the going concern basis of
preparation of these consolidated financial statements depends upon
the success of the Group's future operations, its ability to generate
adequate cash flows in order to meet its financial obligations as
and when they fall due, and its ability to refinance or restructure its
borrowings such that the Group can meet its future working capital

and financing requirements.

Based on the latest communications with the banks, the Directors are
not aware of any intention of the principal banks to withdraw their
bank facilities or require early repayment of the bank borrowings, and
the Directors believe that the existing bank facilities will be renewed
or roll-overed when their current terms expire given the good track

records and relationships the Group has with the banks.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 31 December 2023 HEZE T =_=F+-_A=+—HIFE

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (contd)

Going concern basis (Cont'd)

The Directors have reviewed the Group's cash flow projections
prepared by the management. The cash flow projections cover a
period of not less than twelve months from 31 December 2023.
Based on the cash flow projections, the Directors believe that the
Group will have sufficient financial resources to meet its financial
obligations as and when they fall due in the coming twelve
months from 31 December 2023. The management has made
key assumptions in the preparation of the projections with regard
to the anticipated cash flows from the Group's operations, capital
expenditures and the continuous availability of bank facilities. The
Group's ability to achieve the projected cash flows depends on the

continuous availability of bank facilities from the banks.

In view of the above, the Directors are of the opinion that there will
be sufficient financial resources available to the Group to enable
it to meet its liabilities as and when they fall due and to continue
as a going concern. Accordingly, the Directors have prepared these

consolidated financial statements on a going concern basis.

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared under
the historical cost basis, except for certain properties and financial
instruments, which are measured at their fair values as explained in

the accounting policies set out below.
Fair value measurements

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or
paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market
participants at the measurement date, regardless of whether that
price is directly observable or estimated using another valuation
technique. In estimating the fair value of an asset or a liability, the
Group takes into account the characteristics of the asset or liability
if market participants would take those characteristics into account
when pricing the asset or liability at the measurement date. Fair value
for measurement and/or disclosure purposes in these consolidated
financial statements is determined on such a basis, except for share-
based payment transactions that are within the scope of HKFRS 2
“Share-based Payment”, leasing transactions that are accounted for
in accordance with HKFRS 16 “Leases”, and measurements that
have some similarities to fair value but are not fair value, such as net
realisable value in HKAS 2 “Inventories” or value-in-use in HKAS 36

“Impairment of Assets".
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #& BB R M
For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE T -_=F+_-_A=+—HILFE

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (contd)

Fair value measurements (Cont'd)

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value measurements
are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3 based on the degree to which
the inputs to the fair value measurements are observable and the
significance of the inputs to the fair value measurements in its

entirety, which are described as follows:

Level 1:  inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets
for identical assets or liabilities that the entity can access

at the measurement date;

Level 2: inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices included
within Level 1, that are observable for the asset or liability,

either directly or indirectly; and

Level 3:  inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.

(a) Basis of consolidation
Subsidiaries

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial
statements of the Company and entities (including structured
entities) controlled by the Company and its subsidiaries.
Control is achieved when the Company: (i) has power over
the investee; (i) is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns
from its involvement with the investee; and (iii) has the ability

to use its power to affect its returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if
facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one

or more of the three elements of control listed above.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains
control over the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses
control of the subsidiary. Specifically, income and expenses
of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the year are
included in profit or loss from the date the Group gains control

until the date when the Group ceases to control the subsidiary.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #r& B R M &L
For the year ended 31 December 2023 HEZE T =_=F+-_A=+—HIFE

3. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (contd)

(a)

Basis of consolidation (Cont'd)

Subsidiaries (Cont'd)

Profit or loss and each item of other comprehensive income
are attributed to the owners of the Company and to the non-
controlling interests. Total comprehensive income and expense
of subsidiaries is attributed to the owners of the Company and
to the non-controlling interests even if this results in the non-

controlling interests having a deficit balance.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies in

line with the Group's accounting policies.

All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses
and cash flows relating to transactions between members of

the Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.

Non-controlling interests in subsidiaries are presented
separately from the Group's equity therein, which represent
present ownership interests entitling their holders to a
proportionate share of net assets of the relevant subsidiaries

upon liquidation.

Business combinations or asset acquisitions

Optional concentration test

The Group can elect to apply an optional concentration test,
on a transaction-by-transaction basis, that permits a simplified
assessment of whether an acquired set of activities and assets
is not a business. The concentration test is met if substantially
all of the fair value of the gross assets acquired is concentrated
in a single identifiable asset or group of similar identifiable
assets. The gross assets under assessment exclude cash and
cash equivalents, deferred tax assets, and goodwill resulting
from the effects of deferred tax liabilities. If the concentration
test is met, the set of activities and assets is determined not to

be a business and no further assessment is needed.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #& BB R M
For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE T -_=F+_-_A=+—HILFE

3. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (contd)

(a)

Basis of consolidation (Cont'd)

Subsidiaries (Cont'd)

Business combinations or asset acquisitions (Cont'd)

Business combinations

A business is an integrated set of activities and assets which
includes an input and a substantive process that together
significantly contribute to the ability to create outputs. The
acquired processes are considered substantive if they are
critical to the ability to continue producing outputs, including
an organised workforce with the necessary skills, knowledge,
or experience to perform the related processes or they
significantly contribute to the ability to continue producing
outputs and are considered unique or scarce or cannot be
replaced without significant cost, effort, or delay in the ability

to continue producing outputs.

Acquisitions of businesses are accounted for using the
acquisition method. The consideration transferred in a
business combination is measured at fair value, which is
calculated as the sum of the acquisition-date fair values of
the assets transferred by the Group, liabilities incurred by the
Group to the former owners of the acquiree and the equity
interests issued by the Group in exchange for control of the
acquiree. Acquisition-related costs are generally recognised in

profit or loss as incurred.

Non-controlling interests that are present ownership interests
and entitle their holders to a proportionate share of the
entity's net assets in the event of liquidation may be initially
measured either at fair value or at the non-controlling interests’
proportionate share of the recognised amounts of the
acquiree’s identifiable net assets. The choice of measurement
basis is made on a transaction-by-transaction basis. Other
types of non-controlling interests are measured at their fair
value or, when applicable, on the basis specified in another
HKFRS.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE T -_=F+_A=+—HILtFE

3. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (contd)

(@

Basis of consolidation (Cont'd)

Subsidiaries (Cont'd)

Business combinations or asset acquisitions (Cont'd)
Asset acquisitions

When the Group acquires a group of assets and liabilities
that do not constitute a business, the Group identifies and
recognises the individual identifiable assets acquired and
liabilities assumed by allocating the purchase price first to
investment properties which are subsequently measured
under fair value model and financial assets/financial liabilities
at the respective fair values, the remaining balance of the
purchase price is then allocated to the other identifiable assets
and liabilities on the basis of their relative fair values at the
date of purchase. Such a transaction does not give rise to

goodwill or bargain purchase gain.

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in existing

subsidiaries

Changes in the Group's ownership interests in existing
subsidiaries that do not result in the Group losing control
over the subsidiaries are accounted for as equity transactions.
The carrying amounts of the Group's interests and the non-
controlling interests are adjusted to reflect the changes in their
relative interests in the subsidiaries. Any difference between
the amount by which the non-controlling interests are adjusted
and the fair value of the consideration paid or received is
recognised directly in equity and attributed to owners of the

Company.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RE MR

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE T -_=F+_-_A=+—HILFE

3. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (contd)

(a)

(b)

Basis of consolidation (Cont'd)

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in existing

subsidiaries (Cont'd)

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, a gain or loss is
recognised in profit or loss and is calculated as the difference
between (i) the aggregate of the fair value of the consideration
received and the fair value of any retained interest and (i) the
previous carrying amount of the assets (including gooduwill),
and liabilities of the subsidiary attributable to the owners of
the Company and any non-controlling interests. All amounts
previously recognised in other comprehensive income in
relation to that subsidiary are accounted for as if the Group
had directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities of
the subsidiary (i.e. reclassified to profit or loss or transferred
to another category of equity as specified/permitted by
applicable HKFRSs). The fair value of any investment retained
in the former subsidiary at the date when control is lost that is
regarded as the fair value on initial recognition for subsequent
accounting under HKFRS 9 “Financial Instruments”, when
applicable, the cost on initial recognition of an investment in

an associate or a joint venture.

Investments accounted for using the equity method

An associate is an entity over which the Group has significant
influence and that is neither a subsidiary nor an interest in a
joint venture. Significant influence is the power to participate in
the financial and operating policy decisions of the investee but

is not control or joint control over those policies.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HEZE T =_=F+-_A=+—HIFE

3. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (contd)

(b)

Investments accounted for using the equity method
(Cont'd)

The results and assets and liabilities of associates are
incorporated in the consolidated financial statements using the
equity method of accounting, except when the investment, or
a portion thereof, is classified as held for sale, in which case
it is accounted for in accordance with HKFRS 5 “Non-current
Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations”. Under
the equity method, an investment in an associate is initially
recognised in the consolidated statement of financial position
at cost and adjusted thereafter to recognise the Group's
share of the profit or loss and other comprehensive income
of the associate. When the Group's share of losses of an
associate exceeds the Group's interest in that associate (which
includes any long-term interests that, in substance, form part
of the Group's net investment in the associate), the Group
discontinues recognising its share of further losses. Additional
losses are recognised only to the extent that the Group has
incurred legal or constructive obligations or made payments

on behalf of the associate.

An investment in an associate is accounted for using the equity
method from the date on which the investee becomes an
associate. On acquisition of the investment in an associate, any
excess of the cost of the investment over the Group's share of
the net fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities of the
investee is recognised as goodwill, which is included within the
carrying amount of the investment. Any excess of the Group's
share of the net fair value of the identifiable assets and
liabilities over the cost of the investment, after reassessment, is
recognised immediately in profit or loss in the period in which

the investment is acquired.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RE MR

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE T -_=F+_-_A=+—HILFE

3. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (contd)

(b)

Investments accounted for using the equity method
(Cont'd)

The Group assesses whether there is an objective evidence
that the interest in an associate may be impaired. When any
objective evidence exists, the entire carrying amount of the
investment (including goodwill) is tested for impairment in
accordance with HKAS 36 as a single asset by comparing its
recoverable amount (higher of value-in-use and fair value less
costs of disposal) with its carrying amount. Any impairment
loss recognised is not allocated to any asset, including
goodwill, that forms part of the carrying amount of the
investment. Any reversal of that impairment loss is recognised
in accordance with HKAS 36 to the extent that the recoverable

amount of the investment subsequently increases.

When the Group ceases to have significant influence over
an associate, it is accounted for as a disposal of the entire
interest in the investee with a resulting gain or loss being
recognised in profit or loss. When the Group retains an interest
in the former associate and the retained interest is a financial
asset within the scope of HKFRS 9, the Group measures the
retained interest at fair value at that date and the fair value is
regarded as its fair value on initial recognition. The difference
between the carrying amount of the associate and the fair
value of any retained interest and any proceeds from disposing
of the relevant interest in the associate is included in the
determination of the gain or loss on disposal of the associate.
In addition, the Group accounts for all amounts previously
recognised in other comprehensive income in relation to
that associate on the same basis as would be required if
that associate had directly disposed of the related assets or
liabilities. Therefore, if a gain or loss previously recognised
in other comprehensive income by that associate would be
reclassified to profit or loss on the disposal of the related
assets or liabilities, the Group reclassifies the gain or loss from
equity to profit or loss (as a reclassification adjustment) upon

disposal/partial disposal of the relevant associate.

When a group entity transacts with an associate of the
Group, profits and losses resulting from the transactions with
the associate are recognised in the consolidated financial
statements only to the extent of interests in the associate that

are not related to the Group.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE T -_=F+_A=+—HILtFE

3. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (contd)

(@

(d)

Impairment losses (other than goodwill and intangible

assets with indefinite useful lives)

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of its tangible assets and intangible assets
with finite useful lives to determine whether there is any
indication that those assets have suffered an impairment loss.
If the recoverable amount of an asset is estimated to be less
than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset
is reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is

recognised immediately in profit or loss.

When an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the asset is increased to the revised estimate of
its recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying
amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have
been determined had no impairment loss been recognised
for the asset in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is

recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Investment properties and investment properties under

construction

Investment properties are properties held to earn rental
income and/or for capital appreciation including properties
under construction for such purpose and land held for a

currently undetermined future use.

Investment properties are initially measured at cost, including
any directly attributable expenditure. Subsequent to initial
recognition, investment properties are measured at fair value,
adjusted to exclude any prepaid or accrued operating lease

income.

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value of
investment properties are included in profit or loss for the

period in which they arise.

Costs incurred for construction of investment properties under
construction are capitalised as part of the carrying amount of

the investment properties under construction.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RE MR

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE T -_=F+_-_A=+—HILFE

3. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (contd)

(d)

Investment properties and investment properties under

construction (Cont'd)

Leasehold land held for undetermined future use is regarded
as held for capital appreciation purpose and classified as an
investment property, and carried at fair value. Changes in fair
value of the leasehold land are recognised directly in profit or

loss for the period in which changes take place.

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or
when the investment property is permanently withdrawn
from use and no future economic benefits are expected from
its disposal. Any gain or loss arising from derecognition of
the property (calculated as the difference between the net
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the property) is
included in profit or loss for the period in which the property is

derecognised.

An investment property is transferred at fair value to property,
plant and equipment when the property begins to be occupied
by the owner or of development with a view to owner-
occupation. Gain or loss arising from change in fair value of
the investment property upon the transfer is included in profit

or loss.

An owner-occupied property is transferred from property, plant
and equipment to investment properties at fair value when it
is evidenced by the end of owner-occupation. The difference
between the carrying amount and the fair value at the date
of transfer is recognised in other comprehensive income
and accounted for as a revaluation increase or decrease in
accordance with HKAS 16 “Property, Plant and Equipment”.
On the subsequent sale or retirement of assets, the relevant

revaluation reserve is transferred directly to retained profits.

A property is transferred from investment property to stock
of properties when, and only when, there is a change in use,
evidenced by commencement of development with a view to
sale. Any difference between the fair value of the property at
the date of change in use and its previous carrying amount is

recognised in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HEZE T =_=F+-_A=+—HIFE

3. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (contd)

(e)

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less
subsequent accumulated depreciation and accumulated

impairment losses, if any.

Depreciation is provided to write off the cost of property, plant
and equipment (other than freehold land and properties under
development) over their estimated useful lives and after taking
into account their estimated residual values, using the straight-

line method, at the following rates per annum:

Type Basis

Leasehold land Over the remaining lives

of the leases

Buildings Over the shorter of the remaining
unexpired period of the lease and
40 years
Leasehold Over the shorter of the remaining
improvement unexpired period of lease terms

and 6 years

Furniture, fixtures and 3 to 10 years
equipment

Yachts and motor 3 to 10 years

vehicles

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any
gain or loss arising from derecognition of the asset (calculated
as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount of the asset) is included in profit or loss in the

period in which the asset is derecognised.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RE MR

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE T -_=F+_-_A=+—HILFE

3. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (contd)

®

(g)

(h)

Stock of properties

Stock of properties including completed properties which are
held-for-trading, is stated at the lower of cost and net realisable

value.

The cost of completed properties held for sale is determined
by apportionment of the total development costs, including
borrowing costs capitalised, attributable to unsold units. Net
realisable value is estimated by the management of the Group
based on prevailing market conditions, which represents the
estimated selling price less estimated costs to be incurred in

selling the property.

The amount of any write-down of or provision for completed
properties held for sale is recognised as an expense in the
period when the write-down or loss occurs. The amount of
any reversal of any write-down or provision, arising from an
increase in net realisable value, is recognised as a reduction in
the amount of completed properties held for sale recognised

as an expense in the period in which the reversal occurs.

Inventories

Inventories comprise finished goods and raw materials for
cosmetics products, which are stated at the lower of cost
and net realisable value. Cost represents the invoiced cost
of inventories. Costs are assigned to individual items on the

weighted-average basis.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the
ordinary course of business, less applicable variable selling

expenses.

Intangible assets

Trading rights, exchange rights and trademark

Trading rights, gold and silver exchange rights and trademark
are stated at cost less accumulated amortisation and less any

identified impairment loss. The amortisation period adopted

for intangible assets is five years.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #r& B R M &L
For the year ended 31 December 2023 HEZE T =_=F+-_A=+—HIFE

3. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (contd)

0

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position when a group
entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
financial instruments. Financial assets and financial liabilities
are initially measured at fair value. A financial asset or financial
liability (unless it is a trade receivable without a significant
financing component) is initially measured at fair value plus
or minus, for an item not at fair value through profit or loss
("FVTPL"), transaction costs that are directly attributable to its
acquisition or issue. A trade receivable without a significant
financing component is initially measured at the transaction

price.

Financial assets

All recognised financial assets are subsequently measured in
their entirety at either amortised cost or fair value, depending

on the classification of the financial assets.

() Cassification and subsequent measurement of financial

assets

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are
subsequently measured at amortised cost (except for
debt investments that are designated as at FVTPL on

initial recognition):

. the financial asset is held within a business model
whose objective is to hold assets in order to

collect contractual cash flows; and

. the contractual terms of the financial asset give
rise on specified dates to cash flows that are
solely payments of principal and interest on the

principal amount outstanding.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RE MR

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE T -_=F+_-_A=+—HILFE

3. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (contd)

0

Financial instruments (Cont'd)

Financial assets (Cont'd)

®

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial
assets (Cont'd)

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are

subsequently measured at FVTOCI:

. the financial asset is held within a business model
whose objective is achieved by both collecting
contractual cash flows and selling financial asset;

and

. the contractual terms of the financial asset give
rise on specified dates to cash flows that are
solely payments of principal and interest on the

principal amount outstanding.

All other financial assets that are other than those
categorised as amortised cost and FVTOCI above, are

categorised as measured at FVTPL.

A financial asset is held-for-trading if:

. it has been acquired principally for the purpose of

selling in the near term;

. on initial recognition it is a part of a portfolio of
identified financial instruments that the Group
manages together and has a recent actual pattern

of short-term profit-taking; or

. it is a derivative that is not designated and

effective as a hedging instrument.

In addition, the Group may irrevocably designate a
financial asset that is required to be measured at the
amortised cost or FVTOCI as measured at FVTPL if doing
so eliminates or significantly reduces an accounting

mismatch.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE T -_=F+_A=+—HILtFE

RE MR

3. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY 3. EASTHHEER®w

INFORMATION (contd)

(i) Financial instruments (Cont'd) (i) &MIAGE
Financial assets (Cont'd) SHEEE)
(i) Classification and subsequent measurement of financial () THEESEREEZEHE)

assets (Cont'd)

(1) BERAREENIX

(1) Amortised cost and effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method
of calculating the amortised cost of a debt
instrument and allocating interest income over
the relevant period. The effective interest rate is
the rate that exactly discounts estimated future
cash receipts (including all fees and points paid
or received that form an integral part of the
effective interest rate, transaction costs and other
premiums or discounts) through the expected life
of the debt instrument or, where appropriate, a
shorter period, to the net carrying amount at initial

recognition.

Interest income is recognised using effective
interest method for financial assets measured
subsequently at amortised cost. Interest income
is recognised in profit or loss and is included in

revenue or investment income as appropriate.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #& BB R M
For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE T -_=F+_-_A=+—HILFE

3. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY 3. EASTHHEER®w

INFORMATION (contd)

(i) Financial instruments (Cont'd) iy &WMIAEB
Financial assets (Cont'd) SHEEE)
(i) Classification and subsequent measurement of financial () THEESEREEZEHE)
assets (Cont'd)
(2) Financial assets measured at FVTOCI 2) BEHEMEEEEIREA

According to HKFRS 9, the Group may make
an irrevocable election (on an instrument-by-
instrument basis) to designate investments in
equity instruments as at FVTOCI. Designation at
FVTOCI is not permitted if the equity investment
is held-for-trading. A financial asset is held-for-
trading if it has been acquired principally for the
purpose of selling it in the near term or it is a
derivative that is not designated and effective as a

hedging instrument.

Investments in equity instruments at FVTOCI are
initially measured at fair value plus transaction
costs. Subsequently, they are measured at fair
value with gains and losses arising from changes
in fair value recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in the financial assets
measured at FVTOCI reserve. Fair value is
determined in the manner described in Note 5(c)

to the consolidated financial statements.

Dividend income is recognised in profit or loss

and is included in revenue.

The Group has designated all investments in
equity instruments (listed or unlisted) that are not
held-for-trading as at FVTOCI since the application
of HKFRS 9.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE T -_=F+_A=+—HILtFE

RE MR

3. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY 3. EASTHHEER®w

INFORMATION (contd)

(i) Financial instruments (Cont'd) (i) &MIAGE
Financial assets (Cont'd) SHEEE)
(i) Classification and subsequent measurement of financial () THEESEREEZEHE)

assets (Cont'd)

(3) Financial assets measured at FVTPL 3) BREBZARBAFEEZ
ZEMEE

Financial assets measured at FVTPL comprise
derivatives that are not designated and effective
as hedging instruments and club and corporate

debentures.

Investments in equity instruments are classified
as FVTPL, unless the Group designates such
investment that is not held-for-trading as at
FVTOCI on initial recognition (see (i)(2) above).

Debt instruments that do not meet the amortised
cost and FVTOCI criteria (see above) are
measured at FVTPL. In addition, debt instruments
that meet the amortised cost criteria but are
designated as at FVTPL are measured at FVTPL.
A debt instrument may be designated as at
FVTPL upon initial recognition if such designation
eliminates or significantly reduces a measurement
or recognition inconsistency that would otherwise
arise from measuring assets or liabilities or
recognising the gains and losses on them on

different bases.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RE MR

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE T -_=F+_-_A=+—HILFE

3. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (contd)

0

Financial instruments (Cont'd)

Financial assets (Cont'd)

®

(i)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial
assets (Cont'd)

(3) Financial assets measured at FVTPL (Cont'd)

Financial assets measured at FVTPL are
measured at fair value at the end of the reporting
period, with any gains or losses arising from
remeasurement recognised in profit or loss.
The net gain or loss recognised in profit or loss
is included in investment income. Fair value is
determined in the manner described in Note 5(c)

to the consolidated financial statements.

Interest income on debt instruments at FVTPL
is recognised in profit or loss and is included in

revenue.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group performs impairment assessment under
expected credit loss (“ECL") model on financial assets
(including debtors, deposits and other receivables,
securities trading receivables and deposits, pledged
deposits, time deposits, bank balances and cash, and
advances to associates/investee companies) which are
subject to impairment assessment under HKFRS 9. The
amount of ECL is updated at each reporting date to

reflect changes in credit risk since initial recognition.

3. EXEEHRER®

0

ERTAME

TREEGE)

®

(i)

EHEEDBRERZEHE (B

(3) BBERIARBRATEAS

ZEMEEE)

BBEEARRAFEFE
ZEREENREHMRER
FEFE  FAEHFEmME
Ez E AR ESEERER
REER o MRS HERR 2 MK
5 kB 1R AR
AR RFEREAWH
MRS () FTi 2 H

E o

BREAERER

BBEEARRAFEZE
BTAZABWAREREF
ERREBERAA -

TREEZBE

AEBRBEEMHERELRE
FHRAERENEZEREE (R
EEWERE - BE RE M EKEE

H - EUE
ERFR

RBERBRER
EMER - RITER

RBReUARBNBERR B
RERARRA)RBHEEER
(MEMEEERDRETRER
- BHEEERNESENER
SRMEHN AR BEVS®R
EREBAE o

AREE

— = — =

—=

5 5 3

gABxE®E 157



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HEZE T =_=F+-_A=+—HIFE

3. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (contd)

0

Financial instruments (Cont'd)

Financial assets (Cont'd)

(i)

Impairment of financial assets (Cont'd)

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result from
all possible default events over the expected life of the
relevant instrument. In contrast, 12-month ECL (“12m
ECL") represents the portion of lifetime ECL that is
expected to result from default events that are possible
within 12 months after the end of the reporting period.
Assessment is done based on the Group’s historical
credit loss experience, adjusted for factors that are
specific to the debtors, general economic conditions
and an assessment of both the current conditions at
the reporting date as well as the forecast of future

conditions.

The Group always recognises lifetime ECL for trade
receivables. The ECL on these assets are assessed
individually for significant balances or collectively using a

provision matrix with appropriate groupings.

For all other instruments, the Group measures the
loss allowance equal to 12m ECL, unless when there
has been a significant increase in credit risk since
initial recognition, the Group recognises lifetime ECL.
The assessment of whether lifetime ECL should be
recognised is based on significant increases in the
likelihood or risk of a default occurring since initial

recognition.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RE MR

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE T -_=F+_-_A=+—HILFE

3. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (contd)

0

Financial instruments (Cont'd)

Financial assets (Cont'd)

(i)

Impairment of financial assets (Cont'd)

Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition, the Group compares
the risk of a default occurring on the financial instrument
as at the reporting date with the risk of a default
occurring on the financial instrument as at the date of
initial recognition. In making this assessment, the Group
considers both quantitative and qualitative information
that is reasonable and supportable, including historical
experience and forward-looking information that is

available without undue cost or effort.

In particular, the following information is taken into
account when assessing whether credit risk has

increased significantly:

. an actual or expected significant deterioration in
the financial instrument'’s external (if available) or

internal credit rating;

. significant deterioration in external market

indicators of credit risk;

. existing or forecast adverse changes in business,
financial or economic conditions that are expected
to cause a significant decrease in the debtor’s

ability to meet its debt obligations;

. an actual or expected significant deterioration in

the operating results of the debtor;

. an actual or expected significant adverse change
in the regulatory, economic, or technological
environment of the debtor that results in a
significant decrease in the debtor’s ability to meet

its debt obligations.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HEZE T =_=F+-_A=+—HIFE

3. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (contd)

0

Financial instruments (Cont'd)

Financial assets (Cont'd)

(i)

Impairment of financial assets (Cont'd)

Significant increase in credit risk (Cont'd)

Irrespective of the outcome of the above assessment,
the Group presumes that the credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition when contractual
payments are more than 30 days past due, unless the
Group has reasonable and supportable information that

demonstrates otherwise.

The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness of
the criteria used to identify whether there has been a
significant increase in credit risk and revises them as
appropriate to ensure that the criteria are capable of
identifying significant increase in credit risk before the

amount becomes past due.
Definition of default

For internal credit risk management, the Group considers
an event of default occurs when information developed
internally or obtained from external sources indicates
that the debtor is unlikely to pay its creditors, including
the Group, in full.

Irrespective of the above, the Group considers that
default has occurred when a financial asset is more than
90 days past due unless the Group has reasonable and
supportable information to demonstrate that a more

lagging default criterion is more appropriate.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RE MR

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE T -_=F+_-_A=+—HILFE

3. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (contd)

0

Financial instruments (Cont'd)

Financial assets (Cont'd)

(i)

Impairment of financial assets (Cont'd)
Write-off policy

The Group writes off a financial asset when there is
information indicating that the counterparty is in severe
financial difficulty and there is no realistic prospect of
recovery, for example, when the counterparty has been
placed under liquidation or has entered into bankruptcy
proceedings, or in the case of trade receivables, when
the amounts are over one year past due, whichever
occurs sooner, unless the Group has reasonable and
supportable information to demonstrate a later period
is more appropriate. Financial assets written off may
still be subject to enforcement activities under the
Group's recovery procedures, taking into account legal
advice where appropriate. A write-off constitutes a
derecognition event. Any subsequent recoveries are

recognised in profit or loss.

Measurement and recognition of ECLs

The measurement of ECL is a function of the probability
of default, loss given default (i.e. the magnitude of the
loss if there is a default) and the exposure at default.
The assessment of the probability of default and loss
given default is based on historical data and forward-
looking information. Estimation of ECL reflects an
unbiased and probability-weighted amount that is
determined with the respective risks of default occurring
as the weights. The Group uses a practical expedient in
estimating ECL on trade receivables using a provision
matrix taking into consideration historical credit loss
experience, adjusted for forward-looking information that

is available without undue cost or effort.

Generally, the ECL is the difference between all
contractual cash flows that are due to the Group in
accordance with the contract and the cash flows that
the Group expects to receive, discounted at the effective

interest rate determined at initial recognition.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HEZE T =_=F+-_A=+—HIFE

3. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (contd)

0

Financial instruments (Cont'd)

Financial assets (Cont'd)

(i)

(i)

Impairment of financial assets (Cont'd)

Credit-impaired financial assets

At each reporting date, the Group assesses on a
forward-looking basis whether financial assets carried at
amortised cost are credit-impaired. A financial asset is
“credit-impaired” when one or more events that have a
detrimental impact on the estimated future cash flows

of the financial asset have occurred.

Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired includes

observable data of the following events:

. significant financial difficulty of the issuer or
borrower;

. a breach of contract such as a default or past due
event;

. the lender(s) of the borrower, for economic or
contractual reasons relating to the borrower's
financial difficulty, having granted to the borrower
a concession(s) that the lender(s) would not

otherwise consider; or

. it is becoming probable that the borrower will
enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation,
or the disappearance of an active market for a

security because of financial difficulties.

Derecognition of financial assets

Financial assets are derecognised when the contractual
rights to receive cash flows from the assets expire or,
the financial assets are transferred and the Group has
transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of

ownership of the financial assets to another entity.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RE MR

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE T -_=F+_-_A=+—HILFE

3. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (contd)

(i) Financial instruments (Cont'd)

Financial assets (Cont'd)

(i)

Derecognition of financial assets (Cont'd)

On derecognition of a financial asset, except for an
investment in equity instrument that is classified as
FVTOC], the difference between the asset's carrying
amount and the sum of the consideration received and

receivable is recognised in profit or loss.

On derecognition of an investment in equity instrument
that is classified as at FVTOCI, the cumulative gain or
loss previously accumulated in the financial assets
measured at FVTOCI reserve is not reclassified to profit

or loss, but is transferred to retained profits.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

®

Classification and measurement

Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by a
group entity are classified as either financial liabilities
or equity instruments according to the substance
of the contractual arrangements entered into and
the definitions of a financial liability and an equity

instrument.

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences
a residual interest in the assets of the Group after
deducting all of its liabilities. The Group's financial
liabilities are generally classified into (i) financial liabilities
at FVTPL and (i) other financial liabilities subsequently
measured at amortised cost. The accounting policies
adopted in respect of financial liabilities and equity

instruments are set out below.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE T -_=F+_A=+—HILtFE

3. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (contd)

0

Financial instruments (Cont'd)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments (Cont'd)

®

Classification and measurement (Cont'd)

Q)

@

Financial liabilities at FVTPL

Financial liabilities at FVTPL, representing those as
held-for-trading, comprise derivatives that are not

designated and effective as hedging instruments.

Financial liabilities at FVTPL are measured at fair
value, with changes in fair value arising from
remeasurement recognised directly in profit or

loss in the period in which they arise.

Other financial liabilities subsequently measured

at amortised cost and effective interest method

Other financial liabilities are subsequently
measured at amortised cost, using the effective
interest method. Interest expense that is not
capitalised as part of costs of an asset is included

in finance costs.

The effective interest method is a method of
calculating the amortised cost of a financial
liability and allocating interest expense over the
relevant period. The effective interest rate is
the rate that exactly discounts estimated future
cash payments (including all fees and points
paid or received that form an integral part of the
effective interest rate, transaction costs and other
premiums or discounts) through the expected life
of the financial liability or, where appropriate, a
shorter period, to the net carrying amount at initial

recognition.

Interest expense is recognised using effective
interest method for financial liabilities, other than
those financial liabilities at FVTPL.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #& BB R M
For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE T -_=F+_-_A=+—HILFE

3. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (contd)

0

Financial instruments (Cont'd)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments (Cont'd)

®

(i)

Classification and measurement (Cont'd)
(3) Equity instruments

Equity instruments issued by the Company are
recorded at the proceeds received, net of direct

issue costs.

Repurchase of the Company’s own equity
instruments is recognised and deducted directly
in equity. No gain or loss is recognised in profit or
loss on the purchase, sale, issue or cancellation of

the Company’'s own equity instruments.
Derecognition/modification of financial liabilities

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the Group’s
obligation specified in the relevant contract is discharged,
cancelled or expires. The difference between the
carrying amount of the financial liability derecognised
and the consideration paid and payable is recognised in

profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #r& B R M &L
For the year ended 31 December 2023 HEZE T =_=F+-_A=+—HIFE

3. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY 3. EASTHHEER®w

INFORMATION (contd)

(i) Financial instruments (Cont'd) (i) &WMIAE

Financial liabilities and equity instruments (Cont'd) THEERKREITAE)

(i) BUHHER XA EE

(i) Derecognition/modification of financial liabilities

(Cont'd)

Except for changes in the basis for determining the
contractual cash flows as a result of interest rate
benchmark reform in which the Group applies the
practical expedient, when the contractual terms of
a financial liability are modified, the Group assesses
whether the revised terms result in a substantial
modification from original terms taking into account all
relevant facts and circumstances including qualitative
factors. If qualitative assessment is not conclusive,
the Group considers that the terms are substantially
different if the discounted present value of the cash
flows under the new terms, including any fees paid
net of any fees received, and discounted using
the original effective interest rate, is at least 10%
different from the discounted present value of the
remaining cash flows of the original financial liability.
Accordingly, such modification of terms is accounted
for as an extinguishment, any costs or fees incurred
are recognised as part of the gain or loss on the
extinguishment. The exchange or modification is
considered as non-substantial modification when such

difference is less than 10%.

For non-substantial modifications of financial liabilities
that do not result in derecognition, the carrying amount
of the relevant financial liabilities will be calculated at
the present value of the modified contractual cash
flows discounted at the financial liabilities” original
effective interest rate. Transaction costs or fees incurred
are adjusted to the carrying amount of the modified
financial liabilities and are amortised over the remaining
term. Any adjustment to the carrying amount of the
financial liability is recognised in profit or loss at the date

of modification.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #R&

ISR R MR

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE T -_=F+_-_A=+—HILFE

3. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (contd)

0

Financial instruments (Cont'd)

Change in the basis for determining the contractual
cash flows as a result of interest rate benchmark

reform

For changes in the basis for determining the contractual cash
flows of a financial asset or financial liability to which the
amortised cost measurement applies as a result of interest rate
benchmark reform, the Group applies the practical expedient
to account for these changes by updating the effective interest
rate, such change in effective interest rate normally has no
significant effect on the carrying amount of the relevant

financial asset or financial liability.

A change in the basis for determining the contractual cash
flows is required by interest rate benchmark reform if and only

if, both these conditions are met:

the change is necessary as a direct consequence of

interest rate benchmark reform; and

. the new basis for determining the contractual cash flows
is economically equivalent to the previous basis (i.e. the

basis immediately preceding the change).

For other changes made to a financial asset or financial
liability in addition to changes to the basis for determining the
contractual cash flows required by interest rate benchmark
reform, the Group first applies the practical expedient to
the changes required by interest rate benchmark reform by

updating the effective interest rate.

Derivative financial instruments

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value at the date
a derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently
remeasured to their fair value at the end of the reporting
period. The resulting gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss

immediately.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HEZE T =_=F+-_A=+—HIFE

3. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (contd)

0

)

Financial instruments (Cont'd)

Derivative financial instruments (Cont'd)

A derivative is presented as a non-current asset or non-current
liability if the remaining maturity of the instrument is more
than 12 months and it is not due to be realised or settled
within 12 months. Other derivatives are presented as current

assets or current liabilities.

Financial guarantee contract

A financial guarantee contract is a contract that requires the
issuer to make specified payments to reimburse the holder
for a loss it incurs because a specified debtor fails to make
payment when due in accordance with the original or modified
terms of a debt instrument. Financial guarantee contract
liabilities are measured initially at their fair values and, if not
designated as at FVTPL and do not arise from a transfer of an

asset, are measured subsequently at the higher of:

the amount of the loss allowance determined in
accordance with HKFRS 9 (see financial assets above);

and

the amount initially recognised less, where appropriate,
the cumulative amortisation recognised over the

guarantee period.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows,
cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and
demand deposits, and short term highly liquid investments
that are readily convertible into known amounts of cash, are
subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value, and have a
short maturity of generally within three months when acquired,
less bank overdrafts which are repayable on demand and form

an integral part of the Group’s cash management.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of financial
position, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand
and at banks, including term deposits, and assets similar in

nature to cash, which are not restricted as to use.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RE MR

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE T -_=F+_-_A=+—HILFE

3. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (contd)

(k)

Revenue recognition

The Group recognises revenue when (or as) a performance
obligation is satisfied, i.e. when “control” of the goods or
services underlying the particular performance obligation is

transferred to the customer.

A performance obligation represents a good or service (or
a bundle of goods or services) that is distinct or a series of

distinct goods or services that are substantially the same.

Control is transferred over time and revenue is recognised
over time by reference to the progress towards complete
satisfaction of the relevant performance obligation if one of the

following criteria is met:

. the customer simultaneously receives and consumes
the benefits provided by the Group's performance as

the Group performs;

. the Group's performance creates and enhances an asset

that the customer controls as the Group performs; or

. the Group's performance does not create an asset
with an alternative use to the Group and the Group
has an enforceable right to payment for performance

completed to date.

Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in time when the

customer obtains control of the distinct good or service.

A contract asset represents the Group's right to consideration
in exchange for goods or services that the Group has
transferred to a customer that is not yet unconditional. It is
assessed for impairment in accordance with HKFRS 9. In
contrast, a receivable represents the Group's unconditional

right to consideration.

A contract liability represents the Group's obligation to transfer
goods or services to a customer for which the Group has
received consideration (or an amount of consideration is due)

from the customer.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HEZE T =_=F+-_A=+—HIFE

3. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (contd)

(k)

Revenue recognition (Cont'd)

A contract asset and a contract liability relating to a contract are

accounted for and presented on a net basis.

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration

received or receivable.

Rental income, including rental invoiced in advance from
properties under operating leases, is recognised in profit or

loss on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease.

Building management fee income, property management
services income and management fee income are recognised
in accordance with terms of respective agreements over the
relevant period in which the services are rendered. Revenue
from provision of building and property management services
is recognised over time as the customer simultaneously
receives and consumes the benefit provided by the Group’s

performance as the Group performs.

Sales of securities investments are recognised on a trade date

basis.

Brokerage income on dealings in securities and futures
contracts is recognised at the point in time when the relevant

contract notes are executed.

Dividend income from investments is recognised when the

Group's right to receive payment has been established.

Revenue from sales of cosmetics products is recognised at the
point in time when goods are delivered and titles have been

passed.

Revenue from sales of properties held for sale in the ordinary
course of business is recognised when the legal assignment
is completed, which is the point in time when the purchaser
has the ability to direct the use of the property and obtain

substantially all of the remaining benefits of the property.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RE MR

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE T -_=F+_-_A=+—HILFE

3. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (contd)

(k)

U

Revenue recognition (Cont'd)

Interest income from a financial asset is accrued on a time
basis by reference to the principal outstanding and at the
effective interest rate applicable, which is the rate that exactly
discounts the estimated future cash receipts through the
expected life of the financial asset to that asset's net carrying

amount at initial recognition.

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently

payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the
year. Taxable profit differs from profit before tax as reported in
the consolidated statement of comprehensive income because
of items of income or expense that are taxable or deductible
in other years and items that are never taxable or deductible.
The Group's liability for current tax is calculated using tax rates
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of

the reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the
consolidated financial statements and the corresponding tax
bases used in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax
liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary
differences. Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for
all deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is
probable that taxable profits will be available against which
those deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such
deferred tax assets and liabilities are not recognised if the
temporary difference arises from goodwill or from the initial
recognition (other than in a business combination) of other
assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the
taxable profit nor the accounting profit and at the time of the
transaction does not give rise to equal taxable and deductible

temporary differences.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HEZE T =_=F+-_A=+—HIFE

3. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (contd)

U

Taxation (Cont'd)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries and
associates, except where the Group is able to control the
reversal of the temporary difference and it is probable that the

temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the
end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that
it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be

available to allow all or part of the assets to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates
that are expected to apply in the period in which the liability
is settled or the asset is realised. Current and deferred tax are
recognised in profit or loss, except when they relate to items
that are recognised in other comprehensive income or directly
in equity, in which case, the current and deferred tax are also
recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity
respectively. Where current tax or deferred tax arises from the
initial accounting for a business combination, the tax effect is

included in the accounting for the business combination.

For leasing transactions in which the tax deductions are
attributable to the lease liabilities, the Group applies HKAS 12
“Income Taxes” requirements to right-of-use assets and
lease liabilities separately. Temporary differences arising from
subsequent revision to the carrying amounts of right-of-use
assets and lease liabilities, resulting from remeasurement of
lease liabilities and lease modifications, that are not subject
to initial recognition exemption are recognised on the date of

remeasurement or modification.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a
legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets against
current tax liabilities, and when they relate to income taxes
levied to the same taxable entity by the same taxation
authority and the entity intends to settle its current tax assets

and liabilities on a net basis.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #& BB R M
For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE T -_=F+_-_A=+—HILFE

3. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY 3. EASTHHEER®w

INFORMATION (contd)

(m) #HE

(m) Leasing

Definition of lease

A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the
right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of

time in exchange for consideration.

For contracts entered into or modified or arising from business
combinations on or after the date of initial application, the
Group assesses whether a contract is or contains a lease based
on the definition under HKFRS 16 at inception, modification
date or acquisition date, as appropriate. Such contract will not
be reassessed unless the terms and conditions of the contract

are subsequently changed.

The Group as lessee

Allocation of consideration to components of a contract

For a contract that contains a lease component and one or
more additional lease or non-lease components, the Group
allocates the consideration in the contract to each lease
component on the basis of the relative stand-alone price of
the lease component and the aggregate stand-alone price of

the non-lease components.

Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition exemption
to short-term leases of assets (i.e. those leases that have a
lease term of twelve months or less from the commencement
date and do not contain a purchase option). The Group also
applies the lease of low-value assets recognition exemption
to lease of office equipment that are considered as low value.
Lease payments on short-term leases and leases of low-value
assets are recognised as expenses on a straight-line basis over

the lease term.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #r& B R M &L
For the year ended 31 December 2023 HEZE T =_=F+-_A=+—HIFE

3. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY 3. EASTHEER @
INFORMATION (Contd)

(m) Leasing (Cont'd) (m) &)

The Group as lessee (Cont'd)

Right-of-use assets

The Group recognises right-of-use assets at the commencement
date of the lease (i.e. the date which the underlying asset is
available for use). Right-of-use assets are measured at cost,
less any accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, and
adjusted for any remeasurement of lease liabilities. The cost
of right-of-use assets includes the amount of lease liabilities
recognised, initial direct costs incurred, estimated costs to be
incurred by the lessee in restoring the underlying asset to the
condition required by the terms and conditions of the lease,
and lease payments made at or before the commencement
date less any lease incentives received. Unless the Group is
reasonably certain to obtain ownership of the leased asset at
the end of the lease term, the recognised right-of-use assets
are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the shorter of its
estimated useful life and the lease term. Right-of-use assets

are subject to impairment.

The Group presents right-of-use assets as a separate line item

in the consolidated statement of financial position.

Refundable rental deposits

Refundable rental deposits paid are accounted for under
HKFRS 9 and initially measured at fair value. Adjustments to
fair value at initial recognition are considered as additional

lease payments and included in the cost of right-of-use assets.

Lease liabilities

At the commencement date of a lease, the Group recognises
lease liabilities measured at the present value of lease
payments to be made over the lease term. In calculating
the present value of lease payments, the Group uses the
incremental borrowing rate at the lease commencement
date if the interest rate implicit in the lease is not readily

determinable.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #& BB R M
For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE T -_=F+_-_A=+—HILFE

3. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (contd)

(m) Leasing (Cont'd)

The Group as lessee (Cont'd)

Lease liabilities (Cont'd)

The lease payments include:

fixed payments (including in-substance fixed lease

payments) less any lease incentives receivable;

variable lease payments that depend on an index or a
rate, initially measured using the index or rate as at the

commencement date;

amounts expected to be payable by the Group under

residual value guarantees;

the exercise price of a purchase option if the Group is

reasonably certain to exercise the option; and

payments of penalties for terminating a lease, if the
lease term reflects the Group exercising an option to

terminate the lease.

After the commencement date, the amount of lease liabilities

is increased to reflect the accretion of interest and reduced for

the lease payments made.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #r& B R M &L
For the year ended 31 December 2023 HEZE T =_=F+-_A=+—HIFE

3. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (contd)

3. EXEEHRER®

(m) Leasing (Cont'd) (m) BE@E

The Group as lessee (Cont'd)

Lease liabilities (Cont'd)

The Group remeasures lease liabilities (and makes a
corresponding adjustment to the related right-of-use assets)

whenever:

. change in the lease term or change in the assessment
of exercise of a purchase option to purchase the
underlying asset, in which case the related lease
liability is remeasured by discounting the revised lease
payments using a revised discount rate at the date of

reassessment;

change in lease payments arising from change in an
index or rate or expected payment under a guaranteed
residual value, in which cases the related lease liability is
remeasured by discounting the revised lease payments

using the initial discount rate.

The Group presents lease liabilities as a separate line item in

the consolidated statement of financial position.

Lease modifications

For a lease modification that is not accounted for as a separate
lease, the Group remeasures the lease liability based on the
lease term of the modified lease by discounting the revised
lease payments using a revised discount rate at the effective

date of the modification.

The Group as lessor

Rental income from operating leases is recognised in profit
or loss on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant
lease. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging
an operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the
leased asset and recognised as an expense on a straight-line

basis over the lease term.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RE MR

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE T -_=F+_-_A=+—HILFE

3. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (contd)

(m) Leasing (Cont'd)

(m)

The Group as lessor (Cont'd)

Lease modification

Changes in considerations of lease contracts that were not part
of the original terms and conditions are accounted for as lease
modifications, including lease incentives provided through

forgiveness or reduction of rentals.

Operating leases

The Group accounts for a modification to an operating lease
as a new lease from the effective date of the modification,
considering any prepaid or accrued lease payments relating to
the original lease as part of the lease payments for the new

lease.

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group
entity, transactions in currencies other than the functional
currency of that entity (foreign currencies) are recorded at the
rates of exchange prevailing at the dates of the transactions. At
the end of the reporting period, monetary items denominated
in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing at
that date. When a fair value gain or loss on a non-monetary
item is recognised in profit or loss, any exchange component
of that gain or loss is also recognised in profit or loss. When a
fair value gain or loss on a non-monetary item is recognised
in other comprehensive income, any exchange component
of that gain or loss is also recognised in other comprehensive
income. Non-monetary items carried at fair value that are
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates
prevailing on the date when the fair value was determined.
Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical

cost in foreign currencies are not retranslated.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HEZE T =_=F+-_A=+—HIFE

3. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (contd)

(n)

Foreign currencies (Cont'd)

Exchange differences arising from the settlement of monetary
items, and on the translation of monetary items, are recognised
in profit or loss in the period in which they arise, except for
exchange differences arising from a monetary item that forms
part of the Company's net investment in a foreign operation, in
which case, the exchange differences are recognised in other
comprehensive income and will be reclassified from equity to

profit or loss on disposal of the foreign operation.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group's foreign
operations are translated into the presentation currency of
the Group (i.e. HK$) using the exchange rate prevailing at the
end of each reporting period. Income and expense items are
translated at the average exchange rates for the period, unless
exchange rates fluctuate significantly during that period, in
which case, the exchange rates at the dates of transactions
are used. Exchange differences arising, if any, are recognised
in other comprehensive income and accumulated in the
translation reserve. Such exchange differences are recognised
in profit or loss in the period in which the foreign operation is

disposed of.

On the disposal of a foreign operation (i.e. a disposal of the
Group's entire interest in a foreign operation, or a disposal
involving loss of control over a subsidiary that includes a
foreign operation, or a disposal involving loss of significant
influence over an associate that includes a foreign operation),
all of the exchange differences accumulated in the translation
reserve in respect of that operation attributable to the owners

of the Company are reclassified to profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RE MR

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE T -_=F+_-_A=+—HILFE

3. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (contd)

(n)

(0)

Foreign currencies (Cont'd)

In relation to a partial disposal of a subsidiary that does not
result in the Group losing control over the subsidiary, the
proportionate share of accumulated exchange differences is
reattributed to non-controlling interests and is not recognised
in profit or loss. For partial disposals of associates that do
not result in the Group losing significant influence, the
proportionate share of the accumulated exchange differences
is reclassified to profit or loss. Settlements of monetary items
which formed part of net investment in foreign operations
without changes in the Group’s ownership interests is not

considered as partial disposals.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which are
assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get
ready for their intended use or sale, are added to the cost of
those assets. Capitalisation of such borrowing costs ceases
when the assets are substantially ready for their intended use

or sale.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the

period in which they are incurred.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #r& B R M &L
For the year ended 31 December 2023 HEZE T =_=F+-_A=+—HIFE

3. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (contd)

()]

Retirement benefit costs

Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit schemes
are recognised as expenses when employees have rendered

service entitling them to the contributions.

For defined benefit retirement benefit plans including the
LSP under the Hong Kong Employment Ordinance, the cost
of providing benefits is determined using the projected unit
credit method, with actuarial valuations being carried out at
the end of each annual reporting period. In determining the
present value of the Group's defined benefit obligations and
the related current service cost and, where applicable, past
service cost, the Group attributes benefit to periods of service
under the plan's benefit formula. However, if an employee’s
service in later years will lead to a materially higher level of
benefit than earlier years, the Group attributes the benefit on a

straight-line basis from:

(a) the date when service by the employee first leads to
benefits under the plan (whether or not the benefits are

conditional on further service) until

(b) the date when further service by the employee will lead
to no material amount of further benefits under the

plan, other than from further salary increases.

Remeasurement, comprising actuarial gains and losses, the
effect of the changes to the asset ceiling (if applicable) and
the return on plan assets (excluding interest), is reflected
immediately in the consolidated statement of financial position
with a charge or credit recognised in other comprehensive
income in the period in which they occur. Remeasurement
recognised in other comprehensive income is reflected
immediately in retained earnings and will not be reclassified to

profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RE MR

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE T -_=F+_-_A=+—HILFE

3. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (contd)

()]

Retirement benefit costs (Cont'd)

Past service cost is recognised in profit or loss in the period
of a plan amendment or curtailment and a gain or loss on
settlement is recognised when settlement occurs. When
determining past service cost, or a gain or loss on settlement,
an entity shall remeasure the net defined benefit liability or
asset using the current fair value of plan assets and current
actuarial assumptions, reflecting the benefits offered under
the plan and the plan assets before and after the plan
amendment, curtailment or settlement, without considering
the effect of asset ceiling (i.e. the present value of any
economic benefits available in the form of refunds from the

plan or reductions in future contributions to the plan).

Net interest is calculated by applying the discount rate at the
beginning of the period to the net defined benefit liability
or asset. However, if the Group remeasures the net defined
benefit liability or asset before plan amendment, curtailment
or settlement, the Group determines net interest for the
remainder of the annual reporting period after the plan
amendment, curtailment or settlement using the benefits
offered under the plan and the plan assets after the plan
amendment, curtailment or settlement and the discount rate
used to remeasure such net defined benefit liability or asset,
taking into account any changes in the net defined benefit
liability or asset during the period resulting from contributions

or benefit payments.

Defined benefit costs are categorised as follows:
service cost (including current service cost, past service
cost, as well as gains and losses on curtailments and
settlements);

net interest expense or income; and

remeasurement.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HEZE T =_=F+-_A=+—HIFE

3. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (contd)

()]

Retirement benefit costs (Cont'd)

The retirement benefit obligation recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position represents the
actual deficit or surplus in the Group's defined benefit plans.
Any surplus resulting from this calculation is limited to the
present value of any economic benefits available in the form
of refunds from the plans or reductions in future contributions

to the plans.

Discretionary contributions made by employees or third parties
reduce service cost upon payment of these contributions to

the plan.

When the formal terms of the plans specify that there will be
contributions from employees or third parties, the accounting
depends on whether the contributions are linked to service, as

follows:

. If the contributions are not linked to services (for
example contributions are required to reduce a deficit
arising from losses on plan assets or from actuarial
losses), they are reflected in the remeasurement of the

net defined benefit liability or asset.

If the contributions are linked to services, they reduce
service cost. For the amount of contribution that is
dependent on the number of years of service, the Group
reduces service cost by attributing the contributions to
periods of service using the attribution method required
by HKAS 19 “Employee Benefits” paragraph 70 for
the gross benefits. For the amount of contribution that
is independent of the number of years of service, the
Group reduces service cost in the period in which the

related service is rendered.

For LSP obligation, the Group accounts for the employer
MPF contributions expected to be offset as a deemed
employee contribution towards the LSP obligation in terms
of HKAS 19.93(a) and it is measure on a net basis. The
estimated amount of future benefit is determined after
deducting the negative service cost arising from the accrued
benefits derived from the Group's MPF contributions that
have been vested with employees, which are deemed to be

contributions from the relevant employees.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RE MR

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE T -_=F+_-_A=+—HILFE

3. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (contd)

(9)

U]

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present
obligation as a result of a past event, it is probable that the
Group will be required to settle the obligation, and a reliable

estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate
of the consideration required to settle the present obligation
at the end of the reporting period, taking into account the
risks and uncertainties surrounding the obligation. Where a
provision is measured using the cash flows estimated to settle
the present obligation, its carrying amount is the present value

of those cash flows.

Related parties

(i) A person, or a close member of that person’s family, is

related to the Group if that person:

(1) has control or joint control of the Group;

(2) has significant influence over the Group; or

(3) is a member of the key management personnel

of the Group or the Group's parent.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #r& B R M &L
For the year ended 31 December 2023 HEZE T =_=F+-_A=+—HIFE

3. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (contd)

(r) Related parties (Cont'd)

(i) An entity is related to the Group if any of the following

conditions applies:

Q)

@

3

)

®)

®

)

®

the entity and the Group are members of the
same group (which means that each parent,
subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to the

others).

one entity is an associate or a joint venture of the
other entity (or an associate or a joint venture of
a member of a group of which the other entity is

a member).

both entities are joint ventures of the same third

party.

one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and

the other entity is an associate of the third entity.

the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for
the benefit of employees of either the Group or
an entity related to the Group. If the Group is
itself such a plan, the sponsoring employers are

also related to the Group.

the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a

person identified in (i).

a person identified in (i)(1) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of the
key management personnel of the entity (or of a

parent of the entity).

the entity, or any member of a group of which
it is a part, provides key management personnel
services to the Group or to the parent of the

Group.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RE MR

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE T -_=F+_-_A=+—HILFE

3. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (contd)

(r

(s)

®

Related parties (Cont'd)

A related party transaction is a transfer of resources, services or
obligations between the Group and a related party, regardless

of whether a price is charged.

Close members of the family of a person are those family
members who may be expected to influence, or be influenced

by, that person in their dealings with the entity.

Contingent liabilities

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from
past events and whose existence will only be confirmed by
the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain
future events not wholly within the control of the Group. It can
also be a present obligation arising from past events that is not
recognised because it is not probable that outflow of economic
resources will be required or the amount of obligation cannot
be measured reliably. A contingent liability is not recognised
but is disclosed in the notes to the consolidated financial
statements. When a change in the probability of an outflow
occurs so that outflow is probable, it will then be recognised

as a provision.

Operating segments

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent
with the internal management reporting provided to the
chief operating decision-makers. Segment assets consist
primarily of investment properties, financial assets and other
assets. Segment liabilities comprise financial liabilities and
other liabilities. The Group evaluates performance on the
basis of profit or loss from operations after tax expense and
non-controlling interests but not including the major non-
cash items. The major non-cash items are unrealised fair
value changes on investment properties and other properties

together with, if applicable, their respective deferred tax.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #r& B R M &L
For the year ended 31 December 2023 HEZE T =_=F+-_A=+—HIFE

3. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (contd)

()

v)

(w)

Dividend distribution

Dividend distribution to the Company’s shareholders is
recognised as a liability in the consolidated statement of
financial position in the period in which the dividends are
approved by the Company's shareholders or directors, where

appropriate.

Government grants

Government grants are not recognised until there is reasonable
assurance that the Group will comply with the conditions

attaching to them and that the grants will be received.

Government grants are recognised in profit or loss on
a systematic basis over the periods in which the Group
recognises as expenses the related costs for which the grants

are intended to compensate.

Government grants related to income that are receivable
as compensation for expenses or losses already incurred or
for the purpose of giving immediate financial support to the
Group with no future related costs are recognised in profit
or loss in the period in which they become receivable. Such

grants are presented under other income.

Non-current assets held for sale

Non-current assets are classified as held for sale if their carrying
amount will be recovered principally through a sale transaction
rather than through continuing use. This condition is regarded
as met only when the asset is available for immediate sale
in its present condition subject only to terms that are usual
and customary for sales of such asset and its sale is highly
probable. Management must be committed to the sale, which
should be expected to qualify for recognition as a completed

sale within one year from the date of classification.

Non-current assets classified as held for sale are measured at
the lower of their previous carrying amount and fair value less
costs to sell, except for financial assets within the scope of
HKFRS 9 which continue to be measured in accordance with

the accounting policies as set out in respective sections.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #& BB R M
For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE T -_=F+_-_A=+—HILFE

4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which are
described in Note 3, the management of the Group is required to
make judgments, estimates and assumptions about the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from
other sources. The estimates and underlying assumptions are based
on historical experience and other factors that are considered to be

relevant. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an
ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in
the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only
that period, or in the period of the revision and future periods if the

revision affects both current and future periods.

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The followings are the key assumptions concerning the future,
and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the
reporting period that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the

next financial year.

Fair value measurement of financial assets

As at 31 December 2023, the Group held unlisted equity securities
with carrying amount of approximately HK$195,680,000 (2022:
unlisted bond, suspended trading listed equity securities, unlisted
equity securities (including limited partnership) and structured
product with carrying amounts of approximately HK$1,396,000,
HK$115,438,000, HK$525,780,000 and HK$4,005,000
respectively). These financial instruments do not have a quoted

market price in an active market (“Unquoted Investments”).

Fair values of the Unquoted Investments were determined based on
significant unobservable inputs using valuation techniques. Judgment
and estimation are required in establishing the relevant valuation
techniques and the relevant inputs thereof. Changes in assumptions
relating to these factors could result in material adjustments to the

fair value of the Unquoted Investments. Details are set out in Note

5(0).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HEZE T =_=F+-_A=+—HIFE

4,

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (contd)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Cont'd)
Fair value of investment properties

The Group's investment properties are stated at fair value based
on the valuations performed by independent qualified professional
property valuers. In determining the fair value, the valuers have based
on methods of valuation which involve certain assumptions and
estimates. Independent external valuations were obtained in respect
of all of the portfolio of the Group, and also of the investment
properties held by its associates in order to support management's
estimates. In relying on the valuation reports, the management
of the Group has exercised its judgments and is satisfied that the
methods of valuation are reflective of the current market conditions,
as detailed in Note 19. Changes to these assumptions, including the
potential risk of any market violation, policy, geopolitical and social
changes or other unexpected incidents would result in changes
in the fair values of the Group's investment properties and the
investment properties held by its associates which were included in
the investments accounted for using the equity method as reported
in the consolidated statement of financial position. Corresponding
adjustments would be made, where appropriate, to the amount of
fair value gain or loss and share of results of investments accounted
for using the equity method reported in the consolidated statement

of comprehensive income.
As at 31 December 2023, the carrying amount of the Group's
investment properties was approximately HK$13,957,718,000

(2022: HK$13,369,124,000).

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(a) Categories of financial instruments
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Financial assets measured at fair value
through profit or loss

Financial assets measured at fair value
through other comprehensive income

Amortised cost

tHmas
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TESRT A

Financial liabilities
Amortised cost

Derivative financial instrument
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2023 2022
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FET
399,678 649,929
195,680 635,546
1,641,654 2,533,975
4,220,111 5,336,873
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5.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RE MR

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE T -_=F+_-_A=+—HILFE

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (contd)

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and policies

The Group's major financial instruments include equity
investments, investments held-for-trading, bonds, structured
product, derivative financial instrument, club and corporate
debentures, advances to/from associates/investee companies/
non-controlling shareholders, debtors, deposits and other
receivables, securities trading receivables and deposits,
pledged deposits, time deposits, bank balances and cash,
borrowings, creditors and accruals, securities trading and
margin payable, lease liabilities and deposits received. Details
of these financial instruments are disclosed in respective notes.
The risks associated with these financial instruments and the
policies on how to mitigate these risks are set out below.
The management of the Group manages and monitors these
exposures to ensure appropriate measures are implemented
on a timely and effective manner. There has been no change
to the Group's risk exposure relating to financial instruments or

the manner in which it manages and measures the risks.

Market risk

(i) Foreign currency risk

The Group is mainly exposed to foreign exchange
risk arising from future commercial transactions, and
from recognised assets and liabilities. The functional
currency of the Company and its major subsidiaries in
Hong Kong is HK$ in which most of the transactions
are denominated. The functional currencies of those
subsidiaries operating in the United Kingdom and the
PRC are Pound Sterling (“GBP") and Renminbi ("RMB")
respectively in which most of their transactions are
denominated. The Group is mainly exposed to foreign
exchange risk in respect of exchange fluctuations
of HK$ against GBP and RMB. The conversion of
RMB into other currencies is subject to the rules and
regulations of foreign exchange control promulgated by
the government of the PRC. The Group currently does
not have foreign currency hedging policy in respect of
foreign currency assets and liabilities. The Group will
monitor its foreign currency exposure closely and will
consider hedging significant foreign currency exposure

should the need arise.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #4&
For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE T -_=F+_A=+—HILtFE

ISR R MY EE

5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (contd) 5. ®MIAw
(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies (b) EREREEEERBEGE)
(Cont'd)

Market risk (Cont'd)

®

Foreign currency risk (Cont'd)

The Group's exposure to foreign currency risk on its
foreign currency denominated assets and liabilities at

the end of the reporting period is as follows:

Assets BE

United States dollar ("US$") EZM(E )]
GBP T

RMB AR
Liabilities afE

uss e

RMB AR

Sensitivity analysis

The following table details the Group's sensitivity to a
5% increase and decrease in HK$ against the relevant
foreign currencies. As HK$ is pegged to US$, it is
assumed that there would be no material currency risk
exposure between US$ and HK$ and therefore US$ is

excluded from the sensitivity analysis below.

5% is the sensitivity rate used when reporting foreign
currency risk internally to key management personnel
and represents management's assessment of the

reasonably possible change in foreign exchange rates.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RE MR

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE T -_=F+_-_A=+—HILFE

5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (contd)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Cont'd)

Market risk (Cont'd)

®

Foreign currency risk (Cont'd)
Sensitivity analysis (Cont'd)

The sensitivity analysis includes outstanding foreign
currency denominated monetary items, and adjusts their
translations at the end of the reporting period for a 5%
change in foreign currency rates. The sensitivity analysis
includes external loans where the denomination of the
loan is in a currency other than the functional currency
of the lender or the borrower; but excluding exposure
resulting from the translation of the financial statements
of foreign operations into the Group’s presentation

carrency.

A positive number below indicates an increase in profit
where the relevant currencies strengthen 5% against
HK$. For a 5% weakening of the relevant currencies
against HK$, there would be an equal and opposite

impact on the profit.

Impact of 2
GBP i
RVB AR

There would be no material impact on the Group's
other components of equity for the years ended
31 December 2023 and 2022.

The net effect of the Group's sensitivity to foreign
currency risk was attributable to the Group’s monetary
assets and liabilities with exposure to foreign currency

risk at the end of the reporting period.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 31 December 2023 HEZE T =_=F+-_A=+—HIFE

RE MR

5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (contd) 5. ®M I Aw
(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies (b) =REREREBZERICEE)
(Cont'd)
Market risk (Cont'd) 5 A B (&)
(i) Cash flow interest rate risk (i) e wENEER

The Group has variable-rate interest-bearing assets and
liabilities including time deposits, bank balances, sales
proceeds held by a third party and borrowings and is
therefore exposed to cash flow interest rate risk. Details
of these financial instruments are disclosed in respective
notes. The Group currently does not have interest
rate hedging policy. However, the management of the
Group monitors interest rate exposure and will consider
hedging significant interest rate exposure should the

need arise.

The Group's cash flow interest rate risk from its
variable rate borrowings is mainly concentrated on
the fluctuation of Hong Kong Interbank Offered Rate
("HIBOR"), compounded reference rate of banks or

costs of funds of a financial institution or a bank.

Sensitivity analysis

The following demonstrates the sensitivity to a
reasonable possible change in interest rates with all
other variables held constant, of the Group's profit
before tax (through the impact of floating rates in time
deposits, bank balances, sales proceeds held by a third

party and borrowings).

If the floating rates had been 50 basis points higher/
lower, with all other variables held constant, the Group's
profit before tax for the year ended 31 December
2023 would decrease/increase by approximately
HK$14,024,000 (2022: HK$14,048,000). This was
mainly attributable to the Group's exposure to interest

rates on its variable-rate borrowings.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (contd)

RE MR

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE T -_=F+_-_A=+—HILFE

5.

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies

(Cont'd)
Market risk (Cont'd)
(i) Cash flow interest rate risk (Cont'd)

Sensitivity analysis (Cont'd)

There would be no material impact on the Group's

other components of equity for the years ended

31 December 2023 and 2022.

@iii)  Price risk

The Group's investments classified as financial assets

measured at FVTPL and financial assets measured at

FVTOCI which are measured at fair value at the end of

each reporting period and expose the Group to price

risk. At the end of the reporting period, the Group held

investments in certain high yield and fixed-rate bonds.

High yield bonds are bonds that are typically rated

below investment grade or are unrated and therefore

are generally more vulnerable to economic cycles as

they typically fall more in value than investment grade

bonds given higher default risk and higher investors

risk adversity. For bonds with fixed-rate coupons, they

are more susceptible to fluctuations in interest rates. As

interest rates move upward, the value of the bonds will

generally fall. Furthermore, the longer the tenor of the

bonds, the more sensitive they will be to interest rate

changes.

The management of the Group manages this exposure

by maintaining a portfolio of investments with different

risk profiles. In addition, the Group has appointed a

specific team to monitor the price risk and will consider

hedging the risk exposure should the need arise.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %R & B # 8k M &

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HEZE T =_=F+-_A=+—HIFE

5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (contd)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Cont'd)

Market risk (Cont'd)
(iii)  Price risk (Cont'd)
Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analysis below has been determined
based on the exposure to price risk at the end of the

reporting period.

If prices had been 5% higher/lower, the Group’s
profit before tax for the year ended 31 December
2023 would increase/decrease by approximately
HK$19,989,000 (2022: HK$32,496,000). This was due
to the changes in fair value of financial assets measured

at FVTPL and derivative financial instrument.

If prices had been 5% higher/lower, the Group's other
components of equity for the year ended 31 December
2023 would increase/decrease by approximately
HK$9,784,000 (2022: HK$31,777,000) as a result of
the changes in fair value of financial assets measured at
FVTOCL.

Credit risk

The Group's maximum exposure to credit risk in the event of
the counterparties’ failure to perform their obligations as at
31 December 2023 in relation to each class of recognised
financial assets is the carrying amounts of those assets as
stated in the consolidated statement of financial position. The
Group's time deposits and bank balances are deposited with
banks of high credit quality in Hong Kong, Mainland China and

overseas.
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5.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RE MR

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE T -_=F+_-_A=+—HILFE

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (contd)

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Cont'd)

Credit risk (Cont'd)

The Group made transactions with counterparties with
acceptable credit quality in conformance to the Group's
treasury policies to minimise credit exposure. Acceptable
credit ratings from reputable credit rating agencies and scrutiny
of financials for non-rated counterparties are two important
criteria in the selection of counterparties. The credit quality of
counterparties will be closely monitored over the life of the
transaction. The Group reviews its financial counterparties
periodically in order to reduce credit risk concentrations relative

to the underlying size and credit strength of each counterparty.

In an attempt to forestall adverse market movement, the
Group also monitors potential exposures to each financial
institution counterparty. In addition, the Group reviews the
recoverable amount of each individual debt at the end of the
reporting period to ensure that adequate allowance for credit
losses are made for irrecoverable amounts. In this regard, the
Directors consider that the Group's credit risk is significantly

reduced.

The Group applies the simplified approach to provide for ECLs
prescribed by HKFRS 9, which permits the use of the lifetime
ECL provision for trade receivables. To measure the ECLs,
trade receivables have been grouped based on shared credit
risk characteristics. The Group has performed historical analysis
and identified the key economic variables impacting credit
risk and ECL, and also considers the available reasonable and

supportive forward-looking information.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HEZE T =_=F+-_A=+—HIFE

5.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (contd)

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Cont'd)

Credit risk (Cont'd)

As at 31 December 2023, trade receivables that are
individually significant have been separately assessed for
impairment, after taking into consideration, the background
and reputation of the customers, historical settlement records
and past experiences at the end of each reporting period. The
Group makes periodic assessments on the recoverability of the
trade receivables by using a provision matrix to measure ECL.
The provision rates are based on days past due for groupings
of various customer segments with similar financial strength
and any disputes with the debtors. The calculation reflects
reasonable and supportable information that is available at
the reporting date about past events, current conditions and
forecasts of future economic conditions. For the year ended
31 December 2023, no (2022: approximately HK$1,000)
allowance for credit losses in respect of trade receivables was
recognised in the consolidated statement of comprehensive

income. Details are set out in Note 30.

For interest receivables from bonds and structured product,
the Group makes periodic individual assessment on the
recoverability of each bond and structured product based on
their respective historical settlement records and credit rating
of the respective issuer. As at 31 December 2023 and 2022,
certain bond issuers had defaulted their payment and/or
were in severe financial difficulty and the Group considered
the amounts were irrecoverable. The Group assessed and
measured these amounts based on lifetime ECL and no (2022:
approximately HK$11,156,000) provision were made in
respect of these receivables for the year ended 31 December
2023. The interest receivables from bonds of approximately
HK$4,665,000 (2022: remaining interest receivables
from bonds and structured product of approximately
HK$2,791,000) were assessed based on 12m ECL and no
provision were made for the year ended 31 December 2023
(2022: nil).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RE MR

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE T -_=F+_-_A=+—HILFE

5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (contd)

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Cont'd)

Credit risk (Cont'd)

For all other receivables, the Group measures the loss
allowance equal to 12m ECL and assessed individually, unless
when there has been a significant increase in credit risk since
initial recognition, the Group recognises lifetime ECL. The
assessment of whether lifetime ECL should be recognised
is based on significant increases in the likelihood or risk of a

default occurring since initial recognition.

The credit quality of the advances to related parties has been
assessed with reference to historical information about the
default rates and financial position of the counterparties. These
balances were assessed individually based on 12m ECL. For
the year ended 31 December 2023, reversal of allowance
for credit losses, net of approximately HK$7,326,000 (2022:
allowance for credit losses of HK$7,421,000) was recognised

in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #r& B R M &L
For the year ended 31 December 2023 HEZE T =_=F+-_A=+—HIFE

5.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (contd)

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Cont'd)

Credit risk (Cont'd)

Investments in bonds are limited to financial institutions or
investment counterparties with high quality. When making
decisions on investments in bonds, the management of
the Group has also made reference to the credit ratings
of the issuers and guarantors (if any) which, however,
are not an assurance as to the issuers’ and/or guarantors’
creditworthiness or the risks, returns or suitability of the bonds.
Risks in particular specific to certain types of bonds held by
the Group are: (i) high yield bonds — they in general carry
high credit risk as they are often subject to higher risk of issuer
default as they are typically rated below investment grade or
are unrated; (ii) perpetual bonds — their coupon payments
may be deferred or suspended subject to the terms and
conditions of the bonds and they are often callable after a
call protection period (related risk is detailed in the liquidity
risk below); and (iii) contingent convertible bonds — issued
by financial institutions that are deeply subordinated in the
capital structure, typically Tier 1 or Tier 2 securities. The key
characteristic of contingent convertible bonds is that the
issuer can either write off the principal amount or convert it
to shares without causing a default on the bond. There could
be a specific hard capital ratio trigger or declaration of non-
viability event by the regulator for the write off or conversion
to equity to happen. The Group may be exposed to a higher
issuer credit risk and may experience substantial losses or
lose the entire value of investment as a result of a trigger
event. Other than the above, there may be additional risks
associated with trading of bonds over-the-counter (“OTC")
because OTC transactions are generally subject to limited
regulation and therefore less transparent in transaction details
such as volume, price formation, etc. There may also be
additional risks for investments located in an emerging market
which may involve certain risks associated with political and
economic uncertainty. In view of the specific risks above, the
Group has appointed the specific team as disclosed in Note

5(b)(iii) above to closely monitor the risks.
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5.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RE MR

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE T -_=F+_-_A=+—HILFE

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (contd)

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Cont'd)

Credit risk (Cont'd)

The credit risk for pledged deposits, time deposits, bank
balances and deposits with clearing house are insignificant
because the counterparties are banks and clearing house with

high credit ratings.

The Group's concentration of credit risk by geographical
location is mainly in Hong Kong, Europe and Mainland China.
The Group also monitors regularly to avoid over-concentration
(such as investment products and underlying foreign

exchange, etc.) of the investment portfolio.

Liquidity risk

Certain bonds held by the Group carried fixed-rate coupon are
accompanied with call rights, the issuers may call and redeem
the bonds early if interest rates fall. The Group may face
reinvestment risk when issuers exercised its right to redeem
the bond before it matures. Besides, some bonds may not
have an active secondary market. In case of the market in
which the bonds are traded is illiquid, the Group may run the
risk of either having to retain the investment until the end of

the term or selling it before maturity at an unfavourable price.

The Group manages liquidity risk by maintaining adequate
bank deposits and cash, monitoring forecast and actual cash
flows and matching the maturity profiles of financial assets and

financial liabilities.

The liquidity risk is under continuous monitoring by the
management of the Group. Reports with maturity dates
of bank borrowings and thus the liquidity requirement
are provided to the management of the Group for review
periodically. The management of the Group will contact the

bankers for renewals of bank borrowings whenever necessary.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %R & B # 8k M &

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HEZE T =_=F+-_A=+—HIFE

5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (contd) 5.

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Cont'd)

Liquidity risk (Cont'd)

The following tables detail the Group’s remaining contractual
maturity for its non-derivative financial liabilities based on the
agreed repayment terms. The tables have been drawn up
based on the undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities
based on the earliest date on which the Group can be

required to pay. The tables include both interest and principal

cash flows.

Weighted
average
effective
interest rate
MELH
BRA%

Non-derivative financial liabilities Fricepas
Borrowings f&& 6.58%
Lease liabilities HEaR 4.81%
Creditors and accruals JERRE R e FUR -
Securties trading and margin payable EREFXHEERRER -
Deposits received Blae -
Amounts due to associates REMENFNE -
Amounts due to investee companies REEIRERAFTE -

Amounts due to non-controlling shareholders R & FHERRRIE -

Total am
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(b) ¢REAREEEERKEE

REBELEE(E)

TRANAEEFTESRABRGE
BRGERZBTENINHRER - KKRTY
BRASEAHERNRZ &F A HARE
CRAEBZAMARSARERY P
BRMEEAEZHASRE -

At 31 December 2023
R=BZ=E+-A=1-H

Ondemand ~ More than Total Total
orwithin ~ 1yearbut undiscounted carrying
1year within 5years  cash flows amount

BER  -FUEE  AEERE
d-FR  FRALF RERE REBAR
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TiEn TiEn TiEn TiEn

2,423,434 1,871,842 4,295,276 3,851,848

46,040 39,450 85,490 81,959
182,939 = 182,939 182,939
6,963 = 6,963 6,963
60,811 = 60,811 60,811
= 21,431 21,431 21,431

= 13,885 13,885 13,885

= 275 275 275

2,720,187 1,946,883 4,667,070 4,220,111




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE T -_=F+_-_A=+—HILFE

5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (contd)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies

(Cont'd)

Liquidity risk (Cont'd)

Non-derivative financial liabilities
Borrowings

Lease liabilities

Creditors and accruals

Securities trading and margin payable
Deposits received

Amounts due to associates

Amounts due to investee companies

Amounts due to non-controlling shareholders

Total

it eRAR

L

HEaE
TEMIRIE R AT HUR

B EARFRERRES
BliRE
REBERTFA
REEZBREDAFA
REFERBRFE

R

5.

Weighted
average
effective
interest rate
METH
ERF%

5.32%
4.23%

R T AEw

RE MR

(b) =HEAMREERERBEE)

mEBELmE(E)

At 31 December 2022

On demand More than Total Total
or within 1yearbut  undiscounted carying
Tyear  within 5 years cash flows amount
RER  —EUER AERRE
A-Fn  THEALF nERE  REELH
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FEr FEr TERT TERL
2890672 2436342 5327014 4886932
38,252 55,330 93,582 88,576
245,191 - 245,191 245,191
9,809 - 9,809 9,809
56,863 - 56,863 56,863
- 34579 34579 34579
- 14,648 14,648 14,648
- 275 275 275
3240787 2541174 5781961 5336873
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #r& B R M &L
For the year ended 31 December 2023 HEZE T =_=F+-_A=+—HIFE

5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (contd)

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Cont'd)

Liquidity risk (Cont'd)

In addition to the items as set out in the above liquidity risk
tables, the maximum amount the Group could be required to
settle under (i) financial guarantee provided by the Group in
respect of a banking facility utilised by an investee company
and (ii) indemnity given to a third party in relation to an
investee company is approximately HK$613,830,000 (2022:
HK$613,830,000) in aggregate, if such amount is claimed
by the counterparties to the guarantee or indemnity at any
time within the guaranteed or indemnity period. Details of the

guarantee and indemnity are set out in Note 42.

Secured bank borrowings with repayment on demand clause
are included in the “On demand or within 1 year” time band
of maturity analysis in the above liquidity risk tables. At the end
of the reporting period, the total undiscounted cash flow of the
borrowings amounted to approximately HK$1,031,738,000
(2022: HK$1,757,192,000). Taking into account the Group's
financial position, the Directors do not believe that it is
probable that the banks and financial institution will exercise
their discretionary rights to demand immediate repayment.
The Directors believe that such borrowings will be repaid in
accordance with the scheduled repayment dates as set out in
the loan agreements, details of which are set out in the tables

below (include both interest and principal cash flows).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #& BB R M
For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE T -_=F+_-_A=+—HILFE

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (contd) 5. T Eu
(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies (b) LREREEEZERBEGE)
(Cont'd)
Liquidity risk (Cont'd) HEELEE(E)
Maturity analysis — secured bank borrowings with repayment BT — W IR ERIEE RS Z BA
on demand clause based on scheduled repayments FRIRTTIE B2 B TEEZH

At 31 December 2023

R-B-=£+-A=t-A
More than Total Total
Within 1 year but Over undiscounted carrying
1year within 5 years 5years  cash flows amount
—£iE AERRE

—-fR EFBALF BEAE RERE REELE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TiEn TEn TiEn TiEn TiEn

Non-derivative financial liability FTESRER
Borrowings EE 641,988 124,022 265728 1,031,738 887,654
At 31 December 2022
R-B-_%+-A=1-H
More than Total Total
Within 1 year but Over  undiscounted canying
1year  within 5 years 5 years cash flows amount
—ENE AERRE
—FR (ETRERE RENE nELE REELH
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEL TEL TEL TEL TEL
Non-derivative financial liability FHiteRasE
Borrowings (E 275,627 783,256 698309 1757192 1,469,574
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #r& B R M &L
For the year ended 31 December 2023 HEZE T =_=F+-_A=+—HIFE

5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (contd)

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and policies

(Cont'd)

Liquidity risk (Cont'd)

The following tables detail the Group’s remaining contractual

maturity for its derivative financial instruments.

Derivative financial liability

Future contracts

g

TESHEas

&
pily
o)
2F

As at 31 December 2022, it had been drawn up based on

the undiscounted gross cash inflows and outflows on the

derivatives that require gross settlements. For cash flows

denominated in currency other than HK$, the prevailing foreign

exchange rate at the end of the reporting period was used to

convert the cash flows into HK$.

Derivative financial asset
Derivative gross settlement
Cross currency swap

Inflow

Outflow
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5. EM T HEm
(b) =REREREBZERICEE)
mEEL R (E)
TRAJREBTESRIARTEH
Yz BER -
At 31 December 2023
R-B-=#%+-A=t-H
Total Total
Within undiscounted carrying
1 year cash flows amount
AERRE
—FR RERHE REELSE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THR TER TERr
99 99 99

RZBZZF+-A=+—H " &

ATAFE
Ziﬁi/mi ’

ZReREER AT

At 31 December 2022
RZEBZZF+ZA=+—H

R BRE 2 RBFIRIB SR A
Emtagamel o LB TAINE
RREARE R 2 EE K

BEtE

Total

Within undiscounted

1 year cash flows
AERKRE

—ER mE R
HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TET
1,154,542 1,154,542
(1,154,053) (1,154,053)

Total

carrying
amount

EEEAR

HK$'000
TAT

1,250




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RE MR

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE T -_=F+_-_A=+—HILFE

5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (contd)

O]

Fair value measurements

Financial instruments measured at fair value

The following table analysed the financial instruments which

are measured at fair value at the end of the reporting period

into the three-level hierarchy.

Financial assets

tREE

Suspended trading listed equity securities
presented as financial assets measured
at FVT0Cl (note (1))

2IABAEMEARGEIRRATE
B ERERCEREE FARA
7 ()

Bonds presented as financial assets
measured at FVTPL

I RBRERNRBATEHEZ
eRHEEZES

Unlisted bond presented as financial assets
measured at FVTPL

ZIABRERNRBATESEL
SREE I LTES

Listed investments held-for-trading
presented as financial assets measured
at FVTPL

2IABRERNRBATENEY
EREEZBEEE LTRE

Suspended trading listed equity securities
presented as financial assets measured
at FVTPL (note (7))

ZIABRERNRBATESEL
CREECERER [TRAZS
(BEEG))

Fair value

AYE
2023 2022
HK$'000 HK$'000
TR THET
- 109,766
153,963 253,117
- 1,396
188,545 328,339
- 5672

5. T HEew

() 2AFEFE

URAFPEGTEZEMTA

Fair value Valuation techniques
hierarchy and key inputs

1%

ARE BERARIEYE
level 3 Market approach
= THEAA

Quoted prices in active markets

Level 1
F-  EEMSIHE

Market approach
LYk

Quoted prices in active markets

Level 1
F—h  EEMSIHE

Level 3
=8

Market approach
AR

TEIC-FFR

TRARBEMRURATEHAEZSH
TAZ =D EHIDHT -

Significant unobservable inputs

EXKUBERE

2022: Change in share prices of comparable
companies of -37.29% during the
suspension period (note (ii))

“ECCE NEGEEHEAMLRATL
BRipE1RE 8 A-37.29E (Fi (i)

2022: Discount for lack of marketability of 21.24%
(note (ii))

TRoCERERSRBENEE
(GEI0)

N/A
TER

2022: Expected recovery ratio of 4.19% (note (iil))
ST CF AT E Y 4.1 9 (R E (i)

N/A
TER

2022: Change in share prices of comparable
companies ranging from -33.74% to -27.51%
during the suspension period (note (i)

“ECCE NEGERAEAMLRLTZ
R EREBNT-33T4EE27518
(B (i)

2022: Discount for lack of marketability ranging
from 16.76% to 18.65% (note (ii))

“ECCE REmSRBMLNENT
16.76/2 2 18,652 (M3 (i)

EABEEE



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE T -_=F+_A=+—HILtFE

RE MR

5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (contd) 5. €T e
(c) Fair value measurements (Cont'd) () 2LFEFEE)

Financial instruments measured at fair value (Cont'd) URFEFEZZ@MTAGE)

Financial assets (Cont)
tHER(Z)

Structured product and derivative financial
instrument presented as financial assets
measured at FVTPL

2 RBRBRNRBRATEHEY
CREECABUERRITESRIA

— Equity linked note

Fair value Valuation techniques

Fair value hierarchy and key inputs Significant unobservable inputs
NYE
NYE ARE FERRRTIEYE EXFTERYE
2023 2022
HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TAT

4,005 Levgl 3

Monte Carlo simulation model

2022: Equity growth rate (weekly) ranging from

- REANZE =R FHFELEES 0.0139% to 0.036%, volatiity (weekly) ranging
from 7.947% to 12.596% and discount rate of
1.89% (ote (iv))
ST E RRRRE(EENT003EE
0036 * KIB(BE)NF7.947EZ1259E
IARBREE R 1,89 (Fi3E (iv)
— Cross currency swap - 1250  Llevel2  Discounted cash flow: based onspot ~ N/A
- EHES F2H and forward exchange rates and TER
yield curves of the currency
BRRENE  REEBL
B REBER R a kR
Club and corporate debentures presentedas 57,170 56,150  Level2  Market comparison N/A
financial assets measured at FVTPL & WHZLBREE TER
EiREBRENRRATENEL
ERHEEZBRERRARS
Unlisted equity securities presented as 195,680 525780  Level 3 Discounted cash flow: forecast Forecast distribution taking into account
financial assets measured at FVTOCI F=i distribution, discount rate and management's experience and the estimated
2 ABBEM2ANENRBATE contract terms (if any) terminal value (note (v))
HEZEREEF ITRAES BRRERE  BHZHR BHNzORN2RERERRRMHZ
BREXREDER(0F) SREEMEW)
Discount rates ranging from 13.99% to 24.51%
(2022: 14.95% to 24.64%) (note (v))
URENT13.99EZE2451E
(ZZZZF 1 1495BR2464E) (7))
Reference to the fair value of the Fair value of the underlying property based on
underlying property valuation model (note (v))
2ZRBNZZATE ERMEEEAETRENE 2 D TER)
Net asset value (note (vi)) N/A
EREHE ) TER
595358 1285475
Financial liability
SREE
Derivative financial instrument
{TEERIA
— Future contracts 99 - level T Quoted prices in active markets N/A
-B5A0 - EETHIRE TER
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RE MR

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE T -_=F+_-_A=+—HILFE

5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (contd)

O]

Fair value measurements (Cont'd)

Finan

Notes:

@

(i)

(iil)

()

v)

(vi)

cial instruments measured at fair value (Cont'd)

During the year ended 31 December 2022, trading in
shares of certain listed equity securities had been halted
and remained suspended as at 31 December 2022.
As at 31 December 2022, the fair values of suspended
trading listed equity securities at FVTOCI and at FVTPL were
determined by reference to the valuation carried out by an
independent qualified professional valuer.

The higher the change in share prices of comparable
companies during the suspension period, the higher the fair
value. The higher the discount for lack of marketability, the
lower the fair value.

The higher the expected recovery ratio, the higher the fair
value.

The higher the equity growth rate, the higher the fair value.
The higher the equity volatility and discount rate, the lower
the fair value.

The higher the forecast distribution, estimated terminal
value or fair value of the underlying property, the higher the
fair value. The higher the discount rate, the lower the fair
value.

The Group has determined that the net asset value
represents the fair value at the end of the reporting period.

5.

(c)

£/ T A

Jui)

HUAFEFEZLBTAE)

GEX

@

(i)

(iii)

()

v)

(vi)

REBE_T-_—_F+=-_A=+—H
WHFE - BT EMRAFESZBRD
EEERELIEEIYR _E-_—_F+=
A=Z+—HEEEEFES - N=F
—_—H+-—A=+—8 BBHEM
2HEWRZARBRAFERBBEDR
URBAFEZEEEE FMRA
BEZATFEDNZEZRBIAER
BEHEMETZEEMET °

REFEESAMAHELBRARZK

BREEESEE  ATFELES - 5
EMSRRMTRES  ATEY

15 -

BHA R RS A FES

S

REERELE  ATELE o K
TR REREME  AFEM
{5 -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HEZE T =_=F+-_A=+—HIFE

5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (contd)

O]

Fair value measurements (Cont'd)

Financial instruments measured at fair value (Cont'd)

The Group's policy is to recognise transfers into and out of fair
value hierarchy levels as at the date of the events or changes
in circumstances that caused the transfer. During the year
ended 31 December 2022, certain listed equity securities
were transferred from Level 1 to Level 3, which was due
to the suspension of trading of such listed equity securities
and remained suspended as at 31 December 2022. The
Group recognised the transfer into Level 3 as at the date
of suspension. During the year ended 31 December 2023,
such listed equity securities resumed trading and transfer
out from Level 3. Except the above, there were no other
transfers amongst Level 1, Level 2 and Level 3 in the fair value
hierarchy during the years ended 31 December 2023 and
2022.

The fair value of financial instruments traded in active markets
is based on quoted market prices at the end of each reporting
period. A market is regarded as active if quoted prices are
readily and regularly available from an exchange, dealer,
broker, industry group, pricing service, or regulatory agency,
and those prices represent actual and regularly occurring
market transactions on an arm’s length basis. The quoted
market price used for financial assets held by the Group is the

current bid price. These instruments are included in Level 1.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RE MR

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE T -_=F+_-_A=+—HILFE

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (contd)

O]

Fair value measurements (Cont'd)

Financial instruments measured at fair value (Cont'd)

The movement during the years in the balances of Level 3 fair

value measurement is as follows:

At 1 January 2022

Transfer from Level 1

Purchases during the year

Disposals during the year

Net return of capital contribution
during the year

Net loss arising from change in

fair value

At 31 December 2022

Transfer out to Level 1

Purchases during the year

Disposals during the year

Net return of capital contribution
during the year

Net loss arising from change in

fair value

At 31 December 2023

RZZZZ%-A-H
BREE-A
REREA
RERTE
RERERTE L
W EE
ATESMELL
BEFE

RZZEZZF+ZA=1-H
E RS
REREA
REREE
RERNERTEL
i
ATELBMELL
BRTE

R-Z-=%+-F=1-H

5. €@ T B
() 2AFEFEME
URFEFFEZZ/MTAE)
FE-RAFEFAEEHNFRZEZHNM
T
Structured
Suspended Suspended  product and
trading trading derivative
listed equity listed equity financial ~ Unlisted equity
securities  Unlisted bond securities instrument securities
presentedas  presentedas  presentedas  presentedas  presented as
financial assets financial assets financial assets financial assets financial assets
measuredat  measured at measured at measured at measured at
FVTOCI FVTPL FVTPL FVTPL FVTOCI
2IRER 2IAREB 2IRER 2IAEB
Hiv2ERE 2IARB BRURM BRiRE  Ht2EkE
URBAYE BRRH AYEE DYEHE  URBAYE
TEZEREE AVEHE ZERMEE ZEREE GTEZER
ZEEEE LEREE ZEBEE zEBtERR EEZFELT
LHBAESE zELTEHF  LARARE  fTESRIA RAES
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T FHL FET FEL FEL
(note (i) (note (ii)) (note (ii)) (note (ii)) (note (i)
(GED) GEIO) (GED) GED) GEO)!
- 28,037 - 6,340 1,527,466
223,598 - 9,479 - -
- - - 21,000 -
- - - (23,266) -
- - - - (36019)
(113832) (26,641) (3,807) (569) (965,667)
109,766 1,396 5,672 4,005 525,780
(109,766) - (5.672) £ =
- - - 9,812 -
- - - (12,965) -
- - - - (265,451)
= (1,396) = (852) (64,649)
- - - - 195,680
—zo=f5% gABx£E 203



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %R & B # 8k M &

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE T -_=F+_A=+—HILtFE

5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (contd)

(c) Fair value measurements (Cont'd)

Financial instruments measured at fair value (Cont'd)

Notes:

(i)  The loss included in other comprehensive income for the
relevant years related to suspended trading listed equity
securities at FVTOCI and unlisted equity securities at FVTOCI
held at the end of the reporting periods are reported as
changes of financial assets measured at FVTOCI reserve.

(i)  The loss included in profit or loss for the relevant years
related to unlisted bond at FVTPL, suspended trading listed
equity securities at FVTPL and structured product and
derivative financial instrument at FVTPL held at the end of
the reporting periods are reported as investment expenses.

Financial instruments not measured at fair value
The Directors consider that the carrying amounts of the

Group’s financial instruments that are not measured at fair

value approximate to their fair values.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RE MR

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE T -_=F+_-_A=+—HILFE

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group's primary objectives when managing capital are to
safeguard the abilities of the entities in the Group to continue
as a going concern, so that it can continue to provide returns for
shareholders of the Company and benefits for other stakeholders, by
pricing products and services commensurately with the level of risk

and by securing access to finance at a reasonable cost.

The Directors actively and regularly review and manage the Group's
capital structure to maximise the returns to shareholders of the
Company through the optimisation of the debt afforded by a sound
capital position, and make adjustments to the capital structure in
light of changes in economic conditions. The Group's overall strategy

remains unchanged from 2022.

As at 31 December 2023, the capital structure of the Group mainly
consists of debts, which include borrowings from banks and a
financial institution, lease liabilities, pledged deposits, time deposits,
bank balances and cash, and total equity, comprising issued share
capital, reserves, retained profits and non-controlling interests. The
Directors consider the cost of capital and the risks associated with
each class of capital to monitor its capital structure on the basis of
a gearing ratio. The Group has a target gearing ratio not higher than
50%, determined as the proportion of net debt to equity. This ratio
is expressed by as a percentage of net debt over the total equity. Net
debt is calculated as total borrowings and lease liabilities (as shown
in the consolidated statement of financial position) less cash and

bank balances and pledged deposits.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #r& B R M &L
For the year ended 31 December 2023 HEZE T =_=F+-_A=+—HIFE

6. CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT (contd) 6.

The gearing ratios were as follows:

Borrowings — current (note (i))
Borrowings — non-current (note (i))
Lease liabilities — current (note (ii))

Lease liabilities — non-current (note (ii))

Total debt
Less: Cash and bank balances and

pledged deposits (note (iii))

Net debt
(total debt less cash and bank balances

and pledged deposits)

Net debt

Less: Securities investments and

treasury products (note (iv))

Net debt
(net debt less securities investments and

treasury products)

Total equity (note (v))

Net debt to equity ratio
(excluding securities investments and

treasury products)

Net debt to equity ratio
(including securities investments and

treasury products)

ﬁ$@l@%"f¥f
EREEBLEMT
2023 2022
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHxT FHET
B8 - mEE (FEEd) 2,191,525 2,681,151
&8 - FEREIEE HFE®)) 1,660,323 2,205,781
HEEE - meEE (FIFEdG)) 43,275 35,332
HEEE - IERB ML (FFEG)) 38,684 53,244
BB 3,933,807 4,975,508
B R MIRTTHE SRR
ewaics NG E=(D)) (745,157) (2,186,593)
B FRE
(ERERIRE RIBITHES
A R RF ) 3,188,650 2,788,915
[T 3,188,650 2,788,915
B BHEEER
B & 2 (MR (v) (342,409) (702,295)
B 55
(BB FBEREFRER
MEEM) 2,846,241 2,086,620
A& A A 2 4 58 (TR (V) 14,235,101 14,002,843
B F RS R
(TEREEHFRER
MEEM) 22.4% 19.9%
B F R AN S &
(BREBHFEER
MEEmM) 20.0% 14.9%
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RE MR

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE T -_=F+_-_A=+—HILFE

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT (contd)

Notes:
(i)  Borrowings are detailed in Note 35.
(i) Lease liabilities are detailed in Note 21(b).

(i)  Cash and bank balances and pledged deposits comprise time
deposits, bank balances and cash and pledged deposits at the end
of the reporting period.

(iv)  Securities investments and treasury products comprise securities
investments and treasury products as detailed in Notes 25(i), (i),
26(i) and a derivative financial instrument under current liabilities
(2022: also included structured product included in Note 25(iii)).

(v)  Total equity includes issued share capital, reserves, retained profits
and non-controlling interests at the end of the reporting period.

The increase in net debt to equity ratio was mainly due to the

increase in net debt.

In relation to brokerage business, Fair Eagle Finance Credit Limited,
Fair Eagle Futures Company Limited and Fair Eagle Securities
Company Limited, three wholly-owned subsidiaries of the Company,
are required to maintain financial resources in accordance with
the specified amount requirements that apply to them under the
Securities and Futures Ordinance imposed by Securities and Futures
Commission. The requirements are internally reviewed on a daily
basis and reports are required to submit to Securities and Futures

Commission monthly. Full compliance is observed during the year.

Save as disclosed above, neither the Company nor any of its

subsidiaries are subject to externally imposed capital requirements.
REVENUE

Revenue represents the aggregate amounts of commission from
brokerage, settlement charges from brokerage, cosmetics goods sold
less returns, building and property management services income,
amounts received and receivable from property rental income,
interest income from bonds and structured products, dividend
income from listed and unlisted equity investments and gain on

sales of investments held-for-trading. Revenue is analysed as follows:
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #r& B R M &L
For the year ended 31 December 2023 HEZE T =_=F+-_A=+—HIFE

7. REVENUE (contd) 7. WA
2023 2022
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FAET
Revenue from contracts with customers: HESAEH A
Recognised on a point in time basis R — 5 35 2 B E A7
Brokerage and cosmetics income D RS R AL i R EEE WA 14,107 15,647
Recognised on over time basis R — BB E] A, B2EHR
Building and property management BFRMEERRBHA
services income 51,694 52,038
65,801 67,685
Revenue from other sources: HM2RZ A -
Property rental income MERSKA 257,223 293,650
Interest income from B YA
— bonds (note (i) - AGELO) 8,850 21,054
— structured products (note (i)) - B E S (BEEEG)) 253 972
9,103 22,026
Dividend income from A& B UA
— listed equity investments (note (i) - ERRARE (HEEG)) 5,053 8,247
— unlisted equity investments (note (ii)) — JE E R ARG & (M RE()) 76,600 1,014,750
81,653 1,022,997
Gain on sales of investments held-for-trading HEFIEEE 2 E WE 65,809 28,632
413,788 1,367,305
Total revenue LN X 479,589 1,434,990
Notes: Bt e
(i)  The interest income from bonds and structured products and i)y EERBEEMERZAEBANUR ETR

(i)

dividend income from listed equity investments were derived from

financial assets measured at FVTPL.

The dividend income from unlisted equity investments was (i)
derived from financial assets measured at FVTOCI.

BE o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #& BB R M
For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE T -_=F+_-_A=+—HILFE

OPERATING SEGMENTS

The Group determines its operating segments based on the reports
reviewed by the chief operating decision-makers that are used to

make strategic decisions.

The Group has six reportable segments — (i) property development
and trading; (ii) property leasing for retail; (iii) property leasing for
non-retail; (iv) listed equity investments at FVTOCI; (v) investments
and treasury products at FVTPL; and (vi) unlisted investments,
investment holding and brokerage, and the remaining businesses
of the Group grouped under all other segments. The segmentations
are based on the information about the operations of the Group that
management of the Group uses to make decisions.

Principal activities are as follows:
Property development and — Property development and sales of
trading trading properties
Property leasing

— Retail - Property leasing from retail
properties
— Non-retail - Property leasing from non-retail

properties
Listed equity investments ~ —  Listed equity securities at FVTOCI
at FVTOCI
Investments and treasury  —  Securities investments in
products at FVTPL investments held-for-trading, OTC
trading and structured products
Unlisted investments, — Unlisted securities investments,
investment holding and trading and brokerage
brokerage
All other segments — Cosmetics distribution and trading,
provision of building and property

management services and others

The Group evaluates performance on the basis of profit or loss from
operations after tax expense and non-controlling interests but not
including the major non-cash items. The major non-cash items are
unrealised fair value changes on investment properties and other

properties together with, if applicable, their respective deferred tax.

No operating segments have been aggregated in arriving at the six

reportable segments described above.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #r& B R M &L
For the year ended 31 December 2023 HEZE T =_=F+-_A=+—HIFE

8.

OPERATING SEGMENTS (contd)

Unallocated corporate assets mainly comprised land and building for
own use, right-of-use assets, deferred tax assets and tax recoverable

(2022: also included derivative financial instrument).

Unallocated corporate liabilities mainly comprised tax liabilities, bank
borrowings, amounts due to associates, amounts due to investee
companies, amounts due to non-controlling shareholders, lease

liabilities and deferred tax liabilities.

The Group's reportable segments are strategic business units that
operate different activities. They are managed separately because
each business unit has different markets and requires different

marketing strategies.

Further, the business units are also managed to operate in different
countries separately. Revenue and results are attributed to countries

on the basis of the property or asset location.

There was no major customer who individually accounted for 10% or
more of the Group's revenue during the years ended 31 December
2023 and 2022.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #& BB R M
For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE T -_=F+_-_A=+—HILFE

UaNE - JYN
]J ﬁE LA )
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IS
T

OPERATING SEGMENTS (contd) 8.

Operating segment information is presented below: EENEEMENWT :

Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income REREREBR
For the year ended 31 December 2023 BE-—E-——HF+—f=+—HIEE
Unlisted
) Listed  Investments investments,
Property Property leasing equity  and treasury investment
development hRER investments products  holding and All other
and trading Retail Non-retail at FuTocl at FVTPL brokerage segments  Consolidated
BREM2E ERER
W R NURB  FLmRE-
NERE NFEZ APEZ REZRR k]
REE 28 ¥BE  LORERE RERMEER BRRHY AR G&
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THR THR TER TR TER FER THT TER
Major cash items excluding WANSDZEEREER
in revenue
- Hong Kong -Eh - - - 14,662 328217 - - 31,879
- Other countries - B ER - - - - 490974 - - 490974
- - - 44,662 819,191 - - 863,853
Revenue WA
Dividend and interest income and RERMEBAR
gain on sales of investments HEREEEL
held-for-trading REkE
- Hong Kong -&R 76,000 - - - 17,255 - 600 93,855
- Other countries - BfBIR - - - - 62,710 - - 62,710
Revenue from exteral customers REMERZIA
- Hong Kong -E% - 30,525 121,433 - - 3,092 62,769 217,759
- United Kingdom -5E - 31,613 73,652 - - - - 105,265
76,000 62,138 195,085 - 79,965 3,032 63,369 479,589
Revenue (excluding dividend income A (MEERREENR
from segments of property NEREHELZREMA
development and trading and property %51
leasing) - 62,138 195,085 - 79,965 3,032 63,369 403,589
Attributable property sales from an G —RRRIRERA
investee company NEHE
- Hong Kong -& 120,229 - - - - - - 120,229
Attributable rental revenue from EEBENA/ RREEDT
assodiates/investee companies EELUN
- Hong Kong -&E - 16,248 49916 - - - - 66,164
- Meinland China - hEAE - 49,140 5960 - - - - 55,100
120,229 121,526 250,961 - 79,965 3,032 63,369 645,082
Results £
Segment results HEEE
- Hong Kong -&& 76,000 26,030 116,890 - (89,515) 30,189 37,556 197,150
- United Kingdom -5 - 28,865 65,059 - - 3,671 - 97,595
~Mainland China - hE AR - - (13) - - 3,364 - 3,351
- Other countries - EfER - - - - 67271 754 - 68,025
76,000 54,895 181,936 - (22,244) 37978 37,556 366,121
—Eo=FFKR 2ABRE£EE 211
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #r& B R M &L
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el Y= HE
8. OPERATING SEGMENTS (contd) 8. EESTH®@
Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income (Cont'd) meEzEREREKE)
For the year ended 31 December 2023 BE—S_=—F1+ZA=+—HIFE
Unlisted
) Listed  Investments investments,
Property Property leasing equity  andtreasury  investment
development hRE% investments products  holding and All other
and trading Retail Non-retail at FvToC! at FTPL brokerage segments  Consolidated
BRAMRE ERER
LE-PT NUR®  FLmRE-
NERE NFEZ AFEZ REERR k]
REH € ¥3&  LORERE RERMEER BERH EA% &a
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THR THR T#ER THR THR TR THR THR
Share of results of investments accounted - B{ELAEREABRRE 2
for using the equity method #i
- Attributable gross income - ElgALE
- Hong Kong -Ef - 15,789 49,529 - - - 2,294 67,612
- Mainland China - ME AR - 49,140 5,960 - - - - 55,100
- Attrbutable operating cost - EHEERA
- Hong Kong -&f - (1,623) (9,555) - - - - (11,178)
~Mainland China - hE AR - (19.612) (3,320) - - - - (22932)
76,000 98,589 224,550 - (22,244) 37,978 39,850 454,723
Other income EfMA - - 13,436 - - - - 13,436
Share of results of investments accounted {5 BRZ A RE 2
for using the equity method 3
- Income tax and others - SRR A - 38,616 4,839 - - - (61) 43,394
76,000 137,205 242,825 - (22,244) 37978 39,789 511,553
Unallocated items AEAR
Unallocated corporate expenses, net FABZRARTTE (317,153)
Finance costs BIBER (223313)
Income tax expense FEREY (38,950)
Non-controlling interests RS (307)
Operating loss for the year ARAEEAEERERE L
attributable to owners of the aeFR
Company (68,230)
Deferred tax credit on realised RASERIME—BRE
fair vlue changes on disposal of an NE7BERATEEY
investment property recognised in BBz EERERE
current year 528
Major non-cash items TEFREEE
~ Unrealsed fair value changes on -REMEIAER
investment properties (indluding LTEEH(RRER
share of results of investments NEREASREZ
accounted for using the equity %)
method) 133,270
- Deferred tax credit - BEFEAR 11,264
Profit for the year attributableto A2 FEB AL
owners of the Company REEZEA 76,832
Core loss (excluding major BOER
non-cash items) (FEETEFRSER)
Operating loss for the year KNAEEAER
attributable to owners of the rEEVAERE
Company (68,230)
Accumulated realised fair value HE-BRENFZER
changes and related deferred BEAATESBRA
tax on disposal of an investment B2 ELHE
property
- Recognised in current year - RAERRA 528
— Recognised in prior years - RATEEER 521
Core loss for the year attributable K27 #%5 AL
to owners of the Company REEZHUOER (67.181)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #& BB R M
For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE T -_=F+_-_A=+—HILFE

, LLII d A\ —\ Al
OPERATING SEGMENTS (contd) 8. B Hw®
Consolidated Statement of Financial Position wER Wﬂﬁxﬂiﬁ?\%
At 31 December 2023 R-BZ-=F+=FA=+—H
Unlisted
. Listed Investments  investments,
Property Property leasing equity  andtreasury  investment
development hERR investments products  holding and Al other
and trading Retail Non-retail at FuTocl at FVTPL brokerage segments  Consolidated
BREMEE BRBR
hEAR® NRB ELHRE.
NELR A¥EZ AYEZ REERR i)
REE £ ¥2E  LHRARE RERMEER BRRH HtAE &a
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TEn TEn TER TEn FEn TEn TEn
Assets EE
Segment assets HEAE
- Hong Kong -&E 700,602 1,242,024 6,116,023 - 229,910 299,745 247,838 8,836,142
- United Kingdom - 48 - 951,704 6,284,203 - - - - 1,235,907
~Mainland China - hERE 108,018 - 104 - - - - 108,122
- Other countries - EpER - - - - 117,916 106 - 118,022
Investments accounted for DERENE RE
using the equity method
- Hong Kong -&E 43,026 392,433 1,431,632 - - 1,582 4325 1,873,398
- Mainland Chin - REAE - 72,258 90,493 - - - - 162,751
Advances to associates BEBERAN
- Hong Kong -E 1,945 - 162 - - 3 3 2,113
-~ Mainland China - MERE - 25,706 32,194 - - - - 57,900
Reportzble segment assets EHNEEE 853,991 2684125 13954811 - 347,826 301,436 52166 18394355
Unallocated corporate assets (S8 PANGET:S 151,111
Consolidated total assets FREEDE 18,545,466
Liabilities aff
Segment liebilies HEER
- Hong Kong -E% 36717 16128 97,335 6 284 9,005 18804 179,259
- United Kingdom - &8 - 18,447 76,429 - - - - 94,876
- Mainland China - REAE 35 - 1 - - 2 - 69
- Other countries - B EIR - - - - 2 - - 2
Reportzble segment iables EHAEAE 36,752 34,575 173,19 6 286 9047 18,844 274,206
Unallocated corporate liabiiies USAF PANGL-L 4,036,159
Consolidated total liabilties rhakLE 4,310,365
Additions to non-current assets FTBEERE
(other than financial instruments ~ ($BIARET
and deferred tax assets) HEEERM - 233 319,898 - - 207 40
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #r& B R M &L
For the year ended 31 December 2023 HEZE T =_=F+-_A=+—HIFE

8. OPERATING SEGMENTS (contd) 8. EESTH®@
Other Material Items HtERIER
For the year ended 31 December 2023 BE—S_=—F1+ZA=+—HIFE
Adjustment Consolidated
Adjustments relatedto  Adjustments  statement of
Reportable for unallocated realised fair for major comprehensive
segments items  value changes non-cash items income
HEER
KABER NYESE TEFRE G82E
T2H7E ek} HEzRE BR A% WEHx
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TR TARL e THERT
Interest income VO 46,425 - - - 46,425
Finance costs HHER - (223,373) - - (223,373)
Net income (expenses) WA (%) 558 46,425 (223,373) - - (176,948)
Depreciation of: nE:
~ Property, plant and equipment -0% - BEREE - (58,791) - - (58,791)
- Right-of-use assets -PREEAE - (45,811) - - (45,811)
Fair value changes on investment properties &M% 2 AFEE - - - (31,007) (31,007)
Share of results of investments accounted BIEEREARRE L
for using the equity method E3| 131,996 - - 164,277 296,273
Income ta (expense) credit FER(EDEE - (38,950) 528 11,264 (27,158)
Non-controlling interests R - (307) - - (307)
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE T -_=F+_-_A=+—HILFE

OPERATING SEGMENTS (contd) 8. EESTH®@
Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income mAarEINERE

For the year ended 31 December 2022 BE T - —F+_HA=1—HIFFE
Unlisted
. Listed Investments investments,
Property Propery lezsing equty  and treasury investment
development NAER investments products holding and Al other
and trading Retail Non-retai atAvTocl atFVTPL brokerage segments Consolidated
BAEMZE BB
DU ARE  FLTRE-
PES ATE2 RFEY REBRE k]
REE € FEE LTRARE RERMEER Bk EftnE A
HK$'000 HK§'000 HK$'000 HK§'000 HK§'000 HK$'000 HK§'000 HK$'000
T T Tign L T Fign L T
Major cash items excluding BANMZEERSER
in revenue
- Hong Kong -E% - - - 164,304 £42,080 - - 806,384
- Other countries -EfER - - - - 920467 - - 920467
- - - 164,304 1,562,547 - - 1,726,851
Revenue 0N
Dividend and interest income and RERMEMALR
gain on sales of investments HEREEEL
held-for-trading RERE
- Hong Kong -&BA 1,014,000 - - - 21,461 - 750 1036211
- Other countries - EhER - - - - 37,444 - - 37,444
Revenue fiom extemal customers REMPERZBA
- Hong Kong -&E - 29,867 121,329 - - 4639 63,046 218,881
- United Kingdom - /8 - 35,766 106,688 - - - - 142,454
1,014,000 65,633 228017 - 58,905 4,639 63,796 1,434,990
Revenve (excuding dividend income ~— BA(IEEEREENR
from segments of property NEREARL
development and trading and TREMARR)
property lezsing) - 65,633 28017 - 58,905 4639 63,79 420990
Attributable property sales fiom an - MRETRE R
investee company bES
- Hong Kong -&% 186,808 - - - - - - 186,808
Attributable rental revenue from 5 BERA/ BRRE
associates/investee company RAVEERA
- Hong Kong -EE - 16,752 45883 - - - - 62,635
- Meinland China - REARE - 19,266 5173 - - - - 24439
186,808 101,651 279,073 - 58,905 4639 63,796 694,872
Results
Segment results
-~ Hong Kong 1,014,000 25331 116,920 - (112,683) 13901 37450 1,094919
- United Kingdom - 27675 95,893 - - 450 - 124018
- Mainland China B - - (225) - - 5798 - 5573
- Other countries - Lt ER - - - - (161381) 22846 - (1385535)
1,014,000 53,006 212,588 - (274,064) 4299 37450 1,085,975
—E-=EFH gAB%£EE 215
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Fade)

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE T -_=F+_A=+—HILtFE

8. OPERATING SEGMENTS (contd)

Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income (Cont'd)

For the year ended 31 December 2022

Share of results of investments accounted  B{5 MEZ AR E 2

for using the equity method £

- Attributable gross income - ElESALE
- Hong Kong -E8
~ Mainland China - REARE

- Attibutable operating cost - e ERE
- Hong Kong -Ek
~ Mainland China - RERE

Other income EHBA
Finance income I L /ON
Other gains and losses EfplaRER

Share of resuls of investments accounted  Z{EMEREZAEREZ
for using the equity method #4
- Income tax and others -FERREM

Unallocated items FAREE
Unallocated corporate expenses, net — RAEZ AAFZFE
Unallocated finance coss RABLIBER
Income tax expense FRRAY
Non-controlling interests ERRER

Operating profit for the year
attributable to owners of the
Company

FAREEAREREEL
R y-gl

Major non-cash items TEFRLER
- Unrealised fair value changes on - RENE AER
investment properties (including ATEEY(RERE
share of results of investments INEREARREZ
accounted for using the equity £5)
method)
- Deferred tax expense - BERERR
Profit for the year attributableto ~ A2TER AEE
owners of the Company REEZER
Core profit for the year attributable &2 R#EE AL
to owners of the Company REEZRDER
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ISR R MY EE

- A, - PN
8. EESE#
FErEREBRGE)
BE_FE_—F+_A=1—HIFE
Unlisted
. Listed Investments investments,
Property Pro%ggglng equity and treasury investment
development = investments products holding and All other
and trading Retail Non-retal at V1ol at FVTPL brokerage segments Consolidated
BAEMEZE BigE )
g AR BB FLDBRE-
IS B¥EZ  DVEZ REBRR &
REE g #TE LARARE RERMEER B HtinR A
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$ 000 HK$'000 HK$'000
kT TR Tk L TR T L i
- 16,008 45536 - - - 2246 63,790
- 19,266 5173 - - - - 24,439
- (1,689) (8.467) - - - - (10,156)
- (12575) (3,141) - - - - (15,716)
1014000 74016 251,689 - (274,064) 4,995 39,696 1148332
- - 2,487 - - - - 2487
- - - - 56 - - 56
- - (7381) - - - . (7,381)
- (9,600) (2,945) - . . (27) (12772)
1,014,000 64416 243,850 - (274,008) 429% 39,469 1,130,722
(342677)
(133,177)
(15 698)
(85)
639,085
524277
(11,127)
1,152,235

639,085



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #& BB R M
For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE T -_=F+_-_A=+—HILFE

, Ay AN
OPERATING SEGMENTS (contd) 8. EEDH®
Consolidated Statement of Financial Position REMBMRRER
At 31 December 2022 R-F-——Ff+=-H=4+—H
Unlisted
) Listed Investments investments,
Property Propert leasing equty  and treasury investment
development hERE investments products holding and All other
and trading Retall Non-retai at Fvrodl at FvTPL brokerage segments  Consolidated
BBENEE ikch sty
Wds b Rk ARE  FLTRE -
NELRE AFEZ AFEZ  REBRR g
LEE ZE #TE  LTRERE RERMEER ey B8 &a
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FEL FEL TATL FEL FEL TATL FEL FEL
Assets gE
Segment assets PEEE
~ Hong Kong -5# 216,170 2,556,174 5,941,338 109,766 350,351 310,488 236,041 9,720,328
- United Kingdom -8 - 902,062 6,073,410 - - - - 6,975,472
~ Mainland China - hE AR 110,556 - 2,659 - - 740 - 113,955
- Other countries - EER - - - - 251,138 290,596 - 541,734
Investments accounted for NEREARZRE
using the equity method
~ Hong Kong -B# 51,796 381,393 1,396,670 - - 1615 9,485 1,840,959
Advances to associates BRBENAFE
~ Hong Kong -&% 1,947 - 149 - - 2 1,225 3,323
~ Mainland China - RERRE - - 39422 - - - - 39422
Reportable segment assets ERABEE 380,469 3,839,629 13,453,648 109,766 601,489 603,441 246,751 19,235,193
Assets classified as held for sale JBBENEZEE 27,602
Unallocated corporate assets KoL AREE 171,720
Consolidated total assets DREERE 19434515
Liabilities &f&
Segment liabilties ARERE
- Hong Kong -E# 36,067 15,394 107,305 18 194 11,8357 9375 180,190
- United Kingdom - %@ - 14,060 142,389 - - - - 156,449
— Mainland China - hE A 59 - 2,267 - - 2 - 2328
- Other countries - EfER - - - - 625 3 - 628
Reportable segment liabiliies ERHBAR 36,126 29454 251,961 18 819 11,842 9375 339,595
Unallocated corporate liabiliies AOBZRAEE 5,092,077

Consolidated total iabilities GAaELEE 5,431,672

Additions to non-current assets FRBEERE
(other than financial instruments (B IAREE
and deferred tax assets) REBEERD - 19,468 320,780 - - 14 124
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #r& B R M &L
For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE T -_=F+_A=+—HILtFE

8. OPERATING SEGMENTS (contd) 8. EENE®
Other Material Items HtERIER
For the year ended 31 December 2022 BE_FT-—F+_HA=1—HIFFE
Consolidated
Adjustments Adjustments statement of
Reportable  for unallocated formajor  comprehensive
segments items  non-cash items income
ADEIER FEERSE GAaZAE
pE=Va ZBE A ZHE WamEk
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET TER FET

Interest income MEBHA 40,195 - - 40,195
Finance income (costs) BBWA(ER) 56 (133,177) - (133,121)
Net income (expenses) WA (R ) 38 40,251 (133,177) - (92,926)
Depreciation of: wE:

~ Property, plant and equipment - % BERRE - (62,983) - (62,983)

~ Right-of-use assets - RREEE - (57,045) - (57,045)
Fair value changes on investment properties & #1% 2 A T EE - - 528,481 528,481
Share of results of investments accounted {5 AR EANERRE 2

for using the equity method E | 49,585 - (4,204) 45381
Income tax expense FEHEX - (15,698) (11,127) (26,825)
Non-controlling interests R - (85) - (85)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #& BB R M
For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE T -_=F+_-_A=+—HILFE

OTHER INCOME 9. HAbrA
2023 2022
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FAT
Included in other income are: Hi g A BIE
Rental services income HERBIA 3,252 3,354
Leasing administration services and TEIITERR TS K P 21T AR T
property administration services income WA 5,121 4,806
Advisory and consultancy services income 7 3R K JEE P PR 7 LA 39 38
Dilapidations settlement and surrender premium 5t 7 B4 2 m /P UEL 2
received from tenants in respect of properties FEE A RRERHE
in the United Kingdom 13,436 2,487
Exchange gain, net M 5 W a F 5 422 -
Government subsidy — Employment Support BT RE — (PR EEIEHEI (B FE)
Scheme (note) - 4,697
Overprovision of reinstatement costs in respect of ~ FLAFAYIZE 2 RIS A A B R R 1
leased properties - 1,200
Note: During the year ended 31 December 2022, the government et : RBE_T-__F+RA=+—HIHF
subsidy was granted under Employment Support Scheme which B BUTHERLTH R 8 I 2 & s
aimed to retain employment under the Anti-epidemic Fund of the e TR EIFE ZHR - BERFEH
Government. E
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %R & B # 8k M &

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HEZE T =_=F+-_A=+—HIFE

10. INVESTMENT EXPENSES, NET

Financial assets/liabilities measured at fair value
through profit or loss:

Unrealised loss arising from change in
fair value of bonds
Realised (loss) gain arising from change in
fair value of bonds
— Change in fair value
— Exchange component of change

Net loss arising from change in
fair value of bonds

Unrealised (loss) gain arising from change in
fair value of structured product and
derivative financial instruments

Realised loss arising from change in
fair value of structured products and
derivative financial instruments

Net loss arising from change in
fair value of structured products and
derivative financial instruments

Unrealised loss arising from change in
fair value of investments held-for-trading

Unrealised gain arising from change in

fair value of club and corporate debentures
Realised loss arising from change in

fair value of a club debenture

Net gain arising from change in
fair value of club and corporate debentures

Unrealised gain arising from change in
fair value of cross currency swap

Realised loss arising from change in
fair value of cross currency swap

Net loss arising from change in
fair value of cross currency swaps

Other investment income, net

Interest income from other financial assets

10. REHX FHE

BB R ATEH B
SREE BE -
EH2ATEEDMELY

RETER
EHZATEEBTELY

B BB (1R M
AT EEH
-ERHBSE

BERZAHERBMEL
ERFER

EREEMMMIESRTAZ
RN EREHmMELZ
REH (BB K

BRMEMMIEEMTAZ

RV EEHMELZ
CEIRREE

BEMEMMIEERMTAZ
RYPEEHMELZ
JEIRHEE

FIEEEZREZATEES
MELZ REHEE

SRERARES 2 AFESR
M 2 REBI

SHES 2 DT EEH
M4 2 B 2R

SHEATES? ATESD
M 2 Wit 5

EHRE 2 ATFEEH
T 2 KBTS
R ATES
M4 2 B R R
HHRE 2 ATFEEH
T 2 B8R

HAb B WA FEE

Hip B EE < F BUA
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2023 2022
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHExT FHET
(65,863) (160,172)
(6,435) 179
529 76
(71,769) (159,917)
(99) 5
(614) (574)
(713) (569)
(29,820) (158,105)
1,760 2,432
(582) -
1,178 2,432
- 1,250
(1,250) (1,623)
(1,250) (373)
847 8,468
36,066 16,937
(65,461) (291,127)




11.

12.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FINANCE COSTS

Interest on:
Bank borrowings
Other borrowings

Lease liabilities

Total interest (Note 39)
Exchange gain on translation of foreign currency
bank and other borrowings

Other finance costs

Less: Interest capitalised to investment properties

under construction

RE MR

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE T -_=F+_-_A=+—HILFE

11. B8 H

2023 2022
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHxT FHET
FB
RITIEE 229,066 129,783
HfEE - 5
HESaE 3,768 1,173
F B4 EE (HFE39) 232,834 130,961
INESRITR H BB
b 5, W a (1,356) (932)
HMoBEA 2,883 7,567
234,361 137,596
W BT EERIREYE
B2 B (10,988) (4,475)
223,373 133,121

During the year ended 31 December 2023, the Group has
capitalised borrowing costs at a rate of 5.48% (2022: 2.49%)

per annum, amounting to approximately HK$10,988,000 (2022:

HK$4,475,000) on qualifying assets.

OTHER GAINS AND LOSSES

Reversal of allowance for credit losses
(allowance for credit losses) recognised
in respect of advances to associates, net

Loss on deregistration and striking off of
subsidiaries

Others

Reversal of financial guarantee on striking off of

an associate

REBEE-_ZE-_=F+-_A=+—BILtEE "
NEFDIREFN RS 48E(Z T - —4F : 2.49
B ERATEEREEENM ZIEERAL
10,988,000 7L (=L = =4 : 4,475,000/
JT) °

12. Ebi = R E 18
2023 2022
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FiHET
i B R Al/NCIE S
BOl 7 EEFIERE
(EEEERE) MR 2FHE 7,326 (7,421)
B B A BB R K 51 B 1
2 &8 (23) (10)
Hitb (718) -
B — B QR G B m
B[R 2 B R = @n
6,585 (7,522)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #r& B R M &L
For the year ended 31 December 2023 HEZE T =_=F+-_A=+—HIFE

13. INCOME TAX EXPENSE 13. FTiEHAx
2023 2022
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHERT FET
The charge comprises: X B
Current tax: EHRA
Hong Kong Profits Tax BERNEH 3,215 2,316
Other than Hong Kong BB LS R 16,066 16,781
19,281 19,097
Underprovision (overprovision) in prior years: BEFEREIT(BERSB) :
Hong Kong Profits Tax BEBNERH (124) (877)
Other than Hong Kong BAEAIME 13,454 (2,635)
13,330 (3,512)
Deferred tax: (Note 28) EIERIE ¢ (FisE28)
Current year (credit) charge REE (B E) 2 H (5.453) 11,240
27,158 26,825
Under the two-tiered profits tax rates regime, the first HK$2,000,000 BEMNESHMAE  AEKREBEEY
of profits of the qualifying group entity will be taxed at 8.25%, and 2,000,0007% 7T 2 Jai F A 2 5 % 8.25% =R T
profits above HK$2,000,000 will be taxed at 16.5%. The profits of 382,000,000/ 7T 2 & Fl 1§ 2 7 % 16.5%
group entities not qualifying for the two-tiered profits tax rates regime R THEFEHMAG 2 EEEE 28R
are taxed at a flat rate of 16.59% (2022: 16.5%). The PRC Enterprise FIZF—BIE165%(ZF =4 : 16.5%)*
Income Tax for the PRC subsidiaries are calculated at the PRC o BB AR 2P BEMEMSH g E
Enterprise Income Tax rate of 25% (2022: 25%). During the year EMEHE250(ZT = ZF : 2500)5HH o
ended 31 December 2023, the Group is subject to tax rate in the REBEEZE-_ZT-_=F+-A=1+—HILFE K
United Kingdom that has been changed from 19% to 25% (2022: EERNEEZHEHRI19%E B25%0 (2T ==
19%). Taxation arising from other jurisdictions is calculated at the &F:19%) - At ADEAERES < HIBTIRA
rates prevailing in the relevant jurisdictions. BE AR RITREGHE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

13. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (contd)

The income tax charge for the year can be reconciled to the profit

before tax per the consolidated statement of comprehensive income

as follows:

Profit before tax

Tax at the Hong Kong Profits Tax rate of
16.5% (2022: 16.5%)

Tax effect of share of results of investments

accounted for using the equity method
Tax effect of income not taxable for
tax purposes
Tax effect of expenses not deductible for
tax purposes
Tax effect on accelerated accounting
depreciation over tax depreciation
previously over provided
Utilisation of tax losses previously
not recognised

Tax effect of tax losses not recognised

Underprovision (overprovision)
in prior years

Effect on deferred tax resulting from
change in tax rate

Effect of different tax rates of subsidiaries

operating in other jurisdictions

Reversal of deferred tax assets previously

recognised

Tax charge for the year

13. B @

RE MR

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE T -_=F+_-_A=+—HILFE

REFZIFHXHEGE 2EBERR 2K

BB E A ETRR AT

2023 2022
HK$'000 % HK$'000 %
TET FEx

BR 0 AL A 104,297 1,179,145
BRERRIBHTIE6.5%

(ZZE==F : 165%)

HEZBIE 17,209 16.5 194,559 16.5
BB EARIRE

EX iy % (48,885) (46.9) (7,488) (06)
MBS BARTBMA

IHBRE (122,655) (117.6) (300,894) (25.5)
BB ME AT MARX

BT E 114,011 109.3 93,071 7.9
BEREEE NREE

NEBBHKITE

IR E 2,657 25 323 -
BRLAAERZ

msEE (1,958) (1.9) (1,413) 0.1)
AERZHBER

MGEE 40,356 38.7 44,266 3.7
BEEE

BETE(RERE) 13,330 12.8 (3512) (03)
REBBERTHIE

a7 13,537 13.0 - -
REMBERREE

MEAREAZ

TRAREzEE (444) (0.4) 5,375 05
BEILRTRRZ

BERRIERE - - 2,538 0.2
REERIESL M 27,158 26.0 26,825 23
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #r& B R M &L
For the year ended 31 December 2023 HEZE T =_=F+-_A=+—HIFE

14. PROFIT FOR THE YEAR 14, KEEmA
2023 2022
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FAT
Profit for the year has been arrived at after REZRFIE
(charging) crediting: (FIBRFEA
Total staff costs: BB AR -
Staff costs, including Directors’ emoluments EERA(BEESHE) (129,920) (136,921)
Retirement benefit scheme contributions, RKEAG ST 0RRE
net of forfeited contributions of SR UL TR A 408,000 7T
approximately HK$408,000 (2022: nil) (ZE-——F  B) (8,140) (8,615)
(138,060) (145,536)
Auditors' remuneration for audit services: ZERBE 2 ZEMME
Auditors of the Company AN AAZBAD
— Current year - REFE (2,128) (2,038)
Other auditors H Az ERED
— Current year - KFEE (592) (542)
— Underprovision in prior years - BAEFEREHTR - (33)
(2,720) (2,613)
Auditors’ remuneration for non-audit services: IERBRTS 2 R BT E &
Auditors of the Company RN RIAZBRD (450) (100)
Depreciation of: e -
— Property, plant and equipment -ME - BERE&HE (58,791) (62,983)
- Right-of-use assets - EREEE (45,811) (57,045)
(104,602) (120,028)
Exchange loss, net (RN Ei=Peck- - (22,354)
Rental expenses from short-term leases REEE s HEMT (3,875) (2,202)
Cost of cosmetics products sold HE MM Z KA (5.334) (6,170)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #& BB R M
For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE T -_=F+_-_A=+—HILFE

14. PROFIT FOR THE YEAR (contd)

Profit for the year has been arrived at after

(charging) crediting: (Cont'd)

Share of tax of investments accounted for using
the equity method (included in share of results
of investments accounted for using the equity
method)

— Share of tax credit (expense) of associates

Gross proceeds on sales of investments
held-for-trading

Carrying amount of investments
held-for-trading disposed of

Transaction costs on sales of investments
held-for-trading

Gain on sales of investments held-for-trading

included in revenue

Gross rental income from investment properties
Less: Direct operating expenses from investment
properties that generated
rental income during the year
Direct operating expenses from investment
properties that did not generate

rental income during the year

Reversal of allowance for credit losses (allowance
for credit losses) recognised, net in respect of:
— Advances to associates
— Interest receivables from bonds

— Trade receivables

14. 2N Bim Al a0

2023 2022
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FiET
KEFHEFE
($0BR)FTA = (88)
BRI A ARRIRE 218
(BRF AB (LA A ABR
WE L)
- BB ARBIERE () 1,786 (8,793)
HEFEEEZREY
FRS FIA R 617,279 1,486,761
HEFEEEZREY
BREAE (550,345) (1,455,081)
HEFEEEZREY
RS (1,125) (3,048)
FABRARZEERFEERZ
B W 65,809 28,632
REWMERS WAL 257,223 293,650
B AFEEAESRAZ
WEWMEERLERS
(7,673) (17,712)
AEEVTEEARSWAZ
WEMEEREERY
(12,719) (10,344)
236,831 265,594
MUATEE R EEEHERE
(FEFERE R FE
- BB A RRIA 7,326 (7,421)
- BH 2 EIFIE - (11,156)
- BWRE SRIA = Q)
—E-=EER Bxgm 225



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #r& B R M &L
For the year ended 31 December 2023 HEZE T =_=F+-_A=+—HIFE

15. DIRECTORS' EMOLUMENTS 15. EEM £

ENSENTARCEZZF: \REFZ

Fees and other emoluments paid or payable to each of the nine

(2022: eight) Directors were as follows: BrzHRE REMmBMEImT
2023 2022
Retirement Retirement
Salaries benefit Salaries benefit
and other scheme and other scheme
Fee emoluments contributions Total Fee  emoluments  contributions Total
4R RUER Hek BIREA
e Hit#e RIS ag we Hifie HEL:S g

HK$000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000
TER TR TER TER ThER ThER ThER THERL

M. Lau, Ming-wai ARELE 300 - - 300 300 - - 300
Ms. Chan, Hoi-wan sl - 100 5 105 - 100 5 105
Ms. Chan, Lok-wan BaEat - 906 78 984 - 880 76 956
Mr. Lam, Kwong-wai MHEEE
(note (1)) (3E0) - 1,181 64 1,245 - 2,230 206 2,436
Ms. Amy Lau, Yuk-wai Ax2aL 240 - - 240 240 - - 240
Mr. Chan, Kwok-wai REREE 300 - - 300 300 - - 300
Mr. Leung, Yun-fai RRBEE
(note (ii)) GED)) 244 - - 244 - - - -
Ms. Phills Loh, Laiping ~~ EESF &+ 300 - - 300 300 - - 300
Mr. Ma, Tsz-chun SBRELE 300 - - 300 300 - - 300
1,684 2,187 147 4,018 1440 3210 287 4937
Notes: BIEE -
()  Mr. Lam, Kwong-wai resigned as executive Director with effect () MAFEEEB-ZT_=FRA-—THHE
from 25 May 2023. BHERITESZ 2B -
(i) Mr. Leung, Yun-fai was appointed as independent non-executive (i) REBEEE-_T-_=F=-ATHBEZ

Director with effect from 10 March 2023.

No Directors waived any emoluments for the years ended
31 December 2023 and 2022.

Details of material interests of the Directors in transactions,
arrangements or contracts entered into by subsidiaries of the
Company are disclosed in the section headed “Directors’ Report” of

this annual report.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RE MR

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE T -_=F+_-_A=+—HILFE

16. EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS

(a)

(b)

Five highest paid individuals

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments in the
Group, none (2022: one) was a Director, details of directors’
emoluments were included in Note 15. The emoluments of

the five (2022: remaining four) individuals were as follows:

Salaries and other benefits =
Retirement benefit scheme contributions RIREFFHE

The emoluments of the five (2022: four) individuals were

within the following bands:

16. EEM &
(@) EEBESHFMAL

rEBRETEaMEATH  TECT
ZZF—REF  EFHEFEEH
P15 AR (ZT - —4F  H&0
Z)EBALTZBEIMT

2023 2022
HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TAT
9,313 7,803
838 699
10,151 8,502

ZhA(ZCEZ—F  mRB)EMNALTZ
BE@EwmT -

Number of employees

EBEAH
2023 2022
HK$1,500,001 — HK$2,000,000 1,500,001/ 7T — 2,000,0005% 7T 2 1
HK$2,000,001 — HK$2,500,000 2,000,001 7T — 2,500,0005 7T 3 3

During the years ended 31 December 2023 and 2022, no
emoluments were paid by the Group to the five highest paid
individuals, or Director, as an inducement to join or upon

joining the Group or as compensation for loss of office.

Emoluments of senior management

The emoluments of two (2022: all) senior management,
whose profiles are included in the section headed “Profiles
of Senior Executives” of this annual report, have been
disclosed in the five highest paid individuals (Note 16(a)),
while the emolument of the remaining one (2022: nil) senior
management was within the band of HK$1,500,001 to
HK$2,000,000.

(b)

REBEZT-_=FR-_T-__F+=A
=+—HLEFERN AEEBRERKS
DO 52 [ 5 50 00 A A 52 B 665 ok 1 6 B
BHEMAZAGERTMALTHES
A E -

EREEEZHME

ME(CE-—F RS REEEH
BWNHHREFRISRTHAEET
—EHR)ZMEHIIN AR & =HMA
T (FHEE16(a) A > M FEE— (= F
ToE CESREEEZHERER
1,500,001 #7C%2,000,000/8 7T °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #r& B R M &L
For the year ended 31 December 2023 HEZE T =_=F+-_A=+—HIFE

17.

18.

DIVIDENDS

On 15 August 2023, the board of Directors had resolved not to
declare any interim dividend for 2023 (2022: nil).

No final dividend for the year ended 31 December 2023 (2022: nil)

has been recommended by the board of Directors.

EARNINGS PER SHARE

The calculation of the basic and diluted earnings per share
attributable to owners of the Company is based on the following
data:

17.

18.

Hﬁ /%\

RZB_=F)\A+ER  BEEEZATER
AR _=FHPERE(CZTE__F : 8) -

EEeTEEINEBE-_E-_=F+=-A=+
—BIEFEZREBRE(CE--F : 8) -

BREF

ARG A 2 SRR RS BRI
AT RURAE

2023 2022
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHERT T
Earnings: &2 :
Earnings for the purposes of basic and HEERERNREERF
diluted eamnings per share 2N
Profit for the year attributable to owners of RAREBEABLAFEZ
the Company gl 76,832 1,152,235
Number of shares
RO EE
2023 2022
Number of shares: g8 -
Weighted average number of ordinary AREEBRERNEERN
shares for the purposes of basic and BRI T8
diluted earnings per share 1,907,619,079 1,907,619,079

Diluted earnings per share for the years ended 31 December 2023
and 2022 were the same as the basic earnings per share as there
were no potential ordinary shares of the Company in issue during

both years.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

19. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

Fair value

At 1 January 2022

Additions

Costs incurred for construction

Transfer to assets classified as
held for sale (Note 33)

Exchange adjustments

(Decrease) increase in fair value
recognised in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income

— unrealised

At 31 December 2022

Additions

Costs incurred for construction

Exchange adjustments

Increase (decrease) in fair value
recognised in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income

— unrealised

Carrying amounts
At 31 December 2023

RE MR

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE T -_=F+_-_A=+—HILFE

YN

RZEZ—F—H—H

NE

RIS FT E A 2 B AN

EEZEIRFEEEZ
& (M5E33)

[& 5

RG22 ERE
HERFPHERZ
ANFECR D) 50
- REE

-H
i

MN-TE-—F
+—-—A=+—8

FE
SRS PR 7 R
FE 3¢

i a2 S
HERPRER
RFEHSMOED)
- RER

SREE
R=F==%
+=A=+-H

19. REW

Properties
Completed under
properties construction Total
BISRE S iy Ek
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET FET
9,981,351 3,310,810 13,292,161
15,459 - 15,459
- 305,934 305,934
(27,602) - (27,602)
(461,478) (283,831) (745,309)
(106,781) 635,262 528,481
9,400,949 3,968,175 13,369,124
20,439 - 20,439
- 207,530 207,530
230,659 160,973 391,632
419,094 (450,101) (31,007)
10,071,141 3,886,577 13,957,718
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #r& B R M &L
For the year ended 31 December 2023 HEZE T =_=F+-_A=+—HIFE

19. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (contd) 19. REYE @)

There was no change in valuation techniques used for the fair value
measurement of the Group’s investment properties, as compared
with those in last year, except for a property situated in Hong Kong
changed its valuation technique from direct comparison method to

investment method due to the property is fully leased out.

All of the Group's property interests held under operating leases
to earn rentals or for capital appreciation purposes are measured
using the fair value model and are classified and accounted for as

investment properties.

As at 31 December 2023, valuations of investment properties of
the Group in Hong Kong and Mainland China were carried out by
Peak Vision Appraisals Limited (“Peak Vision Appraisals”) (2022: B.I.
Appraisals Limited (“B.l. Appraisals”)) and the investment properties
in the United Kingdom were carried out by Moore Transaction
Services Limited ("Moore Transaction”) (2022: LCH (Asia-Pacific)
Surveyors Limited (“LCH (Asia-Pacific)")), both are independent
qualified professional property valuers. The valuers have recent
relevant experience in the valuations of similar properties in the

relevant locations.

At the end of the reporting period, the management of the Group
discussed with the independent qualified professional property
valuers about the appropriate valuation techniques and key inputs for

Level 3 fair value measurements.

The valuation reports for the investment properties as at
31 December 2023 were signed by the respective directors of Peak
Vision Appraisals and Moore Transaction (2022: B.l. Appraisals and
LCH (Asia-Pacific)), who are members of The Hong Kong Institute
of Surveyors and/or The Royal Institution of Chartered Surveyors.
The valuations were performed in accordance with “The HKIS
Valuation Standards 2020" published by The Hong Kong Institute
of Surveyors and/or “International Valuation Standards” published
by the International Valuation Standards Council and/or “The RICS
Valuation, Global Standards” (the “Red Book”) published by The
Royal Institution of Chartered Surveyors (2022: “The HKIS Valuation
Standards 2020" published by The Hong Kong Institute of Surveyors
and/or “International Valuation Standards” published by the

International Valuation Standards Council).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #& BB R M
For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE T -_=F+_-_A=+—HILFE

19. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (contd)

The fair value of each investment property is individually determined
at the end of each reporting period based on its market value and
by adopting investment method, direct comparison method and/or
residual method, as appropriate. The investment method relying on
the capitalisation of rental income is based upon estimates of future
results and a set of assumptions specific to each property to reflect
its tenancy status. The fair value of each investment property reflects,
among other things, rental income from current term leases, term
yield rate, assumptions about rental income from future reversion
leases in light of current market conditions and reversionary yield
rate. Judgment by the valuers is required to determine the principal
valuation factors, including term yield rate and reversionary yield
rate. Such yield rates were adopted after considering the investment
sentiments and market expectations of properties of similar nature.
Direct comparison method assumes each of these properties is
capable of being sold in its existing state with the benefit of vacant
possession and by making reference to comparable sales evidence as
available in the relevant markets. Combination of direct comparison
method and investment method takes the valuation results of the
direct comparison method and investment method when arriving
at the fair value of the properties. For investment properties under
construction at fair value, their fair values are determined by residual
method by deducting the estimated total outstanding redevelopment
costs and an allowance for developer's risk and profit from the gross

development value of the proposed redevelopment.

19. BEYE )

BEREMEZATERERSHRBIEET
B WERHRREE  BERELBERHRIHE
BEEGRERBERATE) MEREE - REET
EWIREMEESEA » WABSEMERKE
B2 R— RO ERRAKE - ARBRE
MEMR - BEEEMEZ A FERBR(EH
BREBFHOBR A KA - HOHR2
El#H=x - ERBEHHRHRRERHEOMEHE
ERAZBRREFEDHRE - REETEEMHE
H = (BB R 2 [0 3R & [ 18 55 0 3 ) i
AmGEELHE - RIRPEBEHRERED
ERRERFNTSERUTEYE 2B
BERLEEBRRZSMESBUURRRE
ER2RERMS LAIHEBRZHERRE - 5
BRERLBERREZZAHEHMEZRF
B DEEREBERREZRZEESR - 3%
RNFEZHEEREEYMENS - ERFETIA
RHEELIEBNMEERAEE 2FHEREN
BRI ARN 2 ERRABEANBRRE 2 E R
RMBZBFEZREMERE

TEIC-FFR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HEZE T =_=F+-_A=+—HIFE

19. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (contd)

19. BEYE )

The following tables analysed the investment properties which

are measured at fair value at the end of the reporting period
into the three-level hierarchy as defined in HKFRS 13 “Fair Value

Measurement” which is further elaborated in Note 3.

Recurring fair value REEQNFENE:

measurements:

Completed properties EIDRYES

Properties under construction EErh

At 31 December 2023 R-B==F
+=A=+—-8

Completed properties BRI

Properties under construction iz§etik/E S

At 31 December 2022 W_ZT——
+=-—A=+—H”

RE MR

TRANBERRARTFEFEZREMEZ
=B EB(EER BB B REENFE 135
[RFERE RN 3 EE — 5 ) DA -

Fair value Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
A¥E EF—R EF& E=4&
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAT FAT FHET FET
10,071,141 - - 10,071,141
3,886,577 - - 3,886,577
13,957,718 - - 13,957,718
9,400,949 - - 9,400,949
3,968,175 - - 3,968,175
13,369,124 - - 13,369,124
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RE MR

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE T -_=F+_-_A=+—HILFE

19. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (contd)

Details of valuation techniques used and key inputs to valuation on

investment properties which are categorised as Level 3 fair value

measurement at the end of the reporting period are as follows:

Properties held for investment
in Hong Kong
URER 2 BERENE

Properties under construction
in Hong Kong
fIREE 2 RRANE

Properties held for investment
in the United Kingdom
REE 2 RERENE

Properties under construction
in the United Kingdom
IREE 2 BRYE

Total
ag

Fair value Valuation techniques
AYE fhER
2023 2022
HK$'000 HK$000
THER AL
5924050 5443800  Combination of direct
comparison method and
investment method
ERUBERREE A0
1,010,000 1,179,000 Residual method
HEBEE
4,147,091 3,957,149 Combination of direct
comparison method and
investment method
EEIRERRE A A
2,876,577 2,789,175 Residual method
MeBEBEE
13,957,718 13,369,124

19. BEYE )

NMERRDERERDTEAEZRED

Significant unobservable inputs

EXKUBRUE

(1) Reversionary yield;
EHEERE

(2) Market rent per square foot; and
FYARzMEEE R

(3) Selling price per square foot
BYARZER

(1) Selling price per square foot; and
BYARZEE R

(2) Budgeted construction costs
to be incurred

RELRERENA

(1) Reversionary yield;
REERE ;

(2) Market rent per square foot; and
FYhRzm5EE R

(3) Selling price per square foot
EYIRZER

(1) Budgeted construction costs
to be incurred;
REECBERERS

(2) Market rent per square foot;
YRR MRS

(3) Discount rate; and
FBE R

(4) Long-term growth rate
REERE

— = —

—_—=

=FEFR

i
KZHERERZEMEEEEEZFIBW
™

Range

#E

2.75% 0 3.75%

(2022: 2.70% to 4.00%)
275EZ375E

(ZB=F : 270BZ400E)
HK$15 to HK$188

(2022: HK$36 to HK$220)
15ETE188%TT

(ZBZZE  36BTEN0%T)
HK$50

(2022: HK$60 to HK$18,000)
5087

(ZB- =& 1 60ETZ180004T)

HK$11,264
(2022: HK$13,100)
1126487
(ZE==F:1310047)
HK$484,974,000
(2022: HK$542,686,000)
484,974,000
(ZB= =% 1 542,686,000 77)

3,00% to 4.00%

(2022: 3.60% to 4.20)
300E 4008

(ZBZZF 360 F420E)
(BP5 to (BP8

(2022: GBP4 to GBP8)

SEEERRE
(CE--E 4EET0RY)
N/A

(2022: GBP1,850 to GBP3,060)
TER
(ZBZZF 1 850REF3,060E8)

(BP311,619,000

(2022: GBP316,963,000)
311,619,000

(ZZZZF : 316963,00084)
(BP3 10 GBP5

(2022: GBP3 to GBP5)
IRFESEE

(CE- & 3EERSEE)
450% to 5.88%

(2022: 4.40% to 5.630%)
450EZ5.80E

(ZBZZF  440BZ563E)
2.00% (2022: 2.00%)

200E(-Z= =% : 2.008)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #r& B R M &L
For the year ended 31 December 2023 HEZE T =_=F+-_A=+—HIFE

19. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (contd) 19. BREWMHE =)

Reversionary yield is the rate taking into account the capitalisation of
potential rental income, nature of the property and prevailing market
conditions. Market rent per square foot is the market rent and selling
price per square foot is the market selling price taking into account
the direct comparable market transactions to the related properties.
Budgeted construction costs to be incurred are the construction costs
to be expended to complete the properties. Discount rate applied
reflects the current market assessments of the time value of money
and the risks specific to the property. Long-term growth rate is based

on the relevant industry growth forecasts.

The fair value measurements are negatively correlated to the
reversionary yield, the budgeted construction costs to be incurred
and the discount rate, while positively correlated to the market rent
per square foot, the selling price per square foot and the long-term

growth rate.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #& BB R M
For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE T -_=F+_-_A=+—HILFE

19. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (contd) 19. REWZR =
Movements of investment properties which are categorised as PHERE—RATEAEZREMERFANZ
Level 3 fair value measurement during the years are as follows: BT
2023 2022
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FAT
At 1 January m—H—H 13,369,124 13,292,161
Additions nNE 20,439 15,459
Costs incurred for construction REAIFATE A 2 AR 207,530 305,934
Transfer to assets classified as held for sale EREIARBIELECEE
(Note 33) (Ft7E33) - (27,602)
Exchange adjustments ME 5 % 391,632 (745,309)
(Decrease) increase in fair value recognised REREE2EREHRERTFERZ
in the consolidated statement of ANFECR L) 5
comprehensive income
— unrealised - REW (31,007) 528,481
Carrying amounts IRTEE
At 31 December R+=ZB=+—H 13,957,718 13,369,124
Note: There were no transfers into or out of Level 3 fair value Msx: RBZE-T-_=Frk_FT=-_—_F+=A
measurement during the years ended 31 December 2023 and ZS+—BLEFEARN F=ZRATENE
2022. I AR o
In estimating the fair value of the properties, their current use A MEZATE  MEZENARERHE
equates to the highest and best use of the properties. Re R&ERE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RE MR

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HEZE T =_=F+-_A=+—HIFE

20. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Cost

At 1 January 2022
Additions
Disposals/written off

Exchange adjustments

At 31 December 2022
Additions
Disposals/written off

Exchange adjustments

At 31 December 2023

Depreciation

At 1 January 2022

Charge for the year

Elimination upon
disposals/written off

Exchange adjustments

At 31 December 2022

Charge for the year

Elimination upon
disposals/written off

Exchange adjustments

At 31 December 2023

Carrying amounts
At 31 December 2023

At 31 December 2022

RZZZZF—HF—H
NE
HE /M
[ 5 %

i

i
ey

R-ZE-—F+=-A=1—H
NE
HE /W

i

oK
feic]
s

R-ZB-=f+=-A=+-H
nE

RZZZZF—F—H
AEEHE
&/ gEE i

i A%
RZE-—F+-R=+—H
AEERE
&/ M

[ 5 A%

RZBZ=#+ZA=1+-H

fREE
RZBZ=%+=A=+-H

RZZE-—F+-A=1—H

20. Y15 - BMENRE

Leasehold/ Furniture, Yachts and
freehold Leasehold fixtures and motor
land  Buildings improvement equipment vehicles Total
HE/
KAERE HE &
Tt BF MELE HERRE BERER @
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FEx FEx FAL FEL FEL FEL
64,861 11,531 82,312 40,983 140,761 340,448
- - 3,819 14,085 1,089 18,993
- - (17,095) (3,809) (1128)  (22,032)
(6,324) (1,126) (41) (66) - (7,557)
58,537 10,405 68,995 51,193 140,722 329,852
- - 88,445 3,985 341 92,771
= = = (193) = (193)
1,480 269 20 17 - 1,786
60,017 10,674 157,460 55,002 141,063 424,216
3,921 905 51,173 26,952 72,501 155,452
489 258 34,662 4,026 23,548 62,983
- - (17,095) (3,806) (1,128)  (22,029)
(359) (88) 3) (48) - (498)
4,051 1,075 68,737 27,124 94,921 195,908
463 253 28,987 5411 23,677 58,791
- - - (162) - (162)
(69) (1 6 @) = (66)
4,445 1,327 97,730 32,371 118,598 254,471
55,572 9,347 59,730 22,631 22,465 169,745
54,486 9,330 258 24,069 45,801 133,944

236 CHINESE ESTATES HOLDINGS LIMITED  ANNUAL REPORT 2023



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #& BB R M
For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE T -_=F+_-_A=+—HILFE

21. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS AND LEASE 21. FREEEREERAE

LIABILITIES

The Group leases assets including properties and equipment. REEAME 2 EEDEMERRE - REHY
Most of the leases of properties for both years are negotiated for ¥RWESEE s MOmE AP R—Z=F
terms ranging from one to three years while leases of equipment RiBZEOBZZEAREF - REEAA
are negotiated for five years. In determining the length of the non- W2 AEBEREHNZEBUETES
cancellable period, the Group applies the definition of a contract DMITH - BAANEEEREABAZHEER
and determines the period for which the contract is enforceable. 25T

Information about leases for which the Group is a lessee is presented

below:
(a) Right-of-use assets (a) fEAREE
Properties Equipment Total
L/ES & @z
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT FHT FHET
Cost 2%
At 1 January 2022 W-ZE-——#F—H—8 199,912 1,944 201,856
Additions = 89,237 - 89,237
Written off on expiry of leases TR %051 A 05 1l 8 (148,754) - (148,754)
At 31 December 2022 R—E-_—F+=-A=+—H 140,395 1,944 142,339
Additions NE 38,933 - 38,933
Written off on expiry of lease FE A9 B HA R A SR (51,158) - (51,158)
At 31 December 2023 R-E-_=F+=-HA=+—H 128,170 1,944 130,114
Depreciation e
At 1 January 2022 R-ZE-_—_F—HF—H 141,984 130 142,114
Charge for the year REFHTE 56,656 389 57,045
Elimination upon written off TH 49 5 HAH 85 B
on expiry of leases E ki (148,754) - (148,754)
At 31 December 2022 RZEZZF+=-A=+—H 49,886 519 50,405
Charge for the year REEFE 45,423 388 45,811
Elimination upon written off GERSEIEE S
on expiry of lease 38 (51,158) - (51,158)
At 31 December 2023 R-B-=F+=A=+—H 44,151 907 45,058
Carrying amounts IRTEE
At 31 December 2023 R-BZ=F+=A=t+—H 84,019 1,037 85,056
At 31 December 2022 RZZ_—_F+-A=+—H 90,509 1,425 91,934
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #r& B R M &L
For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE T -_=F+_A=+—HILtFE

21. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS AND LEASE 2. EAEEENRMEEER®
LIABILITIES (contd)
(b) Lease liabilities (b) HEEE
2023 2022
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAT
Lease liabilities payable within a period of: 7R T3 HFEEMNEEERE ¢
Less than one year —F AT 43,275 35,332
More than one year but within two years —F A ETHBEmE 36,891 28,968
More than two years but within five years R4 A _H{B B A 1,793 24,276
81,959 88,576
Less: Amounts due within one year W —F AR B2 5RIE (43,275) (35,332)
Amounts due after one year —F1E BB 2 K08 38,684 53,244

The amounts recognised in profit or loss in relation to leases are REZTHEAEHEEE 2 ENRMT11R14
disclosed in Notes 11 and 14. NIKEE -

The total cash outflow for leases for the year ended 31 December BHE-_Z-_=F+-_A=+—BLEFE
2023 was approximately HK$53,151,000 (2022: HK$64,015,000). HEZRSMELAELNR53,151,0008 T

(ZE =4 : 64,015000 ) °
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23.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #R&

ISR R MR

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE T -_=F+_-_A=+—HILFE

2. BILEE

INTANGIBLE ASSETS
Cost 2%
At 1 January 2022, R-ZEBE-_—_F—HF—8-

—ECoF+ZA=+—HEK
—E-_=F+-A=+—H

31 December 2022 and
31 December 2023

B R EE

At 1 January 2022, RZE-_—_F—HF—H"
31 December 2022 and —E-_—F+-_A=+—-BK
31 December 2023 —E-=F+=-A=+—H

Amortisation and impairment

REE
R-EBE-_=F+=-A=+—H

Carrying amounts
At 31 December 2023

At 31 December 2022 RZE-_—F+=-A=+—H

The above intangible assets have definite useful lives. Such intangible

assets are amortised on a straight-line basis over five years.

INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR USING
THE EQUITY METHOD

Trading and
exchange
rights Trademark Total
EEREZE [ B
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET THET THTT
2,705 14,300 17,005
2,705 14,300 17,005

biiEPEERGREERFEY  YABRLKE
RAOFHE -

23. LERZEARZKRE

2023 2022
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHxT FiBT
Interests in associates: /NG
Cost of investments in associates B E N AR
— unlisted -3kEm 283,928 283,928
Share of post-acquisition profits/losses and BEERET BB R
other comprehensive income/expenses, Hip 2 mE e, S
net of dividends received BB W E 1,752,221 1,557,031
2,036,149 1,840,959
—Eo=FER  gAEgEE 239



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #r& B R M &L
For the year ended 31 December 2023 HEZE T =_=F+-_A=+—HIFE

23. INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR USING 23. LERZARZEE®

THE EQUITY METHOD (contd)

Particulars of the Group's principal associates as at 31 December
2023 are set out in Note 47.

The Company provided corporate guarantees to secure bank
borrowings granted to its associates in prior years. The fair value of
the financial guarantee contract at initial recognition was determined
by an independent qualified professional valuer, and was recognised
as investments accounted for using the equity method and financial
guarantee liabilities in the Group'’s consolidated statement of financial

position.

As at 31 December 2023, the investment properties held by the
Group's principal associates were valued by Peak Vision Appraisals
(2022: B.I. Appraisals). Peak Vision Appraisals (2022: B.l. Appraisals)
continues to adopt investment method and/or direct comparison
method as the valuation methodologies. The valuation methods
and significant assumptions applied in determining the fair values of

investment properties are detailed in Note 19.

All of the associates are accounted for using the equity method in

these consolidated financial statements.

The information below reflects the amounts presented in the
unaudited financial statements of associates which were prepared
in accordance with HKFRSs adjusted for the differences arising from
accounting policies and different financial year-end dates between

the Group and the associates, if any.

240 CHINESE ESTATES HOLDINGS LIMITED  ANNUAL REPORT 2023

B

EER-—E-_=F+-_A=+—BZFER
ENRZFBEINNHIEAT

ARBNBAEFELEBZERRRERFER
ERERRITEEZER - WEERAONE
HRZATERBIAEREXMGEMETE -
W ERANEE 2556 M BRI IRER AR B IA
EREANRZRE NI BEREE -

RZZEZ_=F+ZA=+—RH XAEEXZE
BERRRBZREMECRSEIE (=T
ToF  RABEBRF G ETER - REFME
(ZF_—F  REBERFB)FERAREX
R/ RERLEERMMET L - FAREER
EMERTFEZHEETERETZ2HRERNME
197F4L

PRAH 2 R B ABERIEN ARSI EHERA
FIER -

AT R R BB A T2 R BB I
2HZEE  REHBREREEYHREE
RIS Bt A S R A T R B A R
2% B BFRBEEK B (0E) L B
R -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #R&

23. INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR USING

THE EQUITY METHOD (contd)

Interests in associates

The summarised financial information in respect of the Group's

material associate, Finedale Industries Limited, is set out below:

Finedale Industries Limited

Non-current assets
Current assets

Current liabilities

Net assets

Revenue

Profit for the year

Total comprehensive income for the year

Reconciliation of the summarised financial
information presented to the carrying amount

of its interest in the associate:
Net assets at 1 January

Total comprehensive income for the year
Dividend declared

Net assets at 31 December

Interest held by the Group

Group's interest in the associate and

the carrying amount

Dividend received from the associate

during the year

ISR R MR

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE T -_=F+_-_A=+—HILFE

=S 2

23. LIRS

Il

rEFEE
AR ERIIIT

K

VNGl
i = 2 A

EARZEE®

- EHEXERARZ

EHBEXERAT
2023 2022
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHxT FHBT
EmBEE 3,870,000 3,678,000
MENEE 92,515 84,479
MEAE (77,424) (74,340)
BEFE 3,885,091 3,688,139
WA 128,360 117,179
NF Z 5 T 286,943 125,411
AFEEEHNELE 286,943 125,411
B N B i o 2 PR B (B B
BIIEER B E YR
R—A—HZEEFE 3,688,139 4,305,654
AFEEZEPEBEE 286,943 125,411
EIRRE (89,991) (742,926)
R+-_A=+—RZ2EE%E 3,885,091 3,688,139
AEERE 2B 33.33% 33.3300
REBRZBE AR 2
M REE 1,295,031 1,229,380
RAFEBERE S B ZRE
29,997 247,642

—EC=FEFR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RE MR

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE T -_=F+_A=+—HILtFE

23. INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR USING

24.

THE EQUITY METHOD (contd)

Interests in associates (Cont'd)

Aggregate financial information of associates that are not individually

material:

Group's share of results for the year
Group's share of other comprehensive

expenses for the year

Group's share of total comprehensive

income for the year

Group's aggregate interests in these associates

and the carrying amounts

Dividends received from associates

during the year

ADVANCES TO ASSOCIATES

Interest-bearing advance to an associate

Interest-free advances to associates

The advances to associates are unsecured. The Group will not
demand for repayment within one year from the end of the reporting
period and the amounts are therefore shown as non-current.

The interest-bearing advance to an associate bears interest at the

prevailing market rate.

23. UERZEARZRE @

ERIFFER 2B E AR B ERHRER

2023 2022

HK$'000 HK$'000

FHxT FHBT

AEBB(hANFFEE 200,625 3577

AEEBEEARFE
Hh 2 msE (1,011) (160)
AEEBEARFEE

ZHEREEEE 199,614 3,417
AEERZEBERRZ

4R EE M ARE(E 741,118 611,579
RAFEBRBE AR Z

:85) 70,075 51,625

24, B JHEE N B FRIE

2023 2022

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FHBT

BN —EEE R EZET B RUR 46,906 39,422

BB E QR 2 R BFIE 13,107 3,323

60,013 42,745

BNBE R R FUBVERI - AEBTEEK

RS R — B RE - MRS
FIEIERDIEE - B BB EAT2ZHE
PR B 2 TSR RIS -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #& BB R M
For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE T -_=F+_-_A=+—HILFE

25. FINANCIAL ASSETS MEASURED AT FAIR

25. B RERURMAFETEZ

VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS TREE
2023 2022
HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT FAT
Investments held-for-trading (note (i)) FEEE 21 E (MHFE3) 188,545 334,011
Bonds (note (i) &% (M EE (i) 153,963 254,513
Structured product and derivative financial REMEREITESRIA
instrument (note (iii)) GEIO) - 5,255
Club and corporate debentures (note (iv)) g EAFES M (V) 57,170 56,150
399,678 649,929
Analysed for reporting purpose as: TERERB 2D
Non-current FERMEE 60,359 87,635
Current mENME 339,319 562,294
399,678 649,929

As at 31 December 2023, the aggregate carrying amount of
investments held-for-trading and bonds was approximately
HK$342,508,000 (2022: HK$588,524,000), including investments
held-for-trading and bonds with aggregate carrying amount of
approximately HK$55,621,000 (2022: HK$65,054,000) which were
available to be loaned to financial institution for earning lending fee
income and the same or substantially the same securities would
be returned to the Group, pursuant to the terms and conditions
contained in the securities pooled lending agreements, of which
approximately HK$25,077,000 (2022: HK$32,502,000) investments
held-for-trading and bonds were on loan at the end of the reporting

period.

RZTE-_=F+=-A=+—8  #HIEESE
KERES ZREBERRELR342,508,000%8
(=T = =4 : 588,524,000/ L) * EHE
H{EAEEH A55,621,0008 L (ZFE ==
65,054,000 TT) Z IHIEEEZRERESFR
BEERIZAHEE BRI 2GR HE
ETeRgEARREEBRRA  MZEES
IRBERCELFEEHETAEE - RBE
HR BPEEAHZFHEEEZRERGS
ZERMEEX A25,077,0008 (===
32,502,000/ 7T) °

—E-=EER
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #R&

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HEZE T =_=F+-_A=+—HIFE

25. FINANCIAL ASSETS MEASURED AT FAIR
VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS (contd)

Notes:

®

(ii)

The investments held-for-trading comprised equity securities
listed in Hong Kong or elsewhere. As at 31 December 2023,
carrying amount of approximately HK$188,545,000 (2022:
HK$328,339,000) were traded in active markets and their fair
values are determined based on the quoted market bid prices
available on the respective stock exchanges in Hong Kong or
elsewhere. As at 31 December 2022, the remaining with carrying
amount of approximately HK$5,672,000 was suspended trading
listed equity securities which were measured at fair value with
reference to valuation carried out by an independent qualified
professional valuer, details of the fair value measurements are
disclosed in Note 5(c).

The bonds denominated in US$ include zero coupon bond and
the remaining bonds carry interests at fixed rates ranging from
1.000% to 13.000% per annum, of which bonds with notional
amount of US$22,091,333 are callable. The bonds denominated
in GBP carry interests at fixed rate of 6.375% and 7.125% per
annum and are callable.

The listed bonds are traded in active market and stated at fair
values at the end of the reporting period. Their fair values are
determined with reference to market bid prices quoted by financial
institutions and brokers. For unlisted bond measured at fair value,
details of the fair value measurements are disclosed in Note 5(c).

The maturity dates of the bonds with material amounts
denominated in US$ and GBP are as follows:

Notional amount Maturity
US$15,500,000 2024
US$6,881,404 2025
US$3,826,808 2027
US$12,948,333 2031
US$12,200,000 Perpetual
GBP5,000,000 Perpetual
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #& BB R M
For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE T -_=F+_-_A=+—HILFE

25. FINANCIAL ASSETS MEASURED AT FAIR
VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS (contd)

Notes: (Cont'd)

(i)  As at 31 December 2022, the structured product represented
an equity linked note with fixed interest rate which was issued
by a financial institution and stated at fair value at the end of
the reporting period. Details of the fair value measurements are
disclosed in Note 5(c).

As at 31 December 2022, the derivative financial instrument
represented cross currency swap. The table below was prepared
based on the maturity date of the contract. The major terms of the
cross currency swap at the end of the reporting period were as
follows:

US$/HKS$ cross currency swap En/BrEBES
— within 1 year -—%R

At 31 December 2022 R-ZE—_—
+=—A=+—H

The Group used the cross currency swap to exchange US$
denominated bank borrowing of approximately US$147,387,000
into HK$ denominated bank borrowing of HK$1,148,000,000.
The cross currency swap was stated at fair value at the end of
the reporting period. Details of the fair value measurements are
disclosed in Note 5(c).

(iv)  The club and corporate debentures are stated at fair values at the
end of the reporting period. Details of the fair value measurements
are disclosed in Note 5(c).

Included in non-current assets, there were financial assets measured
at FVTPL of approximately HK$60,359,000 (2022: HK$87,635,000).
They were included in non-current assets according to their intended

holding periods.

25. BRERURRAFEFEZ

EWMEE®

faE - (@)

iy R-T-_—F+-_A=+—08 @#E4HE
mIEREHBEEABE TR E LKA —HE
SREBET  BRREHRURFET

R o REEFHEZHFBERMES(C)AE
= o
%::::¢+ B=+—8  $1£%m
TEVEEEEH - TRIIBEALEIEH
ARE - AREHRERBH TE2HKK
NN
Notional amount Fair value
ZESH A¥E
US$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FHET
147,387 1,148,000 1,250

REEUEEEHBEETHERITEED
147,387,000 e X AB TTEHAERITEE
1,148,000,000/87C - RIfEHIR - SR
HAAFEYER - AFEFEZFHFBER
MHEES(C) I EE ©

REERR  GERRARESFARTFET
c RFEEFTEZFHBERMEES (R

o

)

R T

ERBEEPRERRBEURMATETE
Z & BEEX60,359,0008 (T =
87,635,000/ 7T) ° RIFEWF 2 ¥ EFH B
EFAERBEE ©

—ECoC=EFR EABEEE 245



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %R & B # 8k M &

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE T -_=F+_A=+—HILtFE

26. FINANCIAL ASSETS MEASURED 26. BB EMEEUWE A RIRAF
AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH OTHER BiffEzemEE

COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

2023 2022
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAET
Listed investment: FHEE
— Equity securities listed in Hong Kong (note (i)) - R& S LW RAE S () - 109,766
Unlisted equity securities: ELTIRAES
~ Incorporated in Hong Kong (note (ii)) — RBE BT S (R EEGD)) 195,680 235,750
— Incorporated elsewhere (note (iii)) — RE A bR 5 A S (BT RE Gir)) - 290,030
195,680 635,546
Analysed for reporting purpose as: TERE MR Z M
Non-current EREME 195,680 525,780
Current (note (i) e En I E (B EE@)) - 109,766
195,680 635,546
Notes: M aE
(i)  During the year ended 31 December 2023, all of the Evergrande (i)

Shares were disposed in the open market of the Stock Exchange.

As at 31 December 2022, the Group held certain Evergrande
Shares and trading in the shares of China Evergrande on the Stock
Exchange had been halted from 9:00 am on 21 March 2022 and
resumed on 28 August 2023.

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the unrealised loss
on fair value change of the Evergrande Shares of approximately
HK$105,701,000, that fair value of the suspended trading
Evergrande Shares was measured with reference to valuation
carried out by an independent qualified professional valuer at
the end of the reporting period, was recorded in financial assets
measured at FVTOCI reserve.

As at 31 December 2022, subject to resumption of trading, the
Group intended to continue selling the Evergrande Shares. The
Evergrande Shares that remained unsold had been presented as
current assets in the consolidated statement of financial position
as at 31 December 2022 as the carrying amount would be
recovered principally through sales in the next twelve months.
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26.

27.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RE MR

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE T -_=F+_-_A=+—HILFE

FINANCIAL ASSETS MEASURED
AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH OTHER
COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (contd)

Notes: (Cont'd)

(i) As at 31 December 2023, the carrying amount mainly comprised
investments in a property development project in Hong Kong
of HK$78,208,000 (2022: HK$127,913,000) and a property
investment in Hong Kong of approximately HK$84,992,000 (2022:
HK$78,725,000).

(i) During the year ended 31 December 2023, the Group proceeded

winding up of the investment fund in an exempted limited
partnership formed under the Exempted Limited Partnership Law
(Revised) of the Cayman Islands (“Cayman Islands Partnership”).
It was dissolved at the end of the reporting period.

For unlisted equity securities measured at fair value, details of the fair

value measurements are disclosed in Note 5(c).

Included in non-current assets, there were financial assets
measured at FVTOCI of approximately HK$195,680,000 (2022:
HK$525,780,000). They were included in non-current assets

according to their intended holding periods.
ADVANCES TO INVESTEE COMPANIES

The advances to investee companies are unsecured and interest-
free. Except for an amount of approximately HK$211,507,000
(2022: nil) which is expected to be recovered within one year and is
shown as current, the Group will not demand for repayment for the
remaining amounts within one year from the end of the reporting

period and the amounts are therefore shown as non-current.

26.

27.

BEE M E A RBRAF
EHFfEzERMEE®

BT - ()

iy RZTZ=F+=-A=+—H FHE
TZARER —BURBEBZMESR
[RIEE 78,208,000 (=T = — 4 :
127,913,000 L) AR —TBUREEZ
BAMELSA,992,0008 (=T ==
78,725,000/47T) °

REBE-ZE-_=F+-_A=+t—HLFE
N AEER-HEZERSHSERR2ER
EREEEEBIDRIZERRLERE
BEE(REFEARORENDETZE
BEG2ER - RHERRZKELARD

SRR

(iil)

AR FEAEZIFLTRAFESME © BF
BFfEZFBERMES(QARE °

ERBEEPEEBBEMEE S IARED
FEFTE 2SR EEL 1956800008 T(=F
Z 4 : 525,780,000/ 7T) © IRIEFEE 2 HE
BEHmMT A ERBDEE -

BN EZREQFMIE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %R & B # 8k M &

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HEZE T =_=F+-_A=+—HIFE

28. DEFERRED TAXATION 28.

The following is the major deferred tax liabilities provided (assets

recognised) by the Group and movements thereon during the

IEER TR

AT AAEBERARE HE B E RS HRE
TRECHRBRBECREBEEIER) REE

current and prior reporting periods: B
Accelerated
Investment tax
properties  depreciation Tax losses Total
REYE MERERE BEEE e
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET FET FAT
At 1 January 2022 R-E-—F—A—H 27,489 37,894 (11,063) 54,320
Exchange adjustments b H A% 34 3,711 328 (3,349)
Charged (credited) to the RérE 2 EREREF
consolidated statement of mGEEA)
comprehensive income (BF5E13)
(Note 13) 12,323 (1,794) 711 11,240
At 31 December 2022 P ——
+-A=+—nR 39,846 32,389 (10,024) 62,211
Exchange adjustments P H A% 631 1,949 (22) 2,558
(Credited) charged to the a2 ERERERFR
consolidated statement of (GPNEILS
comprehensive income (F3E13)
(Note 13) (11,008) 15,209 (9,654) (5,453)
At 31 December 2023 R=Z==
+=A=+-8H 29,469 49,547 (19,700) 59,316
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RE MR

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE T -_=F+_-_A=+—HILFE

28. DEFERRED TAXATION (contd)

For the purpose of the presentation in the consolidated statement of
financial position, certain deferred tax liabilities and assets have been
offset. The following is the analysis of the deferred tax balances for

financial reporting purposes:

EEHIBEAR
BELERIAEE

Deferred tax liabilities

Deferred tax assets

At the end of the reporting period, the Group has the following major
unrecognised deferred tax assets which were not recognised due to

the unpredictability of the future profit streams.

R IASTE
Birs R R

Accelerated tax depreciation

Tax losses

At the end of the reporting period, the Group’s estimated unused
tax losses not recognised of approximately HK$5,866,000 (2022:
HK$14,636,000) will be expired in one to five years, and other
unrecognised tax losses of approximately HK$3,602,605,000 (2022:
HK$3,337,252,000) may be carried forward indefinitely and subject

to the confirmation from the respective tax authority.

28.

IE #E B 18 ()

REEMBMRBER LY ETEEHRIER
BEREECIEHE - RYBRE Mg BTN
HEEHOHTT

2023 2022
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FHEIT
60,193 63,045

(877) (834)
59,316 62,211

REEHR - NEB AR EATRR AR IORT M
AERBAT 2 EFERERRLEHRBEE -

2023 2022
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHERT FHEIT
(28) (193)
(595,896) (554,306)
(595,924) (554,499)

REER - NREBR—ERFERE iR
R hEH R EABRBEEERL 55,866,000/
TL(ZE =4 : 14,636,000/ 7T) * RE#HF
TR 2 B I E18493,602,605,000/8 T (ZF =
Z4F 1 3,337,252,000% 70) Al AEPR AR AE G -
ARG RER -

TEIC-FFR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE T -_=F+_A=+—HILtFE

29. OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS

(a)

(b)

0)

Pledged deposits

The amounts represent deposits pledged to banks to secure
credit facilities granted to the Group. Deposits amounting to
approximately HK$152,929,000 (2022: HK$71,128,000)
have been pledged to secure short-term borrowings and are
therefore classified as current assets. As at 31 December
2022, the remaining deposits amounting to approximately
HK$76,697,000 had been pledged to secure long-term

borrowings and were therefore classified as non-current assets.

The pledged deposits carry interest at prevailing market
deposit rates. The pledged deposits will be released upon the

repayment of relevant borrowings.

Securities trading receivables and deposits

Securities trading receivables and deposits are mainly amounts

due from clearing house, brokers and clients.

Time deposits, bank balances and cash

The time deposits and certain bank balances carry interest
at prevailing market deposit rates. As at 31 December 2023
and 2022, all of the time deposits have original maturity not
greater than three months. The Group does not hold collateral

over the deposit balances.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

30. DEBTORS, DEPOSITS, OTHER

RE MR

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE T -_=F+_-_A=+—HILFE

RECEIVABLES AND PREPAYMENTS

Trade receivables

Less: Allowance for credit losses

Deposits and prepayments
Interest receivables from bonds and structured
products (net of allowance for credit losses)

Other receivables

Analysed for reporting purpose as:
Non-current

Current

30. BWRARIE - < - HMEBWER
BRENKRE

2023 2022
HK$'000 HK$'000
FH T FHBT
W E HERIE 6,611 8,940
B EEEEEE (4) 4
6,607 8,936
e MFERFRIE 54,683 136,045

BHEMEBIEERZEWRFE
(KR EEEERB) 4,665 2,791
H e AR IE 143,380 122,777
209,335 270,549

ERERBBRZ DT

JEMENEE 4,904 84,081
mENEE 204,431 186,468
209,335 270,549

Included in debtors, deposits, other receivables and prepayments
are trade receivables of approximately HK$6,607,000 (2022:
HK$8,936,000), which comprised rental and building management

fee receivables billed in advance and settlements from tenants which

are expected upon receipts of billings and receivables from property

management services and cosmetics business.

The carrying amounts of trade receivables (net of allowance for

credit losses) of the Group's major businesses are as follows:

Rental receivables from property leasing
Receivables from building and
property management services

Receivables from cosmetics business

FEWERTE « Ze - HMmEUWERTE RTER KB
BIERWE 5 IR1E496,607,0008 0(Z 2 ==
F 1 8,936,000/ 7T) - RIETESLFE MIBEAME
FParlEl kit 2 ElHe REFER
B URKREVETERERICEMER ZIE
U BRTH -

AEETEXBREEZREMHREREER
B ZEmEWET

2023 2022
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHxT FHBT
MEREZEKES 1,262 1,183

BFRMESERB 2

FEUERIA 3,296 6,152
bk fn 275 2 TR ARTE 2,049 1,601
6,607 8,936
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE T -_=F+_A=+—HILtFE

30. DEBTORS, DEPOSITS, OTHER

RECEIVABLES AND PREPAYMENTS (contd)

The Group maintains a defined credit policy to assess the credit

quality of each counterparty. The collection is closely monitored to

minimise any credit risk associated with these trade receivables.

Rental and building management fee in respect of leased properties

are payable in advance by the tenants. Other trade debtors settle

their accounts according to the payment terms as stated in the

respective contracts.

The following is the aged analysis of trade receivables (net of

allowance for credit losses), presented based on the respective

revenue recognition dates, at the end of the reporting period:

0-30 days
31-60 days
61-90 days
Over 90 days

FE=1H
=t+—RAZxt+A
AT—HEATH
At+BRE

The following is the aged analysis of trade receivables which are past

due but not impaired:

0-30 days
31-60 days
61-90 days
Over 90 days
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16 % 84 508 )

30. BWHRIE - &< - HittBEWR

AEBEEHRIRABZEERER  NFHEERS
FZEREEER - AEERERYRER - B
KEEREZFRVESRBRBZEER
- HEMEXZHERBFTERBEARELE
XM o R B S EFAREER A L RFIHA

ZIRIEFRERREREA ©

REBZEBEBAZEIBMET 2 BEEZRE

(MBREEBERB RNREHER BRI
T

2023 2022

HK$'000 HK$'000

FHET FAT

3,336 4813

1,652 2,640

933 637

686 846

6,607 8,936

EEMMEREIRE 2 B E 5 RE 2 Rk o 1T

NN
2023 2022
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FET
4,732 5,336
178 412
21 125
574 671
5,505 6,544




30. DEBTORS, DEPOSITS, OTHER
RECEIVABLES AND PREPAYMENTS (contd)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RE MR

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE T -_=F+_-_A=+—HILFE

45)

30. BWRARIE - < - HMEBWER
B R A RRIEA(

Movement in the allowance for credit losses: FEBEREZES)
2023 2022
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHBT
At 1 January m—H—8 4 4
Allowance for credit losses recognised HIEWE 5 BRIAHER
in respect of trade receivables EEEBERE = 1
Amount written off as uncollectible AUk Bl i e 2 FoE - Q)
At 31 December R+=—A=+—H 4 4

For those past due but not impaired receivables, although the Group
does not hold any collateral as security, the Group has assessed the
creditworthiness, past payment history and substantial settlement
after the end of the reporting period, and considers that the amounts

are still recoverable and no further credit provision is required in

excess of allowance for credit losses.

Out of the past due balances, trade receivables over 90 days
comprise mainly rental and building management fee receivables
of approximately HK$574,000 (2022: HK$582,000), which are
sufficiently covered by rental and/or building management fee

deposits received from the respective tenants, and no allowance is

required for these receivables under the Group's allowance policy. UBR IR VE L a8 o

Trade receivables which are neither overdue nor impaired are in

good quality.

4 -

— = — =

—=

5 5 3

MEBMEREREZEKERME - #RK
SEYWESAETANERRERR  AEESH
HEZ BEESEHINBERARRZEIE
MEIRELAT - YRARSHRDTRE - &
BIEE— T GREEERBB ZEEHE -

RE@mBERY  BRNTBEBZERESER
BFERERKES REFEREL574,000
BIL(ZZT =4 : 582,000/ 7T) (H B AUk
REBAEP 2 MR FEFEREEBIRE MR
&) IREANEE 2 BEBR

BARKEIE

REBMTREREZEREFERRAZERR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RE MR

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE T -_=F+_A=+—HILtFE

31. STOCK OF PROPERTIES 31.
As at 31 December 2023 and 2022, all of the stock of properties
were completed properties and the Directors reviewed the carrying
amounts of the completed properties with reference to prevailing
market conditions and the estimated selling prices provided by Peak
Vision Appraisals (2022: B.I. Appraisals).
During the years ended 31 December 2023 and 2022, no write-
down of completed properties was recognised in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income.

32. INVENTORIES 32.
Finished goods B an
Raw materials R
All inventories were stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value.

33. ASSETS CLASSIFIED AS HELD FOR SALE 33.

During the year ended 31 December 2022, an indirect wholly-

owned subsidiary of the Company entered into a sale and purchase

agreement with a third party to dispose an investment property. As

at 31 December 2022, investment property with carrying amount

of approximately HK$27,602,000 was classified as held for sale and

the Group received sale deposit of approximately HK$2,235,000.

The disposal was completed during the year ended 31 December

2023.
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7E
2023 2022
HK$'000 HK$'000
FH&xT FHET
3,475 3,866
604 776
4,079 4,642

FBETREERKARATERFEMERREET
BE o

JIRBFEHEZEE

REBE-Z-_—F+-_A=+—HIFERN
AARlz —BHEEEEENBAREE=
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #& BB R M
For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE T -_=F+_-_A=+—HILFE

34. CREDITORS AND ACCRUALS 34, BAYIRIE R BT FOR
Included in creditors and accruals are trade payables of approximately ERNERIBEREFREREERENESHRELY
HK$2,516,000 (2022: HK$2,136,000). 2,516,000 L (ZF =4 : 2,136,000/
TT) °
The following is the aged analysis of trade payables, presented based BRIBFHZAHZI 2 ENESHRERRSEHR
on the invoice date, at the end of the reporting period: ZIREDITIT
2023 2022
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHETT
0-90 days TENTH 765 1,628
Over 90 days N+BNRE 1,751 508
2,516 2,136
35. BORROWINGS 35. 68
2023 2022
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET T
Secured bank borrowings repayable within AR T 5 BRI (E R 2 BRI
a period of (note): RITEE (D) -
Less than one year —FLT 1,303,871 1,211,577
More than one year but within two years —F A L ETBERmRE 73,871 674,221
More than two years but within five years M DA H1B B 1,586,452 1,531,560
2,964,194 3,417,358

Secured bank borrowings that contain repayment [ #5i% Z k(& E (K58 2 B K 1F
on demand clause (shown as current liabilities) — RITEE GIHERBAE) -

but repayable within a period of (note): MEZER T 51 AR EE (B 5E) -
Less than one year —FUT 587,139 202,524
More than one year but within two years —F A BT EBAMRE 11,139 586,524
More than two years but within five years MEL EETBERF 33,417 31,571
More than five years AFENE 255,959 648,955
887,654 1,469,574
Total secured bank borrowings HIRFIRITIEE BT 3,851,848 4,886,932
Less: Amounts due within one year B —F AR B2 5RIE (2,191,525) (2,681,151)
Amounts due after one year —F1EF|BR 2 5RIB 1,660,323 2,205,781
Note: The amounts due are based on scheduled repayment dates as set Mzt - ZEEBH SHIRERBERHEI2EE
out in the loan agreements. BRAE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #r& B R M &L
For the year ended 31 December 2023 HEZE T =_=F+-_A=+—HIFE

35. BORROWINGS (contd) 35. BE®

The bank borrowings denominated in HK$ are variable-rate
borrowings which carry interest ranging from HIBOR plus 0.75%
to 1.30% (2022: ranging from HIBOR plus 0.75% to 1.20%) per

annum.

The borrowings denominated in GBP (2022: US$ and GBP) from
banks and a financial institution are variable-rate borrowings which
carry interest at cost of funds of a financial institution plus 1.25%
or ranging from compounded reference rate plus 1.62% to 1.65%
(2022: cost of funds of a bank plus 0.90% or cost of funds of
a financial institution plus 1.25% or ranging from compounded

reference rate plus 1.40% to 1.62%) per annum.

The Group's borrowings that are denominated in currencies other

than HK$ are set out below:

GBP HEE
us$ ESH

As at 31 December 2023 and 2022, all borrowings were guaranteed
by the Company and/or a subsidiary of the Company.

In respect of bank borrowings with carrying amount of approximately
HK$2,964,194,000 (2022: HK$1,608,002,000) as at 31 December
2023, the Group is required to comply with respective financial
covenants in relation to the Group's consolidated tangible net worth
shall not be less than certain threshold throughout the continuance
of the relevant borrowings and/or as long as the borrowings
are outstanding. The Group has complied with these covenants

throughout the reporting period.
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ETTHEZBITEEAZEMEE  FH XK
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NHEEE(ZE - —F « EhEE)HEZRTT
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EM.e2EE165E(ZT 4 : —HERTT
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sy
= o
S

REBLEBTAINESHEZEEHINDT ¢

2023 2022
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTEx TAT
1,617,348 2,245,576
- 1,149,356
1,617,348 3,394,932

’M

R-B_=FR_FT__F+_A=+—H"
NN DS % /N Rl L =N I e =R =
EELHER

g
I

RZEZ=F+=ZA=+—H KEE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #& BB R M
For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE T -_=F+_-_A=+—HILFE

36. SHARE CAPITAL 36. A
Movement in the share capital of the Company during the years is as RARZBRARFERNZ ZEINT :
follows:
Number of shares Share capital
idvig gE| e
2023 2022 2023 2022
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET T
Ordinary shares of FRRMEE0I10E T
HK$0.10 each D
Authorised: EERA
At 1 January and R—HA—B &
31 December +=—A=+—H 5,000,000,000 5,000,000,000 500,000 500,000
Issued and fully paid: BEITRARRKRA
At 1 January and R—A—BX
31 December +=HA=+—H 1,907,619,079 1,907,619,079 190,762 190,762
37. AMOUNTS DUE TO ASSOCIATES, 37. REBMERT - ERXRERQT
INVESTEE COMPANIES AND RIFZERBRRAE
NON-CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS
The amounts due to associates, investee companies and non- REENT « BEXIRE QR RIFERRERK
controlling shareholders are unsecured and interest-free. The BEHRBERARRE - ZEBERF) - BXK
associates, investee companies and non-controlling shareholders ERRARIFERRRT® E RN RS BREs
will not demand for repayment within one year from the end of —FAEERIE - SR ERIEIEIERB
the reporting period and the amounts are therefore shown as non- Z o
current.
38. MAJOR NON-CASH TRANSACTIONS 3. XEHFHAERS
During the year ended 31 December 2023, dividend income from RBEZE-_T_=F+_A=1T—HLEFE
investee company(ies) and associates of HK$76,000,000 (2022: N REBEXREAREBERAZKE
HK$1,014,750,000) and approximately HK$72,172,000 (2022: A5 Bl A76,000,0008 (=T ==
HK$299,267,000) respectively have been settled through the 1,014,750,000/% 7T) & 472,172,000/ L (=&
current accounts with investee company(ies) and associates. T4 : 299,267,000 ) NiE BEFIRE R

B R B R B2 ERBRAE AT ©

Save as disclosed above and elsewhere in these consolidated B EXRAGEMEHREREMIB Y TIFES
financial statements, the Group did not have major non-cash Gy KEBUWEFTEZIFRERSH o
transactions.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %R & B # 8k M &

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HEZE T =_=F+-_A=+—HIFE

39. RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES ARISING 39. B (KM ESL BB 2HE

FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

The table below details changes in the Group's liabilities arising
from financing activities, including both cash and non-cash changes.
Liabilities arising from financing activities are those for which cash
flows were, or future cash flows will be, classified as cash flows from

financing activities in the Group’s consolidated statement of cash

TR AKEREXBHMEE CABEEDF
B BRASIFREEY  BEXBHEL
ZBENEARSREGARKRERENRE
RAFBEZEARERERANDERBERD
EEZREREZALE -

flows.
Amounts
due to non-
controlling Lease Interest
Borrowings shareholders liabilities payable Total
REFER
&g RERE HESE EAFIE ok
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THET TET TET TET TET
At 1 January 2022 R-ZE-—%—f—H 5455514 275 59,710 7,615 5523114
Financing cash flows RERERE (289,067) - (57,436)  (119,390)  (465,893)
Exchange adjustments b K% (279,515) - - (653)  (280,168)
Increase in lease liabilities from entering AN Z AT L # A4
into new leases during the year migmzHEERE - - 85,129 - 85,129
Total interest (Note 11) FlegE@E) - - 1,173 129,788 130,961
At 31 December 2022 i S—
+-RA=1+—H 4,886,932 275 88,576 17,360 4,993,143
Financing cash flows RERERE (1,145,154) (19) (45,640)  (230,461) (1,421,274)
Exchange adjustments ERRE 110,070 - - 621 110,691
Dividend declared to a non-controlling ~ EIRALE F— IR
shareholder R - 19 - - 19
Increase in lease liabilities from entering AN F[Z RIS # 4
into new leases during the year migmezBEaE - - 35,255 - 35,255
Total interest (Note 11) FlemzEfiE) - - 3,768 229,066 232,834
At 31 December 2023 R-B=-=%
+=ZA=+—-H 3,851,848 275 81,959 16,586 3,950,668
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #& BB R M
For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE T -_=F+_-_A=+—HILFE

40. PLEDGE OF ASSETS

41.

At the end of the reporting period, the carrying amounts of the assets
pledged by the Group to secure general banking facilities granted to

the Group, are analysed as follows:

Investment properties REME
Properties ES

Current pledged deposits BN IR
Non-current pledged deposits e BN F R

As at 31 December 2023 and 2022, interests in certain subsidiaries
of the Company have been pledged as part of the security to secure

certain bank borrowings granted to the Group.

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

40. EEBH

pa

i

RMEMK - AEERAREER Z —RIRTT
EXBEMEMZEERIAESTHOT

2023 2022
HK$°000 HK$'000
TR TAET
9,281,591 8,869,009
40,281 38,203
152,929 71,128
- 76,697
9,474,801 9,055,037

C R F__F+-A=t—H"

ARRETHEBAR ZEREERERAKE
ERETRITEE 2O EMR -

41. EXREIE

Authorised and contracted for: EHERBEEL
Redevelopment expenditure of properties MESERAX
Refurbishment of properties B
Purchases of equipment and leasehold BERHBREEYEERE

improvement

Capital investment in limited partnership (note) ~ AR A B % 2 BAKE (M

Note: The Group had committed to make a capital contribution of
US$100,000,000 in the Cayman Islands Partnership. During the
year ended 31 December 2023, the Group proceeded winding
up of this investment fund and it was dissolved at the end of
the reporting period. Up to 31 December 2022, approximately
US$93,349,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$724,064,000)
among the contribution had been contributed by the Group. As at
31 December 2022, the outstanding amount was approximately
US$6,651,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$5 1,866,000, after
exchange adjustment).

P& -

2023 2022
HK$'000 HK$'000

FHxT FHET

523,046 638,180

27,516 2,396

8,748 14,399

) - 51,866
559,310 706,841

AEBBRFAESHS AR ERFIED
100,000,000F L2 EATE - REE
TE-=F+-A=+—BHIEFERN-
AEBBETHZEEES 2 BEBITR
WMERREEHH - BHEZZT =
+ZA=+—H1t AEEBFTED
93,349, 000%7%(*@*‘“#@724 064,000/
TEREESE RN ZE-_—_F+=-A
=+—H "  KIEZ®FLA6,651,000
ET(FEER451,866,0005% T (4K [E 7,73
BIE)) ©
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #r& B R M &L
For the year ended 31 December 2023 HEZE T =_=F+-_A=+—HIFE

42.

43,

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

Guarantee given to a bank in respect of banking
facilities in lieu of the cash public utility deposit

jointly utilised by subsidiaries

42.

RNBARERARZRITEER
NBREZIR SN A EBIRE M
—RRITIRH 2 R

Guarantee given to a bank in respect of a banking &—R#ES L E R RIEA 2 R1T

facility utilised by an investee company/
indemnity given to a third party in relation to

an investee company

No provision for financial guarantee contracts and/or deed of
indemnity have been made as at 31 December 2023 and 2022 as

the Directors considered the default risk is low.

OPERATING LEASES

The Group as lessor

Property rental income earned during the year was approximately
HK$257,223,000 (2022: HK$293,650,000) less outgoings of
approximately HK$20,392,000 (2022: HK$28,056,000).

Variable lease payments that do not depend on an index or a rate
amounted to approximately HK$1,170,000 (2022: HK$540,000) for
the year ended 31 December 2023.

Most of the investment properties of the Group held in Hong Kong
have committed tenants with lease terms which ranged from two to
three years and in the United Kingdom have committed tenants with

lease terms of over five years.
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43,
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BERE-HEZIRENR
ERAFE=TRT2RERE

KREE
2023 2022
HK$'000 HK$'000
TExT TAT
15,000 15,000
613,830 613,830
628,830 628,830

HREEREEVRRE MR T -=FK
TR F+ - AZ+—HUYERMEERE
N, NRERELZIEEH B -

ERMEL
BB A

RAFERBDzZWERSKRADNA
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B 7T) IR B2 49520,392,0008 (2 - —
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43,

44,

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RE MR

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE T -_=F+_-_A=+—HILFE

OPERATING LEASES (contd) 43.
The Group as lessor (Cont'd)

The following table sets out a maturity analysis of lease payments,
showing the undiscounted lease payments under non-cancellable
operating leases to be received after the reporting date.

Within one year —FR

More than one year but within two years —F LA BT B F
More than two years but within three years M LA H{B TR = F
More than three years but within four years ZF LA BT EBEI
More than four years but within five years LA HETEBE R F
More than five years i T AR
RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEMES 44,

The Group operates defined contribution retirement schemes in
Hong Kong, namely the Occupational Retirement Scheme (“ORSO
Scheme”) and the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (“MPF
Scheme”). Contributions to the ORSO Scheme made by the Group
are based on a percentage of employees’ salaries ranging from 5%
to 10%, depending upon the length of service of the employees.
From 1 December 2000, newly joined employees are compulsorily
required to join the MPF Scheme. The employer and its employees
are each required to make contributions to the scheme at rates

specified in the rules of the MPF Scheme.

The total costs charged to the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income of approximately HK$8,548,000 (2022:
HK$8,615,000) represented contributions payable to these schemes
by the Group for the year.

EEHY @
AEEESHEAGE
ATE|%R PR ER R BIEE ST - BRRS

& BRI LA T8 k)
2 ABRBERK -

2023 2022
HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TAET
196,937 237,820
107,582 156,680
63,380 65,778
44,962 30,576
43,788 30,573
204,623 223,893
661,272 745,320

RIKERETE

REBLHEBFBRNATHIGT BB ABE
ROREHEI (B RIRET 8D R wl i A FE 25T
BB ETE) - REBRBERIKGTBIE
i E B FH B 2 5% 1000 R (R T8 B lREF
B) H_TBERTEFE+_A-HENAKREE
ZEEEHERNSMAESTE - BERIE
BY9/AIESE S8R RIZIAR 2 b =B H 4

=
/N

RGFEE2ERERRINIBRCERBEOAR
548,000 L(ZE = =4 : 8,615,000/
) AIAREBRAFEE MZ S EEN 2 #

oo

o

@A
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RE MR

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HEZE T =_=F+-_A=+—HIFE

45. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY

45.

TRANSACTIONS

Transactions:

In prior years, the Group entered into lease agreements (“Leases”) in
respect of leases of certain leasehold properties held by a company
controlled by a Director and the Trustee of Substantial Shareholders
as headquarters and premises intended to be used in connection
with the sale of a property redevelopment project of the Group.
During the year ended 31 December 2023, one of the Leases
expired and has been renewed (“Renewed Lease”) for a term of 2
years 4 months and 19 days commencing from 13 June 2023 to 31
October 2025.

Under the Leases and the Renewed Lease, the aggregate amount of
the current rent and building management fee payable per month
are approximately HK$3,610,000 and approximately HK$537,000
respectively; and the aggregate amount of security deposit paid as
at 31 December 2023 was approximately HK$12,937,000. At the
commencement date of the respective Leases and Renewed Lease,
the Group recognised the present value of the lease payments
over the lease term as lease liability and the aggregate amount of
lease liability and estimated costs to be incurred by the Group for
restoration of the property as right-of-use asset. As at 31 December
2023, the aggregate carrying amount of the lease liability and the
right-of-use asset of the Leases and the Renewed Lease were
approximately HK$75,085,000 (2022: HK$87,132,000) and
approximately HK$76,727,000 (2022: HK$90,509,000) respectively.
Rent and building management fee of the Leases and the
Renewed Lease for the year ended 31 December 2023 amounted
to approximately HK$51,484,000 (2022: HK$63,617,000) in
aggregate. The transactions of the Leases and the Renewed Lease
constituted connected transactions and continuing connected

transactions of the Company under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

Details of the Leases and the Renewed Lease were disclosed in the
announcements of the Company dated 28 February 2019, 12 June
2020, 28 March 2022 and 13 March 2023 and the paragraph
headed “Connected Transactions” in the section headed “Directors’

Report” of this annual report.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #& BB R M
For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE T -_=F+_-_A=+—HILFE

45. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY 45. EXRBAEA LR G @)
TRANSACTIONS (contd)

Transactions: (Cont'd) x5 (#)
Save as disclosed above and elsewhere in these consolidated B EXRERGEMBREEME D PARES
financial statements, the Group had the following material N REBERFRNEBEATETUTEARAR
transactions with related parties during the years: 5
2023 2022
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAT
Income received from associates: B AT A
Interest income FBUA 1,922 1,921
Accountancy fee eitE 120 120
Management fee TR 48 48
Income received from a Director and Bl —fEEREFERR ZET
the Trustee of Substantial Shareholders, A —HEER A FEFERR
a close family member of Directors and/or ZERABERE CRKEKE -
the Trustee of Substantial Shareholders, EERAEERRZEFEAE
companies controlled by Directors and/or Sl AFAREEZRR ZIEFTEA
the Trustee of Substantial Shareholders and ER—NUETEEBRAEZ
an entity of which the Trustee of Substantial —HERB WA
Shareholders is a member of the key
management personnel:
Rental services HE RS 4,414 3,353
Property management services, MEEERY -
leasing administration services and MEBITBRS &
property administration services METHRTE 28,505 30,603
Advisory and consultancy services EERGIRE T 39 38
Other ordinary services HAth—M RS 74 941
Licence fee paid to companies controlled by EN—UEERETEREZ
a Director and the Trustee of BErE ARSI Z AR 25 A &
Substantial Shareholders 7 147
Rent and building management fee paid to BEffBE R zElE R
associates BFERE 4,286 4,282
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45. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY

TRANSACTIONS (contd)

Transactions: (Cont'd)

Interest income was charged at the prevailing market rates based
on outstanding balances during the year. Accountancy fee was
charged based on an appropriate allocation of costs incurred by
central administrative departments of the Group. Management fee,
licence fee, rent, building management fee and security deposit
paid were determined based on terms similar to those applicable to

transactions with unrelated parties.

Income from services fees of rental services, property management
services, leasing administration services, property administration
services, advisory and consultancy services and other ordinary
services (the contract for services with effect from 1 November 2023
(details were disclosed in the announcement of the Company dated
16 August 2023) and the former contract for services (details were
disclosed in the announcement of the Company dated 14 August
2020 and the circular of the Company dated 7 October 2020))
were charged at the terms agreed by both parties. These related
party transactions constituted continuing connected transactions
of the Company under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. Details
of these continuing connected transactions are disclosed in the
paragraph headed “Connected Transactions” in the section headed

“Directors’ Report” of this annual report.

In prior year, the Group entered into a facility agreement with a
Director. At the request of the Group, the Director has agreed
to make available to the Group a revolving loan facility of up to
HK$2,000,000,000. During the year ended 31 December 2023, an
amount equivalent to approximately HK$282,210,000 was drawn
and the loan had been fully repaid (2022: not utilised). As at 31
December 2023, there was no outstanding balance of loan from
the Director (2022: nil). The facility is unsecured and interest-free.
The transaction was fully exempted from reporting, announcement,
independent shareholders’ approval and annual review requirements

under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #& BB R M
For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE T -_=F+_-_A=+—HILFE

45. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY

TRANSACTIONS (contd)

Balances:

Save as disclosed above, at the end of the reporting period,
the Group had balances with a Director and the Trustee of
Substantial Shareholders, companies controlled by Directors and/
or the Trustee of Substantial Shareholders and an entity of which
the Trustee of Substantial Shareholders is a member of the key
management personnel of approximately HK$23,619,000 (2022:
HK$22,791,000) in aggregate which was included in debtors and

other receivables.

Details of the balances with other related parties at the end of the

reporting period are set out in Notes 24 and 37.
Key management personnel emoluments:

Remuneration for key management personnel is disclosed in Notes
15 and 16. The remuneration of the Directors and senior executives
is recommended by the remuneration committee of the Company
for the approval of the board of Directors having regard to the
performance of individuals, their respective duties and responsibilities

in the Group and the prevailing market condition as appropriate.

45. ERBEALTRZ @)

R

BRIAEFTIREE - MIREHIR - AEEE—(UE
ERFTERRZETA -EERREER
RZERARFZARUREERR 2 (=5
MEA—NETBEEBAB —HEBIRS
EHE R /23,619,000 L (ZTZ2F -
22,791,000/ 7T) B B 15 1E FE M BR 18 I HLth fiE
W BRIEA o

RREHK  BEMBEBEATZXZELFS
IR HI5F24 537 ©

TEEEAESME :

TREEABMERNMEI5RI6ARKE - &
ERBRITBRABZMERARRARZHMES
2EEIALERR  BERAEEAEAZ
BEEEEIRERTRMERRANESTSZ
K -

TEIC-FFR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #r& B R M &L
For the year ended 31 December 2023 HEZE T =_=F+-_A=+—HIFE

46. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL 46. TEMB A BIFE
SUBSIDIARIES
The Directors are of the opinion that a complete list of the particulars EERAIHEBHBRARZFBSERER
of all subsidiaries would be of excessive length and therefore the TR -8t TRRFIR_Z_=F+_A
following list contains only the subsidiaries as at 31 December 2023 ST RYEARKEEENEEREENEY
which principally affected the results or assets of the Group. MEBARZFFE °
Issued and Proportion of
Place of Class of share/ fully paid paid-up share capital/
incorporation/ registered share capital/ registered capital
Name of subsidiary operation capital held  registered capital held by the Company  Principal activities
e,/ BRARAR KARFBHRRE/
WEARERE ERARY EE HMEEEH R&x/ZREL AMEXZEDL TEER
Directly Indirectly
BE B
Alpha Team Limited British Virgin Islands Ordinary Us$1 - 100% Investment holding
EREARES EER [E REER
Cardin Factory Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$2 - 100% Property trading
EABARAF BE ERR 28T NEEE
Chase Master Company Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$2 - 100%  Securities investment
RERRAA 0 LER 28T BERE
Chinese Estates, Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$1,000 100% - Investment holding
ENBEERAT BA Lk 1,000/ 7T and provision of
management services
REERR
RUEERS
Chinese Estates (Harcourt House) ~ Hong Kong Ordinary HK$200 - 100% Property investment
Limited BB ERR 2007 NERE
Country Homes Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$200 - 100% Property investment
B LR 200/7C NERE
Non-voting HK$164,400
deferred ordinary 164,400 7T
BREERTLRR
Non-voting HK$1,000
deferred founder 1,000/ 7T

EREEETAVAR

Evergo China Holdings Limited Bermuda/Hong Kong Ordinary ~ HK$100,775,869.10 - 100% Investment holding
BRE/BE BB 100,775869.105 RAERR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

46. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL

SUBSIDIARIES (contd)

Name of subsidiary

WELREE

Evergo Holdings (China)
Company Limited

EXREE(PE)BRAA

Evergo Intemational Holdings

Company Limited

Express Right Limited
AEBRARA

Fair Eagle Finance Credit Limited

AEERERAA

Fair Eagle Futures Company Limited

ABEHEERAA

Fair Eagle Securities Company

Limited
REEHERAT

Flying Ease Limited
AZERRT

Place of
incorporation/

operation

EMRY BB

British Virgin Islands/
Hong Kong

RBABREE/BE

Bermuda/Hong Kong
BRE/ER

British Virgin Islands/
United Kingdom
RB&AREE/5E

Hong Kong

Hong Kong

Hong Kong
A

British Virgin Islands

Fade)

ISR R MR

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE T -_=F+_-_A=+—HILFE

Class of share/
registered
capital held
Fries,/
SEREH

Ordinary
el

Ordinary
EBER
Ordinary

EE

Ordinary

Ordinary

Ordinary
LER

Ordinary
LER

46. TEMB LA RFHEE @

Issued and

fully paid

share capital/
registered capital
BRARAR
Ba/EREL

US$2,509,454
2,509,454% T

HK$200,000
200,000 7T
US$1

ES

HK$50,000,000
50,000,000/ 7

HK$5,000,000
5,000,000/ 7T

HK$228,000,000
228,000,000/ 7

Uss1
1T

Proportion of

paid-up share capital/

registered capital
held by the Company
KARFEBHRRE
aMEE AR
Directly  Indirectly
HE &

- 100%

100% -

- 100%

- 100%

- 100%

- 100%

- 100%
TEZ=FFR

Principal activities

TEER

Investment holding
REER

Investment holding
REER

Property investment

NERE

Securities margin
financier

Broking and dealing in
futures contracts and
provision of

advisory services on
futures contracts
Heaniik
BEERREMES

ARERRS

Provision of brokerage
and advisory services

on securities

Securities investment
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #r& B R M &L
For the year ended 31 December 2023 HEZE T =_=F+-_A=+—HIFE

46. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL 46. T EMEB A FFE @

SUBSIDIARIES (contd)

Issued and Proportion of
Place of Class of share/ fully paid paid-up share capital/
incorporation/ registered share capital/ registered capital
Name of subsidiary operation capital held  registered capital held by the Company  Principal activities
FiisRe,/ BRARAR KAFMBEHRRE/
WEAR AR ERARY BEHE EREREH B&x/ZREL SRERZEDL TEEY
Directly  Indirectly
HE &
Globe Eagle Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$2 - 100% Property investment
EEERAF BB el 28T NERE
Grade World Investment Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$2 - 100%  Securities investment
Mt EEBR A BE Epalit 287 EHRE
Hero Harmony Limited British Virgin Islands Ordinary US$1 - 100% Investment holding
EREARES Bl 1% REER
Hillsborough Holdings Limited British Virgin Islands/ Ordinary US$1 - 100%  Property investment
Hong Kong Epalit (B NERE
LBABRRER/BE
Knightlights Property Intemational ~ Luxembourg/ Ordinary GBP33,000 - 100% Property investment
SA. United Kingdom LRk 33,0005 88 MERE
ERE/HE
Landrich (H.K.) Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$1,000 - 100% Property investment
E#(ERBRAA A LER 1,00087 NEEE
Paul Y. Holdings Company Limited ~ Cayman Islands/ Ordinary ~ HK$70,715,005.70 100% - Investment holding
Hong Kong L@ER 707150057087 REER
Reks/ /3%
Perfect World Company Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$10,000 - 100%  Property management
BEVEERERAF ) il 10,0007 NEER
Pinwheel Investments Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$8 - 100% Property investment
KRB RRAF BB el 8T NERE
River Court Properties Limited Isle of Man/ Ordinary GBP2 - 100% Property investment
United Kingdom EER PES NERE
5RE/RE

268 CHINESE ESTATES HOLDINGS LIMITED ~ ANNUAL REPORT 2023



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

46. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL

SUBSIDIARIES (contd)

Fade)

ISR R MR

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE T -_=F+_-_A=+—HILFE

46. T EMB A BB

=

Issued and Proportion of
Place of Class of share/ fully paid paid-up share capital/
incorporation/ registered share capital/ registered capital
Name of subsidiary operation capital held  registered capital held by the Company  Principal activities
FiiRe,/ BRARAR KARFEBHRRE
WEAR AR EREY BE EREREH Ba/EREL SRERZEDL TEEH
Directly  Indirectly
HE &
Smart Profit (Hong Kong) Limited ~ Hong Kong Ordinary HK$2 - 100% Property investment
MEER)BRRF i el 28T NERE
Sound City Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$2 - 100% Property investment
BHBERAA BE Epalit 287 NERE
Speed Win Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$2 - 100% Property trading
MEFRAA BB EER 28T NEEE
State Smart Limited British Virgin Islands/ Ordinary US$1 - 100% Property investment
REARAA United Kingdom Lk IESi NERE
RBARRES/HE
The House of Kwong Sang Hong Kong Ordinary HK$500,000 - 100%  Cosmetics distribution
Hong Limited BA ERR 500,000 7T and trading
BEEARAT ftmaHRES
Tycoon Fame Limited British Virgin Islands Ordinary US$1 - 100% Investment holding
FRERRA RERARES Epalit (B REZR
Wing Lee Development Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$2 - 100%  Securities investment
K RRERAT BB EER 28T BHRE
FESUR)CEEEERAA  PRC Registered US$500,000 - 100%  Property investment
(Evergo (Beijing) Corporate # ERIEY 500,000% 7 NERE
Management Co, Ltd.)*
BEROLRREBRERAF.  PRC Registered US$1,250,000 - 100% Property trading
(Evergo Investment Counsel h HhER 1,250,000%7¢ NEEE
(Beijing) Co, Ltd.)*
None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities subsisting at RS BIR SPME I S AR - 0B A A
the end of the reporting period or at any time during the reporting BATEERES ©
period.
a Wholly foreign-owned enterprise A SNEEERE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %R & B # 8k M &

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HEZE T =_=F+-_A=+—HIFE

47. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL ASSOCIATES

The Directors are of the opinion that a complete list of the particulars

47. T EBE N TFEE

EERARIEEHBERRZHBETRIEBR

of all associates would be of excessive length and therefore the

following list contains only the associates as at 31 December 2023

which principally affected the results or assets of the Group.

Place of Class of share/
incorporation/ registered
Name of associate operation capital held
Fis it/
BELRER ML EE EMEREH
Best Profit Limited Hong Kong Ordinary
FHERAA 0 el
Direct Win Development Limited Hong Kong Ordinary
BRERERAA 0 el
Finedale Industries Limited Hong Kong Ordinary
EAEXERAR £ ERR
Power Jade Limited British Virgin Islands/ Ordinary
(Business name: Hong Kong LR
Power Jade Capital Limited) RERATES/
(EBaRE: BE
Power Jade Capital Limited)
The Kwong Sang Hong Bermuda Ordinary
International Limited BEE LRR
RREMARABRAAN PRC Registered
Oriental Arts Building Co, Ltd.* H HMER
i Sino-foreign equity joint venture enterprise
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TR - Ul TRARFBIN-F-_=F+_A
=t REARKEZREEREERERTVEL

[ /N =S
Issued and Proportion of
fully paid  equity attributable
share capital/ indirectly to
registered capital the Company Principal activities
ERTREAR KO RES
B/ ZREE RAZBAL TEXR
HK$1 250 Property investment
187 and trading
NEREREE
HK$900 33.3300 Property trading
9007 NEEE
HK$9,999 33.3300 Property investment
9,999/ 7T NERE
US$20 50% Investment holding
0% RAER
HK$100,000 50% Investment holding
100,000 7T RAER
US$24,920,000 50% Property investment
24,920,000F 7T and hotel operation

' INE BB

MERERBEEXH



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #& BB R M
For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE T -_=F+_-_A=+—HILFE

48. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND 48. AN R Bt IR iR FT & 18
RESERVES OF THE COMPANY

2023 2022
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
B 5T FHBxT FHET
Non-current assets REBEE
Investments in subsidiaries WEARIRE 5,135,758 5,135,799
Loans to subsidiaries MEARER 2,323,654 2,679,784
7,459,412 7,815,583
Current assets REBEE
Amounts due from subsidiaries WERARREZE 8,627,262 7,332,776
Other current assets HiRshEE 680 1,542
Time deposits and bank balances EHTF R R IRITE R 66,026 1,288,616
8,693,968 8,622,934
Current liabilities REBAE
Amounts due to subsidiaries KA B ARIIE 101,363 62,381
Other current liabilities IR = 513 602
101,876 62,983
Net current assets REBEERE 8,592,092 8,559,951
Total assets less current liabilities EERERRBEE 16,051,504 16,375,534
Equity attributable to owners of RRAREEABEREER
the Company
Share capital AR 36 190,762 190,762
Capital redemption reserve BB 138,062 138,062
Other reserve HiEE 9 9
Retained profits RE = 13,882,671 13,650,701
Total equity RAEREE 14,211,504 13,979,534
Non-current liability FRBEE
Loans from subsidiaries WEAAEE 1,840,000 2,396,000
16,051,504 16,375,534
Approved and authorised for issue by the board of Directors on PEEEGN S -_MFE=A+H B IR
15 March 2024 and signed on its behalf by: R TAHTIEERRESTSHFE
Chan, Hoi-wan BRElEE Chan, Lok-wan BREE R
Director o Director EE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %R & B # 8k M &

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE T -_=F+_A=+—HILtFE

48. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND 48. A QX R Bt IR iR &= B 18

RESERVES OF THE COMPANY (contd)

Reserve movement of the Company

At 1 January 2022 RZE-__F—H—H
Loss for the year REEEE
Unclaimed dividends forfeited SRR BER 2 BR B
(note) (P 5E)
At 31 December 2022 WZZE-——F+=-A=+—H
Profit for the year REZ @A
Unclaimed dividends forfeited SRR BE 2 BR B
(note) (P 3E)
At 31 December 2023 R-B-_=F+=-RA=+-—H

Note: Unclaimed dividends forfeited represented dividends declared
by the Company on or before 31 May 2017 (2022: 30 August
2016) remaining unclaimed by shareholders of the Company
on 21 August 2023 (2022: 2 November 2022). During the year
ended 31 December 2023, unclaimed dividends amounted
to approximately HK$4,519,000 (2022: HK$7,681,000) were
forfeited and transferred to retained profits.

49. AUTHORISATION FOR ISSUE OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The consolidated financial statements were approved and authorised
for issue by the board of Directors on 15 March 2024.
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ARBZRERE
Capital
redemption Other Retained
reserve reserve profits
EAREE B Hetb & R A
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TET TET
138,062 9 14,046,773
- - (403,753)
- - 7,681
138,062 9 13,650,701
= - 227,451
- - 4,519
138,062 9 13,882,671
BT - SRR AR 2 R BTV AR BN ZZT—

49,

tFRA=ZF+—R(ZEZ=F : =ZF—
ANENAZTE)RZAIERMARTZ
BER-_ZBE-_=FNA=-+—HB(=ZZE=
—E B —F+—AZRA) KSR
2B - REE T - =F+_A=+—
HIEFER  DABERZEESEL A
4,519,000 (=T = =4 : 7,681,000/
T0) BARSMT E B =R A o

RETIRGESMBRRE

EXg R ZE_HWF=AthAIEREE
TIBERAMB®RE -



FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY
EFUBHE

AEBBERFZRE  BEEAGEHREWT

Summary of the results, assets and liabilities of the Group for the last five

years is as follows:

For the year ended 31 December

BE+-HA=+—-HLEE

2023 2022 2021 2020 2019
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FTERT FHET FHT FAET FAET
Results E3
Revenue (note (i)) LON(iE0)) 479,589 1,434,990 1,299,826 3,041,464 1,309,952
(restated)
(&%)
Profit (loss) before tax BR B A& A (&5 18) 104,297 1,179,145 (3,480,360) 692,546 948,910
Income tax expense FIBfAY (27,158) (26,825) (33,188) (70,282) (157,258)
Profit (loss) for the year AEE A (EBE) 77,139 1,152,320 (3,513,548) 622,264 791,652
Profit (loss) for the year BIEAER
attributable to: w (&) -
Owners of the Company VN/NSIEFEDN 76,832 1,152,235 (3,515,305) 622,233 790,167
Non-controlling interests FEVERR I 2 307 85 1,757 3] 1,485
77,139 1,152,320 (3,513,548) 622,264 791,652
Eamnings (loss) per share (HK$) &R & FI(E518) (Fr)
Basic and diluted (note (ii)) EAR R BE (R (i) 0.04 0.60 (1.84) 033 0.41
Total comprehensive income BLAEE
(expenses) for the year ZHEE (i)
attributable to: 4B
Owners of the Company AREHEB A 227,451 (403,753)  (14,375,706) (4,978,617) (283,605)
Non-controlling interests RS 307 85 1,757 31 1,485
227,758 (403,668)  (14,373,949) (4,978,586) (282,120)
Final and interim dividends BRREBLPEBEERE
per share (HK cents) (&) - - - 2 2
—Eo=FER EABERgEE 2/3



FIVE-

YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY HF B KEHE

Summary of the results, assets and liabilities of the Group for the last five ~ASEEBRERF2EE  BEHABEHEZOAT :
years is as follows: (Cont'd) (48)
At 31 December
R+=B=+—H
2023 2022 2021 2020 2019
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TERT FET FAET FET FHT
Assets and liabilities EEREE
Total assets BELHE 18,545,466 19,434,515 21,597,070 37,469,379 48,311,789
Total liabilities BfREE (4,310,365) (5,431,672) (7,198,240) (8,689,129)  (14,721,428)
Total equity PRt 5 14,235,101 14,002,843 14,398,830 28,780,250 33,590,361
Attributable to: fE1G
Owners of the Company VN/NSIEFEPN 14,211,504 13,979,534 14,375,606 28,758,783 33,568,925
Non-controlling interests IR 23,597 23,309 23,224 21,467 21,436
14,235,101 14,002,843 14,398,830 28,780,250 33,590,361
Net asset value per share ARAEE ARG
attributable to owners of BREEFE
the Company (HK$) (7T 7.45 7.33 7.54 15.08 17.60
Number of shares issued BEITRHEE 1,907,619,079 1,907,619,079 1,907,619,079 1,907,619,079 1,907,619,079

Notes:

(i)

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group changed its
accounting policy for the presentation and classification in its consolidated
statement of comprehensive income of building management fee
income and property management services income (previously
presented in and classified as “Other Income”) and interest income
from bonds and other forms of debt securities and dividend income
from listed and unlisted equity investments (previously presented in and
classified as “Investment Income, Net"). Details of this change are set
out in Note 3 to the consolidated financial statements of 2020 annual
report of the Company. The amount of revenue as previously reported is
HK$538,986,000 for the year ended 31 December 2019.

The calculation of the basic and diluted earnings (loss) per share is
based on the profit (loss) attributable to owners of the Company for the
years and on the weighted average number of shares in issue during the
relevant years. Diluted earnings (loss) per share was the same as the
basic earnings (loss) per share as there were no potential ordinary shares
of the Company in issue during the relevant years.
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(i)

RNBE-_ZE-_EF+-_A=+—BHLLEFER -
AEERGEEHERERRFEFEREERA
EMEERRBBRACBEZ RSB A E M
WAD ~ BFREMERNZBBESZF WA
AR EMEIELTRAZREZRERACBESE
HRDBERIBERAFED 22 EDEEXR
E2HBE - FBLHIRARR ST ZFF
FRZEGEMBBRERMFIN - BHEZZT—NF
+Z A=+ BLFERFINBRIKASER
538,986,000/ T °

BEREAREERN (BB HIREBEEFEART
BEEARGRN(BR) RARFEDHITRMDZ
MEFHHEFE - HRARBWEBELE LB Z
BT MAMFEZESREERN (BB 2Ek
EARZN (BB AR -



SCHEDULE OF PRINCIPAL PROPERTIES
EEWEM R

The following table sets forth the Group’s major properties as at 31 December 2023:

TR AEEANR T _=F+_A=T—HZETEM*:

PROPERTIES IN HONG KONG

BRY=E

Properties held for investment FEREWH
Category of Group's
the lease interest
Location Lot number Usage term £H
1o B b B} 4R 5% Az HEE R it R
1. Harcourt House Certain parts or shares of and Commercial Long 100%
(excluding 7th, 8th, 9th, 22nd, in Inland Lot No. 8573 [HES R
23rd, 25th, 26th and 27th floors, P ER 85735 2
rooms 1004 and 1805) ETHHHMNE
39 Gloucester Road
Wanchai, Hong Kong
(including 113 car parking spaces)
ERAE
BHEH
HLITE39%
(7-8-9+22-23-25"
2612271 ~ 1004 % 1805E kR4
(BFEN3EBEA)
2. Causeway Place* Certain parts or shares of and Residential/ Long 100%
Various shops on ground floor, in Inland Lot No. 7742 Commercial =5
mezzanine floor, 1st and 2nd floors and R ERT7425.2 GRS
ATHDANE

their respective portions of exterior walls,
together with flats C, I, J, K, L, N, O, P, Q
(each including a flat roof) and H on 3rd floor
Hong Kong Mansion

nos. 1-7 Paterson Street and

nos. 2—10 Great George Street

Causeway Bay, Hong Kong

S0 3

BIERFE1-TR R

A RH2-105%

EBNE
T - B TERERETEENR
HRIHD ZIMEER

3#C-1 J KL N0 P-Q
(BRESEMNZTFE) MHEMN

* Certain shops have been sold

AETEADED
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SCHEDULE OF PRINCIPAL PROPERTIES FE¥Mi &k

PROPERTIES IN HONG KONG (contd)

Properties held for investment (Cont'd)

Location

o B

3. Nos. 14-18 Ma Kok Street*
Tsuen Wan, New Territories, Hong Kong
BEMALE
FSAHI4E18%

4. Nos. 86 and 88 Apliu Street
Sham Shui Po, Kowloon, Hong Kong
BENBERKE
MR 1786 12 885%

5. Various Portions of
No. 1 Hung To Road
Kwun Tong, Kowloon, Hong Kong
(comprising 391 workshop units and
77 car parking spaces)
LB
BEBIRE TEN
(BIE39VE TS EM R 771EER)

6. Olympian City 3
1 Hoi Wang Road
South West Kowloon, Hong Kong
(including certain private car parking spaces
and motorcycle parking spaces)
BigH =1
HEEENE
LB
(BEETALRERN
NEEBHEN)

7. Coronation Circle
1 Yau Cheung Road
South West Kowloon, Hong Kong
(including certain private car parking spaces
and motorcycle parking spaces)
REE
AT
FRMB15R
(BEETLREEML
NEEBHEN)

* Under redevelopment

B

BERYE

i

BEREWEGE)
Lot number Usage
B4R 5 A&
Tsuen Wan Town Industrial
Lot No. 128 I
ZETHER 1285
New Kowloon Inland Residential/
Lot Nos. 1702 and 1703 Commercial
MR FE/mE
1702 % 1703%
Certain parts or shares of and Industrial
in Kwun Tong Inland Lot No. 415 I
BUENIMER4155k 2
HETHBHME
Certain parts or shares of and Commercial
in Kowloon Inland Lot [HES
Nos. 11167 and 11168
BB HBER
11167% 1116852
BT DN EE
Certain parts or shares of and Commercial
in Kowloon Inland Lot No. 11073 [GES

BEAMIER 1107358 2
BT HoKNHEE
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Category of
the lease
term
HEER

Medium

&

Medium

]

Medium

FH

Medium

R

Medium

FH

Group’s
interest
£E
Frit &z

100%

100%

33.33%

25%

15%



PROPERTIES IN HONG KONG (contd)

Property held for development

Location Lot number

wE BRER

1. Kai Tak Project New Kowloon
Kai Tak Area 2A Inland Lot
Site 2 and Site 3 No. 6590
Kai Tak, Kowloon HhE
RMEER it
nERE 65908
WEEANE
BRI

*  Excluding government accommodation

TRERFEERE

Stage of
completion
TIEE

Design in
progress
Bt

e

SCHEDULE OF PRINCIPAL PROPERTIES

Expected
completion
date
BATIAH

Fourth quarter
of 2030
—3-%E

S

EBYEw

FIEREWE

Estimated

gross

Approximate floor area
sitearea  (square feet)
(square feet) that
BEEROH BEEER

(FAR) (FHR)
145,303 992,279*

EEMEKHE

Category of Group's
the lease interest
Usage term 58

R# BEHER Frft i

Residential/
Retail/
Government
Accommodation
fx/28/
BREERRE

Medium 10%
ik

Note: The land was acquired by tender through joint venture in September 2023. The land was handed over from the Government in

October 2023.

Mz : RCZB=ZFNAUNGERTREEAZ LN - BFER - -_=F+ ARHZ L -

—E-=EER
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SCHEDULE OF PRINCIPAL PROPERTIES FE¥Mi &k

PROPERTIES IN MAINLAND CHINA

Properties held for investment

Location

it 26

1. Hilton Beijing
1 Dongfang Road, North Dongsanhuan Road
Chaoyang District, Beijing
R AEEEE
ERmEGE
RZRIE - ROTEI1%

2. Oriental Place
9 East Dongfang Road, North Dongsanhuan Road
Chaoyang District, Beijing
REBEBRKE
ERTHGE
REIRILEE - W REKOHR

o B A it 4 2E
BEREWE
Category of
the lease
Usage term
A& HEER
Hotel Allocated*
e B8
Office Allocated*
g7 E ke

* Land use rights have been granted by way of allocation with unspecified expiry date.

T E I B R T U B E MR -
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Group’s
interest
-3
ARz

50%

50%



PROPERTIES IN THE UNITED KINGDOM

Properties held for investment

Location

bk

1. 120 Fleet Street*
116—129 Fleet Street
London, EC4, United Kingdom
Fleet Street 1205%*
EBEfRBECS
Fleet Street 116—1295%

2. 14 St George Street
14 St George Street
London, W1, United Kingdom
St George Street 145}
B i B
St George Street 1455

3. 61-67 Oxford Street and
11-14 Soho Street
61-67 (odd) Oxford Street and
11-14 Soho Street
London, W1, United Kingdom
Oxford Street 61-6755 &
Soho Street 11-145%
R W1
Oxford Street 61-675% (EE5%) &
Soho Street 11-145%

4. 11 and 12 St James’s Square and
14 to 17 Ormond Yard
11 and 12 St James's Square and
14 to 17 Ormond Yard
London, SW1Y 4LB, United Kingdom
St James’s Square 11 R 1255 &
Ormond Yard 14Z175;
HERIBSWIY 4LB
St James's Square 11} 1257 &
Ormond Yard 14Z 1755

* Under redevelopment

By

SCHEDULE OF PRINCIPAL PROPERTIES

=YETLk ) E S

BEREWE
Category of
the lease
Usage term
A& AEER
Commercial Freehold
[GES KAFERE
Commercial Freehold
EES KA FERE
Residential/ Freehold
Commercial KA FERE

£/
Commercial Freehold
EES KA ERE
TEC=FFR

EEMEKHE

Group's
interest
£H
iRz

100%

100%

100%

100%
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SCHEDULE OF PROPERTY DEVELOPMENT RIGHTS

S5 RS
PROPERTY IN HONG KONG

Property held for sale

BERYE
FH{E 4 B3

Approximate
saleable
floor area

(square feet)

Location Lot number BEAEEAH
I B b ER 4R 5% (EFR)
1. Grand Central New Kowloon 5,572*

33 Hip Wo Street Inland Lot No. 6514

Kwun Tong, Kowloon e

Hong Kong M ER65145%

B

BE

REEE

B FHT335%

* Certain residential units were contracted for sale as at 31 December 2023.

REZZ=F+_A=+—H BTEEELEITHHE -

Note: The property development rights were granted pursuant to development agreement with the Urban Renewal Authority.

MAE: MEERBIDREETREZRBILZERBHED
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Usage
RZ

Residential
x=

Group’s
interest

&
Frib R s

10%
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